FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

mitiCareMilliCare Franchising, LLC

(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)
6700 Forum Drive, Suite 150

Orlando, FL 32821

he Floor & Surface Care Experts 800-883-0154
www.MilliCare.com

The Floor & Surface Care Experts

The franchise offered is for a milliCareMilliCare® Floor & Textile Care business which will provide
interior finishes and interior furnishings, tile and grout, and related services in commercial, industriall,
and office properties.

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a new milliCareMilliCare® franchise is
$175,000198,500 to $200,500253,000. This includes $49,000-te-$-$54,000 that must be paid to us.

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other
information in plain English. Read this disclosure document and all accompanying agreements
carefully. You must receive this disclosure document at least 14 calendar--days before you sign a
binding agreement with, or make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the
proposed franchise sale. Note, however, that no governmental agency has verified the information
contained in this document.

You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another format that is more convenient for you.
To discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact David Wells at mitiCareMilliCare
Franchising, LLC, 6700 Forum Drive, Suite 150, Orlando, Florida 32821.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don’t rely on the disclosure
document alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your contract
and this disclosure document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this disclosure document can help you
make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide to Buying a
Franchise,” which can help you understand how to use this disclosure document, is available from the
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Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at
600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, D.C. 20580. You can also visit the FTC’s home page at
www.ftc.gov for additional information. Call your state agency or visit your public library for other
sources of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

Issuance Date: March-28,-2024,-as-Amended-June-27-2024April 1, 2025
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to find more
information:

QUESTION

WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can | earn?

Item 19 may give you information about outlet sales,
costs, profits and losses. You should also try to obtain this
information from others, like current and former
franchisees. You can find their names and contact
information in Item 20 or Exhibits “F” and “G.”

How much will | need to invest?

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the franchisor
or at the franchisor’s direction. Item 7 lists the initial
investment to open. ltem 8 describes the supplies you
must use.

Does the franchisor have the
financial ability to provide
support to my business?

Item 21, or Exhibit “B” includes financial statements.
Review these statements carefully.

Is the franchise system stable,
growing or shrinking?

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the number of
company-owned and franchised outlets.

Will my business be the only
mihCareMilliCare® Floor &
Textile Care business in my
area?

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in the franchise
agreement describe whether the franchisor and other
franchisees can compete with you.

Does the franchisor have a
troubled legal history?

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or its
management have been involved in material litigation or
bankruptcy proceedings.

What’s it like to be a
mihiCareMilliCare® Floor &
Textile Care franchisee?

Item 20 or Exhibits “F” and “G” list current and former
franchisees. You can contact them to ask about their
experiences.

What else should | know?

These questions are only a few things you should look for.
Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in this disclosure
document to better understand this franchise opportunity.
See the table of contents.
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What You Need to Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even if you
are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change its
manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to make
additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your franchise business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited group of
suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than similar items you could
buy on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a similar business
during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. Some examples may include
controlling your location, your access to customers, what you sell, how you market, and your hours of
operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the
franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you may have to
sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue to operate your
franchise business.

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a similar
business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord or other
creditors.

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to register before offering
or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that the state recommends the
franchise or has verified the information in this document. To find out if your state has registration
requirements, or to contact your state, use the agency information in Exhibit “A.”

Your state also may have laws and require special disclosures or amendments be made to your franchise
agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda. See the Table of Contents for the
location of the State Specific Addenda.
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise

Certain states require the following risk(s) be highlighted:

1. Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement requires you to resolve
disputes with the franchisor by mediation, arbitration and/or litigation only in
Florida:the city and state of our then-current National Headquarters (presently Orlando,
Florida). Out-of-state mediation, arbitration, or litigation may force you to accept a
less favorable settlement for disputes. It may also cost more to mediate, arbitrate, or
litigate with the franchisor in Fleridathe city and state of our then-current National
Headquarters (presently Orlando, Florida) than in your own state.

2. Mandatory Minimum Payments. You must make mandatory minimum royalty
payments or advertising fund payments regardless of your sales levels. —Your
inability to make these payments may result in termination of your franchise and
loss of your investment.

3. Short Operating History. The franchisor is at an early stage of development and
has limited operating history. -This franchise is likely to be a riskier investment than
a franchise in a system with a longer operating history. -

4. Financial Condition. The guarantor’s financial condition, as reflected in its
financial statements (see Item 21), calls into question the franchisor’s financial
ability to provide services and support to you.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State Specific Addenda” (if
any) to see whether your state require other risks to be highlighted.
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THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS APPLY ONLY TO TRANSACTIONS GOVERNED -BY THE

MICHIGAN FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW.

THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT

ARE SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING

PROVISIONS ARE IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE
VOID AND CANNOT BE ENFORCED AGAINST YOU.

1 Each of the following provisions is void and unenforceable if contained in any documents
relating to a franchise:

@ A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees.

(b) A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver,
or estoppel which deprives a franchisee of rights and protections provided in this act. This shall
not preclude a franchisee, after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling any and all claims.

2. A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise before the expiration of its
term except for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply with any
lawful provision of the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given written notice thereof
and a reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure such failure.

3. A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly
compensating the franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of expiration
of the franchisee’s inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings. Personalized materials which
have no value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings not reasonably
required in the conduct of the franchise business are not subject to compensation. This subsection applies
only if: (i) the term of the franchise is less than 5 years and (ii) the franchisee is prohibited by the franchise
or other agreement from continuing to conduct substantially the same business under another trademark,
service mark, trade name, logotype, advertising, or other commercial symbol in the same area subsequent
to the expiration of the franchise or the franchisee does not receive at least 6 months advance notice of
franchisor’s intent not to renew the franchise.

4. A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally
available to other franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This section does not
require a renewal provision.

5. A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state. This
shall not preclude the franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct
arbitration at a location outside this state.

6. A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a
franchise, except for good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from exercising a right of
first refusal to purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not limited to:

@) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor’s then current
reasonable qualifications or standards.

(b) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or sub-
franchisor.

.
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(c) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with
all lawful obligations.

(d) The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the
franchisor or to cure any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of the proposed
transfer.

7. A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not uniquely
identified with the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants to a franchisor a
right of first refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and conditions as a bona fide
third party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this subdivision prohibit a provision that grants
the franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a franchise for the market or appraised value of such assets
if the franchisee has breached the lawful provisions of the franchise agreement and has failed to cure the
breach in the manner provided in subdivision (c).

8. A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or
otherwise transfer its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless provision has
been made for providing the required contractual services.

If the franchisor’s most recent financial statements are unaudited and show a net worth of less than
$100,000.00, the franchisee may request the franchisor to arrange for the escrow of initial investment and other
funds paid by the franchisee until the obligations, if any, of the franchisor to provide real estate, improvements,
equipment, inventory, training or other items included in the franchise offering are fulfilled. At the option of
the franchisor, a surety bond may be provided in place of escrow.

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE ATTORNEY
GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR ENDORSEMENT BY
THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to:

State of Michigan
Department of Attorney General
CONSUMER PROTECTION DIVISION
Attention: Franchise
G. Mennen Williams Building
525 West Ottawa, 1st Floor
Lansing, Michigan 48909
Telephone Number: (517) 373-7117

.
MilliCare Floor & Textile Care
20242025 Franchise Disclosure Document Page | 7




TABLE OF CONTENTS

ITENM 4 BANK IDTCVY 4
T TV T O7 Y NT XYoot LI =l B ) -
ITE E INMTIAL EEE A
LI == A A BE= AN NI N B A ) S R s S I -
ITEMB6OTHER FE 5
HEVHO-OTH e e D T T T T T T =
ITEMZESTIMATED INITIAL INNVESTMENT Q
LELEL=LA ANNEN =1~ iu DR R A AV AR BN == = B A0 N BN BN VAR "=uy B B BN ==L~ gy By B 4 | == B B ) 4

ITEM O ER ANCHISEE S OBLIGATIONS 13
VI T I NI D O E RS/ A T OO e O
ITEMAO EINANCING 15
VIO LA B A O

< AN
TRAINING 15
AR R B A A~ O
ITEMAIA2 TERRITORY 10
LB =LA A BE" "T 3NN B == BN AN B B = B W ) <
ITEM I3 TRADEMARKS 22
LELEL=LA A = "L~ A B BV A Y == == B A F A | B Y I N = e ) =T

/

ITEM 1: THE FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES ... 10
ITEM 2 BUSINESS EXPERIENCE ..ottt 16
ITEM 32 LITIGATION L.ttt ettt sttt ettt et n et ae e 19
ITEM 4: BANKRUPTECY L.ttt 19
ITEM S INITIAL FEES L.ttt ettt 19
ITEM 6 OTHER FEES ... ..ottt 22
ITEM 7: ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT ..ottt 32
ITEM 8: RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES ..ot 36
ITEM 9 FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS ...ttt 39
ITEM 10: FINANCING ...ttt ettt 40
ITEM 11: FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS, AND TRAINING....... 41
ITEM 12: TERRITORY L.ttt 50
ITEM 13: TRADEMARKS ..ttt 54
ITEM 14: PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION. .....ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciiise 55
ITEM 15: OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE
BUSIINESS .t 56
milliCare

MilliCare Floor & Textile Care
20242025 Franchise Disclosure Document Page | 8




ITEM 16: RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL .....ccoocoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiii 57

ITEM 17: RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION .....cccccooviiiiiiiiiiciee 58
ITEM 18: PUBLIC FIGURES ... ittt 62
ITEM 19: FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS ....coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiesssestses s 62
ITEM 20: OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION ....coiuiiiiiiiiiiiiii it 65
ITEM 21: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. ...ttt 71
ITEM 22 CONTRACTS L.ttt sttt ettt et n st 71
ITEM 23: RECEIPTS . ...ttt 72
EXHIBITS:

A STATE ADMINISTRATORS AND AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS
B. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B-1 GUARANTEE OF PARENT

C. FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

D. CONVERSION ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
E—OPHONAGREEMENT

FE.  CONFIDENTIALITY AND NON-COMPETITION AGREEMENT
G-F. _ LIST OF FRANCHISEES

H.G.  LIST OF FRANCHISEES WHO HAVE LEFT THE SYSTEM

EH. FRANCHISEE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION

&l STATE ADDENDA

KJ. FORM OF GENERAL RELEASE

LK. STATE EFFECTIVE DATES

i
MilliCare Floor & Textile Care
20242025 Franchise Disclosure Document Page | 9




ITEM1
: THE FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES

To simplify the language in this disclosure document, “we” or “our” or “us” or “Company” means the
franchisor, mitiCareMilliCare Franchising, LLC. “You” means the person or the legal entity (such as a
corporation, partnership, or limited liability company) that enters into the franchise agreement (“Franchise
Agreement”) and its owners.

The Franchisor, Parents, Predecessors, and Affiliates

We are_a Delaware limited liability company formed on January 31, 2022, with our principal business
address at 6700 Forum Drive, Suite 150, Orlando, FL 32821 and we conduct business under our corporate name
and our proprietary marks, including the mark “mitiCareMilliCare Floor & Textile Care™.”

Our parent is mitiCareMilliCare, Inc., a Delaware corporation formed on September 17, 2021, with its
principal business address at 6700 Forum Drive, Suite 150, Orlando, FL 32821. Our predecessor is Milliken
Services, LLC, a South Carolina limited liability company that was formed on or about January 1, 2011. Prior
to 2017, Milliken Service, LLC’s franchising division did business under the name mitiCareMilliCare Textile
and Carpet Care. The franchising division’s name was changed to reflect its recent expansion into the
performance coatings and tile and grout cleaning and maintenance businesses. Until January 1, 2011, the
MilliCare business was a division of Sylvan Chemical Co., Inc.., a Delaware corporation formed in 1967.
Effective January 1, 2011, Sylvan spun off the milliCareMilliCare business and several other businesses into our
predecessor. -From 2011 to 2021, Milliken Services, LLC was the franchisor of the mitiiCareMilliCare Floor &
Textile franchise system.

On or about November 12, 2021, our parent miiCareMilliCare, Inc. acquired the assets of Milliken
Services, Inc.’s MilliCare Floor & Textile Care franchise system. -mitiCareMilliCare, Inc.’s parent is Clintar,
Inc. d/b/a EverSmith Brands (“EverSmith Brands”), a Delaware corporation formed on July 2, 2021, with an
address at 6700 Forum Drive, Suite 150, Orlando, FL 32821. We began offering MilliCare Floor & Textile Care
franchises on February 16, 2022. We do not operate a business of the type being offered in this disclosure
document. We have not conducted business in any other line of business or offered franchises in any other line
of business. We have no other business activities. The Company’s agents for service of process are set forth in
Exhibit A.

EverSmith Brands’ parent is EverSmith Brands Intermediate Holding Company (f/k/a Clintar
Intermediate Holding Company), a Delaware corporation formed on November 25, 2020, and EverSmith Brands
Holding Company (f/k/a Clintar Holding Company), a Delaware corporation formed on November 25, 2020,
each with an address of 6700 Forum Drive, Suite 150, Orlando, FL 32821. -EverSmith Brands Holding Company
(f/k/a Clintar Holding Company) is directly or indirectly controlled by Riverside Micro-Cap Fund V, L.P. and
Riverside Micro-Cap Fund V-A, L.P. which are part of The Riverside Company, a global private equity firm
focused on investing in and acquiring growing businesses and it maintains its principal business address at 45
Rockefeller Center, 630 Fifth Avenue, Suite 400, New York, NY 10111.
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-Through various private equity funds managed by The Riverside Company the following portfolio
companies of The Riverside Company offer franchises in the United States:

EverSmith Brands

U.S. Lawns, Inc. (“U.S Lawns”) has offered franchises under the mark “U.S. Lawns” since August 1986.
U.S. Lawns’ principal business address is 6700 Forum Drive, Suite 150, Orlando, FL 32821. A U.S. Lawn

franchise offers outdoor commercial property and landscaping services. As of December 31, 2024, U.S. Lawns
had 210 franchises operating in the United States.

MilliCare Franchising, LLC (“MilliCare”) and its predecessors have offered franchises since January 2011.
MilliCare’s principal business address is 6700 Forum Drive, Suite 150, Orlando, FL 32821. A MilliCare franchise
offers cleaning and maintenance of floor coverings and interior finishes and related services under the mark
“milliCare Floor & Textile Care.” As of December 31, 2024, MilliCare had 59 franchises operating in the United
States.

Kitchen Guard Franchising, Inc.

(“Kitchen Guard”) has offered franchises since August 2023. Kitchen Guard’s principal business address is
6700 Forum Drive, Suite 150, Orlando, FL 32821. A Kitchen Guard franchise offers commercial kitchen exhaust
system cleaning, inspection, maintenance, and restoration services. As of December 31, 2024, Kitchen Guard had
5 franchises operating in the United States.

Restoration Specialties Franchise Group, LLC (“Prism Specialties”) has offered franchises since April 2012
and in September 2021 the franchises have operated under the mark “Prism Specialties.” Prism Specialties’
principal business address is 6700 Forum Drive, Suite 150, Orlando, FL 32821. A Prism Specialties franchise

i

MilliCare Floor & Textile Care

20242025 Franchise Disclosure Document Page |
11




offers electronic, art, textile, and document recovery, repair, and restoration services. As of December 31, 2024,
Prism Specialties had 93 franchisees operating in the United States.

Our affiliate TruServe Groundscare, Inc. is an Ontario corporation formed on January 1, 2008, with an
address at 200 Cachet Wood Court, Unit 119. Markham, ON, Canada L6C 0Z8, offers outdoor commercial
property service franchises under the “Clintar Commercial Outdoor Services” mark in Canada. Our affiliate and
its predecessor have offered Clintar Commercial Outdoor Services franchises since 1982. As of December 31,
2024, there were 23 franchised Clintar Commercial Outdoor Services businesses operating in Canada.

The Seals Franchising, LLC (“The Seals”) has offered franchises since August 2019. The Seals’ principal
business address is 6700 Forum Drive, Suite 150, Orlando, FL 32821. A The Seals franchise offers the sale and
installation of gaskets for refrigeration door units, freezer doors, oven doors, hardware and cutting board. As of
December 31, 2024, The Seals had 4 franchises operating in the United States.

Evive Brands

Executive Home Care Franchising, LLC (“Executive Care”) has offered franchises under the mark
“Executive Home Care” since June 2013. Executive Home Care’s principal business address is 8100 E. Indian
School Road, Suite 201, Scottsdale, AZ 85251. An Executive Home Care franchise offers in-home comprehensive
care and medical services to home care clients, and supplemental healthcare staffing services to institutional
clients. -As of December 31, 20242023, Executive Care had -2122 franchises operating in the United States.

B & P Burke, LLC (“B&P”) has offered franchises under the mark “Grasons” since May 2014. -B&P’s
principal business address is 8100 E. Indian School Road, Suite 201, Scottsdale, AZ 85251. -A Grasons franchise
offers estate sale and business liquidation services. -As of December 31, 20242023, B&P had 3161 franchises
operating in the United States.

ALL Franchising, LLC (“ALL”) and its predecessors have offered franchises under the mark “Assisted
Living Locators” since May 2006. -ALL’s principal business address is 8100 E. Indian School Road, Suite 201,
Scottsdale, AZ 85251.- An Assisted Living Locators franchise assist seniors and their families in locating assisted
living facilities, memory care communities, nursing homes, senior care homes and independent living senior
communities. As of December 31, 20242023, ALL had 134162 franchises operating in the United States.

Brothers Parsons Franchising LLC (“Brothers”) and its predecessor have offered franchises under the mark
“The Brothers that just do Gutters” since July 2015. -Brothers’ principal business address is 8100 E. Indian School
Road, Suite 201, Scottsdale, AZ 8525. -A “The Brothers that just do Gutters” franchise provides gutter
installation, maintenance, cleaning, repair, and related services and products. -As of December 31, 20242023,
Brothers had 93355 franchises operating in the United States.

Head-to-Toe Brands

BCC Franchising, LLC (“BCC”) and its predecessor have offered franchises since March 2007 under the
mark “Bishops”. -BCC’s principal business address is Ferminal-Fower50-Public Square 29" FloorCleveland;
OH-44113.-550 Reserve Street, Suite 380, Southlake, TX 76092. A Bishops franchise offers haircuts, coloring,
and barber services. As of December 31, 20242023, BCC had 40 franchises operating in the United States.

.
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Frenchies, LLC (“Frenchies”) has offered franchises under the mark “Frenchies Modern Nail Care” since
April 2015. -Frenchies’ principal business address is 2679-West-Main,#363,-Littleton,-CO-80120-550 Reserve
Street, Suite 380, Southlake, TX 76092. A Frenchies Modern Nail Care franchise offers hand and foot care. -As
of December 31, 20242023, Frenchies had 2223 franchisees operating in the United States.

The Lash Franchise Holdings, LLC (“Lash”) and its predecessor has offered franchises under the mark “Lash
Lounge” since March 2010. -Lash’s principal business address is 4370-\arsity-Drive550 Reserve Street, Suite &
Ann-Arber-MI-48108380, Southlake, TX 76092. A Lash Lounge franchise offers permanent and temporary
eyelash and eyebrow extensions and other eye--enhancing services. -As of December 31, 20242023, Lash had
127140 Lash Lounge franchises-eperating in the United States.

Best Life Brands

Blue Moon Franchise Systems, LLC (“Blue Moon”) has offered franchises under the mark “Blue Moon
Estate Sales” since August 2013. -Blue Moon’s principal business address is 900 Wilshire Drive, Suite 102, Troy,
MI 48084. A Blue Moon franchise sells personal property as well as the provision of consignment sales for those
who are downsizing, relocating, or are deceased. As of December 31, 20242023, Blue Moon had 92124 franchises
in operation in the United States.

Boost Franchise Systems, LLC (“Boost”) has offered franchises under the mark “Boost Home Healthcare:
since July 2021. -Boost’s principal business address is 900 Wilshire Drive, Suite 102,Troy, MI 48084. A Boost
franchise offers intermittent care ordered by a doctor and performed by a home health aide and other licensed
healthcare providers to patients of all ages with acute and chronic long term complex health conditions within the
patient’s residence or within health care facilities. -As of December 31, 20242023, Boost had 6 franchises in
operation in the United States.

ComForCare Franchise Systems, LLC (“ComForCare”) and its predecessor has offered franchise under the
mark “ComForCare Home Care” since April 2021. -ComForCare’s principal business address is 900 Wilshire
Drive, Suite 102, Troy, Ml 48084. A ComForCare Home Healthcare franchise offers (i) companionship and
personal/domestic care services, and other special needs services, primarily on a non-medical basis, for seniors
and people of all ages so that they may remain in their residences, (ii) supplemental healthcare staffing services
for persons who need this kind of assistance in their home or a facility in which they reside, and (iii) private duty
nursing services. As of December 31, 20242023, ComForCare had 218248 franchises operating in the United
States.

CarePatrol Franchise Systems, LLC (“CarePatrol”) and its predecessor has offered franchises under the
“CarePatrol” mark since April 2009. -CarePatrol’s principal address is 900 Wilshire Drive, Suite 102, Troy, MI
48084.- A CarePatrol franchise offers senior living placement, referral, and consulting services to families. -As of
December 31, 20232024, CarePatrol had 166201 Care Patrol franchises operating in the United States._

Next Day Access, LLC (“Next Day”) has offered franchises under the “Next Day Access: mark since 2012.
Next Day’s principal business address 1s900 Wilshire Drive, Suite 102, Troy, MI 48084. A Next Day Access
franchise offers ramps and other products and accessories that enhance the life of physically disabled or
challenged persons. As of December 31, 2024, Next Day had 50 franchises operating in the United States.

.
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Threshold Brands

Maid Pro Franchise, LLC -(“MaidPro”) has offered franchises under the “Maid Pro” mark since February
1997. -MaidPro’s principal business address is -77 North Washington Street, Boston, MA 02114.- A Maid Pro
franchise offers home cleaning services for residential and commercial customers. As of December 31, 26232024,
MaidPro had 244237 franchises operating in the United States.

Men In Kilts US, LLC (“MIK”) has offered franchises under the mark “Men in Kilts” since March 2019.
MIK’s principal place of business is 77 North Washington Street, Boston, MA 02114.- A Men in Kilts franchise
offers window cleaning, gutter cleaning, pressure washing, siding cleaning, snow removal and other related
services. As of December 31, 26232024, MIK had 4823 franchises operating in the United States.

Pestmaster Franchise Network, LLC ("Pestmaster") and its predecessor has offered franchises under the
“Pestmaster” mark since June 2021. -Pestmaster’s principal business address is 9716 South Virginia Street, Suite
E, Reno, NV 89511.- A Pestmaster franchise offers structural and agricultural pest control and related services.
As of December 31, 20232024, Pestmaster had 5157 franchises operating in the United States.

USA Insulation Franchise, LLC (“USA Insulation”) has offered franchises under the “USA Insulation” mark
since March 2006. -USA Insulation’s principal business address is 17700 Saint Clair Avenue, Cleveland, OH
44110. -A USA insulation franchise offers residential insulation services. As of December 31, 20232024, USA
Insulation had 98109 franchises operating in the United States.

Granite Garage Floors Franchising, LLC (“Granite”) has offered franchises under the mark “Granite Garage
Floors” since June 2013. -Granite’s principal business address is 110 Mansell Circle, Suite 375, Roswell, GA
30075,- A Granite Garage Floors franchise sells and installs residential garage floor coating systems. As of
December 31, 20232024, Granite had 1455 franchises operating in the United States.

Mold Medics Franchising LLC (“Mold Medics”) has offered franchises under the “Mold Medics” mark
since December 2020. -Mold Medics’ principal business address is 811 Washington Avenue, Carnegie, PA 15106.
A Mold Medics franchise offers mold remediation, air duct cleaning, radon testing and mitigation services, and
other services and products. As of December 31, 20232024, Mold Medics had 16 franchise operating in the United
States.

Sir Grout Franchising, LLC (“Sir Grout”) has offered franchises under the “Sir Grout” mark since August
.
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2007. -Sir Grout’s principal business address is 77 North Washington Street, Boston, MA 02114.- A Sir Grout
franchise offers grout and tile cleaning, sealing, caulking and restoration services and other services. -As of
December 31, 20232024, Sir Grout had 5271 franchises operating in the United States.

Miracle Method LLC (“Miracle”) and its predecessors have offered franchises under the “Miracle Method”
mark since September 1996. -Miracle’s principal business address is 4310 Arrowswest Drive, Colorado Springs,
CO 80907.- A Miracle Method franchise offers refinishing and restoration of bathtubs, sinks, showers, tiles,
countertops, and similar surfaces. As of December 31, 20232024, Miracle Method had 473201 franchises and 2
master franchises operating in the United States.

PHP Franchise, LLC (“PHP”) has offered plumbing service franchises under the mark ‘“Plumbing Paramedics” and
heating and air conditioning installation and service franchises operating under the mark “Heating + Air

Paramedics” since November 2021. PHP’s principal business address is 750 E. 150th Street. Noblesville, IN 46060.
As of December 31, 2024, PHP had 15 Plumbing Paramedics and 14 Heating + Air Paramedics franchises

operating in the United States.
The Franchise Offered

The Company franchises a business for the cleaning and maintenance of floor coverings, interior finishes and
interior furnishings, the application of performance floor coatings, tile and grout cleaning and maintenance
services, and related services under our trademark, distinctive logo, identifying commercial symbol or design
“mitiCareMilliCare®,” the service mark and name “mhCareMilliCare®,” or accompanying distinctive logo
for interior maintenance and such other marks as we authorize from time to time (the “Marks”). All these
services are provided with respect to commercial, industrial, and office properties (collectively, the
“mithCareMilliCare® Services System” or the “Franchised Business”). You must provide (1) cleaning,
maintenance, and protective treatment of carpet; (2) cleaning, maintenance, and protective treatment of textile
panels and upholstery; (3) floor and other performance coatings services, (4) tile and grout cleaning and
maintenance services; (5) Enhanced Hygiene Services and (6) advisory services to specified clients with the
Company’s written consent (which may include consulting services and the sale of performance coatings and
additional maintenance products, including the Company’s proprietary or private-labeled performance coatings
and maintenance products) (collectively, the “Services”). The Company reserves the right to introduce new
Services or eliminate any current or other Services during the term of the Franchise Agreement as part of the
mihCareMilliCare® Services System, provided that any new Services must relate solely to cleaning,
maintenance, and related services for commercial, industrial, and office properties. You must provide all
Services that the Company requires and approves for your franchise. You may not provide Services to residential
customers.

Franchisees that convert an existing commercial floor and textile maintenance business to a Franchised Business
and qualify for our conversion program (a “Conversion Business”) are entitled to modified fees and are required
to sign the form of Conversion Addendum to Franchise Agreement attached as Exhibit “D” to this disclosure
document.

The current Services that are part of the milliCareMilliCare® Services System are based upon a complete
commercial office care system, which includes net-enhythe fameus—mithiCareMilliCare® dry maintenance
chemistries and processes and additional proprietary processes, but-alseas well as other performance coatings

and tile and grout cleaning and maintenance processes;-and-other-matntenance-processes..

.
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The Market FerThefor the Services

The general market for the services that you will offer is highly competitive and consists of all
commercial, industrial, and office buildings within your designated territory (“Territory”). See ltem 12 for
more information about your Territory.

Your competitors will include both independent and licensed cleaning, performance coatings and
maintenance companies, as well as flooring companies that provide these cleaning, performance coatings, and
maintenance services, and may include us or other mitiCareMilliCare® franchisees.

Industry-Specific Regulations

The Franchised Business will be subject to federal, state, county, and municipality laws and regulations.
You must investigate all applicable laws and regulations, andas well as your cost to comply with such laws and
regulations, and you should do so before purchasing a franchise from us.

The chemical products and supplies that are used in the services you will offer willare to
be accompanied by Material Safety Data Sheets that specify the proper storage, handling, and disposal of these
products. OSHA and health regulations as well as other state and local specific safety and workplace regulations
may affect the types of safety devices and equipment you must make available to or be required to offer to your
employees. -These can vary from jurisdiction to jurisdiction and specific inquiry should be made with your state
and local authorities.

-Except as provided above, we are not aware of any specific laws or regulations that apply to this
industry.

ITEM 2 BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Chief Executive Officer and Director: Ken Hutcheson

Ken Hutcheson has served as our CEO since May 7, 2024, and holds the same position in EverSmith Brands and
with each of our affiliates. -Mr. Hutcheson also serves as President of our affiliate U.S. Lawns, Inc., located in
Orlando, Florida, a position he has held since 2005.

President & Chief Operating Officer: Justin Ghadery

Justin Ghadery has served as our President since March 2025 and as our Chief Operating Officer since

September 2024 ; he holds this same position for EverSmith Brands and with each of our affiliates. Mr.
Ghadery served as the Interim Brand President for Prism Specialties from October 2024 to March

2025, and for Kitchen Guard from November 2024 to March 2025. Mr. Ghadery has served on the
Board of Advisors for Best Life Brands since September 2022 and on the International Franchise
Association’s Veteran Affairs Committee since January 2023. From December 2021 through August
2022, Mr. Ghadery served as the Chief Operating Officer for Afterburn Holdings, an Orangetheory
Fitness area developer in Houston, Texas. Mr.

Ghadery served as Title Boxing Club’s Chief Operating Officer in Culver City, California, from January 2021 to

.
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December 2021. From September 2016 to September 2020, Mr. Ghadery served as Senior Executive Vice President
at Gold’s Gym in Dallas, Texas.

Chief Financial Officer: JehnCappadenaKeri Thoma

John-CappadonaKeri Thoma has served as our Chief Financial Officer since February-2024January 2025 and holds
the same position in EverSmith Brands and with each of our affiliates.- PreV|oust, Ms. ThomaM#Gappadena

served as the-Chief Financial Officer =
2024and Chief People Officer for Concierge Home Care in Jacksonwlle Florlda from November 2020 to
December 2024. From March 2019 to October 2020, Ms. Thoma served as Chief Financial Officer and Chief
Administrative Officer for Shearwater Health in Nashville, Tennessee.

Director—Franchise-Kara Garcia: Brand Leader

Kara Garcia has served as our Brand Leader since May 2024. Prior to this, Ms. Garcia served as VP of
Organizational Development at Smash My Trash, located in Carmel, Indiana, from August 2023 to May 2024;
previously, she served there as Director of Training and Corporate Development from September 2021 to August
2023 and as Franchise Business Consultant from January 2021 to September 2021. Before this, she was Director of
Franchise Development at ICRYP Franchise Systems in Houston, Texas from August 2015 to January 2021.

Senior Vice President, Brand Development: David Wells

David Wells has served as our Director—FranchiseSenior Vice President, Brand Development since May
ZJune 2024- and holds the same position in EverSmith Brands and with each of our affiliates since May
2024. Mr. Wells alse-serves-as-\ice-Presidentofspent the prior six years with our affiliate, U.S. Lawns, e
located-in Orlando, Florida, a-pesitiorwhere he has-held-sineceserved as Vice President, Brand Development

from February 2022 to May 2024 ;- Me—\Wells-previeusly-served-ast-S—Tawn’s Senior Director of Brand
Development from January 2021 to February 2022-—Prierte-this-pesition;-he-was U-S—awns; Tnes; and
Senlor Dlrector of Franchlse Recrumng from Sep%ember—ZG}Z—t&Aprll 2017—me5&ptembep’,_10}2—teApH4
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2021.
Chairman- and- Director:-Fem-Sitk Michael Eblin

Fem-SHkMike Eblin has served as a director since January-2024-February 2025. Mr. SHkEDblin has served as
Chairman of our parent’s Board of Dlrectors and as a dlrector of our afflllates since J&nuapy—2924—m
addition;February 2025. Mr.

Ihresheld—B#ands—dlselesed—abe\e—PFeweusly—'FemEblln has served as Gh&wman—fer—'FEééeluﬂens—m

tr:em—\]anuapy—zGi%JeeApHJ—zezzCEO of Clearlake LLCin Glendale Arlzona since Aprll 2014

Director: Brian Sauer

Brian Sauer has served as a director since our inception and in the same capacity for our parent company since
September 2021 and EverSmith Brands since July 2021. Mr. Sauer also serves in the same capacity for our
affiliates TruServ Groundscare, Inc. since September 2021, Kitchen Guard Franchising, Inc. since its inception
and, U.S. Lawns, Inc. since January 2024, and Prism Specialties since June 2024. Mr. Sauer is a senior partner
in The Riverside Company, in its Santa Monica, California offices and has been with the company since 2004.

ITEM 3: LITIGATION

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEM 4: BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcy information is required to be disclosed in this Item.
ITEM 5 INITIAL FEES

Albinitial fees-are-due-whenyou-sign-the-Franchise Agreement-and-are-nonrefundable:

On the date you sign the Franchise Agreement, you must pay an Initial Franchise Fee to the Company of $49,000. We
are currently offering a discount on purchasing an additional MilliCare Franchise Agreement. If you buy additional
Franchise Agreements at the same time as your first, you’ll receive a $9.000 discount on the Initial Franchise Fee for
each additional Franchise Agreement. If you are approved to purchase an additional MilliCare franchise after at least
one year of operating experience and provided that you also meet our current expansion requirements (as outlined in
Item 12), you may receive a 50% discount on the then-current Initial Franchise Fee. However, you will still need to

i
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pay the current rates for the Initial Package. Please note that we reserve the right to discontinue this offer at any time,
and any such change will be reflected in the then-current FDD. We reserve the right to reduce the Initial Franchise
Fee for rural, secondary markets and/or for conversions of existing businesses that offer similar services.

In our most recent fiscal year, we had one sale; the existing Franchisee paid an Initial Franchise Fee of $35,000 to
exercise a right to option.

From time to time, we may offer incentive programs to prospective franchisees for a limited time basis. Occasionally,
we may establish various franchise expansion programs, which are generally, but not exclusively, available only to
existing franchise owners to provide incentives to franchisees to expand their existing franchise territories or service
lines. These programs, which are established and maintained at our sole discretion, and uniformly offered to similarly
situated prospects or franchisees, may include reduced or rebated fees or certain credits.

Conversion ProgramPrograms

If you currently operate a business similar to athe Franchised Business, and you achieved-a-minimum-of $200.000-
inrevenuecan substantiate sales from your existing-commercial account customers within the full 12-month period

before the month l-FI—Wh-I-Gh—yOU sign the Franchlse Agreement then you may be eI|g|bIe for the Conver5|on
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Grand-OpeningVeteran Discount

We participate in the Veterans Transition Franchise Initiative (commonly referred to as “VetFran’), which seeks to
provide opportunities for veterans who want to be in business. If you are a veteran of the U.S. Armed Forces who has
been honorably discharged (such as DD214), you may be eligible to receive a $5,000 discount off the Initial Franchise
Fee for the first Franchise awarded to you.

Local Advertising

You must engage in grand-epening-advertising-Local Advertising of $1,000 per month forat least 60 days prior to
the #Fst—yeapeieperanens penlng as we may dlrect (your “Gmnd—@pemngLocal Advertlsmg Spend”) ¥eushea+dr

thpeeumemh&eﬁepeﬁanen&Thereafter vou WI|| be requwed to spend $1 000 gach month as we mav dlrect While
we reserve the right to collect yourGrand-Opening-Advertising-Spend-and-expendthese funds and spend it on your

behalf, we currently only require it to be spent. You may spend additional amounts on other pre-opening
advertising that is arranged or approved by us.

Referral Fee

Currenthy-we-offerWe pay a referral incentive-program-thatpays-$10,000-fee (“Referral Fee”) to an-existing-
franchisee-who-directhyrefers-a-any of our current franchisees or those of any affiliated brand if they are the first to

refer a new candidate to us who executesmeets our gqualifications and signs a mitiCarefranchise-agreementfora-
new-lecatienFranchise Agreement within six (6) months of the date of referral. FheCurrently, the Referral Fee is
$10,000 for each successful referral. This incentive payment is only paid with-respect-tofor the first franchise
purchased by the referred new franchisee, and other limitations may apply. We may change or eliminate the referral
program at any time without notice. Franchisees participating in the referral program are not our sales agents and
are not authorized to make any statements on our behalf, including any statements related to the financial
performance or prospect for success of any franchise._

All fees disclosed in Item 5 are earned by us upon receipt and are non-refundable.

i
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ITEM 6 OTHER FEES

flooring surfaces, and
for sales of any other
products or services
marketed or performed
under the Marks--

During-the-first-24-

operating.—(See-Notes-
1-&2); or (ii) the
Minimum Royalty
amount, whichever is
greater.

otherwise as we
may direct from
time-to-time.

Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks

(Note 1) (Note 2)

Royalty Varies due to services Hi%th day of 7| In certain circumstances, we may
as follows: (i) 6% of collect a Minimum Monthly Royalty

. e, nexteach month - -
Gross ReceiptsBillings based-onfor the from you. For a Conversion Business,
for sales of products . you may qualify for reduced royalty
and services | rateesrates in the first two years of
associated with the e operation. Otherwise, the standard
. . month’s-Gross .

cleaning, maintenance ReceiptsBillings royal_ty rate gpplles to other Gross
::mdt _rlestoradflolrll of for the p—g_revi . ReeeiptsBillings. (Notes 1 & 2)
extiles and a month, or

Promotional Fund

2% of your Gross

(Note 3)

Billings (Note 3)

Same as royalty

Payable at the same time as the

Royalty Fee

-
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Type of Fee
(Note 1)

Amount

Due Date
(Note 2)

Remarks

Technology Fee

The then-current fee

On the 15" of

Payable at the same time as the

(currently, $499 per

gach month, or

Royalty Fee. Additional licenses are at

month), which may

otherwise as we

your request. Includes access to our

be increased
periodically up to the

may direct from

suite of Software. We reserve the right

time-to-time.

greater of the fee (or
aggregate fees) any
vendor charges us or
an affiliate for your
technology services,
which may include a
fee based on
percentage of sales.
Additional licenses
may be requested for a

fee.

to vary the cost based on the services
that you request. (Note 4).

As incurred on the

We have an annual conference. You

Annual Varies, currently, $0 -
Conference and $3,975 a year plus
Mandatory On- travel expenses

Going Training

date we specify

are also required to have and maintain

IICRC certifications. (Note 6)

Reqgional Account

Variable, although the

Will be deducted

We will administer and manage the

Management Fee

current range of the

from amounts

fee is 1%-10% of the

owed to you for

fees paid by the
regional account

See Note 7

Regional Accounts

Work

Regional Accounts program.

Transfer Fee

The then-current
transfer fee. Currently,

As incurred.
Before transfer.

No Transfer fee is due if the transfer is
to an entity controlled by you.

$15,000 for the first
agreement (reduced to

$5,000 if sold to an
existing Franchisee)
plus $2,500 for each
additional franchise
agreement transferred
in the same
transaction.

However, you must pay a $500
administrative fee. The Transfer Fee
will not increase by more than 5% in
any calendar year.

i
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Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
(Note 1) (Note 2)
Resale Assistance | An amount equal to As incurred. Payable by you if we find a buyer for
Fee the greater of (i) Before transfer your franchise. See Note 8.
$10,000; or (ii) our
actual costs, including
but not limited to any
broker commission
that may be incurred,
due, or required
arising from the
transfer
Renewal Fee You must pay us the At the time of If you elect to renew the franchise,
then-current fee, renewal sign the then-current Franchise
which is presently Agreement and sign a Release. Each
$5,000 not to exceed term is for a period of ten (10 years).
20% of the then- The Renewal Fee will not be more
current Initial than 20% of the then-current Initial
Franchise Fee. Franchise Fee.
Supplier and Our costs When billed In the event you wish us to approve a
Equipment Testing particular supplier, item of equipment,
or supply item, you will reimburse us
for our costs of testing or inspecting
new suppliers or equipment.
Failure to Our costs, together When billed If you fail to obtain or maintain any
Maintain with interest at the insurance that is required under the
Insurance Fee lower of 3% above the Franchise Agreement, we may obtain
prime interest rate the required insurance at your sole
charged by our primary cost and expense.
bank and the
maximum rate
permitted by
applicable law, from
the date the expense is
incurred until the date
We receive payment.
Py 5 — : I : I
i 7
Fune-(Note-3) the-first-2 |ne||tl_s and-206-of
(Nete-4)
I%eunbul_semen tof-our e_e'sts e_I Spen-inveiee Payable——audit
€0 d. o cting—the —addit—H
additior te. any—tate-payment K de|st_ate|ne| ; :
Promotional—Fund
contributions-or
other—amounts—due
mithiCare
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to-the-Company
i | 6)
Expegses-wmle
Training
Annual $0--$3,975-a year{Note 7) As-incurred-onthe date-
Conference—and we-specify
Sont— oA
Fype-otfee Amount Due Date
Hires
- l —— T ﬁ I
Due-Amounts amountallewed-by-applicable- to-the-Company-are-past
¥ 2 e .
agreement. renewal-franchise
.- I ol
e
item, 1L rei
us-for-our-costs-of testing-
. .
ot s_peetl ghew .
I , — - stpplie > OF egutpet :
;Hl EQIStS tegﬁetg ':e' "I"'H' "'IEE'ESt When-billed H you I_eul 0 e_bteun o
aintal S I | mau_ntan ARy IRSUFAnEe
! ittod | . .
-. . ! until I .
we-receive payment:
.
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Management Fee

Currently 15% of
Gross Sales plus

Payable weekly
out of Franchise

The Management Fee is paid to us in
the event we exercise our right to step

circumstances.

eXpenses. proceeds. in and operate your Franchised
Business in certain circumstances,
including your default, death,
disability or prolonged absence. The
reimbursable expenses include travel,
lodging and meals.
Audit 100% of understated Upon invoice Payable if audit shows an
royalty plus interest at understatement exceeding
the maximum rate 2% of royalties, Promotional
allowable by law (not Fund contributions or
to exceed 18% per other amounts due to the Company.
year), as well as See Note 9.
reimbursement of the
cost of the audit.
Interest/NSF Fees | Interest: 18% per year | Upon invoice This applies to all overdue
or the highest amount fees/payments and reports you owe us
allowed by applicable or for NSF. Applies to
law, whichever is less. understatements in amounts revealed
NSF Fee: currently by audit or otherwise. See Note 10.
$55 per payment
returned by the bank
for non-sufficient
funds.
Enfarcement Wihvany-If you are As incurred- You-must pay-our-casts of-
CostsNon- not compliant with the cpforecmenttneludingatormesHoes
compliance Fees Franchise Agreement, and-costs)-iyou-do-notcomplywith-
in addition to any the-Franchise-Agreement-See Note 11.
other remedies, there
is a non-compliance
fee of up to $1,000 per
occurrence.
Costs and Will vary under the As incurred See Note 12.
Attorney’s Fees circumstances
Indemnification Will vary under As incurred See Note 13.

Except for the product and service purchases described in Item 8 and as otherwise noted in- this Item 6, all
fees are uniformly imposed and collected by and payable to us and are non-refundable._

@ “Gross ReceiptsBillings” means the gross amount billed by you during any calendar
month, whether or not payment is received therefore, on account of al-meney—and-the-valueApproved
i ou, di indi i and on
account of any and all other related goods seld-and services sold or rendered under or in connection with
thefranchisedyour use of the Marks (including the sale of unauthorized goods and services), and including
work performed for or on behalf of persons or bu5|ness—\A,tIcus‘tltuelL entltles WhICh are customers of yours as
Pof the Effective Date.
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Gross Billings exclude sales taxes and-simarcharges—and-{i-the-amount-of-any-incorrect-salesamount;

aHowanees—and—dﬁeoentsJeocustomersrcollected and &H}—revenees—trom—pro\%—ser\ﬂees—ander—@

R—GGEI-B{SBI”Ing s” does not 1nclude—él—) proceeds from any busmess identified on Exhibit B to the Franchise
Agreement and which is operated in accordance Wlth Sectlon 3.3 of the Franchlse Agreement—&r—}amounts

&) The continuing royalty and license fee (the “Royalty”) will equal 56% of Gross
ReceiptsBillings for sales of products and services associated with the cleaning, maintenance and
restoration of textiles and all roorlng surfaces, and for sales of any other products or services marketed or
performed under the Marks-a-the ; A . A Royalkty

.(2) You must pay a m|n|mum monthly Royalty for each Terrltory you own. Payment of the

minimum monthly Royalty :
commences on the six-menthone-year annlversary of your completlon of mtJrhGareMnIlCare Tra|n|ng Academy
and shall be in the following amounts:

Months 613 to £218: $450.00 per month
Months 4319 to 24: $550.00 per month
Months 25 and thereafter: $650.00 per month

xx**except that conversion franchise businesses will havepay the greater of the above, or a minimum
of 3% of converted revenue, beginning the month after completion of mitiCareMilliCare
training/mitiCareMilliCare Academy.
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For locations that acquire multiple franchises simultaneously, we reserve the right to adjust the minimum
royalty timeline to commence with the launch date of each additional unit.

3 Expenses and costs of advertising and promotion will be paid for through contributions by
franchisees to a promotional fund (the “Promotional Fund”). The Promotional Fund may be used as
determined solely by the Company: to develop and purchase national, regional, and local advertising in
any media (including a Website (defined below) for the miiCareMilliCare® franchise network) and
promotional materials; to acquire the services of in-house and outside advertising and public relations
professionals; to carry on other advertising and promotional activities as the Company deems advisable;
and to pay the reasonable expenses of administering the Promotional Fund. The Company will account
annually, within 120 days of the end of each year, to the franchisees for all Promotional Fund contributions
received and spent, together with the balance on account. The Company retains sole discretion over the use
of the Promotional Fund.

(4) Fhe TransferFee-is-$7,500-H transfer-is-to-outside-3"party—TFransfer-fee-is-If you elect to
purchase additional licenses, additional fees may apply. Currently, the cost for additional licenses ranges
from $2 to $7 per week per user, depending on the services you choose.

6}(5) You must pay for all of your travel expenses incurred during the ongoing training,
including airfare or other travel expenses, food, and lodging. The estimated annual expenses will depend
upon the number of training days, the types of training, the number of trainees, and the location of the
training. Most of the ongoing training typically takes place at the annual milliCare® National
FrainingMilliCare® Franchise Conference, which every franchisee (or the General Manager) for every

Territory must attend. The estimated annual cost will range from $1,200 to $3,800 per person.

{A(6) The registration fee for the annual conference is currently $975, but the registration fees
for mithiCare® UniversityMilliCare® additional classroom training may range from $0 - $3,000 per year.
Every milliCareMilliCare® franchisee (or the General Manager) for-every—Territory-must attend beth
miHCare®-Universityany required MilliCare® classroom training and the annual conference at least 6
times during the Initial Term and 3 times during each Renewal Term as a condition to renewal of- your
franchise.

)

1year-ofbeing-hired-by-you—_ In addltlon at least ;one of your employees must be certlfled by the
Institute of Insurance, Cleaning and Restoration Certification (IICRC) at all times, and your franchised

business must become-a-certified-firmcomplete two certifications with the 1ICRC, the first must be

. _
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completed prior to attending initial training, and the second must be completed within 99120 days from
the date the-franchise-agreementtraining is executedcompleted.

i
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ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

_ VourEsti Uinitiald ‘ HiC ‘ hi

(7 The amount of the management fee varies from customer to customer based upon a number
of factors including: (i) the direct cost of administrative and management oversight provided; (ii) the
associated overhead cost such as payment terms (financing) and risk management (insurance); and (iii) the

profit margin. )

(8) In the event that the transferee was introduced to you by the franchisor, its agents, or
otherwise was a prospective franchisee working with franchisor’s sales team or outside brokers, you will
pay us a resale assistance fee (“Resale Assistance Fee”), in addition to the Transfer Fee, equal to the greater
of (i) $10,000; or (ii) our actual costs, including but not limited to any broker commission that may be
incurred, due, or required arising from the transfer.

(9) You must maintain accurate business records, reports, accounts, books, and data relating
to the operation of your Franchised Business. We and our designees retain the right to inspect and/or audit
your business records, which includes your call logs related to your Franchised Business, at any time during
normal business hours, without notice, to determine whether you are current with suppliers and/or otherwise
are operating in compliance with the terms of the Franchise Agreement and Operations Manual. In the event
any such audit discloses an understatement of amounts reported or paid to us, you agree to pay to us the
amount due, plus interest (at the rate and on the terms provided for herein) from the date originally due until
the date of payment. Furthermore, you must reimburse us for our costs and expenses associated with
conducting the audit in the event: (i) such audit is made necessary by your failure to timely furnish reports,
supporting records, other information, or financial statements required under the Franchise Agreement; or
(i) if that audit reveals an understatement of greater than two percent (2%). These costs and expenses
include, without limitation, our legal and accounting fees, travel, lodging, and meal expenses, as well as
applicable per diem charges for our employees. The foregoing remedies are in addition to our other remedies
and rights under the Franchise Agreement and/or applicable law. In the event any audit reveals that your
information has been inaccurately reported, we reserve the right to audit other entities owned, controlled
by, or affiliated with you.

(10)  The NSF fee currently is $50 per returned payment. This cost may increase but may be no
higher than our actual costs incurred due to the returned payment, plus $5 per returned payment as an
administrative processing fee.

(11) Should you be in default of the Franchise Agreement, in lieu of termination, and in addition
to any other remedies under the Franchise Agreement, we may elect to assess a non-compliance fee of
$1,000 per occurrence.

(12) If we prevail in any action or other legal/administrative proceeding brought against you
arising out of the Franchise Agreement or any other agreement with us, you must reimburse us for our
reasonable attorneys’ fees and other costs paid that we incurred in such proceedings in the event we prevail.
If you bring any legal action to interpret or enforce the terms of the Franchise Agreement or any other
agreement with us, and your claim in such action is denied or the action is dismissed, then we are entitled
to recover our reasonable attorneys' fees, and all other reasonable costs and expenses incurred in defending
the matter, and to have such an amount awarded as part of the judgment in the proceeding.

(13) You are solely responsible for and must indemnify and hold us harmless for all loss,
damage, claims, or demands arising out of, or related to, the operation of your Franchised Business. Your

i
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indemnification obligations are described more fully in the Franchise Agreement.

(14) Except as otherwise disclosed, all fees in this Item 6 are uniformly imposed on all MilliCare
franchisees.

*** THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK***
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ITEM 7: ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

e e
Amount Method of To Whom
Expenditure Amount High |[Payment \When Due Paymentis to be
Low Made
Initial fee * $49,000 * $49,000 |Lump Sum Upon signing Franchise [Company
Agreement
Travel-lodging-and- $2,000°500  $5,000 |As Incurred During first year Airlines, hotels,-
| anel
trainingTraining 2 restaurants, and
other vendors
Start-up package of $32,500°47,50$57,500 [Lump Sumor  [Upon signing Franchise |Approved
equipment-and, materials, [0 Financed if Agreement 'Vendors
and marketing kit ® applicable
Rent - 3 months * $1,000 $17,500—As Incurred Before opening Landlord
$4.500"
Tenant improvements ° $1,000 $7,000 |As Incurred Before opening Landlord and
$7.000° Suppliers
'Vehicle Expenses - 3 $3.000°5,000 ($8,000 |As Incurred Before opening and Vendors
months ° monthly
Computer equipment, $2,500 $14,000—As Incurred Before opening and Vendors
phones, and Technology $2.500" monthly
Fees ’
Miscellaneous ° $15,000°20,00$30,000 |As Incurred As needed Vendors, Utilities,
0 Government
Agencies,
insurance agents,
etc.
Grand-OpeningLocal $5,000°000  [$5,000 |Monthly forfirstBefore Opening and  (Company or
Advertising ° \ear monthly Vendors
Additional Funds - 3 $65,000 -  $80,000 |As Incurred /As needed Employees,
months *° $80.000* Vendors, Utilities,
IFranchisorEtc.
Total ** $198,500 $175253
,000—
$200,500%
5
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MilliCare Floor & Textile Care
20242025 Franchise Disclosure Document Page |

32



Neandore | tilities
VvV UTTOUT O, UtimirvJyy

Notes:

HiC
MilliCare Floor & Textile Care
20242025 Franchise Disclosure Document

Page |

33



None of these fees or expenses that you pay to us are refundable. You may be able to get refunds of the fees listed
above from the landlord or vendor. We do not finance any part of your initial investment.

{4)Note 1: The nonrefundable Initial feeFranchise Fee is $49,000. Hyeou-are-an-existing-franchisee-and-are-

&) Note 2: You must pay for all of your expenses incurred during the Initial Training Program,

including airfare or other travel expenses, food, and lodging. The-estimated-expenses-fortraveland-living
expenses-for-one-personfor-al-initial- training-is-$2,000The estimate is for two people. In addition, you

must be certified by the Institute of Insurance, Cleaning and Restoration Certification (IICRC). The first
required certification must be completed prior to attending initial training, and the second must be
completed within 120 days from the date training is completed. Certification costs with the IICRC apply,
presently $80 per person per certification.

) Note 3: Opening Inventory of uniforms, marketing items, equipment, supplies and chemicals for
carpet, fabric, and floor cleaning services, and for performance coatings, and tile and grout
cleaning/maintenance processes and services. The estimate varies based on shipping costs and local tax
rates.

&3] Note 4: You must lease space for your business. The low end is a climate-controlled 200 sq foot
storage facility, and the high-end |s a 1,000 sq foot offlce and warehouse—Reat—foe&typmal— combo We
estimate that a office/warehouse w 4 ¢
month—You-also—mustwill range between $1O a square foot and $24 a square foot Some markets may
experience higher or lower lease space-fofrates. Rental charges and terms will vary. You should consult a local
reaI estate expert Prowded your buemes&e#ﬁee—A%argtmhne—mrﬁeea—tymeaLeﬁreeANﬁh—wamheuse
wareheuse—ﬁ—your—emeeandwareheuseare—m—the—sameproposed Iocatlon for the e#ree—must—lee—mamtameel
in—accordance—with—professional-standards,—as—Business satisfies our site selection criteria, we will not
unreasonably withhold our acceptance of the Company-may-in-its-sole-discretion-determinessite. If you have
more-than-L-milliCaretwo MilliCare® franchise with contiguous Marketing Territories, you may not be

reqmred to have a separate warehouse for each franchlse Ihr&esﬂmate%%ﬁtnenths—smee—year—remal

5) Rent-and-theNote 5: The cost of the tenant improvements will depend on the size, location, and
condition of the premises, and landlord contributions, if any. Your cost will be a function of the condition of
the real estate and the extent of the necessary improvements. The low end assumes space requiring minimal
changes to conform the space to an office and warehouse. The high end assumes a space requiring a greater
degree of modifications. -

6) Note 6: The number of vehicles depends on the size and location of your business operations. You
.
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are required to own or lease at least one cargo van fer-yeurbusiness—Fypicathywith a bulkhead, such as a
Transit-350. You may lease, or you also have the option to acquire a 2020 or newer model with under 60,000

miles. The range in the table above includes the first three months of estimated lease payments (based upon a
5-year lease). The amount you will reed-Lpay will depend on the amount of your down payment (if any). Your
expenses may be higher than the estimate, depending on whether you purchase or lease a new vehicle-to-start;

with-additional. The vehicles added-as-the-business-grows—As-a-guideline;must be painted and wrapped

accordlnq to our color and design specrflcatrons and the trademarks must be professronallv applied before the

is put into
service. We estimate the wrap and mstallatron will cost $3, 000 We also estrmate monthly expenses of $600

or gas insurance and%&@@-per—menthier serV|ce and repalr Lnsuraneeﬂeremmms—sheuleuaeappreéemately

oAl Note 7: Includes computer hardware, software, and peripheral equipment, the monthly Technology
Fee, and telephone hardware and services.

8) Note 8: Includes insurance, business license fees, security deposits, utilities, incorporation fees, and
Internet access service fees.

9 Note 9: You must engage in grand-opening-local advertising of $1,000 per month-fer-the-first-year
of operations-as-the Company-may-direct-. You should begin advertising at least 60-days prior to the opening

of your business or expend such funds as we direct. -The estimate is for the two months prior to opening and
the three months thereafter. -If paid to the Company, the Company will expend those funds on your behalf in
its sole discretion. -You may spend additional amounts on other pre-opening advertising that areis arranged or
approved by the Company.

Note 10: This amount of working capital is projected as sufficient to cover initial operating expenses, payroll
costs, royalty, national marketing fund fees, security deposits, professional fees, business licenses or permits,
networking association fees, insurance, and any other general business expenses for a period of 3 months. The
estimate of additional funds does not include an owner’s salary or draw. These figures are estimates only.

This estimate is based on our franchisees’ experiences and our estimate of average costs and market conditions
prevailing as of the date of this Disclosure Document.

&@—Thrs estrmates your |n|t|al start- -up expenses for the |n|t|al phase of S—months—'liheseee*penses

Weests—w#depend—en—faeters—sue#as—managemerﬁ—sk#three months It is based on our franchlsee s

experience and busi i i od

wagerate—anel—eempetrtrenﬁfreseour estrmate of average costs areJease&enastart—aphu&ness—and market

conditions prevailing as of the date of this Disclosure Document.

£ The estimated initial investment will be lower for an existing business that is already incurring some
of the overhead costs required for the initial investment. The extent to which you have already established
your business may lower these costs. The Company has relied on its experience in the cleaning and
maintenance business to compile these estimates. You should review these figures carefully with a business
advisor before making any decision to purchase the franchise.
.
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ITEMS8
SRESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

You must

operate your Franchised Business in strict compliance with our prescribed methods, standards, and
specifications as outlined in the MilliCare® Services System Confidential Operating Manual and
Confidential Technical Manual (collectively, the “Operations Manual”). We may modify the Operations
Manual at our sole discretion. It remains confidential and our exclusive property; you may not disclose,
duplicate, or use it without authorization. The Operations Manual’s provisions are incorporated into the
Franchise Agreement as if fully stated therein. You are responsible for keeping your copy current. In case
of a dispute regarding its content, our master copy at corporate headquarters will prevail.

Approved Services and Suppliers

To maintain the high standards of guality-asseciated-with-the-milliCarethe MilliCare® Services
System, you must purchase the mitiCareMilliCare® Dry Carpet Cleaner, private-labeled performance

coatings-preductsprivate—tabeled, tile and grout cleaning/ and maintenance products, and the-asseciated

family-of-other Proprietary Products and preprietary—equipment. Fhe-products-usedfor-the-Franchised
Business-may-only-These must be purchasedobtained exclusively from the Company, anaffitiate-of-the

Company—or-a-third-party-supphier-its affiliates, or designated by-the-Company-third-party suppliers. You
eanpnetmay not alter;amend; or medifysubstitute any ef-the-Proprietary Products or equipment;-er-use-.

You may only offer services that we approve, as listed in the Operations Manual. We may require
you to purchase items from designated suppliers to ensure service quality, supply continuity, and
marketplace efficiency. You will not receive any etherproducts-er-material benefit from using designated

suppliers.

We may modify standards and specifications based on our experience and that of our franchisees.
Changes may apply to services, products, signage, furnishings, supplies, fixtures, and equipment, as
specified in leu-ofthe Proprietary-Products-ereguipment—Franchise Agreement or Operations Manual.
Compliance with these changes may increase your costs, which you must cover, though no modification
will materially alter your fundamental rights under the Franchise Agreement.

We reserve the right to derive revenue from your required purchases. We are the sole approved

vendor for the Initial Package and the Software Suite that we license to you. As of our fiscal year, which
ended on December 31, 2024, MilliCare Franchising, LLC., derived $355,282, or 6% of our total revenue
of $6,409,343, resulting from required franchisee purchases or leases. In 2025, we expect to derive 6% of
our revenues from required purchases or leases, although, as further noted below, we may derive revenue
from required purchases or leases in the future. No officer of the Franchisor owns an interest in any other
approved supplier

The required inventory of products, equipment, and supplies necessary to operate the Franchised

Business is listed in the milliCare®Services—System—Confidential-OperatingOperations Manual-and
Confidential Fechnical-Manual-{coHectively,. We estimate that the “Cenfidential Manual>)—Therequired

i
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aee%ng%mspeemeat—len&lspurchasmq requwements account for approxmatelv 50% to 60% of your
overallinitial purchases in establishing your business, and 10% to 20% of your—overal-purchases—in

epeﬁa{umg—yeu#bwnessonqomq operational expenses.

You may purchase equipment and supply items only from Company-approved suppliers or, if there
is no approved supplier for a particular equipment or supply item, from suppliers who meet all of the
Company’s specifications and standards as to quality, composition, and functionality and adequately
demonstrate their capacity and facilities to supply your needs in the quantities, at the times, and with the
reliability necessary for an efficient operation. The Company provides certain of its specifications and
standards to approved suppliers in the course of doing business with them and will share its criteria for
approving approved suppliers with a franchisee upon request in the process of reviewing requested
alternative suppliers. The Company reserves the right to designate a single supplier for any equipment and
supply items and to require you to use such a designated supplier exclusively, which exclusive-designated
supphier-may be the Company or its affiliates. None of the Company’s officers ewnhave an_ownership
interest in any approved suppliers.

Supplier Approval Process

If you wish to purchase any equipment or supplies that have not been approved by the Company or
from a supplier who has not been approved by the Company, you must submit a written request to change
products or suppliers to the Company. To obtain approval of any proposed alternative equipment, supply
item, or supplier, you must provide the Company with documentation from a source independent of
Franchisee or the proposed supplier which demonstrates to the Company’s satisfaction that the proposed
alternate equipment, supply item, or supplier performs as well as the item or supplier to be replaced. The
Company has the right to further test any proposed equipment or supply item, and to further evaluate any
proposed alternate supplier. There is no fee charged to franchisees or proposed suppliers for the Company
to test any proposed equipment or supply item or to evaluate any proposed supplier- beyond our actual costs
incurred. The Company will notify you within 90 days of the approval or disapproval of products,
equipment, supplies, and suppliers. -

Regardless of the above, the Company reserves the right to disapprove-ef proposed and existing
suppliers, products, equipment and supplies for any reason, including the number of such suppliers or items
that have already been approved. The Company may revoke the approval of suppliers if their product no
longer satisfies our quality standards or for any other reason by written notice or update to the Operations
Manual. The Company may at any time require the substitution of newly developed proprietary products
for non-proprietary items.

Insurance Required Purchases

You must obtain and maintain;-atyreurexpense; insurance during the folewingentire term of the
Franchise Agreement. This insurance should protect you, your employees, and us, including our officers,
employees, and any other individuals we designate. The insurance should cover any loss, liability, fire,
injury, death, property damage, or theft related to the operation or promotion of the business.

The types of insurance and minimum coverage as-amounts listed below are what we require,
presenthy—comprehensivebut these may not be enough for your specific needs or state requirements. It is
your responsibility to ensure that you have the appropriate coverage. We may also require you to use

.
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specific insurance providers.

You must keep these insurance policies in place throughout the term of your Franchise Agreement
and provide proof of coverage when we request it. The insurance must come from carriers rated “A” or
better by A.M. Best & Company, Inc. and be licensed in your state. All policies must (1) Name us (and any
other people or entities we specify) as additional insured parties. (2) Include a waiver of subrogation rights
against us. (3) Not reduce your coverage if we file a claim. (4) Be primary insurance without relying on
other insurance we may have. (5) Notify us at least 10 days in advance if a policy is about to be canceled

or changed.
Each year, you must submit proof that you meet our insurance requirements. Occasionally, we may

update the required insurance limits or types of coverage to reflect changes in business practices, legal
standards, or other factors. If this happens, we will give you at least 90 days' written notice.

The current insurance requirements are:

(a) Commercial General Liability and Professional Liability Insurance: This should cover
bodily injury, property damage, and personal injury, with a minimum of $2,000,000 for the general Habitity
insurance—in—the—minimum-—amount—of-aggregate, $2,000,000 for products and completed operations,
$1,000,000-aH-risk for personal injury, and $1,000,000 per occurrence.

(b) Property Coverage: Insurance should cover at least 90% of the replacement value of your
business property.

(c) Commercial Automobile Liability: Insurance should cover $1,000,000 for bodily injury and
property damage, including coverage; for hired and non-owned vehicles, and uninsured or under-insured
motorists.

(d) Workers' Compensation and Emplovyers’ Liability: You must have the required workers'
compensation insurance with limits of at least $500,000 per accident, $500,000 per disease, and a $500,000
policy limit. In certain states, additional coverage may be needed. In “Monopolistic States,” including Ohio,
North Dakota, Washington, Wyoming, and West Virginia, "Stop Gap" coverage must be purchased
separately or added to the commercial automebilegeneral liability in-the-minimum-amount-of $1,000,000;
and-blanket-fidelity-insuranee-in-the-policy and/or workers' compensation and employers' liability policy.

“Stop Gap” in Ohio must not contain exclusion with the "substantially certain to occur" language.

(e) Employee Dishonesty Insurance You must have employee dlshonesty insurance W|th a
m|n|mum ameeneof $25 000

both emplovees and thlrd partles

You must also comply with any state or local insurance requirements. No deductible or self-insured
retention can exceed $5,000 for any required policy. You cannot reduce, cancel, or change any policy
without our written consent.

Technology Required Purchases

You must equip your facility with a computer system containing certain minimum hardware and
software, including the Franchisee Website. Company is not a supplier of these items. Refer to Item 11 for
more details.

Purchasing Arrangements and Revenue

i
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The Company and/or an affiliate may negotiate purchase arrangements, including suppliers
contracts and cooperative purchasing er-distribution-cooperatives;-with-supphers-programs (including price
terms)-for-the), to benefit ef-franchisees and te-promote the everal-interestsof the-mitiCare® Services
franchiseMilliCare® network and our interests as the Franchisor. \WeHowever, we are not
reguiredobligated to negetiate-purchase-arrangements—\We-do-netdo so, nor do we provide material benefits
to—a—franchisee—based on a—franchisee’syour use of designated or approved seurces—however—a
franchiseesuppliers. However, Franchisees who deesdo not use-such-seurcescomply with supplier requirements will
be in breach of the Franchise Agreement._

Fhe-Company-has-therightWe do not provide any material benefits to receive-paymentsfrem-you

based on your use of designated or approved sources. In addition to offering a preferred service and/or price

to the franchisee, suppliers en-account-of-their-dealings-with-you-andmay offer a rebate or other franehisees;
andconsideration. In 2024, we may-use-the-ameunts-received withoutrestriction-and-forany-purpose-the
e

We-and-$10,085.05 |n rebates for purchases by Franchlsees from approved suppliers. Other than this,

for any of

p&rehase&elf—leases—m/—franehﬁeesthese serwces

ITEM9
FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements. It will
help you find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and in other
items of this disclosure document.

Item in Disclosure
Obligation Section in Agreement Document
a Site s_el_eg:tlon and Franchls_e Agreement §§ 21,31 ltem 11
acquisition/lease Option-Agreement: nfa
. Franchise Agreement §8 3.1, 3.8,
b. Pre-opening purchases/leases 3.11, 3.12, 3.19. 3.20 Items 8, 11
c Site develppment qnd other Franchlsg Agreement 88 3.2, 3.4 ltems 7, 11
pre-opening requirements Option Agreement §2
d. Initial and ongoing training Franchise Agreen;e;t §824,25,26, Iltem 11
e. Opening Franchise Agreement § 3.6 Iltem 11
Franchise Agreement §8 2.4, 2.5, 2.7,
f Fees 3.11,3.12, 3.14, 3.15, 4.1-45 ltems 5, 6, 7
.
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Item in Disclosure

Obligation Section in Agreement Document
Compliance with standards and Franchise Agreement §8 2.3, 3.10, ltem 11
policies - Confidential Manual 3.28,7.6
Trademarks and proprietary Franchise Agreement 88 1.1, 3.9,
information 3.17 ltems 13, 14
Restrictions on products/ Franchise Agreement §8 1.1, 1.2, 2.7,
services offered 2.8,2.9,3.3,3.11,3.12,3.18 “emg'ltgﬂ 8,

Cotlep-lteroomonzal

Warranty and customer service
requirements

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Territorial development and

Franchise Agreement 8§ 1.3, 3.3,

sales quotas 3.28,6.1 Item 12
Ongoing product/service Franchise Agreement 88 3.11, 3.12 ltem 8
purchases Option-Agreement:n/a
Maintenance, appearance and Franchise Agreement 88 3.9, 3.16,
. . Item 11
remodeling requirements - 320,76
Insurance Franchise Agreement § 3.19 Item 7
Advertising Franchise_ Agreement 88 3.14, 4.3 Items 6, 11
Indemnification Franchise Agreement.§ 3.25 None
Option-Agreement-84
Owner’s participation/ Franchise Agreement 88 3.3, 3.4, 3.5, ltem 15
management/staffing 3.6,3.7,3.24,3.28
Records and reports Franchise Agreement §8 3.15, 3.28 Item 11
Inspections and audits Franchise Agreement §§ 2.10, 3.15 Item 6
Transfer Franchise Agreement § 5 Items 6, 17
Renewal Franchise Agreement § 1.4 Item 17

Post-termination obligations

Franchise Agreement §8 3.18, 3.27,
13.29,6.2,65

R

Item 17, Exhibit
G(E”

Non-competition covenants

Franchise Agreement 8§ 1.3, 3.3,
3.18

Item 17, Exhibit
LGE”

Dispute resolution

Franchise Agreement 88 6.3, 6.4, 6.5,
7.1_, 7.2,75,7.6,7.7

Option-Agreement 84

Item 17

ITEM 10: FINANCING

.
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We do not offer direct or indirect financing. We do not guarantee your note, lease, or other

obligation.
ITEM 11
: FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS, AND
TRAINING

Except as listed below, the Company is not required to provide you with any assistance.

Pre-Opening Obligations

Site Selection and Approval

If Franchisee (a) does not live in the Territory. or (b) does not already own/lease operating space in
the Territory, Franchisee must execute a lease for the premises in the Territory within 180 calendar days
after execution of this Agreement by Franchisor. If you do, it must be within the territory defined in your
Franchise Aqreement The Company wru—haveieherrghptomust approve theyour site selection-efa-sie-for

but approval WI|| not be unreasonably withheld. Officing-&for

A e A agreemen —If the Company

reasonably w%hheld&r&&apprevalre#demes your proposed 5|te and you do-not-laterlocatefail to secure an
acceptable sitelocation, you may—hot-commence—operation—of-theFranchised—Businesscannot begin

operations. Failure to efficesecure an approved site within your territory deseriptien—is—in-constitutes a

default efunder the franchise-agreementFranchise Agreement and may result-inlead to termination-ef-the

You must give-the- Companysubmit written notice along with photos of the interior and phetegraphs
of-inside-and-outside-the-premises-exterior of the proposed lecatiensite. If the Company does not give
youprovide written netice-ef-disapproval within 20 business days-afterreceipt-of-yourhetice, the lecation
er—be—srte is deemed to—beLapproved by—meLGempany—(Franchlse Agreement 8§ 2. 1) Generauy—the

eentepoﬁhelem{ery—mmeasyﬂaeeessﬂmajouoads—wsrbrmyThe Companv evaluates srtes based on

territory centrality, accessibility beth-fortrucks-using-the-workplaceto major roads, truck and customer

access, and for-customers-entering-the-office—and-the-professional appearance-of-the-office—. We do not
generally own the premises and generally do not lease them to franchisees. We-may-terminateYou must

conform the premises to all local ordinances and building codes and obtain any required permits. The
Franchise Agreement may be terminated if you de-retfail to secure an acceptable site within 60180 days of
its effective date. -If you do not live in the territory or do-net-already own/lease space in the territory, you
must execute a lease within 180-days of #sthe effective date (Franchise Agreement § 3.1).

Upon request, the Company may provide guidance on space planning, workflow, and general layout
of an office and warehouse facility based on the MilliCare® Services franchise network standards; however,
this is not required (Franchise Agreement § 2.2).

The Company or a supplier designated by Company (which may be an affiliate) witmay sell to-the
Franchisee—such—milliCareMilliCare® Proprietary Products as are—set—forthoutlmed in the
.
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ConfidentialOperations Manual, and—such—other—along with any future Proprietary Products which

Franchisor-may-hereafter-developdeveloped or ebtain—The-sale-orleaseacquired by Franchisor-or-such
otherperson-of such-Proprietary-Produets-the Company. These products or equipment will be sold or leased
to Franchisee-wil-ineludeyou with a commercially reasonable markup (Franchise Agreement § 2.8).

The Company erits-designee-will provide you-a-start-up-packagesources of supply for the purchase
or lease of equipment and materials, including opening inventory of uniforms, marketing itemsmaterials,
equipment; and supplies, and chemicals for cleaning, maintenance, and performance coatings services-tpen

fer—use—m—prewdmgéemees—A The Operatlons Manual mcludes a Ilst of approved suppllers and app#eved
products-wit-be-ineluded-in, which the Confidential-Manual-andCompany may be-revised-by-the-Company

from-time-to-time-in-update at its sole dlscretlon The Company reserves the rlght to (_)_de5|gnate a smgle
supplier for any equipment and ; 3
exclusivelysupplies, which exelue-we—desqgna{ed—semphe#may be the Company or Hs—a#ﬂ-la{es—'lihe
Company-and-its-affiiates-mayan affiliate; (ii) required exclusive use of the designated supplier, and (iii)
receive payments from suppliers en-account-efsuchsupplier’s-for sales to Franchisee-and-otherfranchisees;
and-The-Company-may-Franchisees and use albamounts soreceived-without restriction-and-for-any-purpose
Franchisorand-itsaffiliates-deem-appropriatethose funds at its discretion (Franchise Agreement § 2.9).

Arrepresentatlve eﬂhe@empan%wul adwseprowde adV|c and asslsteyeuasswtance in theepemng
oflaunching your Franchised Business and in-establishing and-standardizingstandardized procedures and

technigues-essential to the-eperation-efa-milliCareoperating a MilliCare® Services System business. Fhere

is-no-feeforthisThis assistance is provided at no additional cost (Franchise Agreement § 2.6).

Typical Length of Time Before You Commence Operations of the Business

You must open your business upon satisfactory completion of MilliCare® Academy, completion
of the tenant improvements and the issuance of a certificate of occupancy for the business premises at the

Location. If you do not live in the Territory, or do not already own/lease space in the Territory, you must
secure a location and sign a lease within 180-days of signing the Franchise Agreement. Most franchisees

open their business within 180 days after signing the Franchise Agreement. You must open your business
no later than 270 days after signing the Franchise Agreement. Factors which may affect the time to open
your_business include the ability to obtain a lease, financing or building permits, zoning and local
ordinances, weather conditions, shortages, scheduling of training, and delayed delivery or installation of
equipment, fixtures, and signs.
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TFhe-CompanyOngoing Assistance

During the operation of the Business:

1. We may provide updates to the approved products and services you will offer to customers, as well
as approved vendors.

2. We will furnish you from time to time with updated and revised material for the Operations Manual
(Franchise Agreement 8§ 2.3).

i
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3. We will assist you in the development of a plan to address various operational aspects and goals
for the Business (Franchise Agreement § 2.6).

4. We will provide a continuing advisory service which may include consultation on promotional,
marketing and advertising techniques, and customer relations (Franchise Agreement § 2.7).

5. FheCompanyWe, or a person designated-by-the-Companyor entity we designate (which may be an

affiliate of the Company) will sell various proprietary products and equipment to you, as detailed
in the Confidential Manual (Franchise Agreement § 2.8).

6. FheCompany-has\We have the right to determine the prices, and establish minimum and maximum
prices, or minimum advertised prices, of the products and Services you offer and sell which you
must adhere to, subject to law. Company-retains\W e retain the right to modify the prices from time
to time. FranehiserWe also hashave the right to establish suggested prices for the
mihiCareMilliCare® products and Services you offer and sell, which you are not be required to
adhere to.

7. The-CompanyWe and isour agents have the right of entry and inspection of your premises, the
right to observe the manner in which you render services, and the right to confer with your
employees, customers, and business associates (Franchise Agreement § 2.10).

Advertising and Promotional Requirements

You are responsible for funding all local advertising and promotional activities in compliance with
our policies, as outlined in the Operations Manual.

Starting 60 days prior to your opening date, you must spend a minimum of $1,000 monthly on local
marketing, advertising, public relations, and promotions as directed by us. We may either (i) collect and
spend these funds on your behalf, or (ii) direct you on how to allocate them. We have sole discretion over
Local Advertising, including budget allocation, marketing methods, media selection, and promotional
content.(Franchise Agreement § 3.13)

All advertising, sales, or promotional materials require our prior approval, which will not be
unreasonably withheld. You must submit materials for review, and if we do not respond within 15 business
days, approval is automatically granted (Franchise Agreement § 3.14). You may not advertise or
promote on any unauthorized website or social media platform, including but not limited to Facebook, X,
LinkedIn, TikTok, blogs, or forums. We control all aspects of the MilliCare® website, including its design,
content, and updates. While we may create pages featuring your Franchised Business, we are not obligated
to do so. If we require you to provide content for such pages, you must do so at your expense using our
templates, subject to our approval. You may not establish or maintain a separate website, splash page, or
social media profile related to the System or your Franchised Business without our prior written approval.
You must claim, update, and pay for all online business listings as directed by us or our affiliates. We may
modify policies regarding internet use as necessary. You acknowledge that we and/or our affiliates are the
sole owners of www.MilliCare.com and any other domain names we register. You waive any ownership
rights to these or any similar domain names, including abbreviations, acronyms, phonetic variations, or
visual variations. You are prohibited from registering any domain names that include or resemble our brand
names (Franchise Agreement § 3.14).

Advertising Council

The Company has established a franchisee advisory council to provide input and suggestions

i
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regarding use of the Promotional Fund. The franchisee advisory council serves in an advisory capacity only
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Presently, advisory council members are elected by the existing advisory council from the list of
approved nominations from the network of franchisees. The Company has the power to form, change,

dissolve, and merge the franchise advisory council.
Local Advertising Cooperatives

The Company does not have the power to require cooperatives to be formed.

Promotional Fund
You must contrlbute 12% of your Gross Reeetpts illings to a promotronal fund m—the—ﬁrst—zﬂr-

:ﬁundr(the “Promotlonal Fund”) Only m+H+GareM|II|Care® franchlsees W|II contrlbute to the Promotlonal
Fund. -Other franchisees will contribute the same amounts-fer-the-same-time-perieds-ef-theiroperations.

The Promotronal Fund is administered by the Comgany

A rpany-—The Promotional Fund may be used as
determined soIer by the Company and Wlthout con5|derat|on of geographical location of franchisees: to
purchase national, regional, and local advertising in any media, including broadcast, print, and electronic
media (including a WWebsitewebsite for the miiCareMilliCare® franchise network); advertising and
promotional materials; to acquire the services of in-house and outside advertising and public relations
professionals; research and development, tests or target marketing, the conducting of surveys, brand
development and promotion, to defray the expense of training programs intended to develop the marketing
and promotional skills of franchisees and their employees; to carry on other advertising and promotional
activities, including utilizing Networking Media Websites (such as Facebook, Twitter, and LinkedIn) and
other emerging media; and to pay the reasonable expenses of administering the Promotional Fund, including
the reasonable compensation of the Company’s employees and expenses of the advisory council while
working on behalf of the Promotional Fund. The Promotional Fund will not be used for selling additional
franchises; however, we may state in any advertisements that franchises are available and contact
MilliCare© for information regarding this opportunity.

In the fiscal year ended December 31, 29232024 the Promotlonal Fund contributions were
expended as follows: A ,
46:6%Advertising and Promotron 54%, Technology 20% Industry Conventrons and Entertarnment 10%
Salaries 8%, Travel 6%, and Administrative 82.0%.- The Company will account annually, within 120 days
of the end of each year, with a financial statement that reports for all Promotional Fund contributions received
.
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and spent, together with the balance on account for that year. Other than the foregoing financial statement
report, Franchisor does not separately make financial statements of the Promotion Fund available for review.
Franchisor is not required to have the Promotional Fund audited. Amounts not spent in a given year are
carried over to the next year. The Company is not required to spend any amounts from the Promotional
Fund in any franchisee’s territory.

Software and Computer System

You must equip your facility with a computer system with—atteast—1—terminalorPCthat
meetsmeeting our specifications and-standards—within 15 days of the-date—of-signing the Franchise
Agreement Nene—ef—theThe hardware used—rn—the—eemputer—system—rs—rs not proprietary te-the-Company-
- ; nd may be purchased from
any eemputepeqmpment—manufacturer—are but must run Wlndows 4:911 or hlgher Wlth Office-Suite-of

A ; el Office365.
W|th|n 14 days of obtalnrng the speerﬁed—eemputeesystem you must aequ#e—funetrenatsecure high-speed
Internetinternet access, 2 POP@mHheareMleCare net emall addresses (or anyetheee—mar-lanother address
we specify}-(w :
emarl—addresses—al—l—ef—yeur—) You and your employees must use m—eendueﬂng—mﬂ#@are—these branded
emarl addresses for business communlcatlons—anda—WebsneiepyeuPFranelmed—BuﬁnesHhmugh@w

We have independent access to the-infermation-and-all data that is stored on your computer system,

or within the required Software system(s), including sales information and customer data—Fhere-are, with no

contractualcontractoral limitations-enthe-Company s+ightte-. Y ou must take all actions we specify to ensure
our continual access this-tfermation—(Franchise Agreement § 3.29).

You are required to participate in any System-wide area network, intranet system, or extranet we
implement, which may be used for: (i) submitting required reports; (ii) access the Operations Manual; (iii)
downloading approved marketing materials; (iv) communicating with us and other franchisees; and (v)
partrcrpate in onIme tralnlnd Use of these networks must A

protocols, |nclud|nq encrvptlon content restrlctlons and prohlbltlons against the transmission of libelous,

derogatory, or defamatory statements (Franchise Agreement § 3.29).

pe#menthﬂr&apere*mmeeest—ef—theeemputerrecords accordrnq to our reportrnq formats and schedules

which we may modify from time-to-time. We may retrieve, analyze, download, and use all data stored or used
on your Computer System with no contractual limitation on our right to the information. The costs for data
storaqe communrcatron software, mternet access, addrtronal hardware; and software; needed to implement and

A 5 5 e-maintain _these services are at your
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responsibility (Franchise Agreement § 3.29).

You must update your computer system and software as required, with no contractual limits on
frequency or cost. We do not provide maintenance, repairs, or upgrades. Estimated annual costs for maintenance
and support are $1,000—$2,000.

You must subscribe to and use the MilliCare® operating software and all other required software to
manage your business, submit financials, for customer relations management, marketing purposes, and for
general operations management. The current Technology Fee is $499 per month. Estimated costs for computer
hardware, software, and peripherals range from $1,000 to $2,500. You are responsible for installing and
maintaining current antivirus software on all business computers and devices.

You must maintain internet access at the required speeds as specified in the Operations Manual.

It is your responsibility to make sure that you are in compliance with all laws that are applicable to the
Computer System or other technology used in the operation of your Business, including but not limited to all
data protection or security laws. This includes requiring that you take all steps, including but not limited to those
related to visibility and management of your Business that are necessary to ensure that your business is compliant
with all data privacy and security laws and Payment Card Industry Data Security Standards (PCl DSS)
requirements, as such standards may be revised and modified by the PCI Security Standards Council (see
pcisecuritystandards.org), or such successor organization or standards that we may reasonably specify. Our
standards and specifications are described in the Franchise Agreement, the Operations Manual, and other written
documents.

We have the right, under the Franchise Agreement, to change the standards and specifications applicable
to operation of the franchise, including standards and specifications for Approved Services and Products,
equipment, signs, furnishings, supplies, fixtures, inventory, computer systems (hardware, software, applications,
data network and internet connection minimum bandwidth capacities), privacy policies, encryption
requirements, data and IT security policies - including implementation of phishing and other security awareness
programs and training, cyber incident notification requirements, and Artificial Intelligence policies by written
notice to you or through changes in the Operations Manual. We may issue our standards or specifications for
goods and services, and changes to those standards and specifications, in writing directly to you or our approved
supplier. You may incur an increased cost to comply with these changes at your own expense.

_Operations Manual

The Company will give you access to the Operations Manual for your use during the term of the
franchise (Franchise Agreement § 2.3). The Operations Manual may be in electronic, digital, or another format.
You will be permitted to review the Operations Manual prior to purchasing a franchise. We may revise the
Operations Manual at any time. The current Operations Manual table of contents, as of the date of this
Disclosure Document contains 172 pages, and the pages devoted to each topic are noted in the chart below.

i
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Topic Approximate Number of Pages

OPERATIONS MANUAL

1. Pre-Opening Procedures 20
2. People Strateqy 36
3. General Operations 24
4. Sales 19
5. Signature Services 12
6. Marketing 23
7. Safety and Security 15
8. General 23
Total Number of Pages 172

Initial Training Program

The Company will conduct a comprehensive Initial Training Program on the management and
operation of the Franchised Business (Franchise Agreement § 2.4). The Initial Training Program consists
of a program provided in several phases during your first year as a franchisee. The first phase of the Initial
Training Program must be successfully completed after signing the Franchise Agreement, but prior to
beginning operations. You are responsible for all travel, food, lodging and other expenses incurred by you
and any of your employees in connection with attendance at the Initial Training Program. The training will
be held at the locations indicated or other specified locations (which may include virtual classrooms) and
will consist of:

TRAINING PROGRAM
Hoursof | Hoursof
Classroom | On-the-Job
Subject Training Training Location
Franchise Operations 2 days None Franchisee or Franchisor’s office,
virtual classroom or another
location in U.S.
Technical Skills Training 1 day 3-4 days Franchisee’s Business or another
location in U.S.
Professional Sales and Marketing 2 days None Franchisee’s Business or another
Training location in U.S.
TOTAL 5 days 3-4 days

Introductory training, including an overview of products, services and marketing and an orientation
to franchising, is held regularly, depending on demand. The instructional materials will be provided by the
Company and will consist of information found in the Confidential Manual, forms, and other training
materials.

Kara Garcia, Brand Leader, currently oversees our training. Ms. Garcia has over 10 years of
franchise training experience. Additional employees and others who have at least six months’ experience

i
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(for example, opening, operations, or systems management) will assist in technical skills training related to
equipment and product usage, sales, cleaning and maintenance technigues.

You and your initial key employees must complete the in-person training and any assigned online

modules of the Initial Training Program to the Company’s satisfaction before opening for operation. You

must pay for all travel, food, lodging, and other expenses for your employees that attend any component of
the Initial Training Program.

A representative of the Company will visit your location within 60 days after your business opens
to assist you in the operation of your business.

Ongoing Training

The Company will provide ongoing training on specific, job-related issues to you and/or your
employees as the Company deems appropriate. This training may include on-site training at a franchisee’s
location.  Ongoing training subjects will include job costing and scheduling, employee management,
equipment usage, and sales and marketing. Additionally, the Company will provide ongoing general
training on an annual basis to introduce new products, services, and equipment, to review sales and
marketing practices, and to discuss other relevant topics. The Company generally will conduct one general
training session per vyear, and specific training modules will be offered on a reqular basis (some via
electronic learning vehicles). Some of the ongoing training will typically take place annually at both the
MilliCare® Exchange and through other channels, which you, your principal owners, or your designee
involved in the Franchised Business for each Territory, must attend. Attendance requirements at other
ongoing training sessions will be determined by the content of the class. You must pay for all travel, food,
lodging, and other expenses (Franchise Agreement § 2.5). The training programs will be held within the
United States.

The Company will provide ongoing training on specific, job-related issues for technicians, administrative staff,
operations managers, and sales and marketing personnel as the Company deems appropriate, including the training

necessary for your franchise to have at least one employee certified (or in training to be certified) by the IICRC at
all times. It is estimated that 1 to 4 training sessions per year will be required.

ITEM 12: TERRITORY

When you sign the Franchise Agreement, we grant you a Territory that will be designated either a
“Protected Territory” or a nonexclusive “Marketing Territory”. Our Predecessor granted Marketing
Territories, and we will grant you a Marketing Territory if your territory is located within, or overlaps with,
an-another milliCareMilliCare System franehiseefranchise with a Marketing Territory. Otherwise, we grant
you a Protected Territory. Your Territory will be defined by geographic boundaries as determined by the
.
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Company in its sole discretion after giving consideration to relevant demographic information including
population density, effective buying income, retail sales, and the number of square feet of office,
commercial, and industrial space. The actual boundaries of the Territory, and the designation of the territory
as a Protected Territory, or a Nonexclusive Marketing Territory, will be set forth on an exhibit to the

Franchise Agreement that WI|| be S|gned by both you and the Company —h‘—yeu—exeeute—&n—@ptlen

You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other franchisees, from
outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control.

You have no optlons rlghts of first refusal, or SImllar rlghts to acquire additional franchlsees

If you receive a Protected Territory, we will not operate; or grant a franchise for others to operate
a milliCareMilliCare franchised business within the Protected Territory (except as described with respect
to Regional Accounts below in this Item 12), although we or another franchisee may from time to time service
particular customers in the Territory in the event you are unable or unwilling for whatever reason to meet the
service needs of those customers, all as set forth belew-in the Operations Manual. We do retain the right to
use other channels of distribution (e.g. the Internet, catalog, telemarketing, direct marketing) inside your
Territory using our Marks or other trademarks. We do not have to pay you for exercising our rights, which
includes soliciting or accepting orders in your Territory for Regional Accounts or instances where you are
unable or unwilling to meet the service needs of customers. If you receive a Marketing Territory we may
operate or grant franchises to others to operate a mitiCareMilliCare franchised business with a Marketing
Territory within, or that overlaps with, your Marketing Territory who may advertise and solicit customer
accounts within your Marketing Territory and who may be in competition with you.

You eannatmay not solicit or accept orders from eensumerscustomers outside of your Territory—Y-eu
cannet-conduct-anyadvertising—, and you may not solicit or accept orders from customers within your
Territory if services to that is-cireulatedcustomer are provided, in whole or in part, outside of your Marketing
Territory-{including-any-advertising. You also may not make sales within or outside of your Territory using
otherchannels ofdlstrlbutlon suehas ncludlng the Internet eatateg—salesdlrect mall telemarketlng or other

A g 2 y-direct marketing

The Company does not have the right to modify your Territory. We may permit- you to relocate your
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Territory to an open Protected Territory or Marketing Territory, provided that you provide us with notice
of the change, and you secure a location within the Territory.- You may relocate your warehouse facilities
and office with our written consent, which will not be unreasonably withheld provided the new location is
located within your Territory. Any relocation will be at your sole expense, and we may charge our then-
current relocation fee (if any) for services that we render in connection with the relocation. When
considering a request for relocation, we may take into account the desirability of the proposed new location,
its distance from other and future-planned franchised locations, the traffic patterns, security, cost, and the
demographics of the area, as well as any other related factors we deem appropriate.

assistance-from-youto-perform-Services-outside-yourTFerritery—If you have a Marketing Territory and more
than one milliCareMilliCare® franchisee services customers in your Marketing Territory, the Company
may allocate opportunities to service these accounts between those franchisees, as the Company in its sole

discretion deems appropriate. H-addition-i-the-Company receivesleadsforServices-inlocations-that-are

If you have a Marketing Territory, you may not, directly or indirectly, sell, offer to sell, or provide
any of the products or Services to any current customer of another miiCareMilliCare® franchisee
(including customers invoiced by that franchisee during the previous 365 days) with respect to all property
owned, leased, or managed by that customer within the same building or building complex (“Customer
Accounts”) in the Marketing Territory (“Overlapping Franchisee”). For the purpose of this paragraph,
“customer” shall be defined as the decision-maker that determines which company will provide its carpet
cleaning and maintenance services. You must submit monthly reports to the Company, in-a form and
manner as the Company may require, which list all of your current customers, and which reflect additions to
and deletions from the previous report. You must post and maintain on the Company’s private extranet, on
a monthly basis, a listing of your Customer Accounts, including the name and address of each Customer
Account. The provisions of this paragraph are intended to be broadly interpreted to prevent you from
directly or indirectly interfering with any of the customer relationships that have been established by an
Overlapping Franchisee in a Marketing Territory. The provisions of this paragraph will not apply if you
obtain written permission, granted by the President or \iece-PresidentBrand Leader of the Company, to
engage in conduct that otherwise is prohibited in this paragraph. If you violate any of the provisions of this
paragraph, you must pay to the Overlapping Franchisee(s) 50% of the revenue derived from the Customer
Accounts that caused the violation. This revenue must be paid to the Overlapping Franchisee(s) within 10
days of receiving such revenue, for so long as you receive revenue from those Customer Accounts. However,
if you commit more than Zone violation of the provisions of this paragraph, we may terminate your
Franchise Agreement. This prohibition will apply only if the Customer Accounts creating an Overlapping
Franchise have been entered into the Company’s customer database, and only if an Overlapping Franchisee
is subject to the same or similar provisions of this paragraph.

We have the right to solicit Regional Accounts wherever located. In order to enable us to negotiate
special arrangements involving Regional Accounts, including responding to requests for proposals (“RFP”)
involving locations which may or may not be in your Territory, at our request, you must promptly evaluate
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the applicable Regional Account location(s) located within your Territory and prepare a bid package for
each such location in accordance with such formats, procedures and specifications as we may establish,
including any supplemental or modified bid package which we may require in order to satisfy the
requirements of the Regional Account (each a “Bid Package™). If we accept the Bid Package, you must
honor your proposal and sign all agreements and other documents and instruments as we and the Regional
Account may require to fulfill the agreed on contract terms (“Regional Account Agreement”). We will give
you the first opportunity to submit a Bid Package on each proposed Regional Account location which is
within your Territory and to perform Approved Services to Regional Account locations located in your
Territory; provided, however, that we may, as applicable, submit Bid Packages and perform such Approved
Services or cause other owners or contractors to do so, if: (a) you fail to timely submit a Bid Package in
accordance with our request, or if we determine that the Bid Package submitted by you is likely to be rejected
by the Regional Account; (b) we reject your Bid Package or if the Regional Account notifies you or us that
it does not wish to be served by you; (c) you for any reason fail or refuse to perform in accordance with the
Bid Package and Regional Account Agreement; (d) you, at the time of the issuance of the RFP or submission
of the Bid Package, are in default of your obligations or under any other agreement with us, or under any
other Regional Account Agreement to which you are party; or (e) you are, in our judgment exercised in
good faith, not qualified, equipped or otherwise capable to satisfy the RFP or Regional Account Agreement
requirements or to perform the services as required. We may, but are not obligated to, compensate you for
Approved Services performed by us, our affiliates or other owners or contractors for Regional Account
locations located in your Territory in such amounts (if any) as we determine.

We or an affiliate may charge a management fee to offset the sales and administrative expenses of
processing and managing Regional Accounts. We reserve the right to modify the Regional Accounts
Program from time to time.

In addition to the Regional Accounts program, as it may be modified from time to time, an affiliate
of ours may offer you subcontract work in accordance with its then-current procedures for servicing
Centrally Managed Accounts. For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Centrally Managed Accounts”
refers to customer accounts for multi-site, geographically dispersed real estate portfolios utilizing a network
of subcontractors to perform the services. Our affiliates are not obligated to provide you with any
subcontract work and may offer such work to your competitors.

The Company, its parents, or its affiliates have the right to use other channels of distribution,
including the Internet, catalog sales, telemarketing, or other direct marketing, to make sales within any
franchisee’s Territory using the Marks. You may not solicit or accept orders from customers outside of your
Territory, and you may not solicit or accept orders from customers within your Territory if services to that
customer are provided, in whole or in part, outside of your Territory. You also may not make sales within
or outside of your Territory using other channels of distribution, including the Internet, catalog sales,
telemarketing, or other direct marketing without the Company’s consent.

The Company does not have any present plan to establish another business offering similar services
under a different trade name or trademark, but it retains the right to do so. In addition, we may purchase,
merge, acquire or be acquired by or affiliate with an existing competitive or non-competitive franchise or
non-franchise network, chain or any other business regardless of the location of that other business’
facilities, and we may then operate, franchise or license those other businesses and/or facilities under any
names or marks other than the Marks regardless of the location of these businesses and/or facilities, which
may be within your Territory or immediately near it. You will receive no compensation for these activities.

i
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The Company retains the right to solicit and sell to accounts within the Territory that also have
locations outside of the Territory, including, but not limited to, solicitation and sales via direct marketing
campaigns, telemarketing, and by use of the Internet and other online computer networks, without
compensating you.

Additional Franchises

Upon receiving your written request, we may award you additional franchises at our discretion, provided that
you meet the then-current criteria we utilize in the awarding of additional franchises. The criteria to be awarded
an additional Franchise are listed in our Manuals and may be updated at any time.

ITEM 13: TRADEMARKS

You must operate your business under the name milliCareMilliCare®. You also must use the
Marks in the operation of your business. The Company has the right to use and sublicense the following
trademarks in conjunction with these franchises:

-and-Registration
Mark Registration Date Number Register
s

c a re (renev%/ZOZl 1,666,086 Principal

MILLICARE (word mark) (reneWEe)/dZ%gg}ZOIS) 2,160,838 princivl
MILLICARE (word mark) (reng\ll\}gé%fgl%m) 2,166,428 Principal
MILLICARE (word mark) (regé 3\;%384%28) 2,170,077 principal
CLEAN WORKING CLEAN LIVING (rengﬁfﬁ%ow) 3,413,389 princivl
CLEAN WORKING CLEAN LIVING (rengxgﬁﬁ%o g | 3413388 princivl

Our parent, MilliCare, Inc., owns the Registrations and licenses it to us under a license agreement.
The term of the license agreement is indefinite but MilliCare, Inc. may terminate the license agreement
upon 30 days’ notice or in the event we breach the agreement and fail to cure within the time period allowed
under the license agreement. If MilliCare, Inc. terminates the license agreement, MilliCare, Inc. will assume
all of our rights and obligations under any franchise agreements then in effect. There are no currently
effective material determinations of the United States Patent and Trademark Office, Trademark Trial and
Appeal Board, the trademark administrator of any state, or any court involving the Marks. There are no
pending infringement, opposition, or cancellation proceedings or material litigation involving the Marks.
All required affidavits have been filed. -All applicable Section 8 & 15 Affidavits and Section 9- Renewals
have been filed with the United States Patent and Trademark Office for the trademarks.

You must assist the Company to the extent it reasonably requests in obtaining or maintaining any
registration of any of the trademarks, including by providing advertising samples.
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There are no agreements which limit the rights of the Company to use or license its trademarks.

You must follow the Company’s rules when you use the Marks. All uses of the Marks by you must
clearly state that you are independently owned and operated. You may not use the Marks as part of a
partnership, corporation, limited liability company, or other legal entity name. If you own any business(es)
other than the Franchised Business, neither you nor your personnel engaged in such other business(es) may
conduct the same under any of the Marks or operate in any manner so as to cause confusion of origin or
sponsorship between the Company’s services and products and the services or products offered or rendered
by such other business(es). You have no right to compensation or otherwise if the Company requires you
to modify or discontinue using the Marks.

You must promptly notify the Company of any unauthorized use of any of the Marks, or any
colorable variation of the Marks, by third parties. You must promptly notify the Company of any claim,
demand, or suit against you based upon, or arising in connection with, your use of the Marks. You have no
authority to defend or prosecute any action relating to the Marks, and the Company in its sole discretion
may elect to defend or prosecute any action relating to the Marks. If the Company defends or prosecutes
any action relating to the Marks, you will sign any and all documents and do all acts necessary to carry out
the litigation. The Company has no obligation to protect your right to use the Marks or to protect you
against claims of infringement or unfair competition arising out of your use of the Marks. The Company
has the sole right to direct and control any administrative proceeding or litigation involving the Marks,
including the right to settle the proceedings or litigation.

The Company does not know of any infringing uses that could materially affect your use of the
Marks.

ITEM 14
PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

Fhe-Company-deesWe do not own any registered patents-and-has-no-pending-patent-applications;

or copyrights that are material to yeur-business-
Ihe—@empany—ela{ms’[he franchise, however we claim common Iaw copyrlght and trade secret protectlon

for

franchiseSeveral aspects of the System including our Operations Manual, advertising, and business materials.

There are no current determinations, proceedings or litigation involving any of our copyrighted
materials. Should you become aware that any unauthorized third party is using any of our copyrighted
materials, we request that you notify us of this unauthorized use. We may revise any of our copyrighted
materials at our discretion and may require that you cease using any outdated copyrighted material. You will
be responsible for printing any revised or new advertising, marketing, or other business materials.

During the term of the Franchise Agreement, you will receive information which we consider to be our
trade secrets and confidential information, including but not limited to methods of cleaning and maintenance
of floor coverings, interior finishes and interior furnishings, the application of performance floor coatings, tile
and grout cleaning and maintenance services, and related services; information regarding the setup of an
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Franchised Business; information about proprietary merchandise; any proprietary software we may now or in
the future create; our Operations Manual; trade secrets; price marketing mixes related to the sale of goods or
services offered or authorized for sale by System franchisees; standards and specifications for equipment,
equipment layout, and lighting; systems and training manuals; training systems; compensation systems;
marketing _strategies; online marketing systems; merchandise sales systems; sales training; location
identification and acquisition; general operations; our copyrighted materials; and methods and other techniques
and know-how concerning the of operation of the Franchised Business which may be communicated to you or
of which you may be apprised by virtue of your operation of a Franchised Business (collectively, the
“Confidential Information”). You shall not, during the term of the Franchise Agreement or after, communicate,
divulge, or use for the benefit of any other person, partnership, association, corporation, or limited liability
company any Confidential Information except to your employees that must have access to it to operate the
Franchised Business. Certain additional information, including all data collected from former, existing, and/or
potential customers including customer names and addresses, discounts and credit extensions to customers,
rates charged to customers and customer contracts and status information (collectively “Customer
Information™), as well as sources of suppliers and purchasing arrangements with suppliers, also constitute our
trade secrets and Confidential Information. All information, knowledge, know-how, techniques, and other data,
which we designate as confidential will be deemed Confidential Information for purposes of the Franchise
Agreement. We have expended considerable time, effort, and money to develop the System, and the
Confidential Information is not well known outside of the System. The Confidential Information is of great
value to us, and we are implementing this non-disclosure policy to protect our trade secrets and Confidential
Information. You are prohibited from disclosing Customer Information and our other proprietary information,
trade secrets, and Confidential Information to third parties, including entering such information into
public/open Al models or any other Al model that uses such information to train the Al unless specifically
authorized by us, and you must adhere to any privacy policies we may now, or in the future, establish with
respect to Customer Information.

If you, your employees, or principals develop any new concept, process or improvement in the
operation or promotion of the Franchised Business, you must promptly notify us and provide us with all
necessary related information, without compensation. Any such concept, process or improvement will become
our sole property and we will be the sole owner of all patents, patent applications, trademarks, copyrights, and
other related intellectual property rights. You and your principals will assign to us any rights you may have or
acquire, including the right to modify the concept, process, or improvement, and otherwise must waive and/or
release all rights of restraint and moral rights. You and your principals agree to assist us in obtaining and
enforcing the intellectual property rights to any such concept, process, or improvement in all countries and
further agree to execute and provide us with all necessary documentation for obtaining and enforcing these
rights. You and your principals will irrevocably designate and appoint us as your agent and attorney-in-fact to
execute and file any documentation and to do all other lawful acts to further the prosecution and issuance of
patents or other intellectual property rights related to any concept, process, or improvement. If these provisions
are found to be invalid or otherwise unenforceable, you and your principals will grant to us a worldwide,
perpetual, non-exclusive, fully paid license to use and sublicense the use of the concept, process, or
improvement if this use or sublicense would otherwise directly or indirectly infringe your rights.

ITEM 15

:OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF
THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS

You are not required to personally participate in the day-to-day operation of the Franchised
Business. However, you must have, at all times, a fully trained General Manager and at least 1one
dedicated, full-time, fully trained salesperson. Your General Manager is not required to be Zone of the
i
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principals of your legal entity. However, if the General Manager is not a principal of your legal entity, we
have the right to evaluate and approve or disapprove of this General Manager. -There is no requirement that
the General Manager havehas an equity interest in your entity. All your employees engaged in the
management or operation of your Franchised Business must sign our confidentiality and non-competition
agreement (the current form of which is attached as Exhibit “F”) prior to his or her employment. If you
own or operate a non-competing business, as described in Exhibit B of the Franchise Agreement, you must
comply with the mithiCareMilliCare® Co-Brand Guidelines that are incorporated into the Operations
Manual, use trading designations separate from the Marks, maintain separate office space, and have the
personnel related to such other business(es) wear apparel that does not feature any of the Marks. Inaddition,
if you have more than L-mitiiCareone MilliCare® franchise with contiguous Marketing Territories, you
may not be required to maintain a separate product and equipment storage space for each
mihiCareMilliCare® franchise.

As a condition of employment of any employee in the management and operation of your
franchised business, your employees must covenant to maintain and protect proprietary information,
mcludmg signing of standard covenants. Eaeh—pe#s%#h&ewnsa—beneﬁ%—m&e%n—y%ﬁeg&kamw
#tsterms-Any person or entity that is an owner
of 5% or more of the franchlsee or any tlme becomes an owner of a minority interest of the franchisee,
must execute the form of personal guaranty attached to the Franchise Agreement, whereby each guarantor
personally guarantees the obligations of the franchisee (Franchise Agreement, Exhibit C).

ITEM 16
RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

You may offer and sell only those products and services that are approved by the Company or that
meet with the reasonable specifications and standards established by the Company. You must offer and sell
all of the Services that we have approved for your franchise. You must purchase all proprietary products and
proprietary equipment from the Company or its designated affiliate. You may purchase equipment and
supply items only from sources approved by the Company. The Company may, at any time, require the
substitution of newly developed proprietary products for non-proprietary items. The Company has the right
to add additional authorized products and services that you must then offer. There are no limits on the
Company’s right to do so. You may not become a wholesaler or distributor of proprietary products or
proprietary equipment, and you may not re-sell proprietary products or proprietary equipment, except in
connection with the provision of Services by you. You may not become a wholesaler or distributor of non-
proprietary equipment and supplies related to the Services to other franchisees or to customers of the
miiCareMilliCare® System (See Items 1 and 8).

You may provide the Services only to commercial, industrial, and office customers, and not to
residential customers. You may provide Services for any non-residential customer in the Territory who is
not disapproved in writing by the Company. In certain markets, the Company has agreed not to solicit
certain customers for a limited period of time. If you buy a franchise in these markets, the Company will
censultwithsupply you enwith these customer restrictions.

You are an independent contractor with control and direction of the Franchised Business and

.
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operations, subject to the conditions specified in the Franchise Agreement and Operations Manual. The
Franchised Business you operate is separate and apart from any that we may operate. Neither you nor we
may bind each other or make any representations tending to create apparent agency, employment, or

partnership.

ITEM 17
RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP
This table lists certain important provisions of the Franchise Agreement and other

agreements. You should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this disclosure
document.

Provision Section in Agreement Summary
a. | Length of the franchise Franchise Agreement § 1.4.1 | 10 years

term

b. | Renewal or extension of Franchise Agreement §8 You may renew the franchise for two
the term 142,143 successive fiveten-year periods on the
Company’s then current terms if you
Optiea-tapecman—ah have not defaulted and meet the
requirements for renewal. If you
renew the franchise, you must sign the
then-current form of franchise
agreement, which may have materially
different terms and conditions from
your original contract, including a
higher royalty fee and promotional
fee.

¢. | Requirements for you to Franchise Agreement 88 Sign new franchise agreement, which
renew or extend 143,252 may contain materially different terms
and conditions than your initial
Option-Agreement-n/a franchise agreement, comply with
current Franchise Agreement, exercise
diligent efforts to develop your
franchise during the term in a manner
acceptable to us, meet our then current
subjective and objective standards for
new franchisees, provide us with
requested documentation, give timely
notice of desire to renew, execute a
general release, complete required
training and consulting programs, and
attend all required meetings and
events.

d. | Termination by you None You may terminate under any grounds
permitted by law.

.
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Provision

Section in Agreement

Summary

Termination by the
Company without cause

None

Not Applicable

Termination by the
Company with cause

Franchise Agreement § 6.1

The Company can terminate your

franchise if you default.

“Cause” defined-curable Franchise Agreement § 6.1 You have 5 to 30 days to cure: a non-
defaults payment of fees or other amounts due,
Do fopencnn nl non-compliance with applicable laws

or regulations, failure to perform any
obligation under the Franchise
Agreement or another agreement

between us.

“Cause” defined-non-
curable defaults

Franchise Agreement § 6.1

Defaults which cannot be cured:
bankruptcy foreclosure, inability to
pay debts, abandonment, material
misrepresentations, charge or arrest for
certain criminal conduct, repeated
defaults even if cured, uncurable
breach, unauthorized transfer, breach
of covenant not to compete, use of
Marks in a business other than the

Franchised Business.

Your obligations on
termination/nonrenewal

Franchise Agreement 88
3.17,6.2,6.5, 6.6

Obligations include payment of all
amounts due including liquidated
damages, ceasing to use Marks and
Proprietary Information, return
Confidential Manual and other
documents, and other obligations.

Assignment of the
contract by the
Company

Franchise Agreement § 5.1

Option-Agreement§3

The Company cannot assign the
franchise unless the assignee assumes
the Company’s obligations.

: :
Fhe Company may-assigh-the Optio

lo i .

“Transfer” by you —
definition

Franchise Agreement § 5.2

Cotlen-toroomonni

Includes transfer of assets and change

in ownership.

The Company’s
approval of transfer by
you

Franchise Agreement 8§ 5.2,
54

The Company is not required to
approve transfer requests but may
approve transfers if certain conditions

are satisfied.

. 52 eels i | .
DO ERC RO R O e A At HRe
.
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Provision

Section in Agreement

m. | Conditions for Company
approval of transfer-

Franchise Agreement 88§
5.2.4(a)-(i)

The Company has the right to require
conditions of transfer to be satisfied,
including but not limited to payment
of transfer fee; if applicable, payment off

resale assistance fee; transferee must
qualify,

_pay Initial Training Fee, complete
training; sign Franchise Agreement,
required guarantees signed, repair
premises; you must sign release;
transferee, or those controlling, or under
common control with, the transferee,
cannot, as a result of the transfer or
otherwise, control franchises with
combined annual revenues of 15% or
more of the annual revenues of all
milliCareMilliCare® franchises

_in the network.

;"FS’PFF&H’Gh‘{‘S‘W i O

n. | The Company’s right of
first refusal to acquire
your business

Franchise Agreement § 5.5

The Company or its designee can match
any offer that you receive.

0. | The Company’s option to
purchase your business

Franchise Agreement § 6.2

The Company may upon termination
purchase all products and supplies

R which bear the Marks at your cost.
p. | Your death or disability Franchise Agreement § 5.3 Franchise must be transferred to a
qualified successor within 6 months.
g.- | Non-competition Franchise Agreement § 3.18 | Limits interest in, and employment by,
covenants during the term a competing business. The Company
of the franchise Option-Agreement-nfa may disapprove of certain customers.

and subcontractors. Subject to State
law.

.
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Provision

Section in Agreement

Summary

Non-competition
covenants after the
franchise is terminated or
expires

Franchise Agreement § 3.18

Limits interest in, and employment by,
a competing business for 2 years from
termination within the defined
territory description as well as 25
miles from territory boundary or the
territory of any other franchisee.
Subject to State law.

Modification of the
agreement

Franchise Agreement 88 2.3,
7.11

Requires consent of you and the
Company. The Confidential Manual
and System may be changed by the
Company.

Integration/merger clause

Franchise Agreement § 7.17

Only the terms of the franchise
agreement and other related written
agreements are binding (subject to
applicable state law). Any
representations or promises outside of
the disclosure document and franchise
agreement may not be enforceable.

Dispute resolution by
arbitration or mediation

Franchise Agreement § 6.3

You must first submit all disputes and
controversies arising under the
Franchise Agreement to our
management and make every effort to
resolve the dispute internally. At our
option, all claims or disputes must be
submitted to non-binding mediation in
the state and city of our then-current
National Headqguarters (presently
Orlando, Florida:). If not resolved,
most disputes must be resolved by
binding arbitration in the state and
city of our then-current National
Headquarters (presently Orlando,
Florida:). The fees and expenses of
arbitration, not including attorneys’
fees, generally will be shared equally
by the parties. Subject

to State law.

Choice of forum

Franchise Agreement § 7.2

Option-Agreement 84

Orlandelorida—Subjectto-State-law-c

Choice of law

Franchise Agreement § 7.1

Option-Agreement-84

Law-Except for claims under federal
trademark law, and the parties’ rights

.-
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Provision Section in Agreement Summary

under the Federal Arbitration Act, the
laws of the state of our then current
National Headquarters (presently
Florida) will govern (subject to state
law).

ITEM 18: PUBLIC FIGURES
The Company does not use any public figure to promote its franchise.

ITEM 19
:FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential
financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable basis for
the information, and if the information is included in the disclosure document. Financial performance
information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a franchisor provides the
actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying; or (2) a franchisor supplements the
information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing information about possible performance at
a particular location or under particular circumstances.

BACKGROUND

As of December 31, 26232024, there were 5659 territories operated by 3537 separate franchisees.
We based this financial performance representation on historical data of all miliiCareMilliCare® franchises

in the United States that were open the entire 20232024 calendar year.-Several-franchisees—eoperate—in
numerous-Marketing-Territories,butreportas-a-single franchisee—

This Item 19 profiles 2237 franchisees operating in 3437 Territories. Franchisees profiled in this
Item 19 operate substantially similar businesses as being offered through this disclosure document offering
substantially similar products and services as the business you will operate. -

The following tables represents the gross amount of all money and the value of all property directly
or indirectly received by the Franchisee for goods sold and services rendered in connection with the
Franchised Business (“sales™)-for calendar year 20232024 of milliCareMilliCare® franchises in the United
States. Table A presents the average Gross SalesBillings of the 8 multi territory Franchisees operating in

2924 Terrltorles —Table B presents the Gross S&IesBlllmg s of %437 smgle tem{epyuﬁpanehlsee&ep%anﬂg

Excluded from this Item 19 are: (i) 96 territories that opened during the 26232024 calendar year,
or left the system, and otherwise were not open for 12 months; and (iii) 922 territories that didn’t report to

us a minimum of 11 months of sales;-and-(iv)4-territories-that-aren’t being-operated-on-a-full-time-basis by
March 1, 2025.

Calendar Year 20232024

.
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A.

Multi-Territory Franchisees

Numb
er At
or | Number and % _ % _
No. of ibove Pe#eem&ge— ibove ielow
- . . vera | Achieving-or vera vera
Gross Billings High Low Loi:]r;ltlo ge | ExceedingBe ol ol
2023- | low Average/ | Media | Media
Sales/ |  Median n n Hi
Media
n
Avera | $1,749.567649 | $7,028:184085 | $260.07740, 208 3
ge 443 213 959 = 5 60% 40%
i $863,333 $7,085,213 $40,959 8 4 4
n 0 — ! = - - 50% 50%
B. Single Ferritory-FranchiseesTerritories
Numb
er At Number
or S % %
No. of AIZOV Pereen—tage— Above | Below
Gross . T = 9 Avera | Avera
Billings High Low Locatio | Avera oF _gi _gi
ns 50 E*egffv‘:ngﬁ Media | Media
Sales/ | Average/ n L
Medi Median
an
$350.004Ave S | $273.0004,01 | $847.3769, | $58.752
rage | 35798457 | 5107 4 | oz | M
57 24 65% 35%
Median $240,039 $4,012,107 $9,774 37 19 18 51% 49%
milhiCare
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Some outlets have earned this amount. Your individual results may differ. There is no assurance that
youHyou will earn as much.

Written substantiation for this financial performance representation will be made available to a prospective
franchisee upon reasonable request. This data is based on reports submitted to us and have not been verified or
audited.

We recommend that prospective mitiCareMilliCare® franchisees make their own independent
investigation and consult with an attorney and other advisors prior to executing the Franchise Agreement.

Other than the preceding financial performance representation, MilliCare Franchising, LLC does not
make any financial performance representations. We also do not authorize our employees or representatives to
make any such representations either orally or in writing. If you are purchasing an existing outlet, however, we may
provide you with the actual records of that outlet. If you receive any other financial performance information or
projections of your future income, you should report it to the franchisor's management by contacting the
franchisor’s management by contacting David Wells at mitiCareMilliCare Franchising, LLC, 6700 Forum Drive,
Suite 150, Orlando, FL 32821or 800-883-0154, the Federal Trade Commission, and the appropriate state
regulatory agencies.

.
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ITEM 20
2 OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION

Table No. 1-
SYSTEM-WIDE
OUTLET
SUMMARY FOR YEARS 20212022 TO 20232024
Outlet Type Year Outlets at the Start | Outlets at the End Net Change
of the Year of the Year
Franchised# 20212022 48 4752 -1+4
20232022 47 5160 +48
52
20232024 51 5659 +5-1
60
Company-Owned 20222021 0 0 0
20232022 0 0 0
20232024 0 0 0
Total Outlets 20222021 48 4752 -1+4
20222023 47 5160 +48
52
20232024 51 5659 +5-1
60
Table No. 2

FRANSEERSTRANSFER OF OUTLETS FROM FRANCHISEES TO NEW OWNERS
(OTHER THAN THE FRANCHISOR)
_FOR YEARS 20212022 TO 20232024

State

Year

Number of Transfers

Alabama

N
N
:%)

2023

2024

Colorado

2022

2023

2024

Total

20222021

2022

2023

2024

N[ ro| of of v Bl of o] o

Table No. 3

STATUS OF FRANCHISED SUTFLEFSFOROUTLETS FOR YEARS 20212022 TO 20232024

.-
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State

Outlets
at Start
of Year

Outlets
Opened

Terminations

Non-
Renewal

Reacquired

by
Franchisor

Ceased
Operations—
Other
Reasons

Outlets
at End
of Year

Alabama

2

0

0

0

0

2

2

2

2

Arizona

[N

=

California

=l

Blojo|o] o o

ol ofw

Colorado

Nl | W| K=

Bllo|o|m

B3fieo| w| 4o

Delaware

[l [[*SINIV IR S

M| Wl o

=

(BN

=

Florida

(o]

o o o oo O H=

o o o ollo|o|o oo O] o|lo|o|© o o

o o o o|o|o| O oo OO o|lo|o| o o o

oD O

Georgia

Illinois

o O o o o o o o

o O o o o o o o

o O o o o o o o

W W w

Indiana

o

o

o

2023

o| O

o| O o o o o o o o o o o o o o|o|o| O oo Oo|O [e]i[e]) i) o o o o

o| O

oD

ol o o o o o o o o o o o o Ol O] O [e]|[e] el is] o|o|o| O o o o

| B

e
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Ceased
Outlets Reacquired|Operations—| Outlets
State Year | at Start | Outlets | Terminations]  Non- by Other | at End
of Year | Opened Renewal |Franchisor| Reasons | of Year
2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Kansas %20 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
oonn 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 0 1 0 0 0 0
2024 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Kentucky 20222 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
021
2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Louisiana 202220 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
21
Sonn 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Maryland 20222 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
021
oonn 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Massachusetts 20222 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
021
2000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2023 0 12 0 0 0 0 12
2024 2 0 1 0 0 0 1
Michigan 202220 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
21
Sonn 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 1 0 0 0 0 2
2024 2 1 0 0 0 0 3
Missouri %@9 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
20232 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
ooo
20232 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
024
Nebraska 202220 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
21
ST 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2023 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Nevada 202220 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
21
Sonn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2023 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

.
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Ceased
Outlets Reacquired|Operations—| Outlets
State Year | at Start | QUtlets |Terminations) _Non- by Other | atEnd
of Year | Opened Renewal |Franchisor| Reasons | of Year
New Jersey 20222 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
021
ooon 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
New York 20222 21 0 01 10 0 0 10
021
2022 1 0 1 0 0 0 0
2023 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
North Carolina* |20222 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
021
2020 Z 0 0 0 0 0 2
2023 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
Ohio 20212 32 0 0 0 0 0 32
024
Ohio 2022 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
2023 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
2024 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
Oklahoma 20222 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
021
ooon 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
2023 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
2024 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
Pennsylvania 20222 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
021
2022 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
2023 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
2024 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
South Carolina#* | 20222 12 0 0 0 0 0 12
021
2000 1 0 0 0 0 0 i
2023 12 0 0 0 0 0 2
2024 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
Tennessee 20222 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
021
2002 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
2023 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
2024 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
Texas 20222 4 05 03 0 0 0 46
021
2022 4 5 3 0 0 0 6
2023 6 23 0 0 0 0 89
L ital 20212 19 0 0 0 0 0 19
024
Utah 2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 01 0 0 0 0 12

-
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Ceased

Outlets Reacquired|Operations—| Outlets
State Year | at Start | QUtlets | Terminations] _Non- by Other | at End
of Year | Opened Renewal | Franchisor| Reasons | of Year
2024 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
Virginia 20222 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
021
2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Total 29%@ 48 68 04 10 0 0 4452
2022 47 8 4 0 0 0 51
2023 | 5152 | 710 7 0 0 0 5660
2024 | 60 1 1 0 0 1 29

* There is 1 Franchise whose Territory comprises counties in North Carolina and South Carolina.
It is shown only in South Carolina, the state where its business office is located. A few franchisees have
Territories in a state above, but their office is located in another state. See Exhibit “G.”

.-
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Table No. 4
STATUS OF COMPANY-OWNED OUTFLETFSFOROUTLETS FOR YEARS 20212022 TO 20232024

Outlets
Outlets at Reacquired Outlets at
Startof | Outlets from Outlets |Outlets Sold to|End of the
State Year Year Opened | Franchisees | Closed | Franchisees Year
Total 2021202 0 0 0 0 0 0
2
2023202 0 0 0 0 0 0
2
2023202 0 0 0 0 0 0
4
Table No. 5
PROJECTED OPENINGS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 20232024
FRANCHISE PROJECTED NEW PROJECTED NEW
AGREEMENTS SIGNED FRANCHISED COMPANY-OWNED
STATE BUT OUTLET NOT OUTLETS IN THE OUTLETS IN THE
OPENED NEXT FISCAL YEAR NEXT FISCAL YEAR
Alabama 1 0 0
Arizona 0 1 0
California- 02 10 0
IllinoisShis 0 1 0
MarylandPennsylvania 0 1 0
FennesseeWashington 0 1 0
TOTAL 13 53 0

The names of all franchisees as of December 31, 20232024, and the addresses and telephone
numbers of all of their outlets, is attached to this disclosure document as Exhibit “GF.” The name, city and
state, and the current business telephone number (or, if unknown, the last known telephone number) of the
franchisees who had an outlet terminated, cancelled, not renewed, or who have otherwise voluntarily or
involuntarily ceased to do business under the Franchise Agreement during the year ended December 31,
20232024, or who has not communicated with the Company within 10 weeks of the issuance date of this
disclosure document, is shown on Exhibit “HG.”

If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you

leave the franchise network.
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FermerDuring our last three fiscal years, some current or former franchisees have signed
confidentiality clauses-during-the-past-3-years. In some instances, current and former franchisees sign
provisions restricting their ability to speak openly about their experience with mitiCare®-us. You may
wish to speak with current and former franchisees but be aware that not all such franchisees will be able
to communicate with you.

Fhere-are-no-

Below are the names, addresses, telephone numbers, email addresses, and web addresses of each
trademark-specific franchisee erganizations-organization associated with the franchise netwerksystem
being offered-that, which we have created, sponsored, or endorsed:-orthat-has-asked-to-be-includedin.

Organization Name: Franchise Advisory Council

Established: @1999

Address: 6700 Forum Dr. Ste 150, Orlando, FL 32821-8013
Phone: #800-883-0154

As of the date of this disclosure-document:

Ne-issuance, there are no independent franchisee erganization-hasorganizations that have asked to be
included in this disclosure document.

ITEM 21: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Attached in Exhibit “B-1” are the consolidated audited consolidated financial statements of
EverSmith Brands Holding Company, our parent, for the years ended December 31, 26232024, December
31, 20232022, and December 31, 20212022, respectively. Our parent, EverSmith Brands Holding
Company, has guaranteed our performance with you. -A copy of the Guarantee of Performance is attached
as Exhibit “B-2.”- Our fiscal year end is December 31 of each year.

ITEM 22: CONTRACTS
Attached are copies of all of the agreements for use regarding the offering of this franchise:

Exhibit C. Franchise Agreement
Exhibit D. Conversion Addendum ExhibitE—Option-

Agreement et .
Exhibit FE. Confidentiality and Non-Competition Agreement

Exhibit 1H. Franchisee Compliance Certification
Exhibit KI. State Addenda
Exhibit J. Form of General Release
-
MilliCare Floor & Textile Care
20242025 Franchise Disclosure Document Page |
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ITEM 23: RECEIPTS

Attached-as-the The last 2two pages of this diselesureDisclosure Document contains a detachable document
(after—the—exhibits)-are—2, IN_duplicate, acknowledging receipt of this Disclosure Document by a prospective
franchisee. You should sign both copies of the Receiptfor this-disclosure-document—Kkeep-1receipts. You should retain
one signed and-dated-copy for your records and return the other signed copy to-miticare: MilliCare, Inc, 6700
Forum Dr Ste 150, Orlando, Florida 32821-8013, Attn: David Wells, or you may email direct to
David.Wells@eversmithbrands.com.

i

MilliCare Floor & Textile Care
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EXHIBIT A

List of State Administrators and Agents for Service of Process

LIST OF STATE ADMINISTRATORS-AND-_
AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS.




STFATFEABDMINISTRATORSANBAGENTS FORSERVAICE OFRPROCESS

STATE

STATE REGHEATORY-
AGENCYADMINISTRATOR

AGENT FO-RECEINEFOR
SERVICE OF PROCESS-H\-
STFAFEAFDHFFERENT-
FHANTHESTATE

REGHEATORYAGENCY

CaliferniaCAL IFORNIA

Department of Financial Protection and
Innovation

320West 4" Street Suite 750
Los-Angeles CA-90013-2344-(213) 576-
7500

Sacramento

2101 Arena Boulevard
Blvd

Sacramento, CA 95834

(866) 275-2677

Department of Financial

Protection and Innovation

2101 Arena Blvd

Sacramento, CA 95834

State of Hawaii

Commissioner of Securities-

Business Registration Division Departmentof Commerce-and-
Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs Consumer-Affairs
HawaiHAWAII Busi Registration Division Compissioner-of . . . .
Seel Fities E -y ; I. E I
i P-OBex40 King Kalakaua Building
King Kalakaua Building 335 Merchant Street—
335 Merchant Street Room 203205
Room 205 = .
HonOIUIU, Hawaii- 96810 HonOIUIU, Hawacl-l—9684§m
HI 96813 (808) 586-2744 26810
Franchise Bureau [linois Attorney General
Division 500 South Second Street
ILLINOIS Office of the Attorney General- Springfield, IL 62706
Hlinoi 500 South Second Street-

Springfield, IL 62706

(217) 782-44651090




AGENT FO-RECENEFOR
SERVICE OF PROCESSHN-

STATEIEFDIEFERENT
FHANTHESTFATE
STATE REGULATORY-
STATE AGENCYADMINISTRATOR REGUEATORY-AGENCY
Franchise Section Indiana Secretary of State
Securities Commissioner 201 State House
Indiana Securities Division-Secretary-of State 200 W. Washington Street, Rm
Indianal NDIANA 201
Room E- 111 Indianapolis, IN 46204

302 W-West Washington Street-
Indianapolis, dianalN 46204

(317) 232-6681

Office of the Attorney General-
Securities Division

Maryland Securities
Commissioner-

Investor Protection Bureau
28 Liberty St 21% FI

New York, NY 10005
(212) 416-8222

MARYLAND 200 St. Paul Place
20th Floor 20th Floor
Sepmland
200 St. Paul Place- Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2020
Baltimore, MD 21202-2020
(410) 576-70427044
MICHIGAN Michigan Departrr_lent o_f A‘gtorney General Michigan Department of
— Consumer Protection Division Commerce
Antitrust and Franchise Unit Corporations and Securities
G. Mennen Williams Building, 7" Floor Bureau
525 W. Ottawa St. G. Mennen Williams Building, 7™
Lansing, M1 48909 Floor
(517) 373-1110 525 W. Ottawa St.
Lansing, M1 48909
MINNESOTA Minrlesota Departme_nt of Commerce Minnesota Commissioner of
- 85 7" Place East, Suite 280 Commerce
St. Paul, MN 55101 85 7" Place East, Suite 280
(651) 539-1600 St. Paul, MN 55101
NEW YORK NYS Department of Law New York Department of State

One Commerce Plaza

99 Washington Avenue, 6" Floor
Albany, NY 12231-0001

(518) 473-2492

NORTH DAKOTA

North Dakota Securities Department
600 East Boulevard Avenue

State Capitol — 5" Floor

Bismarck, ND 58505-0510

(701) 328-2910

North Dakota Securities
Department

600 East Boulevard Avenue
State Capitol — 5" Floor
Bismarck, ND 58505-0510




STATE

STATE REGULATORY-
AGENCYADMINISTRATOR

AGENT FO-RECENEFOR
SERVICE OF PROCESSHN-
STFAFEAHDHFERENT-
THANTHESTATE

REGUEATORY-AGENCEY

RHODE ISLAND

Division of Securities
1511 Pontiac Division
John O. Pastore Center
Building 69-1
Cranston, Rl 02920

(401) 277-3048

Director of Department of
Business Regulation

1511 Pontiac Division
John O. Pastore Center
Building 69-1

Cranston, Rl 02920

SOUTH DAKOTA

Division of Insurance
Securities Regulation
124 S Euclid, Suite 104
Pierre, SD 57501

(605) 773-3563

Division of Insurance
Securities Requlation
124 S Euclid, Suite 104
Pierre, SD 57501

(605) 773-3563

State Corporation Commission

Clerk of the State Corporation

VIRGINIA T — . . —
Division of Securities and Retail Franchising Commission
1300 E. Main Street, Ninth Floor 1300 E. Main Street, First Floor
Richmond, VA 23219 Richmond, VA 23219
(804) 371-9051
WASHINGTON Department of Financial Institutions Department of Financial
Securities Division Institutions
P. O. Box 41200 Securities Division
Olympia, WA 98504 150 Israel Road SW
360) 902-8760 Tumwater, WA 98501
WISCONSIN Commission of Securities Wisconsin Commissioner of
- 201 West Washington Ave. Securities
Madison, W1 53703 345 West Washington Ave.
(608) 266-1365 Madison, W1 53703
AGENTTFORECENVEPROGCESS
STATE STFATFEREGULATORY INSTATEH-DBIFFERENT-
AGENCY TFHAN-THE-STATE
REGULATORY-AGENCY
e HganR torRey General’s
Office . L
L Sens:unm I II © teetlen_Elnlsm '
525 W Ottawa-Street-
Lansing-M1-48933
BAp 2o Ay
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Plante & Moran, PLLC

plante

2801 Camnbridge Cour
Aubiurm Hils, 48326

moran Tel; 248,375,710

Fax: 248,375,711
PAsMSMmOran.com

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors
EverSmith Brands Holding Company and Subsidianes

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of EverSmith Brands Holding Company and Subsidianes
(the "Company”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2024 and the related
consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the consolidated financial statemenis.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2024 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAS). Our responsibiliies under those standards are further described in the Auwditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statemenis section of our repert. We are required to be independent of the
Company and to meet our ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a hasis for
our audit opinion.

Report on Prior Year Consolidared Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of EverSmith Brands Holding Company and Subsidiaries as of December
3, 2023 were audited by other auditors, who expressed an unmaodified opinion on those statements on March 28,
2024.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Amernica and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of intermal conirol relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to
continue as a going concermn within one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are issued or
available to be issued.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and,
therefore, is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a matenal misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of intermal control. Misstaiements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonahle user based on the
consolidated financial statements.

@ PRAXITY




To the Board of Directors
EverSmith Brands Holding Company and Subsidiaries

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or eror, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's intemal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluaie the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregaie, that raise
substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concem for a reasonable pericd of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain intermal control-related matters that we
identified during the audit.

7444&, f Z'buw, PLLL

March 25, 2025




EverSmith Brands Holding Company and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheet
December 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023
Assets
Current Assets
Cash £ 3515558 % 2,711,279
Advertising fund restricted cash and restricted assets 100,458 328,234
Accounts receivable - Net 7,114,904 3,615,646
Unhilled revenue 349 380 610,886
Motes receivable 425 473 -
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1673314 477 A7H
Total current assets 13,079,087 7,743 220
Property and Equipment - Net 780,862 786,019
Operating Lease Right-of-use Assets - Net 1,240,113 1,130,780
Goodwill - Net 50,821,465 14,725 847
Intangible Assets - Net 34,088,554 4,261,233
Other Assets
Deferred commission costs - Met of current portion 2,262 584 hG83,583
Motes receivable - Net of current portion 286,916 -
Other 50,609 -
Total other assets 2,600,109 hG83 583
Total assets $ 102,610,490 $§ 29,250,682
Liabilities and Stockholders® Equity
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 5 40966278 § 2,158 915
Current portion of long-term debt 360,000 -
Current portion of operating lease liabilities 507,060 422 328
Deferred franchise fees 692,354 139 360
Accrued and other current liabilities:
Taxes payable 1,295,818 -
Accrued compensation 2,802,812 R209 872
Other accrued liabilities 1,395,309 1,282 175
Tatal current liabilities 12,018,721 4 532 350
Long-term Debt - Net of current portion 34, 497 135 -
Operating Lease Liabilities - Net of current portion 733,773 723,255
Other Long-term Liabilities
Deferred franchise fees - Net of current portion 4,101,540 926,109
Deferred tax liabilities 1,037,222 1,073,807
Total liahiliies 52,389,301 7,255,521
Stockholders® Equity 50,221,099 21,995 161
Taotal liahilities and stockholders' equity $ 102,610,490 $§ 29,250,682

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 3




EverSmith Brands Holding Company and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Operations

Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023
Net Revenue
Royalty fees $ 13835897 % 5,676,883
Professional service fees 15,863,981 15,647 169
Product revenue 2,874,230 119 685
Initial franchise fee revenue T80,004 94 011
Promotional fund revenue 416,122 315,957
Other 1,234 853 315 452
Total net revenue 35,024 917 22169 157
Cost of Professional Service Fees Revenue 14,085.134 11,634 041
Gross Profit 20,945 783 10,535,116
Operating Expenses 34 186,155 16,5673 B5O
Operating Loss (13,236,372) (6,038 743)
Nonoperating Income (Expense)
Interest income 82,328 -
Other (expense) income (45,331) 16,794
Interest expense (2,181,596) -
Total nonoperating (expense) income (2,144 599) 16,794
Loss - Before income iaxes (15,380 .871) (6.,021,9445)
Income Tax Expense 1,028,222 421 961
Consolidated Net Loss (17,309,193) (6,443.910)
Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income - Foreign currency translation
adjustment (697 817) 284 764
Comprehensive Loss $ (18,007,010) %  (6,159,146)
See notes to consolidated financial statements. 4
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EverSmith Brands Holding Company and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Conzolidated net loss

Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023

$  (17.309,193) § (6,443,910)

Reconciliation of consolidated net loss to net cash and restricted cash from
operating activities - Net of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in business

acquisitions:
Depreciation and amortization expense 7,246,640 2,047,036
Meoncash lease expense (14,083) 12,811
Stock compensation expense 100,595 72554
Deferred income taxes 390,415 421,961
Bad debt expense S74 457 258,348
Debt issuance cost amortization 79,635 -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities - Net of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed:
Accounts receivable and unbilled revenue {2,299,521) (610,259)
Advertizing fund restricted assets and liabilities - (209,288)
Deferred commission costs (1,669,001) (372.636)
Prepaid expenses and other curent assets {260,403) (162,781)
Accounts payable 2,394 416 {224 092)
Taxes payable 1,295,818 -
Deferred revenue 2,141,878 540915
Accrued compensation and other accrued liabiliies 1,819,841 18,771
Met cash and restricted cash used in operating activities {5,408,5086) (4,650,868)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Business acquisitions - Met of cash acquired (71,148,692) (9,234 628)
Purchase of property and equipment (94,2835) (190,387)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment - 25737
lzsuance of notes receivable {712,389) -
Met cash and restricted cash used in investing activities (71,955,368) (9,399,278)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 44 136,124 12,170,560
Procseds from debt 36,000,000 -
Payments on debt {120,000) -
Debt issuance costs (1,042,500) -
Distribution of equity interests (3,771) -
Met cash and restricted cash provided by financing activities 78,909,833 12,170,360
Met Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Restricted Cash {B97,817) (391,110)
HNet Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Restricted Cash 848,164 (2,270,696)
Cash and Restricted Cash - Beginning of year 2,767,852 5,035,248
Cash and Restricted Cash - End of year $ 3616016 § 2,767,852
Classification of Cash and Restricted Cash
Cash 5 3,515,558 5 2,711,279
Restricted cash 100,455 56,573
Total cash and restricted cash 5 3,616,016 3§ 2,767,852
Supplemental Cash Flow Information - Cagh paid for interest 5 2181596 % -
Significant Noncasgh Transactions - Fair value of rollover equity issued for business
acquisitions 3 2,000,000 % 1,050,000

See notes to consolidated financial statements.




EverSmith Brands Holding Company and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2024 and 2023

Note 1 - Nature of Business

EverSmith Brands Holding Company and Subsidiaries (the "Company™) includes its wholly owned
subsidiaries, EverSmith Brands Intermediate Holding Company, 2792705 Ontario Inc., TruServe
Groundscare Inc.; Clintar, Inc; Clintar Franchising, Inc; milliCare, Inc; milliCare Franchising, LLC;
Kitchen Guard Franchising, Inc.; Green Guard Services, LLC; US. Lawns, Inc.; and Restoration
Specialiies Franchise Group, LLC.

The Company's subsidiaries are principally engaged as franchisors of brands, which provide various
senvices such as landscaping, snow removal, operating floor and textile care, commercial kitchen exhaust
cleaning, and specialty restoration. In addition, certain landscaping and snow removal services are
provided directly to cusiomers where franchising territories do not exist.

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. The Company has elected to adopt certain accounting
alternatives for private companies developed by the Private Company Council, including the altemative for
accouniing for goodwill and intangibles.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and all of its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Cash

The Company maintains cash in bank deposit accounts that at imes may exceed federally insured limits.
The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts. Additionally, the Company maintains
cash in various foreign institutions amounting to $2,918,789 and $1,429,696 as of December 31, 2024 and
2023, respectively, converted at year-end exchange rates.

Restricted Cash

In accordance with certain brands’ franchise agreements, certain cash accounts established for
promotional or advertising contributions and spending are restricted in their use for cash collected by the
promotional fund, usage of which is restricted for advertising activities and is included in advertising fund
restricted cash on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

Accounts Receivable

Trade accounts receivable are stated at invoice amounts. An allowance for credit losses is established for
amounts expected to be uncollectible over the contractual life of the receivahbles. At December 31, 2024
and 2023, the Company recorded an allowance for credit losses in the amount of $1,214,135 and
$612,069, respectively. The Company evaluates the collectibility of its accounts receivable and determines
the appropriate allowance for expected credit losses based on a combination of factors, including the
aging of the receivables, historical collection trends, and charge-offs, and includes adjusiments for current
economic conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts. The Company calculates the allowance
using an expected loss model that considers the Company's actual historical loss rates adjusted for
cument ecenomic conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts. When the Company is aware of a
franchisee or customer's inability o meet its financial obligation, the Company may individually evaluate
the related receivable to determine the allowance for expected credit losses. Uncollectible amounts are
writien off against the allowance for credit losses in the period they are determined to be uncollectible.
Recoveries of amounts previously written off are recognized when received. Accounts receivahble, net of
allowance, as of January 1, 2023 equaled 52,568, 780.




EverSmith Brands Holding Company and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2024 and 2023

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Unbiffed Revenue

The Company records royalty revenue that has been recognized but not invoiced to its franchisees in
unbilled revenue until the respective amount is inveiced, which is then included within accounts receivable.
Unhilled revenue is included within current assets, as the amounts are similar to accounts receivable and
are short term in nature.

Froperty and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the
straight-line method. Assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives. The cost of leasehold
improvements is depreciated (amortized) over the lesser of the length of the related leases or the
estimated useful lives of the assels. Costs of maintenance and repairs are charged to expense when
incurred.

Leases

The Company has operating leases primarily for various office spaces that have lease terms that range
from 3 to 5 years, some of which include renewal and termination options that can be elected by the
Company. The Company recognizes expense for operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. The Company made a policy election not o separate lease and nonlease components for all
operating leases. Therefore, all payments are included in the calculation of the right-of-use asset and
lease liability.

The Company elected to use the nisk-free rate as the discount rate for calculating the right-of-use asset
and lease liahility in place of the incremental borrowing rate for all operating leases.

Intangible Assers

Acquired intangible assets subject to amortization are stated at cost and are amortized using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from 6 to 20 years. Intangible
assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed for potential impairment whenever events or
circumstances indicate that carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Assets not subject to amortization
are tested for impairment at least annually.

The Company has elected to apply the private company accounting altermnative for infangible assets
acquired in a business combination developed by the Private Company Council. Under the accounting
alternative, certain acquired customer-related intangible assets and noncompetition agreements are not
separately recognized apart from goodwill.

Goodwill

The recorded amounts of goodwill from prior business combinations are based on management's best
estimates of the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition. The
Company has adopted the provisions of ASU No. 2021-08, Business Combinations: Accounting for
Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities from Contracts with Cusfomers (Topic 803), which requires
companies to record contracts with customers based on the guidance under ASC 606 rather than at fair
value.

The Company has elected to apply the private company accounting aliemative for goodwill developed by
the Private Company Council. Under the accounting altemative, goodwill is amoriized on a siraight-line
basis over a 10-year perod. Additionally, goodwill is assessed for potential impairment if events occur or
circumstances change that indicate the fair value of the Company may be less than its carrying value. The
Company has elected to test goodwill for impairment at the entitywide level.

Mo impairment charge was recognized during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.

a




EverSmith Brands Holding Company and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2024 and 2023
Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue Recognition

The terms of the franchise agreements for the Company are typically 10 years. As part of each
agreement, the Company identified one performance obligation that requires the Company to provide a
combination of the following in exchange for the defined transaction price:

+ Intellectual Property (IP) - Licenses grant an exclusive right to establish and operate a business
under the trademarks.

« Continuing Consulting Services - These senvices include the review of plans; eguipment and
merchandise selection; and establishment and implementation of administrative, bookkeeping,
accounting, inventory control, and general operating procedures.

s+ Operations Manual and Brand-specific Training Services - These provide training programs,
operating manuals, development of standards, and pricing policies specific to the various brands.

+« Preopening Services - These provide primarily site selection, training programs, and sefting up the
franchisee records.

The Company determined that the services noted above represent a set of integrated or highly interrelated
tasks/services and are, therefore, accounted for as a single performance obligation of providing the
franchise license. This type of license is satisfied over ime since the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefit as the entity performs its obligation to provide access and, therefore, meets the
criterion of recognizing revenus over time. Revenue eamed from providing these services is identified as
royalty fees, initial franchise fee revenue, and promotional fund revenue on the accompanying
consolidated statement of operations.

The Company's professional service fees include snow removal, landscaping, professional kitchen hood
cleaning, and professional floor cleaning where there is no franchise territory. Revenue is recognized over
time as the services are rendered. Long-term contracts do not exist for these services, and all work is
typically completed within a 24-hour period.

The Company's product revenue primarily includes sales of chemicals and soak tanks to franchisees.
Revenue is recognized at the ime the product is shipped.

Paymemt Terms

Initial franchise fees are due and typically paid when a franchise agreement is executed and are
nonrefundable. These fees are collected prior to the satisfaction of the Company's performance
obligations, resulting in the Company recognizing deferred revenue confract liabilities. The portion of
confract liabilities that is expected to be recognized as revenue within one year is classified as current on
the consolidated balance sheet. Deferred initial franchise fees as of January 1, 2023 equaled $522 603.
Royalties and promotional fund fees are paid on a monthly basis based upon a percentage of franchises
gross sales. Technology fees are paid on 2 monthly basis based upon a fixed amount. Professional
service fees and product revenue fees are due 30 days from when the service is performed or when the
product is shipped.

Allocating the Transaction Price

The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for providing franchisees with the franchise rights to service customers. To determing the
transaction price, the Company considers its customary business practices and the terms of the
underlying agreement. For the purpose of determining transaction prices, the Company assumes
performance obligations will be satisfied as promised in accordance with franchise agreements and that
the agreements will not be canceled, renewed, or modified.

9




EverSmith Brands Holding Company and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2024 and 2023

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The Company's franchise agreements with franchisees have fransaction prices that contain a fixed and
variable component. Variable consideration includes revenue related to rovalties and adverising fees, as
the transaction price is based on the franchisees’ sales. The variable consideration is recognized based
on the actual amounts incurred each month.

Cosis to Obrain a Franchise Agreement

The Company incurs commission costs to obtain franchise agreements with franchisess. The
commissions are related o franchise fee revenue, which is recognized over time. As a result, the
commission costs are capitalized as deferred commission costs and are expensed over the term of the
respective franchise agreement, which is typically 10 years.

Advertising Expense

In accordance with the Company's franchise agreements, franchisees pay a percentage of monthly sales
to the brand's promotional fund to be used for advertising, marketing, and other promotional purposes.
Advertising expense is charged to income during the year in which it is incurred. Adveriising expense for
2024 and 2023 was 3895604 and $843 644, respectively.

Income Taxes

A current tax liability or asset is recognized for the estimated taxes payable or refundable on tax refums
for the year. Deferred tax liabilities or asseits are recognized for the estimated future fax effects of
temporary differences between financial reporting and tax accounting.

Fair Value Measurements

Accounting standards reguire certain assets and liabilities be reporied at fair value in the financial
statements and provide a framework for establishing that fair value. The framework for determining fair
value is based on a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs and valuation techniques used to measure fair
value.

Fair values determined by Level 1 inputs use quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liahilities that the Company has the ability to access.

Fair values determined by Level 2 inputs use other inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly.
These Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets and liabiliies in active markets and other
inputs, such as interest rates and yield curves, that are observable at commonly quoted intervals.

Level 3 inputs are unobservahle inputs, including inputs that are availahle in situations where there is little,
if any, market activity for the related asset or liability. These Level 3 fair value measurements are based
primarily on management’s own estimates using pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or
similar techniques taking into account the characteristics of the asset or hahility.

In instances where inputs used to measure fair value fall into different levels in the above fair value
hierarchy, fair value measurements in their entirety are categorized based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the valuation. The Company’s assessment of the significance of particular inputs to these fair
value measurements reqguires judgment and considers factors specific to each asset or liability.

Debt Issuance Cosis

Debt issuance costs were incurred by the Company in connection with obtaining the debt o finance one of
the business combinations disclosed in Mote 3. These costs are recorded as a reduction in the recorded
balance of the outstanding debt. The costs are amorized over the term of the related debt and reported
as a component of interest expense.
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EverSmith Brands Holding Company and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2024 and 2023
Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign Currency Translation

The reporting currency of the Company is the U.S. dollar (USD). The Company's functional currency for its
operations in Canada is the Canadian dollar (CAD). Assets and liabilities are translated using the
exchange rates as of year end, and revenue and expenses are translated using average exchange rates.
Equity is translated ai historical rates, with resulting franslation gains and losses included in the
Company's consolidated statement of stockholders' equity as a component of accumulated other
comprehensive loss.

(Gains and losses arising from foreign currency transactions are included in the consclidated statement of
operations in operating expenses. Intercompany balances denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the parties to the transaction create foreign currency gains and losses that survive
consolidation, even though the intercompany balances do not.

Use of Estimares

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reporied amounts of revenue and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Significant estimates made by management in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
include, amaong other estimates, the determination of the purchase price allocations and the related
valuation of intangible assets and other assets and liabilities acquired, depreciation and amorization,
useful lives, stock-hased compensation, and the allowance for credit loss accounts.

Subsequent Events

The consclidated financial statements and related disclosures include evaluation of events up through and
including March 25, 2025, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

Note 3 - Business Combinations
GG Services Holdings, Inc.

On Apnl 10, 2023, Clintar, Inc. acguired the membership interests of GG Services Holdings, Inc. (Green
Guard Services). As a result of this fransaction, the purchase price was allocated to Green Guard
Services' balance sheet, resuliing in a new basis of accounting. This included a step-up of certain assets
to fair value and the recognition of cerain identifiable intangible assets, as provided for under the
purchase method of accounting. The following table summarizes the fair value of the consideration
transferred as part of the acquisition of Green Guard Services:

Capital contributions % 10,941,894
Raollover equity 1,050,000
Met working capital adjustment (199,243)
Fair value of total consideration transferred $ 11,792,651
11




EverSmith Brands Holding Company and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2024 and 2023

Note 3 - Business Combinations (Continued)

The following table summarizes the acquisition-date fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities

assumed:
Cash 5 1,508,023
Accounts receivable BET.211
Other assets E9,896
Property and eguipment 495 695
Separately identifiable intangible assets 583,000
Operating right-of-use assets 1,072,909
Accounts payable (94,630)
Accrued expenses (79,243)
Accrued compensation (B0,307)
Operating leass obligations {1,072,909)
Total identifiable net assets 3,069 545
Goodwill 8,723,006
Total 5 11,792 851

Intangible assets acquired consist of trade names of $583,000. The Company did not separately value the
customer relationships or noncompete intangible assets from goodwil in accordance with the privaie
company aliemative available under FASE ASC 805, Business Combinations. The fair value of the
intangible assets is based on significant inputs that are not observable in the market and, therefore,
represent Level 3 measurements under ASC 820-10. The fair value of the trade names was determined
under the income approach, specifically the relief from royalty method.

In addition, goodwill of §8 723,006 was recorded to reflect the excess of the purchase price over the
esfimatad fair value of the net identifiable assets acguired, which is deductible for tax purposes.

The Company incurred $1,163,894 of acquisition costs, which is included in operating expenses within the
accompanying consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2023.

ULS. Lawns, Inc.

On January 12, 2024, Clintar, Inc. acquired 100 percent of the outstanding common stock of LS. Lawns,
Inc. The primary reason for the acquisition was to expand the Company's portfolio of franchised brands
within the landscaping and snow removal industry.

The following tahle summarizes the fair value of the consideration transferred as part of the acquisition:

Fair value of total consideration transfemred - Cash 5 51135157
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EverSmith Brands Holding Company and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2024 and 2023

Note 3 - Business Combinations (Continued)

The following table summarizes the acquisiion-date fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities

assumed:
Cash -1 400
Accounts receivable 1,342 78T
Prepaids and other assets 570,015
Property and equipment 174,981
Right-of-use assets 645,805
Intangible assets 18,874,000
Deferred tax assets 224 000
Accounts payable {351,9686)
Deferred franchise fees {887 ,695)
Leasze liabilities {B645,805)
Accrued expenses {181,3386)
Total identifiable net assets 19,765,186
Goodwill 31,369,971
Total 51,135,157

The fair value of financial assets includes accounts receivable with a gross contractual valus of
51,806,559, of which 3463772 is expected to be uncollectible.

|dentifiable intangible assets acquired and subject to amortization include the trade name and franchise
agreements with estimated useful lives of 15 years. The fair value of the trade name was determined
using a relief from royalty method, and the fair value of the franchise agreements was determined using a
multiperiod excess eamnings method.

Goodwill was recognized for the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets
acquired. Goodwill relates fo the growth potential of the Company, the value of customer-related
intangibles, and management and cperational experiise. The weighted-average amortization pernod for the
goodwill recognized is 10 years.

Acquisition-related costs, which include legal, accounting, and transaction fees, were approximately
1,571,000 and have been included in operating expenses on the accompanying consolidated statement
of operations.

Restoration Specialties Holdings, LLC

On June 17, 2024, Clintar, Inc. acquired 100 percent of the outstanding membership interests of
Restoration Specialties Holdings, LLC. The primary reason for the acguisition was o expand the
Company's portfolio of franchised brands within the specialty restoration industry.

The following table summarizes the fair value of the consideration transferred as part of the acquisition:

Cash 5 20272444
Monecash rollover equity - Common stock 2,000,000
Fair value of total consideration transfemmed 5 22272444
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EverSmith Brands Holding Company and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2024 and 2023

Note 3 - Business Combinations (Continued)

The fair value of the 1,01% shares of common stock issued as noncash rollover equity was based on a
valuation of the Company's stock using an option-pricing model. See Mote 11 for further details.

The following table summarizes the acquisition-date fair values of the assets acquired and liahilities

assumed:
Cash 3 258,509
Accounts receivable 169,901
Prepaids and other assets 44 669
Property and equipment 15,441
Right-of-use assets 70,508
Intangible asseis 12,740,000
Deferred tax assets 203,000
Accounts payable (60,981)
Deferred franchise fees (B98,852)
Lease liabilities {70,508)
Accrued expenses (385,287)
Total identifiable net assets 12,266,400
Goodwill 9 986,044
Total 5 22272444

The fair value of financial assets includes accounts receivable with a gross contractual value of 3165 %01.

Identifiable intangible assets acquired and subject to amortization include the trade name and franchise
agreements with estimated useful lives of 15 years. The fair value of the frade name was determined
using a relief from royalty method, and the fair value of the franchise agreements was determined using a
multiperiod excess eamings method.

Goodwill was recognized for the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net asseis
acquired. Goodwill relates fo the growth potential of the Company, the value of customer-related
intangibles, and management and operational experiise. The weighted-average amorization period for the
goodwill recognized is 10 years.

Acquisition-related costs, which include legal, accounting, and fransaction fees, were approximately
52,559 364 and have been included in operating expenses on the accompanying consolidated statement
of operations.

MNote 4 - Accounts Receivable Credit Losses Allowance

The activity in the allowance for credit losses is as follows:

2024 2023
Balance - January 1 3 612,069 $ 263,852
Additions charged to expense 574 457 258,348
Deductiona\V rite-offs 27,609 20,869
Balance - December 31 -1 1,214,135 % 612,069
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EverSmith Brands Holding Company and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2024 and 2023

Note 5 - Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are summarized as follows:

Depreciable
2024 2023 Life - Years
Machinery and equipment 3 107,831 § 149,754 5
Transportation equipment 436,727 379,790 5
Fumiture and fixtures &5, 764 47,071 3
Computer equipment and software S04 4839 284 365 5
Leasehold improvements 211,493 205,276 5-15
Total cost 1,346,304 1,066,256
Accumulated depreciation 565 442 270,237
Met property and equipment 3 780,862 S 796,019

Depreciation expense for 2024 and 2023 was $259 864 and 395 833, respectively.

Note 6 - Intangible Assets and Goodwill
Intangible assets and goodwill of the Company at December 31, 2024 and 2023 are summarized as

follows:
2024 2023
Gross Carmying Accurmulated Gross Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Amortized intangible assets and
goodwill:

Trade names $ 9,318,987 5 990,971 § 3,161 987 % 435,032
Franchise agreements 27,684,513 1,923,675 2227 513 693,235
Goodwill 59,465,661 8,644,196 18,109,645 3,363,799

Total amortized intangible
assets

Amaortization expense for intangible assets and goodwill totaled 7,046,776 and $1,951,203 for the years
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respeciively.

Goodwill totaling approximately $41,356,000 and $8,723,000 was added during 2024 and 2023,
respectively, as a result of the acquisitions disclosed in Note 3.

§ 96469161 § 11558842 § 23499146 § 4,512,066

Met goodwill of approximately 34,755,000 is held by an entity in a foreign jurisdiction.

Estimated amortization expense for the years ending December 31 is as follows:

‘Years Ending Amount
2025 3 8,413,466
2026 8,413 466
2027 8,413,468
2028 8,413 466
2029 8,413 466

Thereafter 42 842 989

Total §  B4,910.319
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EverSmith Brands Holding Company and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2024 and 2023

Note 7 - Long-term Debt
Long-term debt at December 31, 2024 is as follows:

Termn loan with a bank reqguiring quarterly principal payments equal to 0_25 percent of the
original loan balance of $36,000,000 (or $90,000), including interest at the adjusted term
SOFR or ABR, plus the applicable margin (an effective rate of 9.36 percent at December
31, 2024). The note is collateralized by all assets of the Company and matures on June
17, 2030, at which time a balloon payment for the remainder of the balance is due. The

Company is subject to a quarterly total net leverage ratio covenant $ 35,820,000
Unamortized debt issuance costs (962,865)
Long-term debt less unamortized debt issuance costs 34 B57,135
Less current porticn 360,000
Long-term portion $ 34497135

The balance of the above debt matures as follows:

‘Years Ending Amount
2025 $ 360,000
2026 360,000
027 360,000
2028 360,000
2029 360,000
Unamortized debt
discount {962 865)
Thereafter 34,020,000

Total § 3857135

In addition to the long-term debt disclosed above, the Company has a revelver commitment of $7,000,000
and a delayed draw term loan commitment of $25,000,000. The revolver commitment terminates on June
17, 2030, and the delayed draw term loan commitment terminates on June 17, 2026. There were no
amounts outstanding for either commitment as of December 31, 2024,

Note 8 - Leases

The right-of-use assets and related lease liabilities have been calculated using discount rates ranging
from 3.76 percent to 4.75 percent. The leases require the Company to pay taxes, insurance, utilities, and
maintenance costs.
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EverSmith Brands Heolding Company and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2024 and 2023
Note 8 - Leases (Continued)

Future minimum annual commitments under these operating leases are as follows:

Years Ending
Diecember 31 Amount
2025 5 554,067
2026 403,063
2027 183,382
2028 112,022
Total 1,252,534
Less amount
representing
interest . mnion
Present value of
net minimum
lease payments 1,240,833
Less current
obligations 507,060
Long-term
obligati d
Eafﬁaﬂ ons under s 733,773

Expenses recognized under these leases for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 consist of the

following:
2024 223
Lease cost:
Operating lease cost 5 ED4,548 § 387,752
Short-term lease cost - 15,294
Total lease cost 3 604,545 5 403,045
Other information:
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease
liabilities - Operating cash flows from operating leases 5 4874973 § 387,752
Weighted-average remaining lease term (years) - Operating leases 342 282
Weighted-average discount rate - Operating leases 42 % 32%

Mote 9 - Income Taxes

The components of the income tax provision included in the consclidated statement of operations are all
attributable to continuing operations and are detailed as follows for the years ended December 31, 2024

and 2023:
2024 2023
Foreign - Cumrent tax expense 3 1,537,807 % 429 044
Foreign - Deferred tax expense (recovery) 390,415 (7,083)
Total income tax expense 5 1,928222 § 421,961
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EverSmith Brands Holding Company and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2024 and 2023

Note 9 - Income Taxes (Continued)
The details of the net deferred tax liability at December 31 are as follows:

2024 2023
Total defemred tax liabilities 5 (1.204983)% (1,183,957
Total deferred tax assets 6,240 677 3,251,569
Valuation allowance recognized for deferred tax assets (6,072,936) (3,141,419)
Total 3 (1,037222)%  {1,073,507)

Estimated taxes payable as of December 31, 2024 equaled $1,295,818, all of which relate to 2792705
Ontario Inc. and TruServe Groundscare Inc. and are owed to the Canada Revenue Agency.

Note 10 - Related Party Transactions

The Company signed consulting services agreements with affiliates of the majority equity holder of the
Company to provide for certain consulting and advisory services. The agreements also require penodic
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses associated with such services. There was $593,551 and
610,010 expensed under these agreements for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively, which was included in operating expenses in the consolidated statements of operations.

Note 11 - Stockholders’ Equity

Common Stock

The Company has 300,000 shares of common stock authorized and 55,680 and 28,818 shares issued
and outstanding as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, with a par value of $0.01.

Stock Options

The Company's 2020 Eguity Incentive Plan (the "Plan®) permits the grant of stock options to the
Company's employees and members of the board of directors. The Company believes that such awards
better align the interests of its employees with those of its stockholders. Stock options are granted with an
exercise price equal to the estimated fair value of the Company’s common stock at the grant date. The
plan administrator may determine the time or times at which a stock option granted will vest or become
exercisable and the terms that require exercisability of a stock option. Generally, the stock opfions issued
vest over a period of seven years. However, upon the occurrence of a change in control event, all options
granted will become immediately exercisable.

The fair value of each fime-based vesting stock option is estimated on the date of grant using a Black-
Scholes-based valuation model that uses various assumptions regarding the: (1) expected volatility in the
fair value of the Company's common stock, (2) expected term of the award, (3) expected dividend vyield on
the underlying common stock, (4) risk-free interest rate based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve, and (5)
current price of the underiying common stock. The Company based its expected volatility calculation upon
similar, publicly traded companies tracked over a five-year period. The Company has assumed the vesting
term as the expected life of the stock options based on when a change of control is expected to occur.
The Company did not contemplate any expected dividends. A U.S. Treasury bond rate was utilized as of
the respective grant date in line with the expected life of the options.

The specific assumptions used to determine the fair value of the stock options granted were as follows:

2024 2023
Expected volatility 30.00 % 25.00 %
Expected life (years) 4 T
Risk-free interest rate 404 % 423 %
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2024 and 2023

Note 11 - Stockholders' Equity (Continued)
A summary of option activity under the Plan for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 is

presented below:
Weighted-
average
Weighted- Remaining
Number of average Contractual
Oplions Shares Exercise Price  Term (in Years)
Cutstanding at January 1, 2023 1278 § 1,110.00 10.8
Granted 445 1.664.00 9.3
Forfeited or expired (S08) 1,133.00 9.2
Cutstanding at December 31, 2023 1,215 1.301.00 949
Granted 2,007 1.547.00 6.3
Forfeited or expired (1,530) 1,443.00 57
Cutstanding at December 31, 2024 1,692 1,857.00 6.3
Exercizable at December 31, 2023 251 1,093.00 99
Exercisable at December 31, 2024 345 1,693.00 54
A summary of nonvested shares under the Plan for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 is
presented below:
Weighted-
Number of average Grant-
Monvested Shares Shares date Fair Value
Monvested at January 1, 2023 1028 § 353.00
Granted 445 £30.00
Vested (1686) 364.00
Forfeited or expired (342) 333.00
Monvested at December 31, 2023 965 534.00
Granted 2,007 634.00
Vested (111) 514.00
Forfeited or expired (1,530) 434.00
Monvested at December 31, 2024 1,331 B682.00

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, there was $957 108 and $478,469, respectively, of total
unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested share-based compensation arangements granted
under the Plan. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 6.3 years.

Note 12 - Subsequent Events

On February 3, 2025, the Company entered into a membership interest purchase agreement to acquire
the cutstanding equity interests of The Seals Franchising, LLC in a business acquisition accounted for as
a business combination. The purchase price at the date of closing was approximately $1,400,000, which
was funded with a 52,000,000 draw on the Company's credit facility subsequent to December 31, 2024.
As of the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued, the purchase price
allocation has not been completed.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

The Board of Directors

EverSmith Brands Holding Company
(f/k/a Clintar Holding Company)

Charlotte, North Carolina

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of EverSmith Brands Holding Company
(f’k/a Clintar Holding Company) and its subsidiaries (the Company), which comprise the
consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the results
of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether
there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the
consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.

BDO USA, P.C., a Virginia professional corporation, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the
international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly,
no such opinion is expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

BDO USA, P.C.

March 28, 2024
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EverSmith Brands Holding Company
(f/k/a Clintar Holding Company)

and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, 2023 2022
Assets
Current Assets
Cash $ 2,711,279 S 4,733,869
Advertising fund restricted assets 328,234 489,807
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for credit losses 3,615,646 2,568,780
Unbilled revenue 610,886 593,276
Inventory - 35,256
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 405,895 142,332
Deferred contract acquisition costs, short-term 71,280 29,975
Total Current Assets 7,743,220 8,593,295
Property and Equipment, Net 796,019 217,041
Other Assets
Income tax receivable - 35,457
Deferred contract acquisition costs, long-term 593,583 262,079
Intangibles, net 4,261,233 4,036,649
Goodwill, net 14,725,847 7,416,106
Operating right-of-use assets 1,130,780 410,947
Total Other Assets 20,711,443 12,161,238
Total Assets $ 29,250,682 S 20,971,574

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 1,795,159 § 1,908,612
Income tax payable 421,961 -
Advertising fund restricted liabilities 363,756 486,509
Accrued expenses 860,214 677,961
Accrued compensation 529,572 981,195
Short-term deferred revenue 139,360 62,758
Current portion of operating lease obligations 422,328 144,553
Total Current Liabilities 4,532,350 4,261,588
Long-Term Liabilities
Long-term deferred revenue 926,109 459,845
Operating lease obligations, less current portion 723,255 268,324
Deferred income taxes 1,073,807 1,120,624
Total Long-Term Liabilities 2,723,171 1,848,793
Total Liabilities 7,255,521 6,110,381

Stockholders’ Equity
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 300,000 shares authorized at
December 31, 2023 and 2022, and 28,818 and 21,380 shares
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2023

and 2022, respectively 288 214
Additional paid-in capital 37,145,577 23,852,537
Accumulated deficit (14,542,708) (8,098,798)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (607,996) (892,760)

Total Stockholders’ Equity 21,995,161 14,861,193
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $ 29,250,682 S 20,971,574

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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EverSmith Brands Holding Company
(f/k/a Clintar Holding Company)

and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Year ended December 31, 2023 2022
Revenue
Royalty fees $ 5,676,883 5,644,549
Professional service fees 15,647,169 10,874,796
Promotional fund revenue 315,957 322,017
Initial franchise fees 94,011 17,621
Chemical product revenue 119,685 248,347
Other revenue 315,452 103,106
Total Revenue 22,169,157 17,210,436
Operating Costs and Expenses
Cost of professional service revenue 11,634,041 9,360,432
Selling, general, and administrative 13,362,929 9,770,701
Depreciation and amortization 2,047,036 1,510,787
Transaction expenses 1,163,894 -
Total Operating Costs and Expenses 28,207,900 20,641,920
Loss from Operations (6,038,743) (3,431,484)
Other (Income) Expense, Net (16,794) 26,410
Loss from Operations, before income taxes (6,021,949) (3,457,894)
Income Tax Expense 421,961 347,696
Net Loss (6,443,910) (3,805,590)
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment 284,764 (880,147)
Comprehensive Loss $ (6,159,146) S (4,685,737)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



EverSmith Brands Holding Company
(f/k/a Clintar Holding Company)
and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Common Stock Accumulated

Other Total

$0.01 Additional  Comprehensive Accumulated Stockholders’

Shares Par Value  Paid-in Capital Loss Deficit Equity

Balance, January 1, 2022 18,823 § 188 $ 19,782,866 $ (12,613) $  (4,293,208) S 15,477,233
Issuance of common stock 2,557 26 3,999,974 - - 4,000,000
Stock-based compensation - - 69,697 - - 69,697
Net loss - - - - (3,805,590) (3,805,590)
Foreign currency translation adjustment - - - (880,147) - (880,147)
Balance, December 31, 2022 21,380 214 23,852,537 (892,760) (8,098,798) 14,861,193
Issuance of common stock 7,438 74 13,220,486 - - 13,220,560
Stock-based compensation - - 72,554 - - 72,554
Net loss - - - - (6,443,910) (6,443,910)
Foreign currency translation adjustment - - - 284,764 - 284,764
Balance, December 31, 2023 28,818 S 288 $ 37,145,577 § (607,996) S (14,542,708) S 21,995,161

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



EverSmith Brands Holding Company
(f/k/a Clintar Holding Company)
and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2023 2022

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net loss $ (6,443,910) S (3,805,590)
Reconciliation of net loss to net cash used in operating activities,
net of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in business
acquisitions:

Depreciation and amortization expense 2,047,036 1,510,787
Amortization of right-of-use assets 358,968 163,136
Stock compensation expense 72,554 69,697
Deferred income taxes 421,961 347,696
Bad debt expense 258,348 128,577

Change in operating assets and liabilities, net of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed:

Accounts receivable (592,949) (391,903)
Unbilled revenue (17,610) 105,358
Inventory 35,256 95,603
Advertising fund restricted assets and liabilities (209,286) (125,595)
Deferred contract acquisition costs (372,636) (292,054)
Income tax receivable (35,457) (174,537)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (162,580) 135,786
Accounts payable (224,092) (219,503)
Income tax payable 421,961 -
Deferred revenue 540,915 523,745
Right-of-use lease liability (346,157) (161,129)
Accrued expenses (403,190) 615,859
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (4,650,868) (1,474,067)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Business acquisition, net of cash acquired (9,234,628) -
Capital expenditures (190,387) (52,917)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 25,737 -
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (9,399,278) (52,917)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 12,170,560 4,000,000
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 12,170,560 4,000,000
Net Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash (391,110) (118,501)
Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Restricted Cash (2,270,696) 2,354,515
Cash and Restricted Cash, beginning of year 5,038,548 2,684,033
Cash and Restricted Cash, end of year $ 2,767,852 S 5,038,548

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information
Taxes paid in cash $ 187,543 S 192,280

Supplemental Disclosures of Non-Cash Investing
and Financing Activities

Liabilities assumed in connection with business acquisition $ 1,327,089 §
Equity issued in connection with business acquisition 1,050,000
Operating lease right-of-use assets obtained in exchange
for operating lease liabilities upon ASC 842 adoption - 567,758

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



EverSmith Brands Holding Company
(f/k/a Clintar Holding Company)
and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization and Description of Business

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of EverSmith Brands
Holding Company, formerly known as Clintar Holding Company (Holdings), a Delaware corporation,
and its wholly owned subsidiaries, EverSmith Brands Intermediate Holding Company, formerly known
as Clintar Intermediate Holding Company; 2792705 Ontario Inc.; TruServe Groundscare Inc.;
Clintar, Inc.; Clintar Franchising, Inc.; milliCare, Inc.; milliCare Franchising, LLC; Kitchen Guard
Franchising, Inc.; and Green Guard Services, LLC (collectively, Clintar or the Company). Effective
March 14, 2023, the name of Holdings was rebranded to EverSmith Brands Holding Company
(Holdings).

On December 14, 2020, Riverside Micro-Cap Fund V, L.P. and Riverside Micro-Cap Fund V-A, L.P.
(collectively, RMCF or Riverside) acquired a majority ownership in the Company through RMCF’s
investment in Holdings and a stock purchase agreement with 2792705 Ontario Inc.

Holdings, headquartered in Charlotte, North Carolina, is a holding company owning subsidiaries
principally engaged as franchisors of businesses, which provide landscaping and snow removal
services throughout Canada, as well as providing landscaping and snow removal services directly to
customers where franchising territories do not exist.

On November 12, 2021, the Company acquired the assets of milliCare, Inc., a complementary
franchisor of businesses, which provides operating floor and textile care services throughout the
Eastern United States, as well as providing professional floor cleaning directly to customers where
franchising territories do not exist.

On April 10, 2023, the Company acquired the membership interests of Green Guard Services Inc., a
complementary service business that provides commercial kitchen exhaust cleaning and ancillary
services throughout California. After the acquisition, Green Guard Services Inc. was restructured to
Green Guard Services, LLC. The Company created the legal entity, Kitchen Guard Franchising, Inc.
to franchise the Green Guard Services, LLC brand. There were no franchise sales in 2023.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation and Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (GAAP) and include the results of
EverSmith Brands Holding Company (f/k/a Clintar Holding Company) and its subsidiaries for the
years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022. The results of Green Guard Services Inc. are included
from the date of acquisition, April 10, 2023, through December 31, 2023. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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EverSmith Brands Holding Company
(f/k/a Clintar Holding Company)
and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant estimates made by management in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements include, among other estimates, the determination of the purchase price allocations
and the related valuation of intangible assets and other assets and liabilities acquired, depreciation
and amortization, useful lives, stock-based compensation, and the allowance for credit loss
accounts.

Reclassifications

Unbilled revenue previously included in accounts receivable, net of allowance for credit losses as
of December 31, 2022 were reclassified to unbilled revenue on the consolidated balance sheet and
the consolidated statements of cash flows to conform to the current year presentation. This
reclassification does not result in any changes to previously reported total assets, stockholder’s
equity, and net income.

Foreign Currency Translation

The reporting currency of the Company is the U.S. dollar (USD). The Company’s functional currency
for its operations in Canada is the Canadian dollar (CAD). Assets and liabilities are translated using
the exchange rates as of year-end and revenues and expenses are translated using average exchange
rates. Equity is translated at historical rates with resulting translation gains and losses included in
the Company’s consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity as a component of accumulated
other comprehensive loss.

Gains and losses arising from foreign currency transactions are included in the consolidated
statements of operations in operating expenses. Intercompany balances denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the parties to the transaction create foreign currency gains
and losses that survive consolidation, even though the intercompany balances do not.

Concentrations of Risk

One customer group made up approximately 17% and 31% of the Company’s net sales for the years
ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The same customer group made up approximately
14% and 16% of the Company’s outstanding accounts receivable at December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively. No other customer groups exceeded 10% of the Company’s revenue for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022 or outstanding accounts receivable at December 31, 2023 and 2022.

Cash

Cash includes cash on deposit and highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less. The Company places its cash and cash equivalents with institutions with high-credit quality.
However, at certain times, such cash and cash equivalents may be in excess of Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation limits of $250,000. Additionally, the Company maintains cash in various
foreign institutions amounting to $1,429,696 and $1,351,550 as of December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively, converted at year-end exchange rates. The Company has not experienced any losses
on such amounts.

Restricted Cash

In accordance with the milliCare’s franchise agreements, certain cash accounts established for
promotional or advertising contributions and spending are restricted in their use for cash collected
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(f/k/a Clintar Holding Company)
and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

by the promotional fund, usage of which is restricted for advertising activities and is included in
advertising fund restricted assets on the consolidated balance sheets. Refer to Note 8 for further
information.

Reconciliation of cash and restricted cash is as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2023 2022
Cash $ 2,711,279 S 4,733,869
Restricted cash, included in advertising fund restricted assets 56,573 304,679
Total Cash and Restricted Cash $ 2,767,852 S 5,038,548

Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment are recorded at the estimated fair market value at the date of the
respective business acquisitions. Additions subsequent to the business acquisitions are recorded at
cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. The Company has adopted the straight-line
method of depreciation and amortization over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Asset Category Years
Office and computer equipment 5
Furniture and fixtures 5
Vehicles 5
Leasehold improvements Shorter of the lease term or

estimated life of the asset

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, depreciation expense for property and equipment
of $95,833 and $62,839, respectively, is included in depreciation and amortization within the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Business Combinations

When the Company acquires businesses in a business combination, the total consideration paid is
allocated to the fair value of the tangible assets, liabilities, and identifiable intangible assets
acquired. Any residual purchase consideration is recorded as goodwill. The allocation of the
purchase price requires management to make significant estimates in determining the fair values of
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. These estimates are inherently uncertain and unpredictable.
In addition, unanticipated events and circumstances may occur that may affect the accuracy or
validity of these estimates. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Refer to Note 3 for
further information.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the purchase price in excess of the fair value of net assets acquired in a business
combination. As discussed below, on December 14, 2020, the Company elected to adopt Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 2014-02, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350), which allows private
companies to amortize goodwill, an alternative to the previously issued standard ASU 2011-08. Upon
adoption on December 14, 2020, the Company began to amortize goodwill over ten years. Under
ASU 2014-02, the Company has elected to test goodwill for impairment at the entity level. Goodwill
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will be tested for impairment when a triggering event occurs that indicates the fair value of the
entity may be below the carrying amount, including goodwill. There were no impairment charges
for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022.

In December 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASU 2014-08, Business
Combinations (Topic 805), to allow private companies an accounting alternative that no longer
requires recognition of customer-related intangibles assets, unless they are capable of being sold or
licensed independently from the other assets of the business, and noncompetition agreements
separately from goodwill in a business combination if the company has adopted ASU 2014-02. The
Company adopted ASU 2014-08 on December 14, 2020 and, accordingly, did not separately value
any customer-related intangible assets or noncompetition agreements for the acquisitions described
in Note 3.

In March 2021, the FASB issued ASU 2021-03, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350):
Accounting Alternative for Evaluating Triggering Events, which provides private companies and
not-for-profit entities with an accounting alternative to perform the goodwill impairment triggering
event evaluation as of the end of the reporting period. Under current guidance in Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) 350-20, an entity is required to identify and evaluate goodwill
impairment triggering events when they occur to determine whether it is more likely than not that
the fair value of an entity is less than its carrying amount. If an entity determines that it is more
likely than not that goodwill is impaired, it must test goodwill for impairment using the triggering
event date as the measurement date. Under ASU 2021-03, an entity that elects this alternative is
not required to monitor for goodwill impairment triggering events during the reporting period but,
instead, should evaluate the facts and circumstances as of the end of each reporting period to
determine whether a triggering event exists and, if so, whether it is more likely than not that
goodwill is impaired. The amendments in this update are effective on a prospective basis for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2019. Early adoption is permitted for annual financial
statements that have not yet been issued or made available for issuance as of March 30, 2021. The
Company adopted ASU 2021-03 on December 14, 2020.

Definite-Lived Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist of trade names and franchise agreements and were recorded at their
estimated fair value at the date of acquisitions. These assets are amortized on a straight-line basis
that approximates the estimated pattern benefit to be realized from each asset over their estimated
useful lives ranging from six to 20 years. The Company evaluates definite-lived intangible assets for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
asset might not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized when estimated undiscounted
future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset are less than its carrying amount.
There were no impairment charges recorded related to definite-lived intangible assets for the years
ended December 31, 2023 and 2022.

Advertising
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the

Company incurred advertising expense of $843,644 and $526,098, respectively, which is included in
selling, general, and administrative expenses on the consolidated statements of operations.
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Revenue Recognition

In accordance with ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), revenue is
recognized when (or as) a customer obtains control of promised goods or services. The amount of
revenue is measured as the transaction price that reflects the consideration that the Company
expects to be entitled to receive in exchange for these services. The Company generates all revenue
from contracts with customers.

To achieve the core principle of this new standard, the Company applies the following steps:

1. Identification of the Contract, or Contracts, with the Customer

The Company considers the terms and conditions of the contract and customary business
practices in identifying contracts under ASC 606. The Company determines it has a contract
with a customer when the contract is approved, the Company can identify each party’s rights
regarding the services to be transferred, the Company can identify the payment terms for
the services, the Company has determined that the customer has the ability and intent to
pay, and the contract has commercial substance. The Company applies judgment in
determining the customer’s ability and intent to pay, which is based on a variety of factors,
including the customer’s historical payment experience or, in the case of a new customer,
credit, and financial information pertaining to the customer. At contract inception, the
Company evaluates whether two or more contracts should be combined and accounted
together as a single contract.

2. Identification of the Performance Obligations in the Contract

Performance obligations promised in a contract are identified based on the services and the
products that will be transferred to the customer that are both capable of being distinct,
whereby the customer can benefit from the service either on its own or together with other
resources that are readily available from third parties or from the Company, and are distinct
in the context of the contract, whereby the transfer of the services and the products is
separately identifiable from other promises in the contract. The Company considers the
following distinct goods and services to represent separate performance obligations for the
purpose of revenue recognition: initial franchise fees, royalty fees, promotional fund fees,
monthly technology fees, monthly bookkeeping fees, renewal fees, professional kitchen
hood cleaning services landscaping services, and snow removal services.

3. Determination of the Transaction Price

The transaction price is determined based on the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring services to the customer. Variable
consideration is included in the transaction price if, in the Company’s judgment, it is
probable that a significant future reversal of cumulative revenue under the contract will not
occur.

4. Allocation of the Transaction Price to the Performance Obligation in the Contract

If the contract contains a single performance obligation, the entire transaction price is
allocated to the single performance obligation. Contracts that contain multiple performance
obligations require an allocation of the transaction price to each performance obligation
based on a relative standalone selling price (SSP).
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5. Recognition of the Revenue When, or as, the Company Satisfies a Performance Obligation

Revenue is recognized at the time (or as) the related performance obligation is satisfied by
transferring control of the promised good or service to the customer in an amount that
reflects the consideration that the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods
and services.

The Company derives its revenue from the following sources:
Franchise Revenue

The terms of the franchise agreements for the Company are typically ten years. As part of each
agreement, the Company identified one performance obligation that requires the Company to
provide a combination of the following relating to upfront franchisee fees:

e Intellectual Property (IP) - Licenses grant an exclusive right to establish and operate a
landscaping, snow removal, and commercial floor cleaning business under the trademarks
and systems established as part of the Clintar, milliCare, or Kitchen Guard license during
the term of the agreement.

e Continuing Consulting Services - These services include the review of plans, equipment and
merchandise selection, establishment and implementation of administrative, bookkeeping,
accounting, inventory control, and general operating procedures.

e Operations Manual and Brand-Specific Training Services - These provide training programs,
operating manuals, development of standards, and pricing policies, specific to the Clintar,
milliCare, and Kitchen Guard brands.

e Pre-Opening Services - These provide primarily site selection, training programs, and setting
up the franchisee records.

The Company determined that the services noted above represent a set of integrated or highly
interrelated tasks/services and are, therefore, accounted for as a single performance obligation of
providing the franchise license. The standard specifically identifies franchise rights as an example
of a symbolic license. This type of license is satisfied over time since the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefit as the entity performs its obligation to provide access and,
therefore, meets the criterion of recognizing revenue over time. Royalty fees represent the majority
of consideration the Company receives under franchise agreements and are recognized over time
each month. Revenue related to upfront fees allocated to this single performance obligation is
recognized over time using a straight-line measure of progress as the control of various services is
provided to the customer ratably over the term of the contract for the initial upfront fee. The
renewal option provides continued access for the franchise rights (symbolic license) for an extended
period of time and, therefore, would also be recognized over time (over the course of the renewal
term) as it meets the above-mentioned criterion. The contracts the Company enters contain several
types of payments, including:

e Clintar Initial Franchisee Fees - Franchise agreements require an initial fee of $40,000 CAD
for each territory. The initial franchise fees are due and payable when a contract is signed
and is not refundable.

e milliCare Initial Franchise Fees - Franchise agreements require an initial franchise fee of
$45,000 USD. Effective in 2023, the Company increased the initial franchise fee amount to
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$49,000. For existing franchise owners who may be approved for a second franchise license,
the Company offers a discount of $9,000. The Company offers a $5,000 discount for veterans
who present satisfactory evidence of honorable discharge. Franchisees are eligible for
discounts within the first 12 months of operations if revenue levels exceed $200,000.

e Kitchen Guard Initial Franchise Fees - Franchise agreements require an initial franchise fee
of $49,000 USD. For existing franchise owners who may be approved for a second franchise
license, the Company offers a discount of $9,000. The Company offers a $5,000 discount for
veterans who present satisfactory evidence of honorable discharge. There were no Kitchen
Guard Franchising, Inc. initial franchise sales in 2023.

e Royalty Fees - The Company receives monthly royalty payments based on a percentage of
each franchisee’s gross billings throughout the initial term. The franchisee is required to
meet a certain minimum revenue level for the payment of these royalty fees in any given
month, payable monthly on or before the 15t of each month and based upon gross sales for
the immediately preceding month.

e Bookkeeping Services - The Company receives monthly fees for performing bookkeeping
services to franchisees.

e Monthly Technology Fees -The Company receives monthly fees for the use of its technology.

e Renewal Fees - Franchise agreements include renewal options for an additional ten-year
term. The Company has not historically charged a renewal fee.

e Promotional Fund Revenue - milliCare and Kitchen Guard maintains a national advertising
fund established to collect and administer funds contributed for use in advertising and
promotional programs for franchisees in the United States. Franchisees make contributions
to the national advertising fund based on a percentage of sales of the franchisees. As of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company recorded a promotional fund liability of $363,756
and $486,509, respectively, for funds received and reserved for future advertising spend.
Refer to Note 8 for further information. There were no Kitchen Guard Franchising, Inc.
promotional fund sales in 2023.

The Company recognizes revenue for each performance obligation identified within the customer
franchise agreement when, or as, the performance obligation is satisfied by transferring the
promised goods or services. All revenue is recognized over time.

Landscaping, Snow Removal, Professional Hood Cleaning Services, and Professional Floor Cleaning
Services

The Company’s professional services include snow removal, landscaping, professional kitchen hood
cleaning services, and professional floor cleaning services to where a franchisee territory is not
located. Revenue is recognized over time as the services are rendered.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Credit Losses

Accounts receivable represent trade receivables from customers for which the Company has not yet
received payment. Accounts receivable are presented net of an allowance for credit losses. The
Company maintains an allowance for credit losses for estimated credit losses resulting from the
inability of customers to make required payments, or the customer canceling prior to the service
being rendered. In evaluating the sufficiency of the allowance for credit losses, the Company
considers the specific details of the customer account, the age of the outstanding balance, the
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current economic environment, and historical credit trends. Any change in the assumptions used in
analyzing a specific account receivable might result in an additional allowance for credit losses
being recognized in the period in which the change occurs. Receivable balances are charged off
when all collection efforts have failed, and management determines the balance is uncollectable.
In the case of balances relating to services not yet rendered, the balance is charged off when the
customer cancels the service or when the Company determines that the invoiced service will no
longer be provided, whichever occurs first. The allowance for credit losses was $612,069 and
$263,852 at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Unbilled Revenue

Contract assets consist of unbilled revenue. The Company records royalty revenue that has been
recognized but not invoiced to its customers in unbilled revenue until the respective amount is
invoiced, which is then included within accounts receivable. Unbilled revenue is included within
current assets, as the amounts are similar to accounts receivable and are short-term in nature.

Deferred Revenue

The Company records amounts that have been invoiced to its clients in either deferred revenue or
revenue depending on whether the revenue recognition criteria described above have been met.
Deferred revenue that will be recognized during the succeeding 12-month period from the
respective consolidated balance sheet date is recorded as short-term deferred revenue and the
remaining portion is recorded as long-term.

Contract liabilities consist of deferred revenue and include payments received in advance of
performance under the contract and non-cancellable amounts billed in advance relating to initial
franchise fee invoiced. Such amounts typically relate to the initial franchise fee paid and are
recognized as revenue over the contract period, which is generally ten years.

Transaction Price Allocated to Remaining Performance Obligations

As of December 31, 2023, $1,065,469 of deferred revenue is expected to be recognized from
remaining performance obligations. This is comprised of initial franchise fees.

The estimated revenues from the remaining performance obligations do not include uncommitted
contract amounts, such as (i) amounts that are cancelable by the client without any significant
penalty, (ii) future billings for time and material contracts, and (iii) amounts associated with
optional services and renewal periods.

Deferred Contract Acquisition Costs

The Company capitalizes sales commissions and certain parts of bonuses paid to internal sales
personnel and third-party broker fees that are incremental to the acquisition of customer contracts.
These costs are recorded as deferred contract acquisition costs on the consolidated balance sheets.
The Company determines whether costs should be deferred based on sales compensation plans. If
the commissions or third-party broker fees are, in fact, incremental and would not have occurred
absent the customer contract, such commissions or broker fees are capitalized and deferred, as
further described below.
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Sales commissions for renewal of a franchise agreement or other services are not considered
commensurate with the commissions paid for the acquisition of the initial franchisee agreement
given the substantive difference in commission rates between new and renewal contracts.
Commissions and bonuses paid upon the initial acquisition of a contract are amortized on a
straight-line basis over an estimated period of benefit of ten years. Commissions on professional
services are typically recognized when incurred because professional services are performed in less
than one year. The Company determined the period of benefit for commissions paid for the
acquisition of the initial franchise agreements by taking into consideration the initial estimated
customer life. The Company determined the period of benefit for renewal of franchisee agreements
by considering the average contractual term for renewal contracts. Amortization of deferred
contract acquisition costs is included in general, selling, and administrative expenses on the
consolidated statements of operations.

The Company periodically reviews these deferred costs to determine whether events or changes in
circumstances have occurred that could impact the period of benefit of these deferred contract
acquisition costs. There were no material impairment losses recorded during the periods presented.

The following table represents a roll-forward of deferred contract acquisition costs:

Ending Balance, December 31, 2022 S 292,054
Additions to deferred contract acquisition costs 406,230
Amortization of deferred contract acquisition costs (33,421)
Ending Balance, December 31, 2023 S 664,863

Future estimated amortization of capitalized commission costs is as follows at December 31, 2023:

Year ending December 31,

2024 S 71,280
2025 71,280
2026 71,280
2027 71,280
2028 71,280
Thereafter 308,463
Total S 664,863

Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities

When required, the Company collects sales tax from its customers on sales and remits these funds
to various governmental authorities when due. The Company made an accounting policy election to
exclude from the measurement of the transaction price all taxes assessed by any governmental
authorities that are both imposed on and concurrent with a specific revenue-producing transaction
and collected by the Company from a customer. The Company records sales tax collected from
customers as a component of accrued expenses within the consolidated balance sheets.
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Leases

On January 1, 2022, the date of initial application, the Company adopted ASC 842, Leases, using
the modified retrospective transition method whereby prior comparative periods have not been
restated and continue to be reported under the accounting standards in effect for the prior period.
The Company elected the package of practical expedients permitted under the transition guidance
for all leases, which allowed the Company to adopt ASC 842 without reassessing whether
arrangements contain leases, the lease classification, and the determination of initial direct costs.

The Company determines if an arrangement contains a lease in whole or in part at the inception of
the contract. Right-of-use (ROU) assets represent the right to use an underlying asset for the lease
term while lease liabilities represent the obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease.
All leases with an expected term greater than 12 months result in the recognition of an ROU asset
and a liability at the lease commencement date based on the present value of the lease payments
over the lease term. Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of remaining lease
payments, while ROU assets are initially set equal to the lease liability, as adjusted for any payments
made prior to lease commencement, lease incentives, and any initial direct costs incurred by the
Company. The Company elected the practical expedient for private companies that allows
companies to use the risk-free discount rate at the lease commencement date to determine the
present value of the lease payments instead of calculating their incremental borrowing rate.

The lease term includes all non-cancellable periods and may include options to extend (or to not
terminate) the lease when it is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise the option. Leases
that have a term of 12 months or less at the commencement date are expensed on a straight-line
basis over the lease term and do not result in the recognition of an ROU asset or lease liability.

For operating leases, rent expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease,
and ROU assets are subsequently re-measured to reflect the effect of uneven lease payments. For
finance leases, ROU assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Expenses for
finance leases include the amortization of ROU assets, which is recorded as depreciation and
amortization expense, and interest expense, which reflects interest accrued on the lease liability.
The Company has elected to combine lease and non-lease components, such as fixed maintenance
costs, as a single lease component in calculating ROU assets and lease liabilities for all classes of
leased assets.

Income Taxes

The Company is a C-corporation for U.S. tax purposes and a corporation for Canadian tax purposes
and accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method. Deferred income taxes are
provided for temporary differences in recognizing certain income, expense, and credit items for
financial reporting purposes and tax reporting purposes. Such deferred income taxes primarily relate
to differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their financial reporting amounts.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured by applying enacted statutory tax rates
applicable to the future years in which the deferred income tax assets or liabilities are expected to
be settled or realized. In assessing the ability to realize deferred income tax assets, management
considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred income tax
assets will be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred income tax assets is dependent upon
the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences
become deductible. Management considers historic earnings, scheduled reversals of deferred
income tax liabilities, and projected future taxable income in making this assessment.
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The Company follows the provisions of the FASB ASC 740-10-25, Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes, which seeks to reduce the diversity in practice associated with certain aspects of the
recognition and measurement related to accounting for income taxes. Under FASB ASC 740-10-25,
an organization must recognize the tax benefit associated with tax positions taken for tax return
purposes when it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained. The Company recognizes
any corresponding interest and penalties associated with its income tax positions in income tax
expense. The Company does not believe there are any material uncertain tax positions that should
be recorded as of December 31, 2023 and 2022.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying values of financial instruments, such as accounts receivable, accounts payable, and
accrued expenses are reasonable estimates of their fair value because of the short maturity of these
items.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company follows ASC 820-10, Fair Value Measurement, which defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value in accordance with GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair
value measurements.

ASC 820-10 defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to
transfer a liability (an exit price) in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an
orderly transaction. Fair value measurement is based on a hierarchy of observable or unobservable
inputs. The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value.

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in active markets for
identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology other than quoted prices in active markets are either
directly or indirectly observable as of the reporting date, and the fair value can be determined using
models or other valuation methodologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in situations where there is
little or no market activity of the asset and liability and the reporting entity makes estimate
assumptions relating to the pricing of the asset or liability, including assumptions regarding risk.

In instances where the determination of the fair value measurement is based on inputs from
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the
entire fair value measurement falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement in its entirety. The Company’s assessment of the significance of a particular
input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment and considers factors specific
to the asset or liability.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326):
Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, which applies primarily to the Company’s
accounts receivable impairment loss allowances. The guidance provides a revised model whereby
the current expected credit losses are used to compute impairment of financial instruments. The
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new model requires evaluation of historical experience and various current and expected factors,
which may affect the estimated amount of losses and requires determination of whether the
affected financial instruments should be grouped in units of account. This standard was effective
for private entities for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2022. The Company adopted
ASU 2016-13 on January 1, 2023. There was not a material impact of this standard on the Company’s
financial position, results of operations, and cash flows. Refer to the accounts receivable policy in
Note 1.

3. Business Combination

GG Services Holdings, Inc.

On April 10, 2023, Clintar, Inc. (d/b/a EverSmith Brands), a wholly owned subsidiary of Holdings,
acquired the membership interests of GG Services Holdings, Inc. (Green Guard Services). As a result
of this transaction, the purchase price was allocated to Green Guard Services’ balance sheet,
resulting in a new basis of accounting. This included a step-up of certain assets to fair value and the
recognition of certain identifiable intangible assets, as provided for under the purchase method of
accounting.

The investment to fund the acquisition consisted of the following:

Capital contributions S 12,105,788
Rollover equity 1,050,000
Net working capital adjustment (199,243)
Total Initial Investment S 12,956,545

The total consideration has been allocated using the purchase method of accounting to the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed based upon a determination of estimated fair values, as follows:

Cash S 1,508,023
Accounts receivable 667,211
Other assets 69,896
Property and equipment 495,695
Separately identifiable intangible assets 583,000
Goodwill 8,723,006
Operating right-of-use assets 1,072,909
Total Assets 13,119,740
Accounts payable 94,630
Accrued expenses 79,243
Accrued compensation 80,307
Operating lease obligations 1,072,909
Total Liabilities 1,327,089
Net Assets Acquired S 11,792,651
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The excess of the initial investment over the net assets acquired was used to cover acquisition costs,
and to fund additional working capital for operations.

Intangible assets acquired consist of trade names of $583,000. The Company did not separately
value the customer relationships or non-compete intangible assets from goodwill, in accordance
with the private-company alternative available under FASB ASC 805, Business Combinations. The
fair value of the intangible assets is based on significant inputs that are not observable in the market
and, therefore, represent Level 3 measurements under ASC 820-10. The fair value of the trade
names was determined under the income approach, specifically the relief-from-royalty method.

In addition, goodwill of $8,723,006 was recorded to reflect the excess of the purchase price over
the estimated fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired, which is deductible for tax purposes.

The Company incurred $1,163,894 of acquisition costs, which is included in operating expenses
within the accompanying consolidated statement of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2023.

4. Intangible Assets, Net

Acquired intangible assets (other than goodwill) consist of the following:

December 31, 2023

Accumulated

Cost Amortization Net Book Value
Trade names S 3,161,987 S (435,032) S 2,726,955
Franchise agreements 2,227,513 (693,235) 1,534,278
Total S 5,389,500 S (1,128,267) S 4,261,233

December 31, 2022

Accumulated

Cost Amortization Net Book Value
Trade names S 2,532,880 S (243,139) S 2,289,741
Franchise agreements 2,188,492 (441,584) 1,746,908
Total S 4,721,372  § (684,723) S 4,036,649

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, amortization expense of $413,289 and $377,697,
respectively, for trade names and franchise agreements is included in depreciation and amortization
expense within the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Foreign currency
translation impact on intangible assets, net, was an increase of $54,873 and a decrease of $(219,564)
for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
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Estimated amortization expense on intangible assets is as follows:

Year ending December 31,

2024 S 455,163
2025 455,163
2026 455,163
2027 448,620
2028 402,829
Thereafter 2,044,295
Total S 4,261,233

5. Goodwill, Net

The Company’s goodwill balance is a result of the acquisitions. The Company elected to test goodwill
for impairment at the entity level and amortize the balance on a straight-line basis over a ten-year
period. Amortization expense of $1,537,914 and $1,070,251 for the years ended December 31, 2023
and 2022, respectively, is recorded in operating expenses in the consolidated statements of

operations.

The carrying value of the Company’s goodwill is as follows:

December 31, 2023 2022

Gross Carrying Amount of Goodwill, beginning of year S 9,261,991 § 9,692,227
Additions from business acquisition 8,723,006 -

Accumulated amortization (3,383,799) (1,845,885)
Foreign currency translation 124,649 (430,236)
Net Carrying Amount of Goodwill, end of year $ 14,725,847 S 7,416,106

Estimated amortization expense of goodwill is as follows:

Year ending December 31,

2024 S 1,807,711

2025 1,807,711

2026 1,807,711

2027 1,807,711

2028 1,807,711

Thereafter 5,687,292
Total S 14,725,847

The remainder of this page was intentionally left blank.
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6. Income Taxes

The provision for income tax expense (benefit) is as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2023 2022
Foreign - current S 429,044 § 337,167
Foreign - deferred (7,083) 10,529
Income Tax Expense S 421,961 S 347,696

The income tax expense differs from the statutory rate due primarily to the impact of foreign
income tax expense, meals and entertainment, nondeductible goodwill amortization, and valuation
allowance.

The components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

December 31, 2023 2022
Deferred Income Tax Assets (Liabilities)
Property and equipment S (184,332) S (78,910)
Intangible assets (920,517) (1,027,945)
Gain on sale of property and equipment - (8,704)
Prepaid expenses (79,108) (112)
Net operating losses 2,526,054 1,200,176
Acquisition costs 506,669 229,352
Bad debt expense 50,679 25,000
ASC 842 Lease Accounting 2,891 -
Accrued expense 163,055 -
Unrealized loss (gain) 2,221 (514)
Total Deferred Income Tax Assets (Liabilities) 2,067,612 338,343
Valuation Allowance (3,141,419) (1,458,967)
Deferred Income Tax Liability $ (1,073,807) § (1,120,624)

The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable
income during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible. Management
considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities (including the impact of available
carryback and carryforward periods), projected future taxable income, and tax-planning strategies
in making this assessment. Based on current and projected future taxable income, management
believes it is more likely than not that the U.S. deferred tax assets will not be realized. Therefore,
a valuation allowance was placed on the Company as of December 31, 2023 and 2022. Management
believes it is more likely than not that the foreign deferred tax assets will be realized.

The Company evaluates uncertain tax positions as prescribed under ASC 740, which requires
significant judgments and estimates regarding the recoverability of deferred tax assets, the
likelihood of the outcome of examinations of tax positions that may or may not be currently under
review, and potential scenarios involving settlements of such matters. The Company assessed its
uncertain tax positions and has determined that no Lliability should be recorded as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022. The Company’s policy is to recognize interest and penalties as a
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component of the provision for income taxes. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,
there were no penalties or interest recorded.

The Company has available at December 31, 2023 a net operating loss carryforward of $2,100,000
for federal tax purposes, carrying forward indefinitely, and $400,000 for state tax purposes with
various expiration dates.

7. Stockholders’ Equity
Common Stock

The Company has 300,000 shares of common stock authorized and 28,818 and 21,380 shares issued
and outstanding as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, with a par value of $0.01.

Stock Options

The Company’s 2020 Equity Incentive Plan (Incentive Plan) is administered through Holdings. The
Incentive Plan, which is shareholder-approved, permits the grant of stock options to the Company’s
employees and members of the Board of Directors. The Company believes that such awards better
align the interests of its employees with those of its shareholders. Stock options are granted with
an exercise price equal to the estimated fair value per Holdings’ common stock value at the grant
date. The plan administrator may determine the time or times at which a stock option granted will
vest or become exercisable and the terms that require exercisability of a stock option. Generally,
the stock options issued vest over a period of seven years. For the years ended December 31, 2023
and 2022, the Company issued 445 and six stock options, respectively. As of December 31, 2023 and
2022, there were 2,145 stock options authorized under the Incentive Plan.

The fair value of each time-based vesting stock option is estimated on the date of grant using a
Black-Scholes-based valuation model that uses various assumptions regarding the: (1) expected
volatility in the fair value of the Company’s common stock, (2) expected term of the award,
(3) expected dividend yield on the underlying common stock, (4) risk-free interest rate based on
the U.S. Treasury yield curve, and (5) current price of the underlying common stock. The Company
based its expected volatility calculation upon similar, publicly traded companies tracked over a
five-year period. The Company has assumed the vesting term as the expected life of the stock
options based on when a change of control is expected to occur. The Company did not contemplate
any expected dividends based upon the Company’s credit facilities, which prohibits the payment of
dividends. A U.S. Treasury bond rate was utilized as of the respective grant date in line with the
expected life of the options.

The specific assumptions used to determine the fair value of the stock options granted were as
follows:

December 31, 2023 2022
Expected volatility (%) 25 25
Expected dividend yield - -
Expected life (years) 7 7
Risk-free interest rate (%) 4.23 1.47
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A summary of rights to stock option activity under the plan is presented below:

Weighted-Average

Weighted-Average Remaining

Exercise Price Contractual

Options per Share Term (Years)

Outstanding, January 1, 2022 1,312 § 1,268 1.7
Granted 6 1,000 11.3
Forfeited or canceled (40) 1,000 10.7
Outstanding, December 31, 2022 1,278 1,110 10.8
Granted 445 1,664 9.3
Forfeited or canceled (508) 1,133 9.2
Outstanding, December 31, 2023 1,215 S 1,301 9.9
Exercisable, December 31, 2023 251 S 1,093 9.9

Stock-based compensation expense related to stock options granted to employees charged to
operations was $72,554 and $69,697 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
Stock-based compensation expense is included in selling, general, and administrative expenses on
the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

The following is a summary of non-vested options:

Weighted-Average
Grant-Date Fair

Shares Value per Share
Non-Vested, January 1, 2022 1,245 S 390
Granted 6 425
Vested (183) 357
Forfeited or exercised (40) 289
Non-Vested, December 31, 2022 1,028 393
Granted 445 630
Vested (166) 364
Forfeited or exercised (342) 333
Non-Vested, December 31, 2023 965 S 534

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, there was $478,469 and $388,911, respectively, of total
unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested share-based compensation arrangements
granted under the Company’s Incentive Plan. The cost for the Company’s time-vested option is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 5.8 years.

8. Advertising Costs and Fund

milliCare Franchising, LLC maintains a United States national advertising fund established to collect
and administer funds contributed for use in advertising and promotional programs. Contributions to
the promotional fund are required from franchisees and are based on a percentage of franchisee
sales.
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Restricted assets and liabilities of the promotional fund are as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2023 2022
Restricted cash $ 56,573 S 304,679
Accounts receivable 271,661 185,128
Advertising Fund Restricted Assets S 328,234 S 489,807
Accounts payable S 18,632 $ 75,802
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 345,124 410,707
Advertising Fund Restricted Liabilities S 363,756 S 486,509

Advertising promotional fund expense is included in selling, general, and administrative expenses
on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and totaled $375,458 and $485,018 for the
years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The 2022 advertising fund restricted
liabilities were funded by Holdings during 2023.

9. Lease Obligations

The Company has operating lease arrangements for its various office spaces, office equipment, and
vehicle that have lease terms that range from three to five years, some of which include renewal
and termination options that can be elected by the Company. For the majority of leases entered
into during the current period, the Company concluded it is not reasonably certain that the Company
would exercise the options to extend the lease or not terminate the lease. Therefore, as of the
lease commencement date, the Company’s lease terms generally do not include these options. The
Company includes options to extend the lease when it is reasonably certain that the Company will
exercise that option.

The Company’s leases typically include a combination of fixed and variable payments. Fixed
payments are generally included when measuring the ROU asset and lease liability. Variable
payments, which primarily represent payments based on usage of the underlying asset, are generally
excluded from such measurement and expensed as incurred. In addition, certain of the Company’s
lease arrangements may contain a lease coupled with an arrangement to provide other services,
such as maintenance, or may require the Company to make other payments on behalf of the lessor
related to the leased asset, such as payments for taxes or insurance. As mentioned in Note 2, the
Company accounts for these non-lease components together with the associated lease component
for each asset class.

The Company’s lease arrangements generally do not contain significant restrictions or covenants;
however, certain of the Company’s vehicle and equipment leases include residual value guarantees,
whereby the Company provides a guarantee to the lessor that the value of the underlying asset will
be at least a specified amount at the end of the lease. Amounts probable of being owed under these
guarantees are included within the measurement of the ROU asset and lease liability.
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Lease Position

The following table presents the Company’s lease-related assets and liabilities at the end of the
year:

Classification on the Consolidated

Lease Type Balance Sheets 2023 2022
Operating lease assets  Operating lease ROU assets, net $ 1,130,780 S 410,947
Total Lease Assets $ 1,130,780 § 410,947
Current
Operating Current portion of operating
lease obligations S 422,328 S 144,553
Non-Current
Operating Long-term portion of operating
lease obligations 723,255 268,324
Total Lease Liabilities S 1,145,583 S 412,877

Lease Costs

The following table presents information related to the Company’s lease expense:

Year ended December 31, 2023 2022
Operating lease expense S 387,752 S 163,136
Short-term lease expense 15,294 9,092
Total Lease Costs S 403,046 S 172,228

Lease Term and Discount Rate

The following table presents certain information related to the lease terms and discount rate:

Year ended December 31, 2023 2022
Weighted-average remaining lease term - operating

leases (years) 2.82 2.87
Weighted-average discount rate - operating leases (%) 3.19 1.22

The remainder of this page was intentionally left blank.
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Maturity of Lease Liabilities

The following table reconciles the Company’s future minimum lease payments on an undiscounted
cash-flow basis to its lease liabilities reported in the consolidated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2023:

Year ending December 31,

Operating

Leases

2024 S 451,604
2025 398,274
2026 279,932
2027 70,633
Total Minimum Lease Payments 1,200,443
Less: imputed interest (54,860)
Present Value of Future Minimum Lease Payments S 1,145,583
Current portion of lease liabilities S 422,328
Non-current portion of lease liabilities 723,255
Present Value of Future Minimum Lease Payments S 1,145,583

10. Related Party Transactions

The Company signed consulting services agreements with affiliates of the majority equity holder of
Holdings to provide for certain consulting and advisory services. The agreements also require
periodic reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses associated with such services. There was
$610,010 and $593,364 expensed under these agreements for the years ended December 31, 2023
and 2022, respectively, which was included in selling, general, and administrative expenses in the
consolidated statements of operations.

11. Commitments and Contingencies

During the ordinary course of business, the Company is, from time-to-time, threatened with, or may
become a party to, legal actions and other proceedings. Although the ultimate outcome of any legal
matter cannot be predicted with certainty, based on present information, including management’s
assessment of the merits of any particular claim, the Company does not expect that these legal
proceeds or claims will have any material adverse impact on its future financial position or results
of operations.

The Company is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; natural disasters; and cyber security breaches for which the
Company carries commercial insurance. There have been no significant reductions in coverage from
prior year, and settlements, if any, have not exceeded coverage.
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12. Foreign Operations

Total assets and liabilities (after intercompany eliminations) of subsidiaries in foreign countries are
as follows:

December 31, 2023 2022
Current assets $ 3,668,043 § 3,532,025
Long-term assets, net 9,640,997 10,803,846
Total Assets 13,309,040 14,335,871
Total Liabilities (3,201,340) (3,135,958)
Net Assets $ 10,107,700 S 11,199,913

Net revenue and net loss of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries totaled $9,640,746 and $839,388,
respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2023. Net revenue and net loss of the Company’s
foreign subsidiaries totaled $11,496,011 and $584,386, respectively, for the year ended
December 31, 2022.

13. Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 28, 2024, the date the consolidated
financial statements were available to be issued. Based on the evaluation performed, there were
no material subsequent events that required recognition or additional disclosure in the consolidated
financial statements, other than the events noted below.

On January 12, 2024, the Company entered into a share purchase agreement to acquire shares of
U.S. Lawns, Inc. for an initial base purchase price of $52,000,000, subject to purchase-price
adjustments based on principles defined in the share purchase agreement. The acquisition was
funded with capital contributions from RMCF.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

The Board of Directors

EverSmith Brands Holding Company
(f/k/a Clintar Holding Company)

Charlotte, North Caroli

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of EverSmith Brands Holding Company
(f/k/a Clintar Holding Company) and its subsidiaries (the Company), which comprise the
consolidated balance sheets as of\December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the results
of its operations and its cash flows for the ‘years then ended, in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requikements relating to our audits. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter - Leases

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has changed its
method for accounting for leases in 2022 due to the adoption of Accounting Standards Codification
Topic 842, Leases. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and
for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the pr i
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of
the international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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ing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether
there are\conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about
the Compahy’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the
consolidated fjnancial statements are issued or available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s repart that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and, therefore, is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with GAAS will\always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusjon, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the\aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with

o Exercise professional judgment and
audit.

intain professional skepticism throughout the

isstatement of the consolidated financial
d design and perform audit procedures
e examining, on a test basis, evidence
idated financial statements.

o Identify and assess the risks of material
statements, whether due to fraud or error,
responsive to those risks. Such procedures incl
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the cons

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant tQ the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company®s internal control. Accordingly,
no such opinion is expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well\as evaluate the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

¢ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events) considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to cantinue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

May 26, 2023
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

December k

2022 2021

Assets

Current Assets

Cash ) 4,733,869 2,684,033
Advertising fund restricted assets 489,807 -
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts 3,162,056 3,135,363
Inventory 35,256 132,698
Prepaid expenses and othekcurrent assets 142,332 305,372
Deferred contract acquisition\costs, short-term 29,975 -
Total Current Assets \ 8,593,295 6,257,466
Property and Equipment, Net \ 217,041 238,377
Other Assets
Income tax receivable 35,457 180,344
Deferred contract acquisition costs, long-term 262,079 -
Intangibles, net 4,036,649 4,633,910
Goodwill, net 7,416,106 8,918,593
Operating right-of-use assets 410,947 -
Total Other Assets 12,161,238 13,732,847
Total Assets \ S 20,971,574 §$ 20,228,690
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable ) 1,908,612 § 2,196,899
Advertising fund restricted liabilities 486,509 426,976
Accrued expenses 677,961 595,242
Accrued compensation 981,195 403,894
Short-term deferred revenue 62,758 -
Current portion of operating lease obligations 144,553 -
Total Current Liabilities \ 4,261,588 3,623,011
Long-Term Liabilities
Long-term deferred revenue 459,845 -
Operating lease obligations, less current portion 268,324 -
Deferred income taxes 1,120,624 1,128,446
Total Long-Term Liabilities 1,84\\793 1,128,446
Total Liabilities 6,110,381 4,751,457

Stockholders’ Equity

Common stock, $0.01 par value, 300,000 shares authorized
at December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively,
and 21,380 and 18,823 shares issued and outstanding
at December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively 214 188

Additional paid-in capital 23,852,537 19,782,866
Accumulated deficit (8,098,798) 4,293,208)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (892,760) (12,613)
Total Stockholders’ Equity 14,861,193 15,4\7\2,233

zo,zzs,\eo

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements)

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity S 20,971,574 §
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EverSmith Brands Holding Company
(f/k/a Clintar Holding Company)

and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Ys\ended December 31, 2022 2021
$ 5,644,549 4,221,988
10,874,796 7,665,510
Promotional Fund revenue 322,017 -
Initial franchise fees 17,621
Chemical product revenue 248,347
Other revenue 103,106
Total Revenue \ 17,210,436 11,887,498
Operating Costs and Expenses
Cost of professional servise revenue 9,360,432 6,510,378
Selling, general, and administrative 9,770,701 6,518,333
Depreciation and amortizatio 1,510,787 1,176,192
Transaction expenses - 741,042
Total Operating Costs and Expen%@ 20,641,920 14,945,945
Loss from Operations \ (3,431,484) (3,058,447)
Other Expense (Income), Net 26,410 (18,234)
Loss from Operations, before income taxes (3,457,894) (3,040,213)
Income Tax Expense 347,696 80,953
Net Loss \ (3,805,590) (3,121,166)
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment (880,147) (14,615)
Comprehensive Loss \ S (4,685,737) S  (3,135,781)

See accompanying notes\to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

\ Common Stock

Accumulated

Other Total
$0.01 Additional Comprehensive Accumulated Stockholders’
Shares Par Value Paid-in Capital  Income (Loss) Deficit Equity
Balance, December 31, 2020 165 $ 16,499,835 § 2,002 $ (1,172,042) S 15,329,960
Issuance of common stock 23 3,249,977 - - 3,250,000
Stock-based compensation - 33,054 - - 33,054
Net loss - - - (3,121,166) (3,121,166)
Foreign currency translation
adjustment - - (14,615) - (14,615)
Balance, December 31, 2021 188 19,782,866 (12,613) (4,293,208) 15,477,233
Issuance of common stock 26 3,999,974 - - 4,000,000
Stock-based compensation - - 69,697 - - 69,697
Net loss - - - (3,805,590) (3,805,590)
Foreign currency translation
adjustment - - - (880,147) - (880,147)
Balance, December 31, 2022 21,380 214 5\23,852,537 S (892,760) S (8,098,798) $ 14,861,193

ee accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(f/k/a Clintar Holding Company)
and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended De\csmber 31, 2022 2021

Cash Flows from

erating Activities

Net loss ) (3,805,590) $ (3,121,166)
Reconciliation of net\oss to net cash used in operating activities,
net of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in business
acquisitions:
Depreciation and amortjzation expense 1,510,787 1,176,192
Amortization of right-of-yse assets 163,136 -
Stock compensation expense 69,697 33,054
Deferred income taxes 347,696 80,953
Gain on sale of property and equipment - (8,462)
Bad debt expense 128,577 143,441
Change in operating assets and liakilities,
net of assets acquired and liabilities assumed:
Accounts receivable (286,545) (589,433)
Inventory 95,603 47,684
Advertising fund restricted assets and\liabilities (125,595) -
Deferred contract acquisition costs (292,054) -
Income tax receivable (174,537) (378,992)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 135,786 (222,120)
Accounts payable (219,503) 986,206
Deferred revenue 523,745 -
Right-of-use lease liability (161,129) -
Accrued expenses 615,859 98,128
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities \ (1,474,067) (1,754,515)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Business acquisition, net of cash acquired (1,481,148)

Capital expenditures (52,917) (55,862)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment - 55,338
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities \ (52,917) (1,481,672)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Proceeds from issuance of common stock 4,000,000 3,250,000
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities }}OO0,000 3,250,000
Net Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash (1\8,501) (4,095)
Net Increase in Cash and Restricted Cash 2,354,515 9,718
Cash and Restricted Cash, beginning of year 2,684,03 2,674,315
Cash and Restricted Cash, end of year S 5,038,548 \5 2,684,033
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information \

Taxes paid in cash S 192,280 S 378,992

Supplemental Disclosures of Noncash Investing
and Financing Activities
Liabilities assumed in connection with business acquisition $ - S 8,973
Operating lease right-of-use assets obtained in exchange
for operating lease liabilities upon ASC 842 adoption 567,758 -

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial stateme%\
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ganization and Description of Business

or the Company).
Brands Holding Com

On December 14, 2020, Riverside Micro-Cap Fund V, L.P. and Riverside Micro-Cap Fund V-A, L.P.
(collectively, RMCF or Riverside) acquired a majority ownership in the Company through RMCF’s
investment in Holdings and a‘stock purchase agreement with 2792705 Ontario Inc.

Holdings, headquartered in Charlotte, North Carolina, is a holding company owning subsidiaries
principally engaged as franchisors\of businesses, which provide landscaping and snow removal
services throughout Canada, as well as providing landscaping and snow removal services directly to
customers where franchising territoriesxdo not exist.

On November 12, 2021, the Company acquired the assets of milliCare Inc., a complimentary
franchisor of businesses, which provides operating floor and textile care services throughout the
Eastern United States, as well as providing professional floor cleaning directly to customers where
franchising territories do not exist.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policie
Basis of Presentation and Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (GAAP) and include the results of
EverSmith Brands Holding Company (f/k/a Clintar Holding Company) and its subsidiaries for the
years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021. The results of milliCare tac. are included from the date
of acquisition, November 12, 2021, through December 31, 2022. Ml significant intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP reguires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and

statements include, among other estimates, the determination of the purchase price alloc
and the related valuation of intangible assets and other assets and liabilities acquired, depreciati
and amortization, useful lives, stock-based compensation, and the allowance for doubtful account
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Reclassifications

Advertising fund\ restricted liabilities previously included in accrued expenses as of
December 31, 2021\were reclassified to advertising fund restricted liabilities on the consolidated
balance sheet to conform to the current year presentation. This reclassification does not result in
any changes to previously reported total assets, stockholder’s equity, and net income.

Foreign Currency Transl

The reporting currency of the Sompany is the U.S. dollar (USD). The Company’s functional currency
for its operations in Canada is the Canadian dollar (CAD). Assets and liabilities are translated using
the exchange rates as of year-end and revenues and expenses are translated using average exchange
rates. Equity is translated at historigal rates with resulting translation gains and losses included in
the Company’s consolidated statemenktof stockholders’ equity as a component of accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss).

Gains and losses arising from foreign cuxrency transactions are included in the consolidated
statement of operations in operating expenses. Intercompany balances denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the parties to the transaction create foreign currency gains
and losses that survive consolidation, even though the intercompany balances do not.

Concentrations of Risk

One customer group made up approximately 31% and 6
ending December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The same customer group made up approximately
16% and 24% of the Company’s outstanding accounts receixable at December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively. No other customer groups exceeded 10% of the Company’s revenue for the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively or outstanding accounts receivable at December 31, 2022
and 2021, respectively.

of the Company’s net sales for the years

Cash

Cash includes cash on deposit and highly liquid investments with original Ipaturities of three months
or less. The Company places its cash and cash equivalents with institutions'with high-credit quality.
However, at certain times, such cash and cash equivalents may be in excess of Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation limits of $250,000. Additionally, the Company maintains cash in various
foreign institutions amounting to $1,351,550 and $2,308,897 as of December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively, converted at year-end exchange rates. The Company has not experienced any losses
on such amounts.

Restricted Cash

by the promotional fund, usage of which is restricted for advertising activities and is includ
advertising funds restricted assets on the consolidated balance sheet. Refer to Note 8 for furt
information.
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Reconciliation, of cash and restricted cash at end of period:

Year ended December 31, 2022 2021
Cash \e S 4,733,869 S 2,684,033
Restricted cash, included in advertising fund restricted assets 304,679 -
Total Cash and Restricéd Cash S 5,038,548 S 2,684,033

Property and Equipment,

corded at the estimated fair market value at the date of the
respective business acquisitions. dditions subsequent to the business acquisitions are recorded at
cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. The Company has adopted the straight-line
method of depreciation and amortization over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Property and equipment are

Asset Category Years
Office and computer equipment 5
Furniture and fixtures 5
Leasehold improvements Shorter of the lease term or

estimated life of the asset

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, depreciation expense for property and equipment
of $62,839 and $62,468 is included in depreciatiom\and amortization within the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations.

Business Combinations

When the Company acquires businesses in a business combination, the total consideration paid is
allocated to the fair value of the tangible assets, liabilities,\and identifiable intangible assets
acquired. Any residual purchase consideration is recorded as ‘goodwill. The allocation of the
purchase price requires management to make significant estimates i determining the fair values of
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. These estimates are inherentljnuncertain and unpredictable.
In addition, unanticipated events and circumstances may occur that Ynay affect the accuracy or
validity of these estimates. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Refer to Note 3 for
further information.

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the purchase price in excess of the fair value of net assets acquired in a business
combination. As discussed below, on December 14, 2020, the Company elected to agopt Accounting

Standards Update (ASU) 2014-02, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350), which\allows private
companies to amortize goodwill, an alternative to the previously issued standard ASU 204 1-08. Upon

entity may be below the carrying amount, including goodwill. There were no impairment charges
for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.
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In December 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASU 2014-08, Business
Combinations (Topic 805), to allow private companies an accounting alternative that no longer

licensed independently from the other assets of the business, and noncompetition agreements
separately from goodwill in a business combination if the company has adopted ASU 2014-02. The
Company adopted ASU 2014-08 at December 14, 2020 and, accordingly, did not separately value any
customer-related\intangible assets or noncompetition agreements for the acquisitions described in
Note 3.

In March 2021, the FASB issued ASU 2021-03, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350):
Accounting Alternative fox Evaluating Triggering Events, which provides private companies and not-
for-profit entities with an“accounting alternative to perform the goodwill impairment triggering
event evaluation as of the &nd of the reporting period. Under current guidance in Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) $50-20, an entity is required to identify and evaluate goodwill
impairment triggering events when they occur to determine whether it is more likely than not that
the fair value of an entity is less than its carrying amount. If an entity determines that it is more
likely than not that goodwill is impaiced, it must test goodwill for impairment using the triggering
event date as the measurement date.\Under ASU 2021-03, an entity that elects this alternative is
not required to monitor for goodwill impairment triggering events during the reporting period but,
instead, should evaluate the facts and cikcumstances as of the end of each reporting period to
determine whether a triggering event exists and, if so, whether it is more likely than not that
goodwill is impaired. The amendments in this ypdate are effective on a prospective basis for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2019. Early adoption is permitted for annual financial
statements that have not yet been issued or made\available for issuance as of March 30, 2021. The
Company adopted ASU 2021-03 on December 14, 2020.

Definite-Lived Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist of trade names and franchise agreements and were recorded at their
estimated fair value at the date of acquisitions. These assets‘are amortized on a straight-line basis
that approximates the estimated pattern benefit to be realized fxom each asset over their estimated
useful lives ranging from six to 20 years. The Company evaluates definite-lived intangible assets for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
asset might not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized when estimated undiscounted
future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset are less than its carrying amount.
There were no impairment charges recorded related to definite-lived intangible assets for the years
ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.

Advertising
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the
Company incurred advertising expense of $526,098 and $260,376, respectively, which,is included in
selling, general, and administrative expenses on the consolidated statements of operatjons.
Revenue Recognition
In accordance with ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), revenue is

recognized when (or as) a customer obtains control of promised goods or services. The amount\of
revenue is measured as the transaction price that reflects the consideration that the Compan
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expects to\be entitled to receive in exchange for these services. The Company generates all revenue
ts with customers.

To achieve the'core principle of this new standard, the Company applies the following steps:

1. IdentificatiQn of the Contract, or Contracts, with the Customer

The Company\considers the terms and conditions of the contract and customary business
practices in ideRtifying contracts under ASC 606. The Company determines it has a contract
with a customer when the contract is approved, the Company can identify each party’s rights
regarding the serviges to be transferred, the Company can identify the payment terms for
the services, the Company has determined that the customer has the ability and intent to
pay, and the contract has commercial substance. The Company applies judgment in
determining the customex’s ability and intent to pay, which is based on a variety of factors,
including the customer’s historical payment experience or, in the case of a new customer,
credit, and financial information pertaining to the customer. At contract inception, the
Company evaluates whether Ytwo or more contracts should be combined and accounted
together as a single contract.

2. Identification of the Performance Qbligations in the Contract

Performance obligations promised in a contract are identified based on the services and the
products that will be transferred to the customer that are both capable of being distinct,
whereby the customer can benefit from the service either on its own or together with other
resources that are readily available from third parties or from the Company, and are distinct
in the context of the contract, whereby the transfer of the services and the products is
separately identifiable from other promises i the contract. The Company considers the
following distinct goods and services to represent separate performance obligations for the
purpose of revenue recognition: initial franchise fees, royalty fees, monthly technology fees,
monthly bookkeeping fees, renewal fees, landscaping services, and snow removal services.

3. Determination of the Transaction Price

The transaction price is determined based on the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring serwices to the customer. Variable
consideration is included in the transaction price if, in the Company’s judgment, it is
probable that a significant future reversal of cumulative reventie under the contract will not
occur.

4. Allocation of the Transaction Price to the Performance Obligation‘in the Contract

If the contract contains a single performance obligation, the entirg transaction price is
allocated to the single performance obligation. Contracts that contain multiple performance
obligations require an allocation of the transaction price to each performance obligation
based on a relative standalone selling price (SSP).

5. Recognition of the Revenue When, or as, the Company Satisfies a Performance Obligation

Revenue is recognized at the time (or as) the related performance obligation is
transferring control of the promised good or service to the customer in an amount that
reflects the consideration that the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods
and services.
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The Coigpany derives its revenue from the following sources:
Franchise

The terms of the franchise agreements for the Company are typically ten years. As part of each
agreement, the\Company identified one performance obligation that requires the Company to
provide a combination of the following relating to upfront franchisee fees:

e Intellectual Property (IP) - Licenses grant an exclusive right to establish and operate a
landscaping, snow removal, and commercial floor cleaning business under the trademarks
and systems established as part of the Clintar or milliCare license during the term of the
agreement.

e Continuing Consulting Services - These services include the review of plans, equipment and
merchandise selection, astablishment and implementation of administrative, bookkeeping,
accounting, inventory conttol, and general operating procedures.

e Operations Manual and Brand:Specific Training Services - These provide training programs,
operating manuals, development of standards, and pricing policies, specific to the Clintar
and milliCare brands.

e Pre-Opening services - These provi
up the franchisee records.

primarily site selection, training programs, and setting

The Company determined that the services noted above represent a set of integrated or highly
interrelated tasks/services and are, therefore, ac¢counted for as a single performance obligation of
the providing the franchise license. The standard\specifically identifies franchise rights as an
example of a symbolic license. This type of license\ is satisfied over time since the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefit as the entity performs its obligation to provide
access and, therefore, meets the criterion of recognizing revenue over time. Royalty fees represent
the majority of consideration the Company receives under franchise agreements and are recognized
over time each month. Revenue related to upfront fees allocated to this single performance
obligation is recognized over time using a straight-line measure\of progress as the control of various
services is provided to the customer ratably over the term of the contract for the initial upfront
fee. The renewal option provides continued access for the franchisg rights (symbolic license) for an
extended period of time and, therefore, would also be recognized over time (over the course of the
renewal term) as it meets the above-mentioned criterion. The contracts\the Company enters contain
several types of payments, including:

e Clintar Initial Franchisee Fees - Franchise agreements require an initjal fee of $40,000 CAD
for each territory. The initial franchise fees are due and payable wheR a contract is signed
and is not refundable.

e milliCare Initial Franchise Fees - Franchise agreements require an initial\franchise fee of
$45,000 USD. Effective in 2023, the Company increased the initial franchise\fee amount to
$49,000. For existing franchise owners who may be approved for a second franchi
the Company offers a discount of $9,000. The Company offers a $5,000 discount
who present satisfactory evidence of honorable discharge. Franchisees are eligible for
discounts within the first 12 months of operations if revenue levels exceed $200,00

e Royalty Fees - The Company receives monthly royalty payments based on a percentage of
each franchisee’s gross billings throughout the initial term. The franchisee is required\to
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meet q certain minimum revenue level for the payment of these royalty fees in any given
month, payable monthly on or before the 15t of each month and based upon gross sales for
the immediately preceding month.

e Bookkeeping\ Services - The Company receives monthly fees for performing bookkeeping
services to franchisees.

e Monthly Technolegy Fees -The Company receives monthly fees for the use of its technology.

e Renewal Fees - Franchise agreements include renewal options for an additional ten-year
term. The Company has not historically charged a renewal fee.

e Promotional Fund Revenye - milliCare maintains a national advertising fund established to
collect and administer fuhds contributed for use in advertising and promotional programs
for franchisees in the United States. Franchisees make contributions to the national
advertising fund based on a percentage of sales of the franchisees. As of December 31, 2022
and 2021, the Company recorded a promotional fund liability of $486,509 and $426,976,
respectively, for funds received and reserved for future advertising spend. Refer to Note 8
for further information.

The Company recognizes revenue for each pexformance obligation identified within the customer
franchise agreement when, or as, the performance obligation is satisfied by transferring the
promised goods or services. All revenue is recognized over time.

Landscaping, Snow Removal, and Professional Floor Cleaning Services

The Company’s professional services include snow remgval, landscaping, and professional floor

cleaning services to where a franchisee territory is not located. Revenue is recognized over time as
the services are rendered.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable represent trade receivables from customers for\which the Company has not yet
received payment. Accounts receivable are presented net of an allowance for doubtful accounts.
The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the
inability of customers to make required payments, or the customer canceling prior to the service
being rendered. In evaluating the sufficiency of the allowance for doubtful\accounts, the Company
considers the specific details of the customer account, the age of the outstanding balance, the
current economic environment, and historical credit trends. Any change in the\assumptions used in
analyzing a specific account receivable might result in an additional allowance fordoubtful accounts
being recognized in the period in which the change occurs. Receivable balances\are charged off
when all collection efforts have failed, and management determines the balance is\uncollectable.
In the case of balances relating to services not yet rendered, the balance is charged ff when the
customer cancels the service or when the Company determines that the invoiced service will no
longer be provided, whichever occurs first. The allowance for doubtful accounts was $263,852 and
$143,879 at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Deferred Revenue

The Company records amounts that have been invoiced to its clients in either deferred revenue o
revenue depending on whether the revenue recognition criteria described above have been met.

16


ameli
Line


EverSmith Brands Holding Company
(f/k/a Clintar Holding Company)
and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Contract liabilities\consist of deferred revenue and include payments received in advance of
performance under the contract and non-cancellable amounts billed in advance relating to initial
franchise fee invoiced)\ Such amounts typically relate to the initial franchise fee paid and are
recognized as revenue over the contract period, which is generally ten years.

Transaction Price Allocated tQ Remaining Performance Obligations

As of December 31, 2022, $522,6
performance obligations. This is ¢

of deferred revenue is expected to be recognized from remaining
prised of initial franchise fees.

ining performance obligations do not include uncommitted
at are cancelable by the client without any significant
material contracts, and (iii) amounts associated with

The estimated revenues from the re
contract amounts such as (i) amounts
penalty, (ii) future billings for time an
optional services and renewal periods.

Deferred Contract Acquisition Costs

The Company capitalizes sales commissions and certain parts of bonuses paid to internal sales
personnel and third-party broker fees that are incremental to the acquisition of customer contracts.
These costs are recorded as deferred contract acquisition costs on the consolidated balance sheets.
The Company determines whether costs should be deferked based on sales compensation plans. If
the commissions or third-party broker fees are, in fact, insremental and would not have occurred
absent the customer contract, such commissions or broker fees are capitalized and deferred, as
further described below.

Sales commissions for renewal of a franchise agreement or other services are not considered
commensurate with the commissions paid for the acquisition of the initial franchisee agreement
given the substantive difference in commission rates between new and renewal contracts.
Commissions and bonuses paid upon the initial acquisition of a contract ake amortized on a straight-
line basis over an estimated period of benefit of ten years. Commissions\on professional services
are typically recognized when incurred because professional services are performed in less than one
year. The Company determined the period of benefit for commissions paid for the acquisition of the
initial franchise agreements by taking into consideration the initial estimated“\customer life. The
Company determined the period of benefit for renewal of franchisee agreements by considering the
average contractual term for renewal contracts. Amortization of deferred contract acquisition costs
is included in the general, selling, and administrative expenses on the consolidated statements of
operations.

The Company periodically reviews these deferred costs to determine whether events or changes in

circumstances have occurred that could impact the period of benefit of these deferred contract
acquisition costs. There were no material impairment losses recorded during the periods presented.
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The following t%epresents a roll-forward of deferred contract acquisition costs:

Ending Balance, Decemlber 31, 2021 S -
Additions to deferred contract acquisition costs 300,000
Amortization of deferred gontract acquisition costs (7,946)
Ending Balance, December 31, 2022 S 292,054

Future estimated amortization of capitalized commission costs is as follows at December 31, 2022:

Year ending December 31,

2023 S 29,975
2024 29,975
2025 29,975
2026 29,975
2027 29,975
Thereafter 142,179
Total \ S 292,054

Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to Goxernmental Authorities

When required, the Company collects sales tax from its gustomers on sales and remits these funds
to various governmental authorities when due. The Compaky made an accounting policy election to
exclude from the measurement of the transaction price al\ taxes assessed by any governmental
authorities that are both imposed on and concurrent with a specific revenue-producing transaction
and collected by the Company from a customer. The Company records sales tax collected from
customers as a component of accrued expenses within the consolidated balance sheet.

Leases

On January 1, 2022, the date of initial application, the Company adopted ASC 842, Leases, using
the modified retrospective transition method whereby prior comparative periods have not been
restated and continue to be reported under the accounting standards in effect for the prior period.
The Company elected the package of practical expedients permitted under the transition guidance
for all leases, which allowed the Company to adopt ASC 842 without reassessing whether
arrangements contain leases, the lease classification, and the determination of initial direct costs.

The Company determines if an arrangement contains a lease in whole or in part at the inception of
the contract. Right-of-use (ROU) assets represent the right to use an underlying asset\for the lease
term while lease liabilities represent the obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease.
All leases with an expected term greater than 12 months result in the recognition of an ROU asset
and a liability at the lease commencement date based on the present value of the lease payments
over the lease term. Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of remaining\lease
payments, while ROU assets are initially set equal to the lease liability, as adjusted for any pay
made prior to lease commencement, lease incentives, and any initial direct costs incurred by
Company. The Company elected the practical expedient for private companies that allo
companies to use the risk-free discount rate at the lease commencement date to determine the
present value of the lease payments instead of calculating their incremental borrowing rate.
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The lease terl includes all non-cancellable periods and may include options to extend (or to not
terminate) the (ease when it is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise the option. Leases
that have a termof 12 months or less at the commencement date are expensed on a straight-line
basis over the lease\term and do not result in the recognition of an ROU asset or lease liability.

For operating leases, reqt expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease,
and ROU assets are subsequently re-measured to reflect the effect of uneven lease payments. For
finance leases, ROU assets\are amortized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Expenses for
finance leases include the amortization of ROU assets, which is recorded as depreciation and
amortization expense, and interest expense, which reflects interest accrued on the lease liability.
The Company has elected to cormbine lease and non-lease components, such as fixed maintenance
costs, as a single lease component in calculating ROU assets and lease liabilities for all classes of
leased assets.

Income Taxes

The Company is a C-corporation for US tax\purposes and a corporation for Canadian tax purposes
and accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method. Deferred income taxes are
provided for temporary differences in recognizging certain income, expense, and credit items for
financial reporting purposes and tax reporting purposes. Such deferred income taxes primarily relate
to differences between the tax basis of assets and\jabilities and their financial reporting amounts.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured by applying enacted statutory tax rates
applicable to the future years in which the deferred income tax assets or liabilities are expected to
be settled or realized. In assessing the ability to realize\deferred income tax assets, management
considers whether it is more likely than not that some pqrtion or all of the deferred income tax
assets will be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred income tax assets is dependent upon
the generation of future taxable income during the periods tn which those temporary differences
become deductible. Management considers historic earningsy, scheduled reversals of deferred
income tax liabilities, and projected future taxable income in making this assessment.

The Company follows the provisions of the FASB ASC 740-10-25, Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes, which seeks to reduce the diversity in practice associated with certain aspects of the
recognition and measurement related to accounting for income taxes. Under FASB ASC 740-10-25,
an organization must recognize the tax benefit associated with tax positigns taken for tax return
purposes when it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained. The Company recognizes
any corresponding interest and penalties associated with its income tax positions in income tax
expense. The Company does not believe there are any material uncertain tax pasitions that should
be recorded as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The carrying values of financial instruments, such as accounts receivable, accounts payable, and
accrued expenses are reasonable estimates of their fair value because of the short maturity'of these
items.

Fair Value Measurements
The Company follows ASC 820-10, Fair Value Measurement, which defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value in accordance with GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair

value measurements.
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ASC 820-10 defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to
transfer a liability (an exit price) in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an
orderly transactign. Fair value measurement is based on a hierarchy of observable or unobservable
inputs. The standaxd describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value.

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in active markets for
identical investments as\of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology other than quoted prices in active markets are either
directly or indirectly observable as of the reporting date, and the fair value can be determined using
models or other valuation methadologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation mathodology are unobservable inputs in situations where there is
little or no market activity of the asset and liability and the reporting entity makes estimate
assumptions relating to the pricing of the asset or liability, including assumptions regarding risk.

In instances where the determination of \the fair value measurement is based on inputs from
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the
entire fair value measurement falls is based or\the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement in its entirety. The Company’s assessment of the significance of a particular
input to the fair value measurement in its entirety xequires judgment and considers factors specific
to the asset or liability.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards
Standards Not Yet Adopted

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-05, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326), which
introduced the expected credit losses methodology for the measurement of credit losses on financial
assets measured at amortized cost basis, replacing the previous incukred loss methodology. The new
current expected credit loss (CECL) methodology does not have a mini
of impairment losses, and entities will need to measure expected credit losses on assets that have
a low risk of loss. This update is effective for fiscal years beginning after\December 15, 2022. The
Company is currently evaluating the impact of the pending adoption of theMSU on its consolidated
financial statements.

3. Business Combination
milliCare

On November 12, 2021, Clintar Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Holdings, acquired the\assets of
milliCare, Inc. As a result of this transaction, the purchase price was allocated to milliCare’s\halance
sheet, resulting in a new basis of accounting. This included a step-up of certain assets to faif\value

and the recognition of certain identifiable intangible assets, as provided for under the purchase
method of accounting.
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The inve%t to fund the acquisition consisted of the following:

Capital contrib}gns S 3,000,000
Net working capital adjustment 138,764
Total Initial Investrﬁent S 3,138,764

The total consideration has been allocated using the purchase method of accounting to the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed based upon a determination of estimated fair values, as follows:

Accounts receivable S 569,912
Inventory 46,018
Property and equipment 696
Separately identifiable intangible assets 632,000
Goodwill 771,495
Total Assets \ 2,020,121
Accounts payable 93,235
Accrued expenses 426,976
Accrued compensation 18,762
Total Liabilities \ 538,973
Net Assets Acquired \ S 1,481,148

The excess of the initial investment over the net assets acquired was used to cover acquisition costs,
and to fund additional working capital for operations.

Intangible assets acquired consist of trade names of $318,000 and franchise agreements of $314,000.
The Company did not separately value the customer relationships or non-compete intangible assets
from goodwill, in accordance with the private-company alternative available under FASB ASC 805,
Business Combinations. The fair value of the intangible assets is based on significant inputs that are
not observable in the market and, therefore, represent Level 3 measurements under ASC 820-10.
The fair value of the trade names was determined under the income\approach, specifically the
relief-from-royalty method. The fair value of the franchise agreements was determined under the
income approach, specifically the multi-period excess earnings method.

In addition, goodwill of $771,495 was recorded to reflect the excess of the purshase price over the
estimated fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired, which is not deductible for tax purposes.

The Company incurred $741,042 of acquisition costs, which is included in operating expenses within
the accompanying consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December\31, 2021.

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.
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4. Intangible Assets, Net

Acquired intangible assets (other than goodwill) consisted of the following:

December 31, 2022
Accumulated
Cost Amortization Net Book Value
Trade names \ S 2,532,880 S (243,139) S 2,289,741
Franchise agreements 2,188,492 (441,584) 1,746,908
Total \ S 4,721,372  § (684,723) S 4,036,649
December 31, 2021 \
\ Accumulated
Cost Amortization Net Book Value
Trade names \S 2,668,625 S (124,055) S 2,544,570
Franchise agreements 2,303,375 (214,035) 2,089,340
Total S\ 4,972,000 S (338,090) S 4,633,910

Estimated amortization expense on intangible assets is as follows:

Year ending December 31,

2023 S 365,669
2024 365,669
2025 365,669
2026 365,669
2027 359,127
Thereafter 2,214,846
Total A 4,036,649

5. Goodwill, Net

The Company’s goodwill balance is a result of the acquisitions. The Company elected to test goodwill
for impairment at the entity level and amortize the balance on a straight-line basis over a ten-year
period. Amortization expense of $1,070,251 and $775,634 for the years ended December 31, 2022
and 2021, respectively, is recorded in operating expenses in the consolidated statements o
operations.
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The carrying value of the Company’s goodwill was as follows:

December 31\ 2022 2021
ount of Goodwill, beginning of year S 9,692,227 $ 8,918,808

Gross Carrying

Additions from business acquisition - 771,495

Accumulated amortization (1,845,885) (775,634)
Foreign currency translgtion (430,236) 3,924
Net Carrying Amount of}iqodwill, end of year S 7,416,106 8,918,593

Estimated amortization expense of goodwill is as follows:

Year ending December 31,

2023 S 917,909

2024 917,909

2025 917,909

2026 917,909

2027 917,909

Thereafter 2,826,561

Total \ S 7,416,106
6. Income Taxes

The provision for income tax expense is as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2022 2021

Foreign - current S 7,167 S 174,125

Foreign - deferred 10,529 (93,172)
Income Tax Expense S 347,696 S 80,953

The income tax expense differs from the statutory rate due primarily to the\impact of foreign
income tax expense, meals and entertainment, nondeductible goodwill amortization, and valuation
allowance.

The remainder of this page was intentionally left blank.
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The components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

December31, 2022 2021
Deferred Income Tax Assets (Liabilities)
Property and ‘equipment S (78,910) S (69,143)
Intangible asse (1,027,945) (1,057,913)
Gain on sale of property and equipment (8,704) (2,992)
Prepaid expenses (112) (3,524)
Net operating losses 1,200,176 458,048
Acquisition costs 229,352 229,352
Bad debt expense 25,000 -
Unrealized gain/loss (514) -
Total Deferred Income Tax As&t&(uabilities) 338,343 (446,172)
Valuation Allowance (1,458,967) (682,274)
Deferred Income Tax Liability \ S (1,120,624) S  (1,128,446)

The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable
income during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible. Management
considers the scheduled reversal of deferred, tax liabilities (including the impact of available
carryback and carryforward periods), projected future taxable income, and tax-planning strategies
in making this assessment. Based on current and\projected future taxable income, management
believes it is more likely than not that the U.S. deferred tax assets will not be realized. Therefore,
a valuation allowance was placed on the Company as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
Management believes it is more likely than not that the fareign deferred tax assets will be realized.

The Company evaluates uncertain tax positions as prescribed under ASC 740, which requires
significant judgments and estimates regarding the recoverability of deferred tax assets, the
likelihood of the outcome of examinations of tax positions that may or may not be currently under
review and potential scenarios involving settlements of such matters. The Company assessed its
uncertain tax positions and has determined that no liability\ should be recorded as of
December 31, 2022 and 2021. The Company’s policy is to recognize\interest and penalties as a
component of the provision for income taxes. For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021,
there were no penalties or interest recorded.

The Company has available at December 31, 2022 a net operating loss carryforward of $1,500,000
for federal tax purposes, carrying forward indefinitely, and $200,000 for state\tax purposes with
various expiration dates.

7. Stockholders’ Equity

Common Stock

The Company has 300,000 shares of common stock authorized and 21,380 and 18,823 shares issued
and outstanding as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, with a par value of $0.01.
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align the interests of its employees with those of its shareholders. Stock options are granted with
an exercise price\equal to the estimated fair value per Holdings’ common stock value at the grant
date. The plan admipistrator may determine the time or times at which a stock option granted will
vest or become exercisable and the terms that require exercisability of a stock option. Generally,
the stock options issued vest over a period of seven years. For the years ended December 31, 2022
and 2021, the Company issued six and 1,312 stock options, respectively. As of December 31, 2022
and 2021, there were 2,145 stock options authorized under the Incentive Plan, respectively.

The fair value of each time-based vesting stock option is estimated on the date of grant using a
Black-Scholes-based valuation del that uses various assumptions regarding the: (1) expected
volatility in the fair value of the\ Company’s common stock, (2) expected term of the award,
(3) expected dividend yield on the tnderlying common stock, (4) risk-free interest rate based on
the U.S. Treasury yield curve, and (5) surrent price of the underlying common stock. The Company
based its expected volatility calculation upon similar, publicly traded companies tracked over a
five-year period. The Company has assumed the vesting term as the expected life of the stock
options based on when a change of control is\expected to occur. The Company did not contemplate
any expected dividends based upon the Company’s credit facilities, which prohibits the payment of
dividends. A U.S. Treasury bond rate was utilized as of the respective grant date in line with the
expected life of the options.

The specific assumptions used to determine the fair\value of the stock options granted were as
follows:

December 31, 2022 2021
Expected volatility 25% 25%
Expected dividend yield - -
Expected life 7 years 7 years
Risk-free interest rate 1.47% 1.14-1.47%

A summary of rights to stock option activity under the plan is presentedhelow:

Weighted-Average
Remaining
Contractual

Weighted-Averag
Exercise Price

Options Per Share Term (Years)
Outstanding, January 1, 2021 - S - -
Granted 1,312 1,268 11.7
Forfeited or canceled - - -
Outstanding, December 31, 2021 1,312 1,268 11.7
Granted 6 1,000 11.3
Forfeited or canceled (40) 1,000 7
Outstanding, December 31, 2022 1,278  § 1,110 10§\
Exercisable, December 31, 2022 250 S 1,080 10.8

25


ameli
Line


EverSmith Brands Holding Company
(f/k/a Clintar Holding Company)
and Subsidiaries

\ Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Stock-based compensation expense related to stock options granted to employees charged to
operations was $69,697 and $33,054 for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
Stock-based compensation expense is included in selling, general, and administrative expenses on
panying statement of operations.

The followihg is a summary of non-vested options:

Weighted-Average
Grant-Date Fair

Shares Value Per Share
Non-Vested, January 1, 2021 - S -
Granted 1,312 390
Vested (67) 390
Forfeited or exercised - -
Non-Vested, December 31, 20 1,245 390
Granted 6 425
Vested (183) 357
Forfeited or exercised (40) 289
Non-Vested, December 31, 2022 \ 1,028 § 393

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, there was $388,911 and $458,443, respectively, of total
unrecognized compensation cost related\ to non-vested share-based compensation arrangements
granted under the Company’s Incentive Ptan. The cost for the Company’s time vested option is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-ayerage period of 5.5 years.

8. Advertising Costs and Fund
milliCare Franchising, LLC maintains a United States, (U.S) national advertising fund established to
collect and administer funds contributed for use\in advertising and promotional programs.
Contributions to the Promotional Fund are required from franchisees and are based on a percentage
of franchisee sales.

Restricted assets and liabilities of the Promotional Fund are as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2022 2021
Restricted cash S \304,679 S

Accounts receivable 185,128

Advertising Fund Restricted Assets ) }&9,807 )

Accounts payable S 75\,6\(;2 S -
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 410,707 426,976
Advertising Fund Restricted Liabilities S 486,50‘% S 426,976

Advertising promotional fund expense is included in selling, general, and admir%ive expenses
on the accompanying statements of operations totaled $485,018 for the\ year ended
December 31, 2022. There was no expense for the year ended December 31, 2021. The 2021
advertising fund restricted liabilities were funded by Holdings during 2022.
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9. Lease Obligations

The Company has operating lease arrangements for its various office spaces, office equipment, and
vehicle, respectively, that have lease terms that range from three to five years, some of which
l and termination options that can be elected by the Company. For the majority of
leases entered into during the current period, the Company concluded it is not reasonably certain
that the Company would exercise the options to extend the lease or not terminate the lease.
Therefore, as of the lease commencement date, the Company’s lease terms generally do not include
these options. The Company includes options to extend the lease when it is reasonably certain that
the Company will exergjse that option.

The Company’s leases typically include a combination of fixed and variable payments. Fixed
payments are generally included when measuring the ROU asset and lease liability. Variable
payments, which primarily represent payments based on usage of the underlying asset, are generally
excluded from such measurement and expensed as incurred. In addition, certain of the Company’s
lease arrangements may contain\a lease coupled with an arrangement to provide other services,
such as maintenance, or may requike us to make other payments on behalf of the lessor related to
the leased asset, such as payments for taxes or insurance. As mentioned in Note 2, the Company
accounts for these non-lease components together with the associated lease component for each
asset class.

The Company’s lease arrangements generally do not contain significant restrictions or covenants;
however, certain of the Company’s vehicle and equipment leases include residual value guarantees,
whereby the Company provides a guarantee to the lessor that the value of the underlying asset will
be at least a specified amount at the end of the lease. Amounts probable of being owed under these
guarantees are included within the measurement of the ROU asset and lease liability.

Lease Position

The following table presents the Company’s leasexrelated assets and liabilities as of

December 31, 2022:

Lease type Classification on the Consolidated Balance Sheet Amount
Operating lease assets Operating lease ROU assets, net \ S 410,947
Total Lease Assets \ S 410,947
Current

Operating Current portion of operating ROU liability S 144,553
Noncurrent

Operating Long-term portion of operating ROU liability 268,324
Total Lease Liabilities \$ 412,877

\

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.
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December 3N\ 2022

Operating leasgﬁ;)ense S 163,136
Short-term lease &xpense 9,092
Total Lease Expené\ S 172,228

Lease Term and Discourit Rate
The following table presents’certain information related to the lease terms and discount rate:

Year ending December 31, 2022

Weighted-average remaining lease term:

Operating leases 2.87 years
Weighted-average discount rate:
Operating leases 1.22%

Maturity of Lease Liabilities

The following table reconciles the Company’s futlire minimum lease payments on an undiscounted
cash flow basis to its lease liabilities reported, in the consolidated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2022:

Year ending December 31,

Operating

Leases

2023 S 151,239
2024 139,918
2025 128,582
2026 2,567
Thereafter 642
Total Minimum Lease Payments \ 422,948
Less: imputed interest (10,071)
Present Value of Future Minimum Lease Payments \S\ 412,877
Current portion of lease liabilities S 144,553
Noncurrent portion of lease liabilities 268,324
Present Value of Future Minimum Lease Payments S 2,877
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Disclosures Related to Prior Periods: Prior to Adoption of ASC 842

Rent expense was approximately $146,000 the year ended December 31, 2021. Rent expense is
included in‘selling, general, and administrative expenses on the accompanying statement of
operations.
Non-cancelable fiture minimum lease commitments as of December 31, 2021 were as follows:

Year ending Decembex; 31,

2022 S 200,623
2023 156,892
2024 145,088
2025 100,930
Total \ S 603,533

10. Related Party Transactions

The Company signed consulting services agreements with affiliates of the majority equity holder of
Holdings to provide for certain consulting\and advisory services. The agreements also require
periodic reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses associated with such services. There was
$593,364 and $1,485,968 expensed under these‘agreements for the years ended December 31, 2022
and 2021, respectively, which was included in selling, general, and administrative expenses in the
consolidated statements of operations.

11. Commitments and Contingencies

During the ordinary course of business, the Company is, from\time-to-time, threatened with, or may
become a party to, legal actions and other proceedings. Althotgh the ultimate outcome of any legal
matter cannot be predicted with certainty, based on present information, including management’s
assessment of the merits of any particular claim, the Company \does not expect that these legal
proceeds or claims will have any material adverse impact on its future financial position or results
of operations.

The Company is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; natural disasters; and cyber security breaches for which the
Company carries commercial insurance. There have been no significant reductions in coverage from
prior year, and settlements, if any, have not exceeded coverage.

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.
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12. Foreign Operations

Total assets and liabilities (after intercompany eliminations) of subsidiaries in foreign countries are
as follows:

December 31, 2022 2021
Current assets \ S 3,532,025 § 4,627,227
Long-term assets, net 10,803,845 12,393,540
Total Assets \ 14,335,871 17,020,767
Total Liabilities (3,135,958) (2,686,878)
Net Assets \ $ 11,199,913 S 14,333,889

Net revenue and net income of the Eompany’s foreign subsidiaries totaled $11,496,011 and $584,386
respectively, for the year ended Degember 31, 2022. Net revenue and net loss of the Company’s
foreign subsidiaries totaled $11,44%,265 and $487,857, respectively, for the year ended
December 31, 2021.

13. Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events though May 26, 2023, the date the consolidated
financial statements were available to be issued. Based on the evaluation performed, there were
no material subsequent events that required recognition or additional disclosure in the consolidated
financial statements, other than the events noted below.

On January 1, 2023, TruNet (Quebec) merged with and into TruServe Groundscare Inc.

On April 10, 2023, the Company entered into a membership interest purchase agreement to acquire
membership interests of Green Guard Services Inc. for an initial base purchase price of $10,500,000,

subject to purchase-price adjustments based on principles, defined in the membership interest
purchase agreement. The acquisition was funded from RMCF.
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EverSmith Brands Holding Company (f/k/a Clintar Holding Company) and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheet

Unaudited
March 31, 2024

Assets

Current Assets

Cash S 4,222,534

Advertising fund restristed assets 672,300

Accounts receivable, net\of allowance for credit losses 5,299,582

Unbilled revenue 180,412

Note receivable, short-term 112,897

Prepaid expenses and other current ‘assets 670,020

Deferred contract acquisition costs, shokt-term 71,280

Total Current Assets \ 11,229,024
Property and Equipment, Net \ 1,003,294
Other Assets

Deferred contract acquisition costs, long-term 913,794

Note receivable, long-term 314,855

Intangibles, net 4,192,332

Goodwill, net 14,598,424

Operating right-of-use assets 1,044,991

Total Other Assets \ 21,064,396
Total Assets \ 33,296,714

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 1,845,538
Advertising fund restricted liabilities 1,053
Accrued expenses 4,083,289

Accrued compensation
Short-term deferred revenue 139,360
Intercompany 47,795

Current portion of operating lease obligations 422,328
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Total Current Liabilities

7,617,226

Long:Term Liabilities

Long-term deferred revenue 1,852,413

Operating\ease obligations, less current portion 763,894

Deferred incoime taxes 924,012

Total Long-TerkLiabi lities 3,540,319
Total Liabilities 11,157,545
Stockholders’ Equity

Common stock, $0.01 par valtie, 300,000 shares authorized at

March 31, 2024 and December 34, 2023, and 28,818 shares issued and

outstanding at March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 288

Additional paid-in capital 37,145,577

Accumulated deficit (14,408,380)

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (598,316)
Total Stockholders' Equity \ 22,139,169

Total Liabilties and Stockholders' Equity \

S 33,296,714
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Consolidated Statement of Operations

Three-month period ended
March 31, 2024

Unaudited

Revenue
Royalty fees S 3,370,066
Professional service\fees 4,852,598
Promotional Fund revexue 629,988
Initial franchise fees 153,952
Chemical product revenue 508,822
Other revenue 107,972
Total Revenue \ 9,623,398
Operating Costs and Expenses
Cost of professional service revenue 3,430,421
Selling, general, and administrative 5,907,341
Depreciation and amortization 73,943
Transaction expenses
Total Operating Costs and Expenses \ 9,411,706
Income from Operations 211,692
Other Expense, Net 77,364
Income from Operations, before income taxes 134,328
Income Tax Expense -
Net Income 134,328
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment 9,650
Comprehensive Income S\ 143,978
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GUARANTEE OF PERFORMANCE

For value received, EverSmuth Brands Holding Company, a Delaware corporation (the
“Guarantor™), located at 6700 Forum Drive, Smte 150. Orlando, FL. 32821, absolutely and unconditionally
guarantees to assume the duties and obligations of mulliCare Franchismng. LLC. located at 6700 Forum
Drive, Suite 150, Orlando, FL 32821 (the “Franchisor™), under its franchise registration in each state where
the franchise 1s registerad, and under 1ts Franchise Agreement identified in its 2025 Franchise Disclosurs
Document. as it may be amended. and as that Franchise Agreement may be entered into with franchisees
and amended, modified or extended from time to time. This guarantee continues until all such obligations
of the Franchisor under its franchise registrations and the Franchise Agreement are satisfied or until the
liability of Franchisor to its franchisees under the Franchise Agreement has been completely discharged.
whichever first occurs. The Guarantor 15 not discharged from liabality if a claim by a franchisee against the
Franchisor remains outstanding. Notice of acceptance is waived. The Guarantor does not waive receipt of
notice of default on the part of the Franchisor. This guarantes is binding on the Guarantor and its successors
and assigns.

6700 Forum Dr, Ste 150

The Guarantor signs this guarantee at ©iando Fl on the ﬁ day of ﬂ

, 2025.

Guarantor:

EverSmith Brands Holdmg Company

ceu. Hultloten.

Ken Hutcheson, CEO and Director

By:




Docusign Envelope ID: 45BA161C-B5DD-4A88-9990-4F9A6ABD482E

GUARANTEE OF PERFORMANCE

Fox_value received, EverSmith Brands Holding Company, a Delaware corporation (the
“Guarantor”)\located at 6700 Forum Drive, Suite 150, Orlando, FL 32821, absolutely and unconditionally
guarantees to assume the duties and obligations of milliCare Franchising, LLC, located at 6700 Forum
Drive, Suite 150, Qrlando, FL 32821 (the “Franchisor”), under its franchise registration in each state where
the franchise is registered, and under its Franchise Agreement identified in its 2024 Franchise Disclosure
Document, as it may b¢ amended, and as that Franchise Agreement may be entered into with franchisees
and amended, modified ot extended from time to time. This guarantee continues until all such obligations
of the Franchisor under its\{ranchise registrations and the Franchise Agreement are satisfied or until the
liability of Franchisor to its franchisees under the Franchise Agreement has been completely discharged,
whichever first occurs. The Guagantor is not discharged from liability if a claim by a franchisee against the
Franchisor remains outstanding. Notice of acceptance is waived. The Guarantor does not waive receipt of
notice of default on the part of the Fragchisor. This guarantee is binding on the Guarantor and its successors
and assigns.

The Guarantor signs this guarantee st Orlando, FL on the 27" day of June, 2024.

EverSm1
DocuSigned by:

By m desow

CBD21A23FECE4CS.

Ken Hutcheson, CEO and Director

Brands Holding Company
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MILLICARE® FLOOR & TEXTILE CARE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
This Franchise Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made by and between mithiCareMilliCare
Franchising, LLC (“miliCareMilliCare”), a Delaware limited liability company with an address at 6700
Forum Drive, Suite 150, Orlando, Florida 32821 (“Franchisor”), and
(“Franchisee”).

RECITALS

A. Franchisor owns proprietary know-how and trade secrets relating to the establishment,
marketing, promotion, and operation of businesses that provide cleaning, maintenance, and protective
treatment of floor coverings, interior finishes and interior furnishings, and related services in commercial,
industrial, and office properties (the “milliCareMilliCare® Services System” or the “System”).

B. Franchisor has expended time, effort, and money to develop and protect business plans,
procedures, training programs, and marketing identity in connection with the operation of the
mitiCareMilliCare® Services System.

C. Franchisor has rights to the trademark, distinctive logo, and identifying commercial symbol
and design “miiCareMilliCare®” for use with cleaning compounds and the service mark and name
“mithiCareMilliCare®” and accompanying distinctive logo for interior maintenance, and anticipates
developing additional trademarks, trade names, service marks, and other commercial symbols (such marks
as now existing or as they may be developed hereafter being referred to herein as the “Marks”).

D. Franchisor maintains high standards of quality for its products and services such that
valuable goodwill is attached to the Marks.

E. Franchisee desires to obtain the right to own and operate a franchised miHiCareMilliCare®
services business on the terms and conditions set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the promises contained herein, the
parties agree as follows:

1. FRANCHISE AND TERM

11 Grant of Franchise. Franchisor grants to Franchisee, and Franchisee accepts, the right to
use the Marks and the mitiCareMilliCare® Services System of Franchisor in the operation of a business
(the “Franchised Business”) on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. Franchisee may not
use the Marks in any other business or offer any products or services which are not included within the
Franchised Business without the prior written consent of the Franchisor. Franchisee must use the
mihCareMilliCare® Services System to: (1) provide cleaning, maintenance, and protective treatment of
carpet; (2) provide cleaning, maintenance, and protective treatment of textile panels and upholstery; (3)
provide private-labeled performance coatings chemistries and processes; (4) provide private-labeled tile and
grout cleaning and maintenance chemistries and processes, and other hard surface cleaning and
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maintenance; and (5) provide advisory services to specified clients with the Company’s written consent
(which may include consulting services and the sale of performance coatings and maintenance products,
including Franchisor’s proprietary




or private-labeled performance coatings and maintenance products (collectively, the “Services”).
Franchisor reserves the right to introduce new Services or eliminate any current or other Services during
the term of this Agreement as part of the miiCareMilliCare® Services System, provided that any new
Services must relate solely to cleaning, maintenance, and related services for commercial, industrial, and
office properties. Franchisee shall be required to provide all Services that Franchisor requires and approves
for your franchise. Franchisee may not provide Services to residential customers.

1.2 Current Services. The current Services that are part of the milliCareMilliCare® Services
System primarily are based upon mithiCareMilliCare® dry maintenance chemistries and processes, private-
labeled performance coatings chemistries and processes, and private-labeled tile and grout and other hard
surface cleaning/maintenance chemistries and processes. All such services, chemistries, and processes may
be supplemented, as Franchisor may determine, by other maintenance services, chemistries, and processes.

1.3 Territory. Franchisee is hereby granted Territory defined by geographic boundaries as
determined by Franchisor in its sole discretion after giving consideration to relevant demographic
information, including population density and the number of square feet of office, commercial and industrial
space, the actual boundaries of which are set forth on Exhibit A attached to this Agreement and which will
be deemed a part of this Agreement. If you receive a “Protected Territory”, Franchisor will not operate; or
grant a franchise for others to operate a milliCareMilliCare franchised business under the Marks within the
Protected Territory except as set forth below. If you receive a “Marketing Territory” Franchisor may
operate, or grant franchises to others to operate a milliCareMilliCare franchised business under the Marks
with a Marketing Territory within, or that overlaps with, your Marketing Territory who may advertise and
solicit customer accounts within your Marketing Territory and who may be in competition with you.

Franchisee may not conduct any advertising that is circulated outside the Territory or otherwise
solicit customer accounts that are located outside the Territory without the prior written consent of
Franchisor. Franchisee may not hold itself out to the public as being able to provide the Services outside

the Territory.




Franchisor expressly reserves the right to solicit a customer or prospective customer who has
more than one business location, which location(s) may or may not be located in the Territory (each, a
“Regional Account”). In order to enable Franchisor to negotiate special arrangements involving
Regional Accounts, including responding to requests for proposals (“RFP”) involving locations which
may or may not be located in the Territory, upon Franchisor’s request, Franchisee must promptly
evaluate the applicable Regional Account location(s) located within the Territory and prepare a bid
package for each such location in accordance with such formats, procedures and specifications as
Franchisor may establish, including any supplemental or modified bid package which Franchisor may
require in order to satisfy the requirements of the Regional Account (each a “Bid Package™). If
Franchisor accepts the Bid Package, Franchisee must honor the proposal and execute such agreements
and other documents and instruments as Franchisor and the Regional Account may require to fulfill the
agreed upon contract terms (“Regional Account Agreement”). Franchisor will afford Franchisee the
first opportunity to submit a Bid Package on each proposed Regional Account location which is within
the Territory and to perform Services to Regional Account locations located in the Territory; provided,
however, that Franchisor may, as applicable, submit Bid Packages and perform such Services directly
or cause other franchisees or contractors to do so, if: (a) Franchisee fails to timely submit a Bid Package
in accordance with Franchisor’s request; (b) Franchisor rejects the Bid Package or if the Regional
Account _notifies Franchisee or Franchisor that it does not wish to be served by Franchisee; (c)
Franchisee, for any reason, fails or refuses to perform in accordance with the Bid Package and Regional
Account Agreement; (d) Franchisee is, at the time of the issuance of the RFP or submission of the Bid
Package, in default of its obligations under this Agreement or under any other agreement with us, or
under any other Regional Account Agreement to which Franchisee is a party; or (e) Franchisee is, in
Franchisor’s judgment, exercised in good faith, not qualified, equipped or otherwise capable to satisfy
the RFP_or Regional Account Agreement requirements or to perform the services as required.
Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor or its affiliate(s) may charge a management fee to
offset the sales and administrative expenses of processing and managing Regional Accounts. The
amount of the management fee varies from customer to customer based upon a number of factors
including: (i) the direct cost of administrative and management oversight provided; (ii) the associated
overhead cost such as payment terms (financing) and risk management (insurance); and (iii) the profit

margin.

Franchisor may, but is under no obligation to, compensate Franchisee for Services performed
by Franchisor, its affiliate(s) or another franchisee or contractor for Regional Account locations which
are located within the Territory in such amounts (if any) as Franchisor determines.

In addition to the Regional Accounts program, as it may be modified from time to time,
Franchisor’s affiliate(s) may offer Franchisee the right to subcontract work in accordance with its then-
current procedures for servicing Centrally Managed Accounts. For purposes of this Agreement, the
term “Centrally Managed Accounts” refers to customer accounts for multi-site, geographically
dispersed real estate portfolios utilizing a network of subcontractors to perform the services.
Franchisor’s affiliates are not obligated to provide Franchisee with any subcontract work and may offer
such work to Franchisee’s competitors.

If Franchisee is granted a Marketing Territory, Franchisee may not, directly or indirectly, sell, offer
to sell, or provide any of the products or Services to any current customer of another mitiCareMilliCare®
franchisee (including customers invoiced by that franchisee during the previous 365 days) with respect to
all property owned, leased, or managed by that customer within the same building or building complex
(“Customer Accounts”) in the Marketing Territory (“Overlapping Franchisee”). For the purpose of this
paragraph, “customer” shall be defined as the decision-maker that determines which Franchisor will provide
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its carpet cleaning and maintenance services. You must submit monthly reports to the Franchisor, in a form
and manner as the Franchisor may require, which list all of your current customers and which reflect
additions to and deletions from the previous report. Franchisee must post and maintain on the Franchisor’s
private extranet, on a monthly basis, a listing of Franchisee’s Customer Accounts, including the name and
address of each Customer Account. The provisions of this paragraph are intended to be broadly interpreted
to prevent Franchisee from directly or indirectly interfering with any of the customer relationships that have
been established by an Overlapping Franchisee in a Marketing Territory. The provisions of this paragraph
will not apply if Franchisee obtains written permission, granted by the President-er\ice-President-of-the
Company;Franchisor to engage in conduct that otherwise is prohibited in this paragraph. If Franchisee
violates any of the provisions of this paragraph, Franchisee must pay to the Overlapping Franchisee(s) 50%
of the revenue derived from the Customer Accounts that caused the violation. This revenue must be paid
to the Overlapping Franchisee(s) within 10 days of receiving such revenue, for so long as Franchisee
receives revenue from those Customer Accounts. However, if Franchisee commits more than Zone violation
of the provisions of this paragraph, Franchisor may terminate your Franchise Agreement. This prohibition
will apply only if the Customer Accounts creating an Overlapping Franchise have been entered into the
Franchisor’s customer database, and only if an Overlapping Franchisee is subject to the same or similar
provisions of this paragraph.

The Franchisor, its parents, or its affiliates have the right to use other channels of distribution,
including the Internet, catalog sales, telemarketing, or other direct marketing, to make sales within any the
Territory using the Marks. Franchisee may not solicit or accept orders from customers outside of the
Territory, and Franchisee may not solicit or accept orders from customers within the Territory if services
to that customer will be provided, in whole or in part, outside of the Territory. Franchisee also may not
make sales within or outside of the Territory using other channels of distribution, including the Internet,
catalog sales, telemarketing, or other direct marketing without Franchisor’s consent.

Franchisor may purchase, merge, acquire or be acquired by or affiliate with an existing competitive
or non-competitive franchise or non-franchise network, chain or any other business regardless of the
location of that other business’ facilities, and Franchisor may then operate, franchise or license those other
businesses and/or facilities under any names or marks other than the Marks regardless of the location of
these businesses and/or facilities, which may be within the Territory or immediately near it. Franchisee
will receive no compensation for these activities.

Franchisor retains the right to solicit and sell to accounts within the Territory that also have
locations outside of the Territory, including, but not limited to, solicitation and sales via direct marketing
campaigns, telemarketing, and by use of the Internet and other online computer networks, without
compensating Franchisee.




1.4 Term.

1.4.1 Initial Term. This Agreement is effective and binding for an initial term of 10
years commencing on the date of its execution by Franchisor, unless sooner terminated as provided herein.

1.4.2 Renewal Term. Subject to Section 1.4.3, Franchisee may renew its right to operate
as a franchisee of Franchisor for two successive 510-year terms on the same terms and conditions on which
Franchisor is then customarily granting new franchises; or, if Franchisor is not then granting any new
franchises, then on the same terms and conditions on which Franchisor is then customarily granting renewal
franchises by executing the then current form of such agreement. If renewal is granted, the Franchisee will
be required to pay a-$5;000the then-current renewal fee, presently $5,000, and capped at 20% of the then-
current Initial Franchise Fee. The Franchisee must give Franchisor written notice of intent to renew not more
than 180 calendar days nor less than 98120 calendar days prior to the expiration of the preceding term.

1.43 Renewal Conditions. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, Franchisor will
not be obligated to renew Franchisee’s right to operate as a franchisee of Franchisor if Franchisee has failed
to satisfy certain renewal conditions, has failed to perform fully Franchisee’s duties, obligations and
covenants during the preceding term, or is then in default of any provision of this Agreement or any policy
or standard of the mitiCareMilliCare® Services System. Among the renewal conditions that Franchisee
must satisfy are the following:

(a) Franchisee must have fully complied with all the terms and conditions of
this Agreement throughout the term;

(b) Franchisee must have exercised diligent efforts to develop the Franchise
to its full potential during the term, in a manner acceptable to Franchisor;

(c) Franchisee must have met Franchisor’s then current subjective and
objective standards for new franchisees, including those relating to relevant experience, education and
licensing, background and past record of compliance with laws, financial capacity, skills, integrity and other
qualities of character, and shall have provided Franchisor with all such documentation that Franchisor may
have requested to make such a determination, including but not limited to federal income tax returns and/or
financial statements for the mitiCareMilliCare® Franchise, and for any other business operated at the same
location as that of the Franchise;

(d) Franchisee must have given Franchisor written notice of its election to
renew the franchise relationship not less than 96120 days nor more than 180 days prior to the end of the term;

(e) Franchisee and its employees must have completed, or must have agreed
to complete, at its own expense (including the cost of the course, and all travel, meal, and lodging expenses),
all training programs and business consulting programs required by Franchisor;

(f) If required by Franchisor, Franchisee, Franchisee’s principal owners, or
their designee involved in the Franchised Business must have attended all required meetings, seminars,
conferences, and other events, and this shall include the requirement that they attend the mitiCareMilliCare®
Annual Exchange Conference at least 6 of the past 10 years-ef-the-lnitialFerm-and-at-least 3-ofthe 5

years-ot-the-Renewal-Term;
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(g) Franchisee must execute a general release releasing Franchisor from any
claims arising during the Initial Term and during any Renewal Term; and

(h) Franchisee and its owners must have executed the form of franchise
agreement (including any additional supplemental agreements then being used by Franchisor) that
Franchisor is then customarily using in connection with the granting of mitiCareMilliCare® franchises,
which agreement shall supersede this Agreement and may have terms materially different from those
appearing in this Agreement, including, without limitation, requirements to upgrade equipment and facilities,
use new systems and procedures, and pay higher fees and Promotional Fund contributions.

1.4.4  Month-to-Month Operation. If, with our consent, Franchisee continues to operate
the Franchised Business after the end of the term without proper renewal, Franchisee will be deemed to be
operating on a month-to-month basis under the terms and conditions of the franchise agreement and other
agreements being used by Franchisor at the time of expiration of this Agreement, and from time-to-time
thereafter, in connection with the granting of miHiCareMilliCare® franchises; provided, however, that
Franchisee’s rights to operate the Franchised Business under these circumstances may be terminated by
Franchisor at any time and without cause, in Franchisor’s sole discretion, upon 10 days prior written notice
to Franchisee.

2. OBLIGATIONS OF MILLICARE

2.1 Site Selection. The Franchised Business may be operated at such location (the “Location”)
within the Territory as may be approved in advance by Franchisor in writing. Final site selection will be
subject to the approval of Franchisor, which approval will not be unreasonably withheld. To obtain
approval, Franchisee must give Franchisor written notice of the proposed Location, as well as photographs
of inside and outside the premises of the proposed Location. If Franchisor does not give Franchisee written
notice of disapproval within 20 business days after receipt of the written notice of the proposed Location,
then the proposed Location will be deemed to be approved by Franchisor. Franchisee specifically
acknowledges that site approval by Franchisor is not to be interpreted as a guarantee of success or
profitability of the Franchised Business which is to be operated at the Location.

2.2 Facilities Layout. Franchisor will, if requested by Franchisee, provide Franchisee with
advice concerning a generalized space plan, workflow and general layout of a typical milliCareMilliCare®
Services System office and warehouse facility.

2.3 Confidential Manual.  Franchisor will givegrant Franchisee access to the
mitiCareMilliCare® Services System Confidential Operating Manual and Confidential Technical Manual
(as they may be revised, collectively the “Confidential Manual™) to use during the term of this Agreement.
Franchisor may revise the contents of the Confidential Manual, in a form and manner as Franchisor may
determine, to convey to Franchisee advancements and new developments in sales, marketing, operational
techniques, and any other items and procedures relevant to the operation of the Franchised Business.
Franchisor will send revisions, or a completely revised Confidential Manual, to Franchisee, at no cost to
Franchisee. The revisions and/or the Confidential Manual may be in electronic, digital, or another format.

24 Initial Training. Franchisor will conduct a comprehensive initial training program in the
management and operation of the Franchised Business (“Initial Training Program”). The Initial Training
Program must be successfully completed by Franchisee’s General Manager. The first module of the Initial
Training Program must be successfully completed prior to beginning operation of the franchised business.
Franchisee must also have a minimum of one dedicated, full--time, fully trained salesperson. The Initial
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Training Program, which consists of a program provided in several separate modules, will be conducted
during the one-year period following execution of the Franchise Agreement, and will consist of:

241 Up to 5 calendar days of instruction at Franchisor’s business offices, at another
location in the United States, and/or via a computerized training module, which will include orientation to
mHHiCareMilliCare®, introduction to the mitiCareMilliCare® franchise program, introduction to
commercial maintenance, and advanced commercial maintenance;

2.4.2 Up to 5 calendar days of marketing and sales training at Franchisor’s business
offices, at another location in the United States, and/or via a computerized training module, which will
include marketing methods and sales techniques; and

2.4.3 Up to 3 calendar days of startup support at Franchisee’s business location.

Franchisee will be responsible for all travel, food, lodging, and other expenses incurred by
Franchisee and any of its employees in connection with attendance at the Initial Training Program. If any
trainee fails to successfully complete the Initial Training Program, such trainee will be permitted to repeat
the Initial Training Program. If Franchisee’s General Manager or any of its designated salespersons fails
to complete the Initial Training Program to the satisfaction of Franchisor, then Franchisor will have the
right to terminate this Franchise Agreement.

2.5 Ongoing Training. If required by Franchisor, Franchisee and its employees must attend
ongoing training programs and training that is part of Franchisor’s education ladder. Franchisee will be
responsible for all travel, food, lodging, and other expenses incurred by Franchisee and its employees in
connection with attendance at the training set forth below, including any registration fees that may be
charged by the Franchisor.

2.5.1 Specific Training. Franchisor will provide training on specific, job-related issues
for technicians, administrative staff, operations managers, and sales and marketing personnel on an ongoing
basis as Franchisor deems appropriate. Ongoing training classes will typically be between 1 and 5 calendar-
day sessions. Attendance requirements will be determined by Franchisor in its sole discretion. Specific
training may include technical skills training at a designated model franchise, which would include job
costing and scheduling, training, job site behavior, equipment usage, storage and maintenance, and
marketing and sales techniques for the Services.

2.5.2 General Training. Franchisor will provide ongoing general training on an annual
basis to introduce new products, services, and equipment, to review sales and marketing practices, and to
discuss other topics that are relevant to the Services provided by Franchisee. Ongoing general training
classes will be held on a regional, national, or international basis, as determined by the Franchisor, and will
typically be 2 or 3 calendar-day sessions. Franchisor will hold ongoing general training at the
mitiCareMilliCare® National Exchange Conference, known as the “Exchange,” and mitiCareMilliCare®
University; and Franchisee, Franchisee’s principal owners, or their designee involved in the Franchised
Business for every Territory are required to attend such general training classes as specified by Franchisor;
and provided further that in all events, Franchisee, Franchisee’s principal owners, or their designee involved
in the Franchised Business shall attend general training at milliCareMilliCare® University. Attendance
requirements at other ongoing general training sessions will be determined by Franchisor in its sole
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discretion.

25:3—New Hires. If Franchisee hires a new General Manager or salesperson, such
employee shall be required to complete the Initial Training Program within the one-year period following

the date they were hlred by Franchlsee MMM&PFFM%G&M&&—HEW—FQ&MF@F@BH&H@HS

WL%MWHMW#@MMMHMM%FMMM% WI|| be respon5|ble for aII of the new

hires’ expenses incurred in connection with attending the Initial Training Program, including training fees
flight, room, board, wages, and insurance.

2.6 Opening Assistance. A representative of Franchisor will advise and assist Franchisee in
the opening of the Franchised Business and in establishing and standardizing procedures and techniques
essential to the operation of a milliCareMilliCare® Services System business. A representative of
Franchisor shall visit Franchisee’s location for at least 53 days within 4560 days after the opening of the
Franchised Business to assist Franchisee in the operation of the Franchised Business.

2.7 Advisory Services. Franchisor will provide, as and to the extent required in Franchisor’s
judgment, project management services or continuing advisory services, which may include consultation
on promotional, marketing, and advertising techniques and customer relations. Representatives of
Franchisor will visit and consult regularly with Franchisee at no cost to the Franchisee. Field representatives
will be available at Franchisee’s request for extraordinary training, consultation and assistance on a fee
basis by appointment only.

2.8 Proprietary Products and Proprietary Equipment. “Proprietary Products and
Proprietary Equipment” (“Proprietary Products™) are those products and equipment that serve to establish
the superior quality or branding of the milliCareMilliCare® Services System. Franchisor or a person
designated by Franchisor (which may be an affiliate of Franchisor) will sell to the Franchisee such
mihiCareMilliCare® Proprietary Products as are set forth in the Confidential Manual, and such other
Proprietary Products which Franchisor may hereafter develop or obtain. The sale or lease by Franchisor or
such other person of such Proprietary Products or equipment to Franchisee will include a commercially
reasonable markup. If Franchisor designates a third-party as a supplier of, or to private-label, Proprietary
Products to the mitiiCareMilliCare® Services System, Franchisor may receive and retain service fees and/or
license fees from such provider. Franchisee may not become a wholesaler or distributor of Proprietary
Products and may not re-sell Proprietary Products, except in connection with the provision of Services by
Franchisee.

2.9 Non-Proprietary Equipment and Supplies. Franchisee will have the right to purchase
equipment and supply items that Franchisor pre-approves, other than the Proprietary Products, for use in
providing Services, only from suppliers approved in writing by Franchisor or, if there is no approved
supplier for a particular equipment or supply item, from such other suppliers who meet all of Franchisor’s
specifications and standards as to quality, composition, and functionality and adequately demonstrate their
capacity and facilities to supply Franchisee’s needs in the quantities, at the times, and with the reliability
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necessary for an efficient operation. A list of approved suppliers and approved products will be included
in the Confidential Manual and may be revised by Franchisor from time to time in its sole discretion.
Franchisor reserves the right to designate a single supplier for any equipment and supply items and to
require Franchisee to use such a designated supplier exclusively, which exclusive designated supplier may
be Franchisor or its affiliates. Franchisor and its affiliates may receive payments from suppliers on account
of such supplier’s sales to Franchisee and other franchisees, and Franchisor may use all amounts so received
without restriction and for any purpose Franchisor and its affiliates deem appropriate. If Franchisee wishes
to purchase any equipment or supplies that have not been approved by Franchisor or from a supplier who
has not been approved by Franchisor, Franchisee must submit a written request to change products or
suppliers to Franchisor. In order to obtain approval of any such proposed alternative equipment, supply
item, or supplier, Franchisee must provide Franchisor with documentation from a source independent of
Franchisee or the proposed supplier which demonstrates, to the satisfaction of Franchisor, that the proposed
alternate equipment, supply item, or supplier, performs as well as the item or supplier to be replaced.
Notwithstanding such documentation, Franchisor will have the right to further test any such proposed
equipment or supply item, and to further evaluate any such proposed alternate supplier. In addition,
Franchisor reserves the right at any time to require substitution of newly developed Proprietary Products
for non- proprietary items, which would then be sold to Franchisee in accordance with Section 2.8. The
sale by Franchisor of non-proprietary equipment and supplies to Franchisee shall include a commercially
reasonable markup. Notwithstanding anything stated above, Franchisor may, in its sole discretion,
disapprove proposed and existing suppliers, equipment, and supply items for any reason, including the
number of suppliers, equipment, and supply items that has already been approved. In addition, Franchisee
may not become a wholesaler or distributor of non-proprietary equipment and supplies related to the
Services to other franchisees or to customers of the milliCareMilliCare® franchise system.

2.10  Inspection. In order to preserve the validity and integrity of the Marks, and to assure that
Franchisee is properly employing the mitiCareMilliCare® Services System in the operation of the
Franchised Business, Franchisor and its agents will have the right of entry and inspection of Franchisee’s
premises, at all reasonable times during the business day, the right to observe the manner in which Franchisee is
rendering the Services, and the right to survey and/or confer with Franchisee’s employees, customers, and
business associates._ Any evaluation or inspection we conduct is not intended to exercise and does not
constitute control over your day-to-day operation of the Business or assume any responsibility for your
obligations under this Agreement.

2.11 Natienal-er-StrategicRegional Accounts. To the extent that Franchisor enters into an
agreement to provide the Services to any Nationaler-StrategicRegional Account which has a location within
the Territory, Franchisor may offer Franchisee the right to service such account at such location at the terms
upon which Franchisor and the Natienal-erStrategicRegional Account have agreed. H-the-eventthat-there
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nities to corvice National o o ks bot i anchisees.as Franchisor in its. sola
diseretion—deems—appropriate—If, for any reason, Franchisee elects not to service a National—or
StrategicRegional Account that is offered to Franchisee, Franchisor may, in its sole discretion, service such
account or appoint any other party to service such account.

2.12  Customer Leads. From time to time during the term of this Agreement, Franchisor and
its affiliates may provide Franchisee with the identity of potential customers for the Services within the
Territory. In the event that there is more than one franchisee licensed by Franchisor in a Marketing Territory,
Franchisor may allocate such leads between such franchisees, as Franchisor in its sole discretion deems
appropriate.
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Franchisor may from time to time provide Franchisee with leads for potential customers for
Services in locations that are not part of any franchisee’s Territory. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees
that neither its ability to service, nor the grant of Franchisor’s permission to service, customers located
outside the Territory affords it any right, title, or interest in or to such area (including any right to service
additional customers located outside the Territory, or to acquire such area or any right of first refusal as to
such area).

3. OBLIGATIONS OF FRANCHISEE

3.1 Lease. If Franchisee (a) does not live in the Territory. or (b) does not already own/lease
operating space in the Territory, Franchisee must execute a lease for the premises in the Territory within
180 calendar days after execution of this Agreement by Franchisor.

3.2 Tenant Improvements. If required, upon execution of the lease(s) for the Location,
Franchisee must commence construction and installation of all tenant improvements, trade fixtures,
displays, and interior decor necessary or appropriate to commence business. The leased premises must be
maintained in a safe and orderly manner, present a neat and businesslike appearance, and be adequately
staffed. A generalized space plan and layout will be suggested in the Confidential Manual, but Franchisee
is not required to conform to the same. If requested by Franchisee, Franchisor will make itself reasonably
available to assist Franchisee in the design or layout of such premises and in the types of improvements
appropriate.

3.3 Owner Participation and Responsibility. Franchisee shall be required to have, at all
times, a fully trained General Manager and at least one dedicated, full-time, fully trained salesperson.
Franchisee’s General Manager is not required to be a principal of Franchisee. However, if the General
Manager is not a principal of Franchisee, Franchisor shall have the right to evaluate and approve or
disapprove of such General Manager. If Franchisee owns or operates a non-competing business, as
described in Exhibit B of the Franchise Agreement, Franchisee must comply with the milliCareMilliCare®
Co-Brand Guidelines that are incorporated into the Operations Manual, market such services under one or
more trading designations separate from the Marks, maintain separate office space (although such space
may be located on the premises at the Location), and have the personnel related to such other business(es)
wear apparel that does not feature any of the Marks. If Franchisee is a legal entity, the owners, shareholders,
and members of Franchisee agree to be bound by all the terms and conditions of this Agreement to the same
extent as Franchisee.

34 Training. Franchisee must ensure that the General Manager successfully complete the
Initial Training Program and the Ongoing Training Program, as described in Sections 2.4 and 2.5 of this
Agreement; and that the Franchise always has a fully trained General Manager, a Certified Instructor
(defined below) and at least one dedicated, full time, fully trained salesperson. Franchisee’s employees
who sell the Services must complete Franchisor’s online sales training. In addition, at least one employee
of Franchisee must become certified by the Institute of Inspection, Cleaning and Restoration, or “IICRC”
within six months from the date the Franchisee opens the milliCareMilliCare® business. Should the
Franchisee’s employee certified by the IICRC leave the employment of Franchisee, another employee of
Franchisee must become certified by the IICRC within 6 months of the departure date of the formerly
certified employee.




35 Employees. Franchisee must hire and train all employees who are necessary for the
operation of the Franchised Business. Franchisee will be solely responsible for the terms of employment
of its personnel, including compensation, training, supervision, and payroll tax withholding. With respect
to all Services, only Franchisee and its employees may provide such services, and subcontractors are
specifically prohibited from providing such services. Franchisee shall take such steps as are necessary to
ensure that its employees do not violate Franchisor’s policies relating to the use of Networking Media
Websites (as defined in Section 3.14 below), including, but not limited to, prohibiting employees from
posting any information relating to Franchisor or its affiliates, the System, the Marks, or the Franchised
Business on any Networking Media Website without Franchisor’s prior written approval.

You acknowledge that you are an independent business and are solely responsible for control and
management of the Business. No employee of yours will be deemed to be an employee of us or our Affiliates
for any purpose whatsoever, and nothing in any aspect of the System or the Trademark in any way shifts any
employee or employment related responsibilities from you to us. You alone are responsible for the day-to-day
operation of the Franchised Business and the terms and conditions and employment of Franchisee’s personnel
including the soliciting, hiring, firing, discipline, paying, training, scheduling, managing, and supervising of
Franchisee’s employees. As between us and you, you are solely responsible for the safety and well-being of
your employees and the customers of the franchise business.

Any training provided by us to any of your employees will be limited to training or guiding the
employees regarding the delivery of approved services to customers in a manner that reflects the customer
and client service standards of the MilliCare® system. You are and will remain the sole employer of your
employees during all training programs, and you are solely responsible for all employment decisions and
actions related to your employees. You must ensure that your employees receive adequate training.

3.6 Opening of Business.— Franchisee must complete training, obtain a location, and
commence operations no later than 270-days from the date of this Agreement. -Franchisee must continually
operate the Franchised Business as a full-time business enterprise. If Franchisee is delayed in commencing
business operations for causes reasonably beyond the control of Franchisee, then the time for performance
by Franchisee will be extended for a period equivalent to the time of the delay.

3.7 Business Hours. Franchisee must keep the Franchised Business open for business for the
number of hours specified in the Confidential Manual unless otherwise authorized in writing by Franchisor.

3.8 Apparel. Franchisee and its employees must wear shirts, jackets, or other approved apparel
with the mitiCareMilliCare® logo as designated by Franchisor when performing Services for the
Franchised Business. In the event Franchisee owns any business(es) other than the Franchised Business or
other franchises offered by Franchisor to the extent expressly permitted by Section 3.3, the personnel
employed in such other business(es) must wear apparel that does not feature any of the Marks or color
schemes of the Franchised Business. when servicing the other business(es).

3.9 Use of Marks. Franchisee must conduct the Franchised Business only under the Marks
and in strict compliance with the Confidential Manual. Franchisor may develop, and require Franchisee to
use, additional or substitute Marks in its sole discretion. If Franchisee is a partnership, corporation, limited
liability company, or other legal entity, Franchisee may not use any portion of the Marks as part of
Franchisee’s legal name. Franchisee shall be required to use the “mitiCareMilliCare” name as part of its
trade name (“d/b/a”), in such format and style as Franchisor designates from time to time in its sole
discretion. Franchisee’s trade name may include, in addition to “miHiCareMilliCare,” such other name, if
any, under which Franchisee previously was engaged in business. Franchisor shall have the right to approve
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or disapprove Franchisee’s trade name.

3.9.1 Proprietary Rights. Franchisee acknowledges the exclusive right, title, and
interest of Franchisor in and to the Marks and will not take any action contesting or impairing the right,
title, and interest of Franchisor in any of the Marks. Franchisee will not represent that Franchisee has any
ownership rights in the Marks and acknowledges that its use of the Marks will not create in its favor any
right, title, or interest in or to the Marks, but that all uses will inure to the benefit of Franchisor. Neither
Franchisee nor any officer, director, agent, or employee of Franchisee shall in any way register or attempt
to register the Marks with any government or any other authority, nor dispute or impugn the validity of the
Marks, Franchisor’s rlghts to the Marks or Franchisor’s right to use the Marks or grant Ilcenses to others to
use the Marks. 3

thls—Agteement—Franchlsee will a35|st Franchlsor to the extent reasonably requested in obtalnlng or
maintaining any registration of any of the Marks to the extent reasonably requested, including by providing
advertising samples.

You may not make any changes or substitutions to the Trademarks unless we direct you in writing. We
reserve the right to change the Trademarks at any time. Upon receipt of our notice to change the Trademarks
(whether in response to third-party claims of superior rights to the Trademarks or otherwise), you must, at
your expense, cease using the former Trademarks and commence using the changed Trademarks. We will not
be responsible for any other expenses or other amounts you may claim you are owed with respect to the
changed Trademarks, and you agree that you will not commence or join in any arbitration, litigation or other
proceeding against us for any such expenses, losses, or damages.

3.9.2 Display of Name. At all times during the term of this Agreement, Franchisee will
use the Marks and milliCareMilliCare® name in a form and manner approved by Franchisor, in all
advertising, promotions, and communications involving the Franchised Business, including but not limited
to telephone yellow pages listings, signs, banners, vans, business cards, stationery, promotional and
advertising materials, forms, contracts, Websites (defined in Section 3.14), and all other materials which
identify the Franchised Business. All uses of the Marks and mitiCareMilliCare® name by Franchisee must
clearly state that Franchisee is independently owned and operated. In the event that Franchisee is expressly
permitted by Section 3.3 to own any business(es) other than the Franchised Business unless such business
is also a franchise offered by Franchisor, neither Franchisee nor the personnel engaged in such other
business(es) may conduct the same under the mihiCareMilliCare® name or any of the Marks or color
schemes of the Franchised Business, or operate in any manner so as to cause confusion of origin or
sponsorship between mitiCareMilliCare®- related services and products and the services or products
offered or rendered by such other business(es).

3.9.3 Name Infringement. Franchisee will promptly notify Franchisor of any
unauthorized use of any of the Marks, or any colorable variation thereof, by third parties. Franchisee will
promptly notify Franchisor of any claim, demand, or suit against Franchisee based upon, or arising in
connection with, Franchisee’s use of any of the Marks. Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisee has no
authority to defend or prosecute any action relating to the Marks, and that Franchisor, at its sole discretion,
may elect to defend or prosecute any action relating to the Marks. In the event that Franchisor undertakes
the defense or prosecution of any litigation relating to the Marks, Franchisee will execute any and all
documents and do all acts which may be necessary or of aid, at the determination of Franchisor’s legal
counsel and at the expense of Franchisor, to carry out the litigation.
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3.10 Confidential Manual. In order to protect the reputation and goodwill associated with the
Marks, and to maintain the uniform standards of quality and operations thereunder, Franchisee must conduct
the Franchised Business in strict accordance with the Confidential Manual, which shall be in a form as
Franchisor may determine, as modified from time to time by Franchisor.

3.11  Proprietary Products. In order to maintain the high standards of quality associated with
the mitiCareMilliCare® Services System, Franchisee must purchase such mitiCareMilliCare® Proprietary
Products or equipment from Franchisor or a person designated by Franchisor as are referred to in Section
2.8 and as may be set forth in the Confidential Manual. Franchisee must purchase a-start-up-packagean

Initial Package of Proprietary Products and equipment at the time Franchisee signs this Agreement.
Franchisee must not alter, amend, or modify any of such Proprietary Products or equipment, or use any other
products instead of the Proprietary Products or equipment.

312—Equipment and Supplies. Franchisee will display, sell, and use only such equipment and
supply items of independent suppliers which have been approved by Franchisor in accordance with Section
2Section2.9 hereof. Franchisee must purchase a start-up-packagelnitial Package of equipment and supply
items at the time Franchisee signs this Agreement. Franchisee must purchase or lease at least one van that
will be used in the operation of the Franchised Business. In the event Franchisee desires Franchisor approval
of a particular supplier, equipment, or supply item, Franchisee will provide the documentation
contemplated by Section
2.9 at its sole expense and will reimburse Franchisor for costs of further testing as contemplated by Section

3.12 2.9. Franchisee may not enter into or renew any agreement with a third-party vendor of
services, supplies, or equipment if such agreement requires that Franchisee disclose information regarding
the identity of its customers, or the Services performed by Franchisee for any of its customers. If, as of the
date of this Agreement, Franchisee is already a party to an agreement of the sort described in the preceding
sentence, Franchisee will not be deemed to be in violation of any of the provisions of this Agreement by virtue
thereof for the remainder of the current term of such agreement.

3.13  Pricing. Franchisor shall have the right to determine the prices of the products and Services
offered and sold by Franchisee, unless it is per se unlawful to do so-, including the right to negotiate national
or regional account arrangements, including pricing which will bind all MilliCare businesses providing
services to such accounts. Franchisor also shall have the right to establish minimum prices and/or maximum
prices of the products and Services offered and sold by Franchisee unless it is per se unlawful to do so.
Franchisee shall strictly adhere to the lawful prices (including minimum and/or maximum prices)
established by Franchisor. Franchisor retains the right to modify the prices from time-to-time in its
unfettered discretion. Franchisor also shall have the right to establish suggested prices for the
mihCareMilliCare® products and Services offered and sold by Franchisee, which Franchisee will not be
required to adhere to.

3.14  Grand-Openinglocal Advertising/Independent Advertising. Franchisee must expend,
as we direct, or pay to Franchisor the-6f-$1,000 menthhy-in-each ef-the-first-12-menths-of the-Franchised
Business-which-may-begin-at-lteastmonth, plus during the 60 days prior to the opening of the Franchised
Business. Franchisor will then spend, or you will expend such funds as Franchisor directs, on local
marketing, advertising, public relations activities, and promotion on Franchisee’s behalf as part of a grand
opening advertising campaign. -Franchisor has the right to determine how to spend the Grand-OpeninglLocal
Advertising budget and the methods of marketing, advertising, media, and content of the Grand-Opening
Local Advertising campaign and promotional program.- In addition, Franchisee, at its own expense, must
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conduct local advertising and promotional activities as reasonably required to enhance public awareness,
goodwill, and image of the Franchised Business.

344 Franchisee may not use any advertising, sales, or promotional materials of any kind, or conduct
any broadcast advertising or promotion, without first obtaining the written approval of Franchisor, which
approval will not be withheld unreasonably. To obtain approval, Franchisee must submit a copy of the
proposed advertising to Franchisor for review. If Franchisor does not give Franchisee written notice of
disapproval within 15 business days after receipt of the proposed advertising, then such advertising will be
deemed to be approved. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Franchisor may from time to time, in its reasonable
discretion, provide Franchisee with such marketing programs and brochures developed by Franchisor as
Franchisor deems appropriate for use in the Territory. Franchisee may use such of Franchisor’s marketing
materials in connection with Franchisee’s local advertising in accordance with Franchisor’s advertising
standards and without Franchisor’s prior approval unless Franchisor sends written notice to Franchisee that
the use of such marketing material is thereafter prohibited. Franchisee must purchase a start-up
packagelnitial Package of marketing items at the time Franchisee signs this Agreement. Franchisee must
comply with all of Franchisor’s policies regarding the advertising, promotion, and positioning of the
miiCareMilliCare® brand and image.

Franchisee specifically acknowledges and agrees that any Website shall be deemed “advertising”
under this Agreement and will be subject to (among other things) Franchisor’s approval under this Section

314 {. As used in this Agreement, the term “Website” means an interactive electronic
document contained in a network of computers linked by communications software that refers to the
Franchised Business, Marks, Franchisor, and/or the System. The term Website includes, but is not limited
to, Internet and World Wide Web home pages, as well as social and business networking media such as
Facebook, Twitter, LlnkedIn and onhne blogs and forums (“Networklng Medla WebSIteS”) and the

Franchisee Websne

You must participate in our Website and no other Website related to the Business unless we direct.
If we do, we may require you to sign a license agreement with Franchisor’s designated supplier for a
branded Website for the Franchised Business (the “Franchisee Website”). We also may require you, at
your expense, to participate in our intranet system. We have the right to determine the content and use of
any Website and our intranet system and will establish the rules under which franchisees may participate.
You may not separately register any domain name or operate any Website containing any of the Trademarks
without our written approval. You may not conduct any business or advertise any products or services on
the Internet (including through social media), except as authorized by us in writing. You may not link or
frame our website. We will retain all rights relating to our Website and our intranet system and may alter
or terminate our Website or our intranet system without prior notice to you. Your general conduct on our
Website, our intranet system or on other online communications (including all current and future forms of
social media networks and platforms) and, specifically, your use of the Trademarks or any advertising on
any Website or other such online communications is subject to the provisions of this Agreement and the
policies outlined in the Operations Manual. For example, you must comply with our policies regarding the
use and placement of keywords, meta tags and titles, social media platforms, blogs, websites, domain
names, URL’s and linking. You further agree to claim, pay for, and update all online listings we designate.
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You may not use or download any software on your computer unless it has been authorized by us in writing.
If you use or download any unauthorized software, you will be liable for all damages and problems caused
by the unauthorized software in addition to the other remedies provided under this Agreement. You
acknowledge that certain information obtained through your participation in our Web site and our intranet
system may be considered Confidential Information, including access codes and identification codes. Your
right to participate in our Website and our intranet system or otherwise use the Trademarks or System on
the Internet or other online communications will terminate when this Agreement expires or terminates.

You and any of your employees who interact with customers must maintain branded electronic
methods of communication (currently email) accounts, which may be provided to you, and you must give
us electronic access to information on your company computer and hosted by software providers, including
viewing access to branded email accounts. We may discontinue or alter the current system of electronic
communication, at any time on notice to you, and you may then be required to maintain an account we
designate or approve with a provider we approve or designate and pay the required fees. We are not
obligated to monitor, create, or maintain any backup of email, information, file storage, or any data related
to the email address provided to you. There are no contractual limits on our right to access information and
data on the electronic communication and electronic mail systems. You agree that you have no right of
privacy in or to these electronic communications and/or electronic mail systems, and we or our designee
may access these email communications and data at any time without notice. Any access to, monitoring or
copies of data related to electronic communications and emails will be solely for our benefit. We may
require you to upgrade, update or otherwise modify your computer hardware, software, and other office
equipment. No contractual limitation exists on the frequency or cost of this obligation. We have the
unrestricted right to independently access any data stored or collected electronically.

3142 Franchisee shall not post any information relating to Franchisor or its affiliates, the
System, the Marks, or the Franchised Business on a Networking Media Website without Franchisor’s prior
written approval; and Franchisee shall not make any posting or other contribution to a Networking Media
Website that, in the opinion of Franchisor, (a) is derogatory, disparaging, or critical of Franchisor, (b) is
offensive, inflammatory, or indecent, or (c) harms the goodwill and public image of the System and/or the
Marks.

3.15  Accounting Records and Reports.

3.15.1 Maintenance of Books; Reports. Franchisee must maintain full and complete
records of the Franchised Business in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and the
standards and Confidential Manual provided by Franchisor. Franchisee will submit to Franchisor, via any
means specified by Franchisor (including electronic means), such information and accounting data as
Franchisor may request, including but not limited to profit & loss statements in such format as Franchisor
directs for each calendar month (“Monthly Reports”) and calendar year (“Annual Reports”) within 15
calendar days of the end of each calendar month and calendar year, as appropriate. In addition, within 90
calendar days of the end of each calendar year, Franchisee will furnish Franchisor with unaudited financial
statements for the Franchised Business signed by the Franchisee, if the Franchisee is an individual, or the
majority partner, shareholder, or member of the Franchisee if the Franchisee is a partnership, corporation,
or limited liability company, which shall include an income statement and balance sheet. If Franchisee is
a division of a corporation, then the financial statements need only relate to the operations of such division.
Within 10 days of filing each year, Franchisee must submit to Franchisor a copy of Franchisee’s income
tax returns for the prior year. Additionally, Franchisee must submit reports to Franchisor in the form,
content, and frequency specified by Franchisor containing information related to Franchisee’s customers.
Franchisor reserves the right to require Franchisee to obtain, at Franchisee’s sole expense, booking and
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accounting software which Franchisor may, from time to time, require.

3-15:2—Right of Inspection. Franchisor has the right, upenaminimum-of48hours notice;

3.15.2 at all times, during the business day, to inspect and audit Franchisee’s books,
records, ledgers, journals, bank statements, sales tax reports, income tax returns, cash control systems, and
other accounting records pertaining to the Franchised Business. If any audit shows that the Franchisee has
underpaid any royalties, Promotional Fund contributions (as such term is defined in Section 4.3.1), or other
amounts due to Franchisor, Franchisee must immediately make payment to Franchisor to correct the
underpayment. If the underpayment exceeds 2% of the total royalties, Promotional Fund contributions or
other amounts due in any 12-month period, which includes the date when the underpayment occurred,
Franchisee must also pay or reimburse Franchisor for the costs of conducting the audit, in addition to any
Late-Paymentlate payment, and/or interest owed to Franchisor.

3.16  Maintenance and Repair. Franchisee must maintain the condition and appearance of the
Franchised Business in a manner consistent with the milliCareMilliCare® Services Systems image.
Franchisee will perform all maintenance that is reasonably required from time to time to maintain the
condition, appearance, and efficient operation of the Franchised Business, including replacement of worn-
out or obsolete fixtures, equipment, signs, supplies and inventory, repair of the interior and exterior of the
premises, and periodic cleaning and decorating. If at any time in the Franchisor’s reasonable judgment the
general state of repair, appearance, or cleanliness of the Franchised Business does not meet Franchisor’s
standards, then Franchisor will give Franchisee written notice specifying the action to be taken by Franchisee
to correct the deficiency, and Franchisee will initiate the required action immediately upon receipt of the
notice.

3.17  Confidentiality.

3.17.1 Proprietary Information. Franchisee acknowledges that during the term of this
Agreement, Franchisee will have access to, become acquainted with, and have disclosed to it by Franchisor
confidential information, programs, devices, methods, techniques, and processes that are not generally
known to the public pertaining to the promotion, marketing, operation, and management of a business that
offers the cleaning, maintenance, and protective treatment of floors, carpet and other floor coverings, textile
panels, upholstery, interior finishes and interior furnishings, tile and grout and related services in industrial,
commercial, and office properties, including the information contained in the Confidential Manual (the
“Proprietary Information”); and Franchisee further acknowledges that such Proprietary Information
constitutes trade secrets of Franchisor. Franchisee further acknowledges that all data collected from former,
existing, and/or potential customers including customer names and addresses, discounts and credit
extensions to customers, rates charged to customers and customer contracts and status information
(collectively, “Customer Information”) is the property of Franchisor and constitutes Proprietary
Information.

3.17.2 Covenant Not to Disclose or Misuse. Franchisee must take all steps necessary to
preserve and protect the Proprietary Information from publication, communication, or other unauthorized
disclosure or misuse. Franchisee must not disclose any of the Proprietary Information, use it in any
unauthorized way, or assist any other person or entity to disclose or use it either during the term of this
Agreement or at any time thereafter. In particular, Franchisee will require as a condition of the employment
of any employee by Franchisee in the management and operation of the Franchised Business that the
employee similarly covenants to maintain and protect the Proprietary Information, including the execution
of its standard covenants, and Franchisee will be responsible for the compliance with such covenants by its
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managerial and staff employees, with such covenants being for the benefit of Franchisor and enforceable
by Franchisor. In the event Franchisee becomes aware of any actual or threatened violation of any such
covenant by any of its employees, Franchisee will promptly and fully advise Franchisor in writing of all
related facts known to Franchisee. Franchisee will further cooperate with Franchisor in all ways reasonably
requested by Franchisor to prevent or stop any such violation, including without limitation institution or
permitting to be instituted in the name of Franchisee any demand, suit, or action that Franchisor determines
is advisable, which demand, suit, or action will be maintained and prosecuted solely by and at the expense
of Franchisor. The Confidential Manual (as it may be revised from time to time) is, and will be, the sole
property of Franchisor, may not be duplicated, and must be returned to Franchisor promptly upon the
expiration, nonrenewal, transfer, or other termination of this Agreement. Franchisee is prohibited from
disclosing Customer Information and other Proprietary Information, trade secrets, and confidential
information to third parties, including entering such information into public/open Al models or any other
Al model that uses such information to train the Al unless specifically authorized by Franchisor, and
Franchisee must adhere to any privacy policies Franchisor may now, or in the future, establish with respect
to Customer Information.

3.17.3 Injunctive Relief. The parties acknowledge that upon violation of any of these
covenants, Franchisor will experience irreparable harm and it will be difficult to determine the resulting
damages to Franchisor. Therefore, in addition to any other remedies Franchisor may have, Franchisor will
be entitled to make application to a court of competent jurisdiction for temporary and permanent injunctive
relief without the necessity of proving actual damages.

3.18  Competition.

3.18.1 Services Limitation. During the term of this Agreement, except to the extent
expressly permitted by Section 3.3, and for the period of 2 years thereafter in the Territory or post-term
within 25-miles of from the Territory of any other mitiCareMilliCare franchised business, Franchisee will
not, directly or indirectly, without the consent of Franchisor, for Franchisee or on behalf of or in conjunction
with any other person, partnership, corporation, limited liability company, or other legal entity, own,
maintain, engage in, be employed by, participate in, or have any interest in the operation of any business
that offers products or services that are essentially the same as, or substantially similar to, the products or
Services that are part of the miliCareMilliCare® Services System, except other franchises offered by
Franchisor (any business carrying on such activities, being herein called a “Competing Business”). For 2
years after the termination or expiration of this Agreement, Franchisee may not, directly or indirectly, sell,
offer to sell, or provide any of the products or Services to any customer served or invoiced by Franchisee
during the 365 days prior to the termination or expiration of the Agreement.

3.18.2 Customer Approval. Franchisee may provide the Services for any customer who
is not disapproved in writing by Franchisor. Franchisor may disapprove of customers for any reason.

3.18.3 Severability of Covenants. Each of the covenants of Franchisee contained in
Sections 3.17.2, 3.18.1, and 3.18.2 is a separate and independent covenant applicable to each of the separate
counties and states in the United States in which Franchisor transacts business. To the extent that any such
covenant may be determined to be judicially unenforceable in any county or state, that covenant will remain
enforceable in every other county and state.

3.18.4 Covenants of Owners of Franchised Business. If Franchisee is a partnership,

i | lo.c . Page 21




corporation, limited liability company, or other legal entity, each partner, shareholder, member, or other
owner of Franchisee will execute and deliver in favor of Franchisor non-disclosure and non-competition
covenants, such as those set forth in Exhibit E, in form and substance satisfactory to Franchisor containing
provisions substantially the same as those contained in Sections 3.17.2, 3.18.1, and 3.18.2 above.

3.18.5 Covenants of Employees. Franchisee must ensure that all employees engaged in
the management or operation of the Franchised Business must execute and deliver in favor of Franchisor,
prior to commencing employment at the Franchised Business, non-disclosure and non-competition
covenants, such as those set forth in Exhibit E, in form and substance satisfactory to Franchisor containing
provisions substantially the same as those contained in Sections 3.17.2, 3.18.1, and 3.18.2 above.

3.19 Insurance.

3.19.1 Duty to Maintain. You must procure and maintain during the term of the Franchise

Agreement insurance policies protecting you, your employees, and us, our officers, employees, and other
persons that we designate by name, against all loss, liability, fire, personal injury, death, property damages,
or theft arising from, or occurring in connection with, the operation and promotion of the Business. The
insurance coverages noted below reflect the minimum amounts of coverage we require; it is not meant to
reflect the actual needs you may have or other state-mandated coverage, and it is your sole responsibility
to carefully evaluate whether such minimums will adequately meet your needs and state requirements (i.e.,

HliC | ilo.C . Page 22




flood insurance, employment practices liability, pollution or major medical, etc.). We may require you to
purchase insurance from a specific provider(s).

You must maintain these insurance levels throughout the term of your Franchise Agreement.
You must provide us with proof of coverage on demand. You must obtain these insurance policies from
insurance carriers that are rated “A” or better by Alfred M. Best & Company, Inc. and that are licensed and
admitted in the state in which you operate your Franchised Business. All insurance policies must (i) name
us (and our members, officers, directors, and employees) and any other entities that we designate (the
“Indemnified Parties”) as a named additional insureds at the carrier level and (ii) contain a waiver by the
insurance carrier of all subrogation rights against us, (iii) will contain no provision which in any way limits
or reduces coverage for you in the event of a claim by any one or more of the Indemnified Parties, will
extend to and provide indemnity for all obligations assumed by you and all items for which you are required
to indemnify us, (iv) will be primary to and without right of contribution from any other insurance purchased
by the Indemnified Parties, and (v) will provide, by endorsement, that we receive at least ten days prior
notice of any intent to cancel or materially alter any policy.

You must annually submit insurance certifications that demonstrate compliance with our
insurance requirements. Periodically we may modify the minimum insurance limits and require different or
additional kinds of insurance to reflect changes in insurance standards, normal business practices, higher
court awards and other relevant circumstances. You will receive at least 90 days advance written notice of

any change.
The current insurance requirements are as follows:

(a) Commercial General Liability and Professional Liability Insurance. Coverage for “bodily
injury,” “property damage,” and ‘“personal and advertising injury” with no exclusion or
limitation applying to the products / completed operations liability coverage. Limits must be at
least $2,000,000 general aggregate, $2,000,000 products and completed operations aggregate,
$1,000,000 personal and advertising injury limit, and $1,000,000 per occurrence.

(b) Property Coverage: You are required to maintain insurance on your business personal property
at amounts equivalent to 90% of the replacement value.

(c)_Commercial Automobile Liability: You are required to maintain insurance with a combined
single limit (“CSL”) of $1,000,000 for bodily injury and property damage for all owned or leased
vehicles and include hired and non-owned vehicles. Additionally, coverage for uninsured
motorists and under-insured motorists will be equal to the CSL.

(d) Workers’ Compensation and Emplovers’ Liability. Statutorily required workers’ compensation
insurance and employer’s liability insurance are required to be maintained with limits of at least
$500,000 by accident, $500,000 by disease, and a $500.000 policy limit. In “Monopolistic
States.” including Ohio, North Dakota, Washington, Wyoming, and West Virginia, “Stop Gap”
coverage must be purchased separately or added to the commercial general liability policy and/or
worker’s compensation and employers’ liability policy. “Stop Gap” in Ohio must not contain
exclusion with the "substantially certain to occur language.

(e) Employee Dishonesty Insurance. You are required to maintain employee dishonesty insurance
with minimum limits of $25,000 per loss and such coverage is to also cover acts of stealing
against third parties.

You are required to comply with any state, county, local, or other municipal insurance requirements.

No deductible or self-insured retention can exceed $5,000 for any required insurance policy. You may not
reduce the policy limits, restrict coverage, cancel, or otherwise alter or amend any insurance policy without
our written consent. You acknowledge and agree that Regional Accounts may require additional types, limits
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and terms of insurance coverage.

3.19.2 Failure to Maintain. If Franchisee fails to obtain or maintain any insurance that
is required under this Agreement, Franchisor may, but is not obligated to, obtain the required insurance at
the sole cost and expense of Franchisee. All costs incurred by Franchisor must be reimbursed by Franchisee
upon demand, together with interest at the lower of 3% above the prime interest rate charged by Franchisor’s
primary bank and the maximum rate permitted by applicable law, from the date the expense is incurred
until the date payment is received by Franchisor.

3.20  Signs. Franchisee must maintain and display only standard signs on real estate and motor
vehicles in accordance with the specifications established by Franchisor.

3.21  Taxes. Franchisee will promptly pay when due all applicable taxes and assessments against
the premises and the equipment used in the Franchised Business, and cause to be discharged all liens or
encumbrances of every kind or character created or placed upon or against any of its property in accordance
with the terms of any agreement, law, ordinance, or court order imposing the same, and all accounts and
other indebtedness of every kind incurred by Franchisee in the conduct of the Franchised Business.

3.22  Compliance with Law. Franchisee and its owners will comply with all federal, state, and
local laws-and, regulations, codes, and ordinances pertaining to the operation of the Franchised Business and
will timely obtain and maintain any and all permits, certificates, or licenses necessary for the full and proper
conduct of the Franchised Business. Franchisee will pay promptly, as they become due, all state, city, and
county licensing and permit fees and charges in connection with the operation of the Franchised Business.

You also agree to comply with all applicable laws pertaining to the privacy of the customer, employee,
and transactional information (‘“Privacy Laws”) and other applicable data protection laws that are applicable to
the Prism franchise system as a whole.

You must promptly notify us of any claim or litigation in which you are involved that arises from the
operation of the Business.

3.23  Operating Costs. Franchisee will maintain and pay its own costs of doing business,
including rent, telephone, utilities, insurance, and other fixed and variable expenses.

3.24  Review of Disclosure Document and Agreement. Franchisee and its owners specifically
acknowledge that they have reviewed the Franchise Disclosure Document and this Agreement prior to
execution. -

3.25  Indemnity. Franchisee will, during and after the term of this Agreement, indemnify and
hold Franchisor and its affiliates, and each of their employees, officers, directors, shareholders, agents,
representatives, successors, and assigns (collectively, “Indemnitees”) free and harmless from and against
any and all costs (including reasonable attorneys’, accountants’, consultants’, and expert witness fees),
damages, liabilities, expenses, claims, demands, actions, or causes of action which may be incurred by or
threatened against Indemnitees and which arise out of (i) the Franchisee’s operation of the Franchised
Business, (ii) transactions between Franchisee and any third party, or (iii) Franchisee’s improper use of the
Marks.

3.26  Natienal-er-StrategicReqgional Accounts. In the event that Franchisee enters into an
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agreement to provide services to any National-orStrategicRegional Account which has locations outside the
Territory, if any such location is within the Territory of another franchisee of Franchisor, Franchisee shall
offer such other franchisee the right to service such account within such other franchisee’s Territory prior
to offering such right to any other party, in accordance with Section 1.3 above.

3.27  Contracts with Customers. Franchisee may enter into contracts having such term as
Franchisee wishes to negotiate; provided, however, that any contract for the performance of any of the
Services shall provide that, upon the expiration of this Agreement or any termination of this Agreement by
Franchisor in accordance with Section 6.1 or otherwise, either (i) the customer contract must terminate
simultaneously with the expiration or termination of this Agreement; or (ii) the customer will receive
alternate services not involving the methods or products of Franchisor upon the expiration or termination
of this Agreement. In no event will Franchisor be liable for any damages to Franchisee or any customer of
Franchisee due to either the violation of this Section 3.27 or Franchisee’s failure or inability to perform
Services due to such expiration or termination.

3.28  Promotion and Development of Business. Franchisee shall use best efforts to promote
and develop the mihiCareMilliCare® Services System and the Services of the Franchised Business, thereby
supporting and enhancing the milliCareMilliCare® Services System for the benefit of the Franchisor and
all of its franchisees and offering the best possible service to customers. Franchisee shall fully develop and
conduct the Franchised Business in strict compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and
the Confidential Manual.

3.29 Computer System. Within 15 days from the date hereof, Franchisee must obtain a
computer system (including hardware and software) meeting Franchisor’s specifications and thereafter will
be required to update such computer system at such times as Franchisor may reasonably require. Franchisee
must establish Internet access and two e-mail addresses for the Franchised Business within fourteen days
of obtaining the specified computer system (which weFranchisor will either provide or you may obtain
through our designated supplier). Franchisor shall have the right to specify all or part of Franchisee’s e-
mail address. When this Agreement expires or is terminated, Franchisee must promptly transfer such e-mail
address to Franchisor.

Franchisor requires Franchisee to use a computer in the operation of the Business. Franchisee must
use any computer system that Franchisor develops or selects for the Business, including all future updates,
supplements, and modifications (the “Computer System”). The computer software package developed for
use in the Business may include proprietary software. Franchisee may be required to license other forms of
proprietary software from us, an affiliate or a third party and Franchisee also may be required to pay a
software licensing fee in connection with Franchisee’s use of the proprietary software. All right, title and
interest in the software will remain with the licensor of the software. The computer hardware component
of the Computer System must conform to specifications Franchisor develops, which may be modified from
time to time. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor will have full and complete access to
information and data produced by the Computer System. Franchisee will be required to use and pay for all
future updates, supplements, and modifications to the Computer System. Franchisee must install and
maintain anti-virus software on all devices and is responsible for any and all cost associated with such
installation and maintenance. Franchisee agrees to pay for any reasonable telephone computer support that
Franchisor may choose to provide at its then-current charges, as set forth in the Operations Manual and
updated from time to time.

It is Franchisee’s responsibility to make sure that it is in compliance with all laws that are applicable
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to the Computer System or other technology used in the operation of its Business, including but not limited
to all data protection or security laws, such as PCl and CCPA compliance. Franchisee agrees that Franchisor
has the right to require Franchisee to update or upgrade computer hardware components, Software, and/or
cloud-based subscriptions as Franchisor deems necessary from time to time, with no limitations as to the
number or cost of such updates or upgrades. Franchisee must take all steps, including but not limited to
those related to visibility and management of its Business network, that are necessary to ensure that the
Business is compliant with all data privacy and security laws and Payment Card Industry Data Security
Standards (PCl DSS) requirements, as such standards may be revised and modified by the PCI Security
Standards Council (see pcisecuritystandards.org), or such successor organization or standards that
Franchisor may reasonably specify. Franchisee agrees to use any computer network, intranet system,
extranet system, email, and handheld devices required or authorized for use in connection with the Business
in strict compliance with Franchisor’s standards, protocols, and restrictions that Franchisor includes in the
Operations Manual or in other written policies, which include but are not limited to Brand’s privacy
policies, encryption requirements, data and IT security policies, including the implementation of phishing
and other security awareness programs and training, cyber incident notification requirements, and Acrtificial
Intelligence policies. Franchisee further agrees not to violate Franchisor’s privacy policies or user terms
on Franchisor’s Website.

3.30 Privacy and Data Protection. Franchisee must comply with all Privacy Laws and must
comply with any privacy policies or data protection and breach response policies that Franchisor may
periodically establish. Franchisee is solely responsible for protecting itself from disruptions, internet access
failures, internet content failures, and attacks by hackers and other unauthorized intruders. Franchisee must
notify Franchisor immediately of any suspected data breach at or in connection with the state.

4. FEES

4.1 Initial Fee. In consideration of the license granted herein, Franchisee shall pay to
Franchisor, on the date this Agreement is executed by Franchisee, an initial-fee-of-Initial Franchise Fee in
the amount designated on the Data Sheet attached as Attachment A to this Agreement. The Initial Franchise

Fee is deemed fuIIv earned bv us upon recelpt and is non- refundable$49—000—H—FFaneh|eeeLa#eady-emmera

4.2 Continuing Fee.

4.2.1 Calculation. In consideration for the continuing use of the Marks and the
mihCareMilliCare® Services System, Franchisee will pay to Franchisor each calendar month continuing
royalty and license fees (“Royalties”) equal to a percentage of the “Gross ReeeiptsBillings” (as defined
below) relating to various portions of the Franchised Business for the previous calendar month. Royalties
will commence beginning on the first full month following completion of the Initial Training Program. The
Royalties are as follows:

(a)5 6% of Gross ReeeiptsBillings for sales of products and services associated
with the cleaning, maintenance and restoration of textiles and all flooring surfaces, and for sales of any
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other products or services marketed or performed under the Marks—in—the—first-24—months—felowing

{e(b) Franchisee must pay a minimum monthly Royalty for each Territory

Franchisee owns. -Payment of the minimum monthly Royalty fer-single-aTerritory-or-the-first Territony-in-the
eventFranchisee-owns-multiple Ferritories-commences on the six-monthone-year anniversary of Franchisee’s-or
Franehisee’s-General- Managersthe completion of Initial Training and shall be in the following amounts:

(i) — Months 613 to 4218: $450.00 per month
(ii)— Months 4319 to 24: $550.00 per month
(iif) -Months 25 and thereafter: $650.00 per month

42—2—Gross Reeenets illings Deflned “Gross Reee+|ats illings” means the Qross
m , , ved-billed by the-Franchisee

3 Franchisee during any
calendar month Whether aseashealesror asnot payment fepan%eharge—eredttebalanee—eeaawneeeepesﬁ
is received therefore, on account of the Services performed by or on behalf of Franchisee, directly or
indirectly, and on account of any and all other related goods and services sold or rendered under or in
connection with Franchisee’s use of the Marks (including payments-atiributable-to-National-Accounts);
minus{Hthe sale of unauthorized goods and services), and including work performed for or on behalf of
persons or business entities which are customers of Franchisee as of the Effective Date. Gross Billings

exclude sales taxes and-othercharges-collected by-Franchisee-and paid to agevernmental-agency-otherthan

4.2.3 Payment. Each payment of royalty and license fees must include a Monthly Report
issued by Franchisee for the month for which payment is being made. All such payments and Monthly
Reports shall be made in such form as Franchisor may direct. All items which are claimed as deductions
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in determining Gross ReeeiptsBillings must be supported by proper documentation. Royalties are due and
payable in full on the 15th calendar day of each calendar month based on Gross ReceiptsBillings for the
preceding calendar month. Payments of Royalties are not refundable and must be made via bank wire or
such other electronic funds transfer procedure as Franchisor may require.

4.3 Technology Fee. Franchisee will pay to Franchisor its then--current technology Fee (the
“Technology Fee”) for: (a) use of the website furnished by the Franchisor and the associated microsite and
website pages featuring the Franchisee; and (b) for the software that will be used for scheduling, tracking,
etc. and that is intended to help the Franchisee efficiently run its business. As-efthe-Effective-Datethe
Technelogy-Fee-is-$399 per-month—Franchisor may increase this fee periodically up to the greater of (3}
the fee (or aggregate fees) any vendor charges us or an affiliate for your technology services:-o+{i}-$500
per-menth, which may include a fee based on percentage of sales. The Technology Fee is due and payable
in full on the same day, in the same method and manner as the Royalty. Payments of the Technology Fee
are not refundable. The first payment is due the month accompanying the first payment of Royalties. If the
Franchisee owns multiple Territories, Franchisee-isthe Franchisor reserves the right to reduce the fee in the

additional Territories to reflect only reguired-to-pay-a-single Fechnology-Feethe services utilized.

4.4 Promotional Fund.

4.4.1 Franchisee Contributions. Franchisee will pay to Franchisor each month as a
contribution to the miliCareMilliCare® Services System promotional fund (the “Promotional Fund”) an
amount equal to 1% —of Franchisee’sGross—Receipts—in—thefirst 24-months—of operations—and-2% of
Franchisee’s Gross Reeeipts-thereafterBillings. Promotional Fund contributions are due and payable in full
at the same time, and in the same manner, as Royalties.

4.4.2 Use. Franchisor will not commingle Promotional Fund contributions with its
general funds but will hold all Promotional Fund contributions from all its franchisees in one or more
designated accounts.

The Promotional Fund may be used as determined solely by Franchisor:
(a) to develop and purchase national, regional, and local advertising in
broadcast, print, and electronic media wherever Franchisor deems fit, and without respect to Franchisee’s

geographical location, including a mithiCareMilliCare® website in which franchisees are permitted or
required to participate;

(b) to prepare, purchase, and distribute camera-ready advertising copy for use
in local advertising, script or text for broadcast advertising, signs, posters, brochures, banners, and other
point-of-sale advertising and promotional materials;

(c) to acquire the services of in-house and outside advertising and public
relations professionals;

(d) to defray the expense of training programs and conferences intended to
develop the marketing and promotional skills of franchisees and their employees;

(e) research and development, tests or target marketing, the conducting of
surveys, brand development and promotion;
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(H) to carry on, wherever Franchisor deems fit, and without respect to
Franchisee’s geographical location, other advertising and promotional activities as Franchisor may
reasonably deem advisable to increase demand for Services offered by the franchise network, including
utilizing Networking Media Websites and other emerging media or promotional tactics; and

(g) to pay the reasonable expenses of administering the Promotional Fund,
including the reasonable compensation of Franchisor’s employees and expenses of the advisory council
described in Section 4.4.3 while working on behalf of the Promotional Fund.

4.4.3 Administration. The Promotional Fund will be administered by the Franchisor or
by an advertising agency selected by the Franchisor. Franchisor, in its sole discretion, may establish a
franchisee advisory council from time to time to provide input and suggestions regarding use of the
Promotional Fund and the effectiveness of programs funded by the Promotional Fund. If the franchisee
advisory council is established, it will consist of representatives of Franchisor and representatives of the
franchisees, with the representatives of franchisees constituting a majority of the members thereof.
Franchisor shall retain sole discretion over the use of the Promotional Fund.

4.4.4  Accounting. Franchisor will account to Franchisee annually for all Promotional
Fund contributions received and spent. The accounting will be made by written report within 120 days of
the end of each year setting forth the total contributions received from all milliCareMilliCare® Services
System franchisees as a group and all expenditures made by Franchisor, together with the balance on account
in the Promotional Fund as of the date of the report. Franchisor is not required to have the Promotional
Fund audited.

445 Commercial Relationship. Franchisor and Franchisee agree that the rights and
obligations of the parties arising from the Promotional Fund and all related matters are governed solely by
this Agreement, and that this Agreement and the Promotional Fund are not in the nature of a “trust,”
“fiduciary relationship,” or similar special relationship. Franchisor and Franchisee agree that the
Promotional Fund and this Agreement are based on an ordinary commercial relationship between
independent businesspersons.

4.5 Transfer Fee. Upon any transfer or assignment of this Agreement or any interest in this
Agreement, Franchisee (or the transferee) will pay to Franchisor athe then-current transfer fee in-an-amount
egualto-$7,500-but-the-amountispresently $15,000 for the first franchise (presently reduced to $5,000 if
the transfer is to a person or entity that already owns or controls a majority interest in an existing mihCare®
franchise)-on-orbefore-the-date-ofMilliCare® franchise), and presently $2,500 for each additional franchise
agreement transferred in the same transaction. Franchisor reserves the right to modify the transfer o
assignment-ofthis-Agreementfee from time to time, except that it will not be increased by more than 5% in
any given calendar year.

4.6 Mandatory Conference Fee. We may require you (or your General Manager) to attend
our mandatory conference, which generally will be held annually, as well as miliiCareMilliCare University.
You will attend all such conferences and pay us or our designee a mandatory conference fee in the amount
we designate. You will also be responsible for all of your travel and living expenseexpenses related to your
attendance at the conference. If Franchisee has been granted a franchise for more than one Territory, each
non-adjacent Territory must have a separate General Manager (or other attendee that has been approved by
Franchisor) in attendance at each required program or conference and the mandatory conference fee will be
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payable for each such person. Franchisor may change the amount of the registration fee and the Non-
Attendance Fee at any time, in its sole discretion.

4.7 Late Payment. Any payment not received by us when due will bear interest at eighteen
percent (18%) per year or at the highest rate allowed by applicable law on the date when payment is due,
whichever is less. The fact that such charges are imposed shall not be construed as a waiver of our right to
timely payment. In addition, Franchisor may place Franchisee on a “credit hold” whenever Franchisee’s
account is more than 30 days past due.

5. TRANSFERABILITY

5.1 Transfer by Franchisor. There are no restrictions on the right of Franchisor to sell or
assign this Agreement in whole or in part; provided, however, that Franchisor will not assign or otherwise
transfer this Agreement unless the assignee agrees to assume Franchisor’s obligations hereunder.

5.2 Transfer by Franchisee.

5.2.1 Individual. If Franchisee is an individual, Franchisee may not sell, assign, transfer,
or convey any interest in this Agreement or in the Franchised Business without the prior written consent of
Franchisor.

5.2.2 Corporation. If the Franchisee is a corporation, then any issuance, redemption, or
transfer of the equity or voting shares of the Corporation, or any disposition of the assets of the Corporation
in one transaction or in a series of transactions which, in the aggregate, results in either (i) more than a 25%
change in the beneficial ownership of the corporation, or (ii) a change in the voting control of the
corporation, is a transfer which requires the consent of Franchisor; provided, however, that no issuance or
transfers of any percentage interest or other kind of transfer shall be permitted to a Competing Business, or
to a trust. The bylaws of the corporation and all share certificates evidencing ownership of the corporation
must contain the following provision:

“The issuance or transfer of shares in this corporation is subject to the restrictive provisions of a
Franchise Agreement with milliCareMilliCare Franchising, LLC and any new shareholder and/or
transferee, as a condition to the issuance or transfer of shares, agrees to be subject to such Franchise
Agreement and all its provisions and requirements. Reference is made to the Franchise Agreement
for all particulars.”

The Principal Operator remains personally liable in all respects under this Agreement and executes on a form
approved by us a personal quarantee and agreement not to sell, assign, pledge, mortgage or otherwise transfer
or encumber the stock.

5.2.3 Limited Partnership or Limited Liability Company. If Franchisee is a general or
limited partnership or a limited liability company, then the admission of a new partner or member, or the
redemption, purchase, liquidation, or transfer of a partnership or limited liability company membership
interest, or any disposition of the assets of the partnership or company, in one transaction or in a series of
transactions which, in the aggregate, results in either (i) more than a 25% change in the beneficial ownership
of the partnership or company, or (ii) a change in the voting control of the partnership or company, is a
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transfer which requires the consent of Franchisor; provided, however, that no admissions, purchases, or
transfers of a partnership or limited liability company interest of any percentage amount or other kind of
transfer shall be permitted to a Competing Business or to a trust. The partnership agreement or limited
liability company operating agreement must contain the following provision:

“The issuance or transfer of a legal or beneficial interest in the [partnership] [limited liability
company] is subject to the restrictive provisions of a Franchise Agreement with mitiCareMilliCare
Franchising, LLC, and any new partner/member and/or transferee, as a condition to the issuance or
transfer of such interests, agrees to be subject to such Franchise Agreement and all its provisions
and requirements. Reference is made to the Franchise Agreement for all particulars.”

The Principal Operator remains personally liable in all respects under this Agreement and executes on a form
approved by us a personal guarantee and agreement not to sell, assign, pledge, mortgage or otherwise transfer
or encumber the stock.

5.2.4 Conditions to Transfer. In connection with any transfer which requires
Franchisor’s consent, Franchisor shall have the right to require that any or all of the following conditions
are satisfied, as determined by Franchisor in its sole discretion, in addition to any other conditions imposed
by Franchisor:

(a) The proposed transferee or its principals must meet Franchisor’s
reasonable requirements for experience, net worth, entrepreneurial ability, and character, as applied by
Franchisor on a nondiscriminatory basis in selecting new franchisees and must have or obtain before
transfer all licenses required by law for operation of the Franchised Business.

(b) The proposed transferee (and each partner, member, or shareholder) must
have duly executed an agreement to be bound by, and to assume and perform all the duties of the Franchisee
under, the Agreement (including, in the case of such partners, members, or shareholders, the covenants not
to compete required by Section 3.18.4).

(c) All maintenance, repairs, and renovation required to bring the
Franchisee’s premises into compliance with Franchisor’s standards must have been completed.

(d) The transferor and each of its partners, members, shareholders, officers,
and directors must execute a general release of any and all claims against Franchisor and its affiliates, and
their shareholders, officers, directors, employees, and agents.

(e) The fees specified in Sections 4.5, 5.2.4(b) and 5.2.4(c) must have been
paid in full; provided, however, that there will be no transfer fee if the transfer or assignment of this
Agreement is to the spouse or an adult child of Franchisee, if Franchisee is an individual; or the spouse or
an adult child of the majority partner, shareholder, or member of the Franchisee, if Franchisee is a
partnership, corporation, or limited liability company.

() In_the event that the transferee was introduced to you by
Franchisor, its agents, or otherwise was a prospective franchisee working with Franchisor’s sales team or
outside brokers, Franchisee must pay Franchisor a resale assistance fee (“Resale Assistance Fee”), in addition
to the transfer fee, equal to the greater of (i) $10,000; or (ii) Franchisor’s actual costs, including but not limited
to any broker commission that may be incurred, due, or required arising from the transfer.
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(9) Franchisee shall, at Franchisor’s request, prepare and furnish to the

transferee and/or Franchisor such financial reports and other data relating to the Franchised Business and
its operations as Franchisor deems reasonably necessary or appropriate for the transferee and/or Franchisor
to evaluate the Franchised Business and the proposed transfer, including providing Franchisor with a copy
of the proposed purchase/sale agreement between Franchisee and transferee and such other information
regarding the terms of the proposed transfer as Franchisor may request. Franchisee authorizes Franchisor
to confer with any proposed transferee and furnish it with information concerning the Franchised Business
and the terms and conditions of the proposed transfer, and Franchisor may do so without any liability, except
where Franchisor recklessly or negligently provides untruthful information, makes intentional
misstatements to a transferee or otherwise acts in bad faith.

(h) in the case of an installment sale, if you or any Principal Operator
proposes to retain a security interest or other financial interest in the Franchise Agreement or the Business
operated thereunder (with our consent), you or such Principal Operator agrees to guarantee the performance
of the Franchise Agreement until the final close of the installment sale or the termination of such interest, as

the case may be.

5.2.5 Effect of Transfer. No sale, assignment, transfer, conveyance, encumbrance, or
gift of any interest in this Agreement or in the Franchised Business will relieve Franchisee, or the
shareholders, members, or partners participating in any transfer, of the confidentiality or noncompetition
provisions of this Agreement.

5.2.6 Prohibited Transfers. For purposes of this Section 5.2, without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, Franchisor may withhold its consent for any business reason whatsoever,
including, but not limited to: (i) where the proposed sale, assignment, transfer, or conveyance is to a
Competing Business or to a manufacturer of carpeting that Franchisor deems to be a competitor of
Franchisor or any affiliate of Franchisor; or (ii) where the proposed sale, assignment, transfer, or
conveyance would result in the proposed transferee having a percentage of the sales of the
mihiCareMilliCare® Services System that Franchisor deems to be undesirable, whether or not such
percentage exceeds the percentage provided in the above Section 5.2.4(h). Any purported sale, assignment,
transfer, or conveyance without the prior written consent of Franchisor will be null and void and will
constitute a material default under this Agreement.

5.3 Death or Disability. Upon the death or permanent disability of the Franchisee, if the
Franchisee is an individual, or upon the death or permanent disability of the majority shareholder, member,
or partner of Franchisee if the Franchisee is a corporation, limited liability company, or a partnership, the
spouse, adult children, or estate will have the right to participate in the ownership of the Franchised Business
under the terms of this Agreement for a period of 180 calendar days from the date of death or disability.
During that time, the spouse, adult children, or estate must either:

(a) satisfy all of the qualifications for a transferee or purchaser of a
miiCareMilliCare® Services System franchise, except that no transfer fee or initial fee will be charged; or

(b) sell, transfer, or assign the Franchised Business to a person who satisfies
all of the qualifications for a transferee or purchaser of a mitiCareMilliCare® Services System franchise.

In addition, during such time, Franchisor may enter the Franchised Business premises and take
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possession of the Franchised Business, its equipment, furniture, fixtures, records, lists, and supplies and
continue the operation of the Franchised Business for the benefit and account of Franchisee (after paying
operating expenses, including a management fee to be established from time to time in the Confidential
Manual) pending the conclusion of whichever of the above options is chosen by Franchisee’s spouse, adult
children, or estate.

5.4 Assignment to Corporation or Limited Liability Company. If Franchisee is a
partnership or individual and hereafter desires to conduct the Franchised Business in an incorporated or
limited liability company form, Franchisor will not unreasonably withhold its consent to the transfer of this
Agreement and Franchisee’s interest herein to any corporation or limited liability company formed for that
purpose; provided that Franchisee and such corporation or company must, prior to such transfer, satisfy
such reasonable requirements as Franchisor shall impose, which may include, without limitation, the
following:

(a) Franchisee or its partners will at all times be the record and/or beneficial
owner of, and will have, by law or by written agreement satisfactory to Franchisor, voting control of, not
less than 51% of the issued and outstanding shares or membership interests of each class of the capital stock
or membership interests of such corporation or company;

(b) No other person or entity, except members of Franchisee’s or its partners’
respective immediate families may own or have any right to acquire any shares, membership interests or
other securities of such corporation or company;

(c) The form and content of the articles or certificate of incorporation,
organization, or formation of such corporation or company and by-laws of any such corporation or operating
agreement of any such company must contain provisions enforceable under applicable law restricting the
issuance and transfer of shares, membership interests, or securities of the corporation or company to such
extent as Franchisor shall reasonably require;

(d) Franchisor must have been furnished in writing the names and addresses
of all existing or prospective shareholders or members of the corporation or company, and Franchisee or its
partners and (if requested by Franchisor) each such shareholder or member, or prospective shareholder or
member, must have guaranteed in writing (in form and substance satisfactory to Franchisor) the
performance by the corporation or company of the obligations of the Franchisee under this Agreement; and

(e) Each shareholder or member must have executed and delivered to
Franchisor a non-competition covenant in form and substance satisfactory to Franchisor, containing the
covenants not to compete required by Section 3.18.4 hereof.

After assignment of this Agreement to a corporation or limited liability company as above provided,
or, if Franchisee is a corporation or limited liability company at the date of this Agreement, the sale, transfer,
assignment, or encumbrance or change in rights of any class or series of capital stock, membership interests,
or other securities of such corporation or company, whether by operation of law or otherwise, will be
deemed a sale by Franchisee or (if a partnership) its partners of its or their interest(s) in this Agreement and
will in all respects be subject to the limitations set forth in this Section 5 on the sale of Franchisee’s interest
in this Agreement. Any merger, consolidation, or reorganization by any corporation or limited liability
company having an interest in this Agreement will be deemed a sale of such interest and, unless the prior
written consent of Franchisor has been obtained, will constitute a material breach hereof.
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5.5——Right of First Refusal. If at any time during the term of this Agreement Franchisee
receives a bona fide offer to purchase the Franchised Business, which offer Franchisee is willing to accept,
Franchisee must give Franchisor written notice of the terms of the offer and the name of the offeror and
allow Franchisor to elect to purchase the Franchised Business on the same terms as contained in the offer
within 6030 business days after Franchisor’s receipt of the offer, except that in place of any non-cash
consideration described in such offer, Franchisor or Franchisor’s designee may pay the fair market value
thereof in cash. If Franchisor fails to give written notice of election or declines election within the 6030
business days, Franchisee may sell to the offeror on the terms offered, subject to the provisions relating to
transferability as set forth in this Section 5, provided that such sale must be consummated within ninety

55 (90) calendar days after the expiration of such 6830-business day period; otherwise, the
restrictions of this Section 5.5 shall be renewed and any sale or transfer by Franchisee of its interest in this
Agreement, whether to such offeror or other individual or entity, shall again be subject to the restrictions of
this Section 5.5. In the event Franchisor or Franchisor’s designee elects to purchase, the purchase must be
completed within 90 calendar days from the date of Franchisor’s notice of election to purchase. For purposes
of this Section 5.5, the term “fair market value” of any non-cash consideration shall mean the fair market
value of such property as determined by agreement of Franchisee and Franchisor; provided, however, that
if the parties are unable to reach such agreement within 6830 business days after Franchisor’s receipt of the
offer, then the fair market value of such property will be determined by one appraiser chosen by the parties,
who will determine the value of such property. In the event that the parties are unable to agree upon such
an appraiser, the parties agree that the office of the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”) in or closest
to our National Headquarter (presently Orlando, Florida) will be employed to choose an appraiser, and such
person will determine the fair market value for these purposes. In the event the appraisal process is
utilized, the party whose valuation of such property less closely approximated the value selected pursuant
to the above-described appraisal process, measured by dollar amounts and not by percentages, will pay all
costs of the appraisal process. Any delay caused by such appraisal process or the parties’ disagreement over
the fair market value of any non-cash property will extend the period in which Franchisor is to act under this
Section 5.5 by that number of calendar days equal to the period of the delay.

6. TERMINATION AND DEFAULTS

6.1 Termination by Franchisor. Franchisor may terminate the Franchise Agreement at the
time indicated, if any of the following events occurs, each of which shall be deemed a default:

@) immediately, if the Franchisee or the Franchised Business is declared
bankrupt or determined to be insolvent, or all or a substantial part of the assets of the Franchisee or the
Franchised Business are assigned to or for the benefit of any creditor, or the Franchisee admits its inability
to pay its debts as they come due, or the Franchised Business is seized, taken over, or foreclosed by a
government official in the exercise of his duties, or seized, taken over, or foreclosed by a creditor,
lienholder, or lessor, provided that a final judgment against the Franchisee remains unsatisfied for 30
calendar days (unless an appeal bond has been filed), or if a levy of execution has been made upon the
license granted by this Agreement or upon any property used in the Franchised Business, and it is not
discharged within 5 business days; or

(b) immediately, if the Franchisee abandons the Franchised Business by
failing to operate the Franchised Business for 5 consecutive calendar days during which the Franchisee is
required to operate a business under the terms of this Agreement (as set forth in the Operations Manual), or
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any shorter period after which it is not unreasonable under the facts and circumstances for Franchisor to
conclude that the Franchisee does not intend to continue to operate the Franchised Business, unless such
failure to operate is due to fire, flood, earthquake, or other similar causes beyond the Franchisee’s control;
or

(c) immediately upon notice, if the Franchisor discovers that the Franchisee
has made any material misrepresentations to Franchisor relating to the acquisition, operation, or
maintenance of the Franchised Business; or

(d) immediately upon notice, if the Franchisee is arrested or is indicted for,
convicted of, or pleads nolo contendere to, a felony or any other criminal misconduct which, in Franchisor’s
sole judgment, is relevant to the operation of the franchise or impairs the goodwill associated with the
System or with the mitiiCareMilliCare® name or Marks; or

(e) immediately upon notice, if the Franchisee, after curing any default after
notice and opportunity to cure, engages in the same noncompliance, whether or not corrected after notice;
or

0] immediately upon notice, in the event Franchisee attempts to transfer any
interest in the Franchisee or the Franchised Business in violation of Section 5; or

@) immediately upon notice, in the event that Franchisee violates the
provisions of Section 3.18 hereof; or

(h) immediately upon notice, if Franchisee breaches any material provision of
this Agreement or any other agreement between Franchisee and Franchisor, if such breach is not susceptible
to being cured; or

(i) upon 10 calendar days’ written notice to Franchisee of its failure to pay
any fees or other amounts due to Franchisor, any affiliate of Franchisor, or any other franchisee that is not
cured within such 10-day period; or

()] upon 30 calendar days’ written notice to Franchisee of noncompliance
with any federal, state, or local law or regulation applicable to the operation of the Franchised Business
unless cured within such period; or

(k) upon 30 calendar days’ written notice to Franchisee of any failure of
Franchisee to perform any obligation under this Agreement, if such failure is susceptible to being cured and
is not cured within such 30-day period; or

0] upon 30 calendar days’ written notice to Franchisee if Franchisee fails to
commence operation of the Franchised Business within 270-days of the date of the Franchise Agreement,
and is not cured within such 30-day period; or

(m) prior to the opening of the Franchised Business, if Franchisee or any of its
designated employees fails to complete the Initial Training Program described in Section 2.4 to the
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satisfaction of Franchisor; or

(n) immediately upon notice, if Franchisee or its owners owns or operates
another competitive business or commits any violation of Section 3.3, Section 3.8, or Section 3.9 hereof;

(o) immediately upon notice, if Franchisee commits three or more breaches of
any of your obligations under this Agreement, whether or not cured, within any consecutive 12-month
period;

(p) immediately upon notice, if Franchisee, after curing any default pursuant
to this Agreement, commits the same default again, whether or not cured;

(o) immediately upon notice, if Franchisee or Franchisee’s principals
materially breach any other agreement with us or any of our affiliates, or threaten any material breach of
any such agreement, and fail to cure such breach within any permitted period for cure; or

(0)— at such time as Franchisor and Franchisee mutually agree in writing to
terminate this Agreement.

6.2 Rights and Duties of Parties Upon Expiration or Termination. Upon termination or
expiration of this Agreement for any reason, all rights of the Franchisee under the Agreement will
immediately terminate, but Franchisee will have the following duties, which will survive termination or
expiration of this Agreement:

@ Franchisee must promptly pay Franchisor all sums owing under the terms
of this Agreement, including all damages, costs, and expenses incurred by Franchisor by reason of default
on the part of Franchisee, whether or not the expenses occur before or after the termination or expiration of
this Agreement. The parties agree that payment of these amounts is not a penalty, but rather a reasonable
estimate of compensation to which Company would be entitled in case of premature termination.

(b) Franchisee must immediately cease use of the Marks in advertising,
websites, forms, manuals, slogans, signs, or in any other manner whatsoever. Franchisee will not represent
or advertise that Franchisee was formerly a miiCareMilliCare® Services System franchisee or that
Franchisee did business under the Marks.

(©) Franchisee must ensure at its own expense that all mention of the Marks
in connection with Franchisee is removed at the earliest possible time from all telephone and other
directories, directory assistance records, building directories, signboards, internet sites, internet search
engines, membership rosters, and every other place and publication.

(d) Franchisee must take all action to cancel any assumed name or equivalent
registration which contains any of the Marks and will furnish Franchisor with satisfactory evidence of
cancellation.

)] Franchisee must cease and desist from all use of the Marks, and must
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deliver to Franchisor, or its duly authorized representative, all materials and papers upon which the Marks
appear. Franchisee will not, at any time, adopt or use any word or mark which is similar to or confusing
with the Marks. Franchisee must continue to comply with Sections 3.17 and 3.18 of this Agreement.

)] Franchisee must return to Franchisor the Confidential Manual and all
documents and records that are reasonably necessary or important to the continuation of the Franchised
Business.

(9) If Franchisor so elects, Franchisee must sell to Franchisor, at Franchisee’s
cost, all products, supplies, and equipment which bear the Marks.

(h) Franchisee must notify the telephone company and listing agencies of the
termination or expiration of your right to use all telephone numbers of the Business and all classified and other
directory listings of the Business and authorize the transfer of such numbers and directory listings to us or as
we direct, all in accordance with the Assignment of Telephone Numbers attached as Attachment E to the
Franchise Agreement. This agreement by you regarding the telephone numbers and listings is for the benefit
of such telephone company serving you. You agree to hold any such telephone company harmless from any
and all claims against it arising out of any orders given by us to terminate, transfer or put-on referral such
telephone service.

() Franchisee must transfer to us or terminate service, as designated by us, all
domain names, electronic mail accounts, online listings, social media accounts, and the like, which were set-
up_for the Business, all in accordance with the Assignment of Domain Name, E-Mail Address, Online
Listings, and Social Media Accounts attached as Attachment F to the Franchise Agreement.

()] Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of expiration or termination of
this Agreement, you will remain liable for your indemnification obligations specified in section 3.25 or under
common law and other obligations pursuant to any applicable lease for the Business premises or otherwise,
which by their very nature are intended to survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

(k) Unless otherwise specified above, you must deliver satisfactory evidence of
your completion of all this item within 30 days.

6.3 Dispute Resolution.

@ Internal Dispute Resolution. Franchisee must first bring any claim or
dispute between Franchisor and Franchisee to Franchisor’s management and make every effort to resolve
the dispute internally. Franchisee must first exhaust this internal dispute resolution procedure before
Franchisee may bring Franchisee’s dispute before a third-party. This agreement to internally resolve
disputes will survive termination or expiration of this Agreement.

(b) Mediation. At Franchisor’s option, all claims or disputes between
Franchisee and Franchisor (or its affiliates) arising out of, or in any way relating to, this Agreement or any
other agreement by and between Franchisee and Franchisor (or its affiliates), or any of the parties’
respective rights and obligations arising from such agreement, which are not first resolved through the
internal dispute resolution procedure sent forth in Section 6.3(a) above, will be submitted first to mediation
to take place in the city and state of our then-current National Headquarter (presently Orlando, Florida)
under the auspices of the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”), in accordance with AAA’s
Commercial Mediation Rules then in effect. Before commencing any legal action against Franchisor or its
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affiliates with respect to any such claim or dispute, Franchisee must submit a notice to Franchisor, which
specifies, in detail, the precise nature and grounds of such claim or dispute. Franchisor will have a period
of thirty (30) days following receipt of such notice within which to notify Franchisee as to whether
Franchisor or its affiliates elects to exercise its option to submit such claim or dispute to mediation.
Franchisee may not commence any action against Franchisor or its affiliates with respect to any such claim
or dispute in any court unless Franchisor fails to exercise its option to submit such claim or dispute to
mediation, or such mediation proceedings have been terminated either: (i) as the result of a written
declaration of the mediator(s) that further mediation efforts are not worthwhile; or (ii) as a result of a written
declaration by Franchisor. Franchisor’s rights to mediation, as set forth herein, may be specifically enforced
by Franchisor. Each party will bear its own cost of mediation and Franchisor and Franchisee will share
mediator fees equally. This agreement to mediate will survive any termination or expiration of this
Agreement. The parties will not be required to first attempt to mediate a controversy, dispute, or claim
through mediation as set forth in this Section 6.3(b) if such controversy, dispute, or claim concerns an
allegation that a party has violated (or threatens to violate, or poses an imminent risk of violating): (i) any
federally protected intellectual property rights in the Marks, the System, or in any Confidential Information
or other confidential information; (ii) any of the restrictive covenants contained in this Agreement; and (iii)
any of Franchisee’s payment obligations under this Agreement.

(c) Arbitration. Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this
Agreement, other than a claim for injunctive relief, will be settled by binding arbitration, and judgment
upon the award may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof. All arbitrations must be individual
proceedings and not a class arbitration or multi-party arbitration. The arbitration must be conducted through
the AAA office in the city, and state of our then-current National Headquarters (presently Orlando,
Florida;), and will be conducted by a panel of three arbitrators selected in accordance with the rules and
regulations of the AAA applicable to commercial matters. The arbitrators will render a decision based on,
and consistent with, state law of our then-current National Headquarters (presently Florida-taw) and with
the facts and evidence that are properly introduced at the hearing. If there are any disputes in matters of
public policy, restraint of trade, securities laws violation, or any other matter which cannot be the subject
of arbitration, those matters will be separated from all other disputes and those other disputes will first be
settled by arbitration. After arbitration, any disputes which cannot be tried by arbitration will be brought
before a court of competent jurisdiction. Should the parties be unable to separate matters which will be
addressed by arbitration from those which cannot be addressed by arbitration, the allegations and positions
of the parties will be brought before the arbitrators, and their decision regarding the appropriateness for
arbitration of the matters in controversy will be determinative and binding upon the parties. Unless
otherwise determined by the arbitrators, the fees and expenses of arbitration, not including attorneys’ fees,
will be shared equally by the parties. The parties acknowledge that this alternative dispute resolution
procedure is fair and enforceable.

6.4 Termination Not Exclusive Remedy. Termination of this Agreement by the parties shall
not be an exclusive remedy and shall not in any way affect a party’s rights to receive or collect fees or other
amounts payable hereunder, to enforce the provisions of this Agreement, to seek and obtain injunctive relief,
or to pursue any other legal or equitable remedy for a breach of this Agreement. In lieu of terminating this
Agreement as may be permitted herein, Franchisor, in its sole discretion, may allow Franchisee to continue
operating the Franchise on a month-to-month basis, and Franchisor may thereafter terminate this Agreement
at any time and for any reason upon 10 days’ prior written notice to Franchisee. Franchisor may terminate
this Agreement upon such 10 days’ prior written notice to Franchisee even if Franchisee cured all defaults
during the period when the Franchise was being operated on a month-to-month basis.
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6.5 Future Communications. For three years following the termination or expiration of this
Agreement, Franchisee agrees to advise Franchisor of its current business and residential addresses and
telephone numbers.

7. MISCELLANEQOUS

7.1 Governing Law. This Agreement has been accepted and made in the State of our then-
current National Headquarters (presently Florida) and all rights hereunder will be governed by and
interpreted under the internal laws (and not the law of conflicts of laws) of thesaid State-efFlorida.

7.2 Forum Selection; Jurisdiction. Any claims not subject to arbitration shall be brought
and/or defended to conclusion in the courts tecated-inof our then-current National Headquarters (presently
Orlando, Florida:). The parties’ consent (and waive any objections they might otherwise have) to institute
any such claims in a state or federal court of general jurisdiction in our then-current National Headquarters
(presently Orlando, Florida:). The parties irrevocably submit to the jurisdiction of such courts and waive
any objections to jurisdiction, venue, or the convenience of the court location.

7.3 Compliance with Law. This Agreement will be deemed to contain and will be construed
S0 as to contain and be consistent with, all mandatory provisions and requirements of applicable state and
federal law. In particular, Franchisee represents it has a copy of, and is familiar with, the United States
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. 878dd-2 (the “FCPA”), and the purposes of the FCPA; in
particular, the FCPA’s prohibition of the payment or the gift of any item of value, either directly or
indirectly, by a company organized under the laws or the United States of America or any of its states to an
official, employee, or officer of, or person acting in an official capacity for, a government or international
organization for the purpose of influencing any action or decision, or inducing him to use his influence with
the government or organization in any manner contrary to his position or creating an improper advantage
to assist a company in obtaining or retaining business for, with, or in that country or organization or directing
business to any person. Currently a copy of the FCPA may be found on the internet at
www.usdoj.gov/criminal/fraud/fcpa.html. Franchisee represents and warrants that it will take no action that
would constitute a violation of the FCPA or any law, and Franchisee will obtain a similar undertaking from
its affiliates and owners. Further, Franchisee represents that it and its affiliates do and shall comply with
all relevant laws against corrupt business practices, against money laundering and against facilitating or
supporting person who conspire to commit acts of terror against any person or government.__

7.4 No Subsequent Waiver. Waiver of any default or breach of this Agreement will not be
interpreted as a waiver of any subsequent breach.

7.5 No Class Actions. ANY DISPUTE BETWEEN FRANCHISOR AND FRANCHISEE,
WHETHER RESOLVED IN ARBITRATION OR IN A COURT PROCEEDING, MUST BE RESOLVED
IN AN INDIVIDUAL PROCEEDING, AND MAY NOT BE RESOLVED VIA A CLASS ACTION OR
SIMILAR MULTI-PARTY PROCEEDING.

7.6 No Punitive Damages. FRANCHISOR AND FRANCHISEE HEREBY WAIVE TO
THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW ANY RIGHT TO, OR CLAIM FOR, ANY PUNITIVE
OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES AGAINST THE OTHER AND AGREE THAT, IN THE EVENT OF A
DISPUTE BETWEEN THEM, EACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE RECOVERY OF ANY ACTUAL
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DAMAGES SUSTAINED BY IT.

7.7 No Trial By Jury. FRANCHISOR AND FRANCHISEE IRREVOCABLY WAIVE
TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING, OR COUNTERCLAIM, WHETHER AT LAW OR
IN EQUITY, BROUGHT BY EITHER OF THEM AGAINST THE OTHER, WHETHER OR NOT
THERE ARE OTHER PARTIES IN SUCH ACTION OR PROCEEDING.

7.8 Continuing Obligations. ALL OBLIGATIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT WHICH
EXPRESSLY OR BY THEIR NATURE SURVIVE THE EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THIS
AGREEMENT WILL CONTINUE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT AFTER AND
NOTWITHSTANDING THEIR EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION UNTIL THEY ARE SATISFIED IN
FULL OR BY THEIR NATURE EXPIRE.

7.9 Limitation of Claims. FRANCHISEE AGREES THAT ANY AND ALL CLAIMS BY
FRANCHISEE AGAINST FRANCHISOR ARISING OUT OF, OR RELATING TO, THIS
AGREEMENT MAY NOT BE COMMENCED BY FRANCHISEE UNLESS BROUGHT BEFORE THE
EARLIER OF: (A) THE EXPIRATION OF ONE YEAR AFTER THE ACT, TRANSACTION, OR
OCCURRENCE UPON WHICH SUCH CLAIM IS BASED; OR (B) ONE YEAR AFTER THIS
AGREEMENT EXPIRES OR IS TERMINATED FOR ANY REASON. FRANCHISEE AGREES THAT
ANY CLAIM OR ACTION NOT BROUGHT WITHIN THE PERIODS REQUIRED UNDER THIS
SECTION 7.9 SHALL FOREVER BE BARRED AS A CLAIM, COUNTERCLAIM, DEFENSE, OR SET
OFF.

7.10  Notices and Communications. All notices or communications required or permitted
under this Agreement shall be directed to Franchisor by an overnight delivery service that tracks delivery
or by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, return receipt requested, at the following address:

Notices to Franchisor MilliCare Franchising, LLC
Attention: President/Brand Leader
6700 Forum Drive, Suite 150
Orlando, FL 32821

Notices to Franchisee:

Attn:

If Franchisee is other than an individual, Franchisee must designate in writing to Franchisor the
name and address of its agent to receive notice. Notice to the agent will be conclusively presumed to be
full and adequate notice to Franchisee. Notice shall be deemed to have been given on the date of actual
receipt, or, if delivery is refused, on the date of attempted delivery.

Notwithstanding the above, any notice by a means which affords the sender evidence of delivery,
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including but not limited to e-mail, shall be deemed to satisfy any notice requirement.

7.11  Costs and Legal Fees. Franchisee shall reimburse Franchisor for the costs and expenses
incurred by Franchisor as a result of Franchisee’s failure to comply with the terms of this Agreement,
including, without limitation, attorneys’, accountants’, consultants’, and expert witness fees, cost of
investigation and proof of facts, court costs, other litigation expenses, and travel and living expenses,
whether incurred prior to, in preparation for, in contemplation of, or in connection with the filing of any
proceeding to enforce this Agreement.

7.12  Modifications to System. Franchisor has the right to operate, develop, and change the
System in any manner that is not specifically precluded by this Agreement, and such changes shall become
part of the mitiCareMilliCare® Services System. Whenever Franchisor has reserved in this Agreement a
right to take or withhold an action, or to grant or decline to grant Franchisee a right to take action or omit an
action, except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, Franchisor may make its decision or
exercise its rights on the basis of the information readily available to Franchisor, and Franchisor’s judgment
of what is in its best interests and/or in the best interests of the System, at the time Franchisor’s decision is
made, shall be deemed to be reasonable and enforceable, without regard to whether other reasonable or even
arguably preferable alternative decisions could have been made by Franchisor and without regard to
whether Franchisor’s decision or the action Franchisor takes promotes Franchisor’s financial or other
individual interest. Franchisor has the right to enter into agreements with other franchisees that are different
than this Agreement, and the existence of different provisions in other franchise agreements shall not in any
manner affect the duties of the parties to this Agreement.

7.13  Amendment. This Agreement may be amended, modified, or discharged, in whole or in
part, only by a document in writing subscribed by all of the parties subscribing to this Agreement.

7.14  Remedies Cumulative. The parties are entitled to any and all remedies at law or in equity,
in addition to any remedies set forth in this Agreement. Franchisor’s right to terminate this Agreement in
accordance with Section 6 shall be deemed to permit Franchisor to elect remedies other than termination.

7.15  Other Franchises. The parties hereby acknowledge and agree that Franchisor may grant
other franchises within a Marketing Territory that are the same as or similar to the Franchised Business.

7.16  Successors and Assigns. This Agreement will inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon,
the parties hereto and their heirs, successors, representatives, assigns, and transferees to the extent this
Agreement is assignable.

7.17  Relationship of the Parties. Franchisee is an independent contractor. The operation of
the Franchised Business does not make the Franchisee and Franchisor partners or joint venturers or make
them agents, servants, employees, or fiduciaries of the other, and Franchisee will not hold itself out to the
contrary. Franchisee will advise its suppliers and customers of its independent ownership of the Franchised
Business and will clearly state in its business forms, stationery, advertising, and elsewhere that it is
independently owned and operated.

7.18 Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with its Exhibits, expresses fully the
understanding by and between the parties, and all prior understandings, agreements, commitments,
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conditions, warranties, and representations of any kind, oral or written, as to the Franchised Business
(except as to information and representations submitted by Franchisee to Franchisor in the application to
purchase the Franchise) are cancelled and null, void and of no effect. Any previous matter, presently
covered within this Agreement, is hereby superseded and cancelled with no further liabilities or obligations
of the parties with respect to such matter, except as to any monies due and unpaid between the parties to
this Agreement at the time of execution of this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement or in any related
agreement between Franchisor and Franchisee is intended to disclaim the representations in Franchisor’s
Franchise Disclosure Document.

7.19 Interpretation of Rights and Obligations. The following provisions will apply to and
govern the interpretation of this Agreement, the parties’ rights under this Agreement and the relationship
between the parties:

(a) Franchisor’s Rights. Whenever this Agreement provides that
Franchisor has or reserves (retains) a certain right, that right is absolute and the parties intend that our
exercise of that right will not be subject to any limitation or review. Franchisor has the right to operate,
administrate, develop and change the System in any manner that is not specifically precluded by the
provisions of this Agreement.

(b) Franchisor’s Reasonable Business Judgment. Whenever Franchisor
reserves discretion in a particular area or where Franchisor agrees or is required to exercise its rights
reasonably or in good faith, Franchisor will satisfy its obligations whenever exercising ‘“reasonable business
judgment” in making its decision or exercising its rights. A decision or action by Franchisor will be deemed
to be the result of “reasonable business judgment,” even if other reasonable or even arguably preferable
alternatives are available, if its decision or action is intended to promote or benefit the System generally
even if the decision or action also promotes a financial or other individual interest of Franchisor. Examples
of items that will promote or benefit the System include enhancing the value of the Marks, improving
customer service and satisfaction, improving product quality, improving uniformity, enhancing or
encouraging modernization, and improving the competitive position of the Business System. Neither
Franchisee nor any third party (including a trier of fact), will substitute their judgment for Franchisor’s
reasonable business judgment.

7.20  Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable
by a court of competent jurisdiction, then the remainder of this Agreement will continue in full force and
effect, except to the extent either party would fail to obtain the substantial benefit of its bargain.

7.21  Other Parties. If Franchisee is a partnership, joint venture, association, corporation,
limited liability company, or other legal entity, then all persons who have any beneficial interest in
Franchisee must execute this Franchise Agreement where indicated below and will be bound jointly and
severally by all of the terms and provisions hereof.

7.22  Accuracy of Representations. Franchisee and its owners represent and warrant to
Franchisor that (a) all statements, documents, materials, and information submitted to Franchisor, including
the application for the rights granted by this Agreement, are true, correct and complete in all material
respects, and there have been no material omissions; and (b) Franchisee and its owners agree to comply
with and/or to assist Franchisor to the fullest extent possible in its efforts to comply with Anti-Terrorism
Laws (as defined below). In connection with such compliance, Franchisee and its owners certify, represent
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and warrant that none of their property or interests is subject to being “blocked” under any of the Anti-
Terrorism Laws and that Franchisee and its owners are not otherwise in violation of any of the Anti-
Terrorism Laws. “Anti-Terrorism Laws” means Executive Order 13224 issued by the President of the
United States, the USA PATRIOT Act, and all other present and future federal, state and local laws,
ordinances, regulations, policies, lists and any other requirements of any governmental authority addressing
or in any way relating to terrorist acts and acts of war. Franchisee agrees to promptly advise Franchisor of
any material change in the information or statements submitted to Franchisor. Franchisee acknowledges
and understands that Franchisor has entered into this Agreement in reliance on the statements and
information submitted to Franchisor by Franchisee and its owners, and that any material breach, inaccuracy
or omission is grounds for Franchisor to terminate this Agreement.

7.23  Construction. All headings of the various sections and subsections of this Agreement are
for convenience only and do not affect the meaning or construction of any provision. All references in this
Agreement to masculine, feminine, neuter, or singular usage will be construed to include the masculine,
feminine, neuter, singular, or plural, wherever applicable.

7.24  Acknowledgements. Franchisee expressly acknowledges and accepts the following:

@ Franchisee received from Franchisor a Franchise Disclosure Document,
together with a copy of all proposed agreements relating to the sale of the franchise, at least 14 calendar
days prior to the execution of this or any other binding agreement or the payment of any consideration to
Franchisor. Franchisee also received this Agreement and any related agreements with all blanks completed
at least 7 calendar days prior to the execution of this Agreement;

(b) Franchisee agrees that Franchisee or one of Franchisee’s principal owners
will devote best efforts to the management and development of the Franchise;

(©) Nothing in this Agreement is intended to disclaim the representations
Franchisor made in the Franchise Disclosure Document that Franchisor provided to Franchisee;

(d) Franchisor has encouraged Franchisee, and Franchisee has had ample
opportunity, to seek legal and/or other professional guidance and advice prior to signing the Franchise
Agreement, and Franchisor has encouraged Franchisee to contact existing mitiCareMilliCare® franchisees
to gain a better understanding of the requirements and benefits of owning a mitiCareMilliCare® franchise;

O] Franchisee has had a full opportunity to review the Franchise Disclosure
Document, Franchise Agreement, and related agreements provided by Franchisor and understands the
terms, conditions, and obligations of the Franchise Agreement;

(j)] Franchisee has dealt in varied business transactions in the past, and
Franchisee is not purchasing a milliCareMilliCare® franchise for speculative purposes.

7.25  Additional Representations. Franchisee makes the following additional warranties and
representations:




@ Franchisee is a (check one):
O partnership
O corporation
o sole proprietorship

o limited liability company

(b) If Franchisee is a corporation, limited liability company, or partnership, the
name and address of, and percentage interest owned by, each shareholder, member, or partner is as follows:

NAME ADDRESS PERCENTAGE INTEREST

(©) The address where Franchisee’s records are maintained is:

(d) The name and address of Franchisee’s designated agent to receive notice




Franchisee must not substitute a new designated agent without prior written notice to
Franchisor.

(e The name and address of Franchisee’s manager is:

7.26  Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, all of which together
will constitute one and the same Agreement.
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The parties have executed this Franchise Agreement on , 20

FRANCHISEE:
(If an individual)

Signed:

(If a corporation)

Name of corporation:

State of incorporation:

Signed by:

Title:

(If a general or limited partnership)

Name of partnership:

State of organization:

Name of managing or general
Partner:

Signed by:

Title:

(If a limited liability company)

Name of company:

State of organization:

Signed by:

Title [member or manager]:

FRANCHISOR:

MilliCare Franchising, LLC

By:

Print Name:

Title :

Date:




Each of the undersigned individuals or entities certifies that he/she/it is an owner of the above-
named Franchisee and hereby executes this Franchise Agreement and agrees to be bound by all the terms
and conditions thereof to the same extent as the Franchisee:

Print Name of Shareholder/ Partner/Member:

Signed:

Signed:

Signed:

Signed:

Signed:

Signed:

Signed:

Signed:

Signed:

Signed:

Signed:

Signed:

Signed:

Signed:

THE SUBMISSION OF THIS AGREEMENT TO YOU DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN OFFER. THIS
AGREEMENT IS NOT EFFECTIVE UNTIL SIGNED BY A CORPORATE OFFICER OF MILLICARE
FRANCHISING, LLC. NO FIELD REPRESENTATIVE OR SALESMAN IS AUTHORIZED TO
EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF MILLICARE FLOOR & TEXTILE CARE.
FRANCHISEE IS ADVISED NOT TO INCUR ANY EXPENSE OR OBLIGATION WITH RESPECT
TO THE FRANCHISED BUSINESS UNTIL FRANCHISEE HAS RECEIVED A FULLY EXECUTED
COPY OF THIS AGREEMENT.




Attachment A to the Franchise Agreement: Data Sheet

Franchisee:

Owners. You represent and warrant to us that the following persons are the only owners of Franchisee:

Name Home Address Percentage of Ownership
Initial Franchise Fee:
Effective Date:
FRANCHISEE: FRANCHISOR:

(If an individual)

MilliCare Franchising, LLC

Signed:

By:

(If a corporation)

Print Name:

Title :

Date:

Name of corporation:

State of incorporation:

Signed by:

Title:

(If a general or limited partnership)

Name of partnership:

State of organization:

Name of managing or general
Partner:

Signed by:

Title:

(If a limited liability company)

Name of company: State of organization:  Signed by:

Title [member or managerExXEHBIH-A

Attachment B to the Franchise Agreement: Territory
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The Franchisee’s Territory (as described in Section 1.3 of the Franchise Agreement of which this
Exhibit A is a part) is:

The Territory is a:

Protected Territory

Initial

Marketing Territory

Initial

FRANCHISOR:
MilliCare Franchising, LLC

Date:

By:

Title:

FRANCHISEE:

Date: By:




Title:




=R E

Attachment C to the Franchise Agreement: Continuation of Other Non-Competing
Businesses

The Franchisee is granted the right to continue to own the following non-competing
business(es) throughout the term of the Franchise Agreement, which business(es) is/are not part
of the Franchised Business, in accordance with Section 3.3 of the Franchise Agreement of which
this Exhibit B is a part:

FRANCHISOR:

MilliCare Franchising, LLC

Date: By:
Title:
FRANCHISEE:
Date: By:
Title:

MilliCare Floor & Textile Care
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Attachment D to the Franchise Agreement: Personal Guarantee

PERSONAL GUARANTEE AND AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND
PERSONALLY, BY THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS
OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

In consideration of the execution of this Franchise Agreement by us, and for other good and valuable
consideration, the undersigned, for themselves, their heirs, successors, and assigns, do jointly, individually
and severally hereby become surety and guarantor for the payment of all amounts and the performance of the
covenants, terms and conditions in this Franchise Agreement, to be paid, kept and performed by the franchisee,
including without limitation the dispute resolution provisions of the Agreement.

Further, the undersigned, individually and jointly, hereby agree to be personally bound by each
condition and term contained in this Franchise Agreement and agree that this Personal Guarantee should be
construed as though the undersigned and each of them executed a Franchise Agreement containing the
identical terms and conditions of this Franchise Agreement.

The undersigned waives: (1) notice of demand for payment of any indebtedness or nonperformance
of any obligations hereby guaranteed; (2) protest and notice of default to any party respecting the indebtedness
or nonperformance of any obligations hereby guaranteed; and (3) any right he/she may have to require that an
action be brought against the franchisee or any other person as a condition of liability.

In_addition, the undersigned consents and agrees that: (1) the undersigned’s liability will not be
contingent or conditioned upon our pursuit of any remedies against the franchisee or any other person; and
(2) such liability will not be diminished, relieved or otherwise affected by the franchisee’s insolvency,
bankruptcy or reorganization, the invalidity, illegality or unenforceability of all or any part of the Agreement,
or the amendment or extension of the Agreement with or without notice to the undersigned.

It is further understood and agreed by the undersigned that the provisions, covenants, and conditions
of this Guarantee will inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns of us.

PERSONAL GUARANTORS
Individually Individually
Address Address
City, State, Zip Code City, State, Zip Code
Telephone Telephone




Attachment E to the Franchise Agreement: Assignment of Telephone Numbers

Date:

This assignment is effective as of the date of termination of the Franchise Agreement entered into
between MilliCare Franchising, LLC (“us”) and (“you”). You hereby irrevocably assign
to us or our designee the telephone number or numbers and listings issued to you with respect to each and
all your Franchised Businesses, including employee cellular telephone numbers that have been used in
connection with Franchised Businesses in any respect (“telephone numbers”). This assignment is for
collateral purposes only and we have no liability or obligation of any kind whatsoever arising from this
assignment, unless we desire to take possession and control over the telephone numbers.

We hereby are authorized and empowered upon termination of the Franchise Agreement and
without any further notice to you to notify the telephone company, as well as any other company that
publishes telephone directories (“telephone companies™), to transfer the telephone numbers to us or such
other person or entity as we designate. You hereby grant to us an irrevocable power of attorney and appoint
us as your attorney-in-fact to take any necessary actions to assign the telephone numbers, including but not
limited to, executing any forms that the telephone companies may require to effectuate the assignment. This
assignment is also for the benefit of the telephone companies, and the telephone companies may accept this
assignment and our instructions as conclusive evidence of our rights in the telephone numbers and our
authority to direct the amendment, termination, or transfer of the telephone numbers, as if they had
originally been issued to us. In addition, Franchisee agrees to hold the telephone companies harmless from
any and all claims against them arising out of any actions or instructions by MilliCare Franchising, LLC
regarding the telephone numbers.

FRANCHISOR:

MilliCare Franchising, LLC

By:
Its: Authorized Representative

FRANCHISEE:

By:

Its: Authorized Representative




Attachment F to the Franchise Agreement: Assignment of Domain Name,
E-Mail Address, Online Listings and Social Media Accounts

Date:

This assignment is effective as of the date of termination of the Franchise Agreement entered into between
MilliCare Franchising, LLC (“we” or “us”) and (“you” or “franchisee”). You hereby
irrevocably assign to us or our designee the domain names, e-mail addresses, online listings, and/or Social Media
accounts (collectively the “Web Listings™) with respect to each and all your Franchised Businesses. You agree to pay
all amounts, whether due and payable or not, that any domain name registry (‘“Registry”) or Internet Service Provider
(“ISP”’) may require in connection with such transfer. This assignment is for collateral purposes only and we have no
liability or obligation of any Kind whatsoever arising from this assignment, unless we desire to take possession and
control over the domain names and e-mail addresses.

We are hereby authorized and empowered upon termination of the Franchise Agreement and without any
further notice to you to notify the Registry and the ISP to transfer or terminate (as we designate) the Web Listings to
us or such other person or firm as is designated by us. In furtherance thereof, you hereby grant an irrevocable power
of attorney to us and appoint us as your attorney-in-fact to take any necessary actions to assign the Web Listings,
including but not limited to, executing any forms that the Registry and the ISP may require to effectuate the
assignment. This assignment is also for the benefit of the Registry and the ISP, and the Registry and the ISP _may
accept this assignment and our instructions as conclusive evidence of our rights in the Web Listings and our authority
to direct the amendment, termination, or transfer of the Web Listings, as if they had originally been issued to us. In
addition, you agree to hold the Registry and the ISP harmless from all claims against them arising out of any actions
or instructions by us regarding the Web Listings.

FRANCHISOR:

MilliCare Franchising, LLC

By:
Its: Authorized Representative

FRANCHISEE:

By:
Its: Authorized Representative
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Attachment G to the Franchise Agreement: FRANCHISEE
AUTHORIZATION FORM FOR ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER

The undersigned hereby authorizes MilliCare Franchising, LLC., or any affiliated entity (collectively “MilliCare”),
to initiate debit and/or credit entries to my account at the financial institution listed below, including but not limited
to ACH debit entries for Royalty Fees, Marketing Fees, Software Fees, or any other amounts that become payable
by the undersigned to MilliCare or for credits due by MilliCare to me. This authorization will remain in effect until
| notify MilliCare in writing to cancel it. Please complete this form, attach a voided check and your current W9
(https://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/fw9.pdf), and return it to MilliCare AP@millicare.com.

SECTION 1: ACCOUNT HOLDER INFORMATION

Tax ID Number:

State of Business Reqistration:

Franchisee Legal Name:

Account Number(s) (if applicable):

Franchisee Remittance Address:

(Street Address, City, State, ZIP/Postal Code)

Franchisee Contact Name (First and Last Name):

Franchisee Contact Phone Number:

Franchisee Contact Email Address:

SECTION 2: AUTOMATED CLEARING HOUSE (ACH) INFORMATION

Type of Request: New Updated

Bank Routing Number:

Account Number (for debits):

Account Number (for credits):

Vendor Name on Bank Account (Per W-9):

Bank/Institution Name:

Bank Contact Name:

SECTION 3: AUTHORIZATION / CERTIFICATION

| certify that the information | provided is correct and that | am an authorized signer or designate of the account
provided above and am entitled to provide this authorization. | (we) hereby authorize MilliCare to initiate credit
or_debit entries to the account and financial institution listed above. | (we) further authorize adjusting entries
(reversals) solely to correct errors, if any. This authorization is to remain in full force and effect until MilliCare has
received written notification from me (us) of its termination in such time and manner as to afford MilliCare and the
depository financial institution a reasonable opportunity to act on it. | also acknowledge that it is my responsibility
to ensure sufficient funds are available in the account for ACH debits, and that | will be charged a fee not to exceed
$55 for each return due to non-sufficient funds. | (we) authorize the financial institution shown above to confirm my
(our) account information, including account name, number, and type. | (we) acknowledge that the origination of
ACH transactions to my (our) account must comply with the provisions of U.S. Law.

Signature: Title:
Name: Date:
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EXHIBIT D: CONVERSION ADDENDUM
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MILLICARE FLOOR & TEXTILE CARE-
CONVERSION ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

THIS CONVERSION -ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE
AGREEMENT (this
"Addendum") is effective as of , 20— (the "Effective Date"), regardless of the actual

date of signature, by and between MilliCare Franchising, LLC. (“miiCareMilliCare”) a Delaware limited
liability company ("Franchisor") and
.an ("Franchisee™). This Addendum supplements the Franchise Agreement of even date herewith (the
"Agreement") by and between the parties.

1. Incorporation and Precedence. This Addendum is an integral part of, and is incorporated
into, the Agreement. Nevertheless, this Addendum governs, controls and supersedes any inconsistent or
conflicting terms of the Agreement. Terms not otherwise defined in this Addendum have the meanings as
defined in the Agreement.

2. Conversion Program. The Franchisee has applied to become a Franchised Business under
the Franchisor's conversion program, and the Franchisor has agreed to award a conversion franchise to the
Franchisee. Since the conversion program differs (as detailed in this Addendum) from the standard
franchise program, the parties are signing this Addendum to properly detail the features of the conversion
program and how the relationship between the parties differs from the standard MilliCare Floor & Textile
Care franchise agreement. Prior to acquiring the franchise, Franchisee operated, and continues to operate,
a commercial floor and textile maintenance business known as

(the "Existing Business"). The Existing Business is located at
(the "Existing Premises™). The EXxisting Business provides commercial
floor and textile maintenance to the commercial accounts (the “Existing Accounts”), each with the annual
total revenue shown on Exhibit A to this Addendum during the 12-month period immediately preceding the
1st day of the month preceding the Effective Date; the total of which is the “Annual Maintenance
Revenue” or “AMR.” Franchisee desires to operate the Franchised Business combined with the continued
operation of the Existing Business under the mitiCareMilliCare® System. The Franchised Business will be
operated from the same location as the Existing Business, and the Existing Business will be consolidated
into the Franchised Business so that from the Effective Date going forward, the Existing Business and the
Franchised Business will be operated and accounted for as one.

3. AMR. The Franchisee represents and warrants that its AMR is $

4. Initial Fee. If you currently operate a business similar to a Franchised Business and you
achieved a minimum of $200,000 in revenue from your existing commercial account customers within the
full 12-month period before the month in which you sign the Agreement, then you may be eligible for the
Conversron Program Under this Addendum, the |n|t|al fee is reduced by thefellowing—perecentages
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AR " .y
$700,001 - $800,000 35% $29;250

5———Royalties-and-Prometional Fund Contributiens.. During the term of the Agreement, the

Franchisee shall pay the Franchisor Royalties and—PmmeHenal—Fund—Gemeunens as reqwred by—theLunder
section 4.2.1(a) of the Franchlse Agreement;- : A

Me%%memhaie#@meemm%

5. ise; 70 OT
the-same-rate-otherwise stated-in-the-AgreementBillings.

6. Minimum_ Monthly Royalty. You must pay a minimum monthly Rovalty for each
Territory you own as specified in the Franchise Agreement in section 4.2.1(b). Except that conversion franchise
businesses will pay the greater of the amount specified in section 4.2.1(b) of the Franchise Agreement, or a
minimum_of 3% of converted revenue, beginning the month after completion of MilliCare
training/MilliCare Academy.

6.7.  Approved Location / Site / Facilities Layout. Franchisor approves the location of the
Existing Business for the operation of the Franchised Business and will not be required to provide
Franchisee with advice regarding its facilities layout.

8. Opening Date. Franchisee must commence business operations no later than [_—] months
of the Effective Date.

10. Transfers. If there is a transfer of the franchise and the, then this Addendum will
automatically be cancelled, and the Agreement will continue in effect without modification by this
Addendum.

11. Termination. If for any reason the Agreement terminates or expires, all of your rights
under this Addendum also end, effective as of the same date of termination or expiration of the Agreement.

Intending to be bound, the parties sign and deliver this Addendum as of the Effective Date,
regardless of the actual date of signature.
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FRANCHISOR:

FRANCHISEE:

mihiCareMilliCare Franchising, LLC

By:
Name:

Title:
Date:

milliCare Floor & Textile Care Franchise Agreement

By:

Name:

Title:

Date:
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EXHIBIT E-

OPHONAGREEMENT

milliCare Floor & Textile Care Franchise Agreement Page 60

T I 0 - el



oL
A4

at
UC

mndividual
TmTToTvVTOoOOuT

baTal
T

and
UurTa

residing
LAYZ"A A1 1] 13

eveloner
(D, 1 20
OV CIOPCT

7

Page 61

milliCare Floor & Textile Care Franchise Agreement




milliCare Floor & Textile Care Franchise Agreement Page 62

T I 0 - el



By By

5 Y-
lama lama

LI A% BB AYD TV
Titla Title
e e

milliCare Floor & Textile Care Franchise Agreement

Page 63

T I 0 - el



EXHIBIHF

CONFIDENTIALITY AND NON-COMPETITION AGREEMENT
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THIS CONFIDENTIALITY AND NON-COMPETITION AGREEMENT

TFHS-CONFBENTHALIT-AND-NON-COMPETHTHON-AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is
‘made this day of , 20___, by and between (the

“Franchisee”), and , Who is an owner, partner, shareholder, member, manager, supervisor,
and employee of Franchisee (the “Individual”).

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, MilliCare Franchising, LLC (“mitiCareMilliCare”) owns proprietary know-how
and trade secrets relating to the establishment, marketing, promotion, and operation of businesses that
provide cleaning, maintenance, and protective treatment of floors and floor coverings, interior finishes and
interior furnishings, tile and grout, and related services in commercial, industrial, and office properties (the
“miiCareMilliCare® Services System”);

WHEREAS, mithiCareMilliCare has expended time, effort, and money to develop and protect
business plans, procedures, training programs, and marketing identity in connection with the operation of
the mitiCareMilliCare® Services System;

WHEREAS, milliCareMilliCare has rights to the trademark, distinctive logo, and identifying
commercial symbol and design “miHiCareMilliCare®” for use with cleaning compounds and the service
mark and name “mihCareMilliCare®” and accompanying distinctive logo for interior maintenance, and
anticipates developing additional trademarks, trade names, service marks, and other commercial symbols
(such marks as now existing or as they may be developed hereafter being referred to herein as the
“Marks”);

WHEREAS, milliCareMilliCare maintains high standards of quality for its products and services
such that valuable goodwill is attached to the Marks;

WHEREAS, m#licareMilliCare has licensed Franchisee, under a miHCareMilliCare Floor &
Textile Care Franchise Agreement (the “Franchise Agreement”), to operate a mitiCareMilliCare®
Services System franchise under the Marks using milliCare’sMilliCare’s trade secrets and other proprietary
and confidential information in accordance with the mitiCareMilliCare® Services System;

WHEREAS, Individual, by virtue of his or her position with Franchisee, will gain access to certain
of mithiCare’sMilliCare’s Confidential Information, as defined herein, and must therefore be bound by the
same confidentiality and non-competition agreement to which Franchisee is bound; and

WHEREAS, in order to protect miltiCare’sMilliCare’s Confidential Information and intellectual
property rights, miiiCareMilliCare requires, as a condition to Franchisee’s license under the Franchise
Agreement, that Franchisee’s owners and employees enter into a Confidentiality and Non-Competition
Agreement, in which the specified Individual promises to adhere to certain non-disclosure and non-
competition covenants.

IN CONSIDERATION of these promises, Individual’s status with Franchisee, the conditions
stated herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency and receipt of which are hereby
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Ind|V|duaI hereby acknowledges that the mihCareMilliCare® Services System and the Marks are
milliCare fheos6ldea Siveig rtyeaf miliCareMilliCare and hereby agrees that he/she shaHaé6

directly or |nd|rectlv, |n anv manner or fashion, challenge or contest the right, title, or interest of
— | 0 |




mihCareMilliCare in and to the miHiCareMilliCare® Services System, nor shall Individual claim
any right, title or interest in or to the Marks.
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Individual acknowledges that we own all data and information related to customers of the Business,
including, without limitation, all data collected from former, existing, and/or potential customers
including customer names and addresses, discounts and credit extensions to customers, customer
contracts, designs, and status information (collectively “Customer Information™). If we request, you
must provide us with an up-to-date customer list in the form we prescribe. You acknowledge that
we _may require you to submit this information through our Internet system or other online
communications. We have the right to contact the customers to ascertain your quality of service and
the level of customer satisfaction. You may not use the Customer Information for any purpose
whatsoever other than in the normal conduct of the Business. Upon expiration, nonrenewal, transfer,
or termination of this Agreement, you must promptly deliver to us all customer lists, data, and
information for all past and current customers of the Business. You agree to strictly adhere to our
privacy policies we may now, or in the future, establish with respect to Customer Information.

2. Individual shall not, during the term of the Franchise Agreement or thereafter, communicate,
divulge, or use for the benefit of any other person, persons, partnership, entity, association, or
corporation any confidential information, knowledge, know-how, or techniques concerning the
methods of operation of the business franchised thereunder which may be communicated to
Individual or of which Individual may be apprised by virtue of Franchisee’s operation under the
terms of the Franchise Agreement (“Confidential Information”). In addition, any and all
information, knowledge, know-how, and techniques which mitiCareMilliCare designates as
confidential (including the Confidential Manual specified in Franchise Agreement) shall be deemed
Confidential Information for purposes of this Agreement, except information which, at or after the
time of disclosure by milliCareMilliCare to Franchisee, had become or later becomes a part of the
public domain, through publication or communication by others.

3. Individual specifically acknowledges that, pursuant to the Franchise Agreement, and by virtue of
its status with Franchisee, Individual will receive valuable specialized training and Confidential
Information, including, without limitation, information regarding the operational, sales,
promotional, and marketing methods and techniques of the milliCareMilliCare® Services System.

4. Individual covenants and agrees that during the term of the Franchise Agreement, except as
otherwise approved in writing by milliCareMilliCare, Individual shall not, either directly or
indirectly, for itself, or through, on behalf of, or in conjunction with any person, persons, partnership,
corporation, or entity:

(i) Divert or attempt to divert any business or customer of the mithiCareMilliCare®
Services System or of any franchisee using the mithiCareMilliCare® Services System to any
competitor, by direct or indirect inducement or otherwise, or do or perform, directly or indirectly,
any other act injurious or prejudicial to the goodwill associated with the Marks or the
mihCareMilliCare® Services System;

(i) Employ or seek to employ any person who is at that time employed by
mihCareMilliCare, Franchisee, or any other franchisee of milliCareMilliCare, or otherwise
directly or indirectly induce such person to leave his or her employment; or

(i) Own, maintain, engage in, participate in, make loans to, or have any interest in any
business that offers products or services that are essentially the same as, or substantially similar to,
the products or services that are part of the mitiCareMilliCare® Services System, except other
franchises offered by mitliCareMilliCare (any business carrying on such activities being herein
called a “Competing Business”).

(iv) Disclose Customer Information and our other proprietary information, trade secrets,

millicare &b, CoRfigential farmatinndoqthird parties, including entering such information into publig/gpen
Atrtificial Intelligence models or any other Al model that uses such information to train the Artificial
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Intelligence unless specifically authorized by us in writing.

5. Individual covenants and agrees that during the Post-Term Period (defined below), except as
otherwise approved in writing by milliCareMilliCare, Individual shall not, either directly or
indirectly, for itself, or through, on behalf of, or in conjunction with any person, persons, partnership,
corporation, or entity:

@ Provide or seek to provide products or services that are essentially the same as, or
substantially similar to, the products or services that are part of the mitiCareMilliCare® Services
System, to any customer who was a customer of Franchisee, milliCareMilliCare, or another
franchisee of the milliCareMilliCare® Services System at any time during the twelve months prior
to the beginning of the Post-Term Period;

(b) Employ or seek to employ any person who, at any time during the six months prior

to the beginning of the Post-Term Period, was employed by mitiCareMilliCare or by another
franchisee of the mitiCareMilliCare® Services System; or
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10.

11.

(©) Own, maintain, engage in, participate in, or have any interest in any Competing
Business in the Franchisee’s Territory. (This sub-section (c) shall not apply to those individuals
who are only employees of Franchisee.)

As used in this Agreement, the term “Post-Term Period” shall mean a continuous uninterrupted
period of 2 years from the date of: (a) a transfer permitted under Section 5 of the Franchise
Agreement; (b) expiration or termination of the Franchise Agreement (regardless of the cause for
termination); and/or (c) termination of Individual’s status with Franchisee.

Individual acknowledges that any failure to comply with the requirements of this Agreement will
cause mithiCareMilliCare irreparable injury, and Individual agrees to pay all court costs and
reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by milliCareMilliCare in obtaining specific performance of, or
an injunction against violation of, the requirements of this Agreement.

All agreements and covenants contained herein are severable. If any of them, or any part or parts
of them, shall be held invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction for any reason, then the
Individual agrees that the court shall have the authority to reform and modify that provision in order
that the restriction shall be the maximum necessary to protect milliCare’sMilliCare’s and/or
Franchisee’s legitimate business needs as permitted by applicable law and public policy. Inso doing,
Individual agrees that the court shall impose the provision with retroactive effect as close as
possible to the provision held to be invalid.

No delay or failure by mitiiCareMilliCare or Franchisee to exercise any right under this Agreement,
and no partial or single exercise of that right, shall constitute a waiver of that or any other right
provided herein, and no waiver of any violation of any terms and provisions of this Agreement shall
be construed as a waiver of any succeeding violation of the same or any other provision of this
Agreement.

Individual hereby acknowledges and agrees that milliCareMilliCare is an intended third-party
beneficiary of this Agreement with the right to enforce it, independently or jointly with Franchisee.

This Agreement shall survive the termination of Individual’s relationship with Franchisee and the
transfer, termination, or expiration of the Franchise Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Franchisee and Individual attest that each has read and understands

the terms of this Agreement, and voluntarily signed this Agreement on this ——day of :

20— .

FRANCHISEE INDIVIDUAL

By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:
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EXHIBIT GE

LIST OF FRANCHISEES
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A. Open Outlets

Current as of Mareh-10,2023 December 31, 2024

United States Franchises-Franchisees

Franchisee Name/ Owner Name Street Address CityPhone
Territory
ALABAMA
millicareMilliCare of N.W. Mike Barranco 350 Leavell Circle, Montgomery, (334)--377-
Florida, S. Alabama** Alabama, 36117 9269
millicareMilliCare of — Mike Barranco 350 Leavell Circle, Montgomery, (334)--377-
Montgomery** Alabama, 36117 9269
CALIFORNIA
- . 309 Pyral Ct.., San Ramon (415)--613-
_ *x
MilliCare Bay Area - San Jose David Copeland California, 94582 3602
- . 309 Pyral Ct.., San Ramon {415)--613-
_ ** z
MilliCare Bay Area — Oakland David Copeland California, 94582 3602
millicareMilliCare by Advanced Michael Gottlieb | 16742 Stagg Street, Unit 102, Van {818)--901-
Green Solutions Ryan Afromsky | Nuys, California, 91406 7949
COLORADO

millicare——MilliCare by——

Arete Jasen-Mantas 773 Capilano Court, Castle Rock, j@i??i 24-
- Commercial— Hygiene | Ken Granader Colorado, 80108 —
- North o5/87

. .
= o
. - - 773 Capilano Court, Castle Rock —{303)--324-
millicareMilliCare Denver South - Ken Granader Colorado, 80108 5787
DELAWARE
millicareMilliCare by EBC Carpet Chin Rankin 1300 First State Blvd, Suite 1, {302)--995-
Services — Wilmington,DE** P Wilmington, Delaware, 19804 7461
FLORIDA

millicareMilliCare by Sustaining Grace Cubarrubia 4100 North Powerline Road, Suite E- | (561)-972-
Interiors 5, Pompano Beach, Florida, 33073 5311
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millicareMilliCare by Cubix — Rick DeVane 9454 Phillips Highway, Suite 3, {904)--524-
Jacksonville** Jacksonville, Florida, 32256 0519
millicareMilliCare by Cubix - Rick DeVane 9454 Phillips Highway, Suite 3, {904)--296-
Albany-Tallahassee** Jacksonville, Florida, 32256 9355
. - 6625 55th Street, North Suite
rilicareMilliCare by Suncoast Randy Keech 110/120, Pinellas, Park, Florida, (904}-296-
Facility -Management -Tampa Bay 30256 9355
millicareMilliCare by Cubix — Rick DeVane 6450 Kingspointe Parkway, Suite 10, | (407)--373-
Orlando** Orlando, Florida, 32819 7410
mH#GaiiMIIIICare by Cubix — Rick DeVane 3927 Progress _Road, Suite 101, (863)--937-
Tampa Lakeland, Florida, 33811 7073
GEORGIA
millicareMilliCare by KleanWorx, . 2213 Avalon Road, Alpharetta (404)--402-
LLC Travis Shepard | <0 0ria, 30009 3000
ILLINOIS
millicareMilliCare by Optimum Trish Jensen 812 Central Avenue, Roselle, Illinois, | {314)--368-
Floor Care** 60172 4475
Mile-FloorCare
millicareMilliCare by MR Jensen Mitch Jensen 2080 Concourse Drive, St. Louis (314)--291-
Enterprises (Peoria, IL)** Missouri, 60172 4811
—CrewnOptimum Floor Care - Trish Jensen i/(I)BO Co-n%%ulrjg Drive, St. Louis 235311?:291'
Crowne Point*** —
INDIANA
millicareMilliCare by Carpet Mike Heffernan 7898 East 88th Street, Indianapolis (513)-772-
Concepts — Indianapolis** Indiana, 46256 7060
KENTUCKY
- - 146 Wood Hill Road, Bardstown {502)--493-
millicareMilliCare of Kentucky Jeff Blackstone Kentucky, 40004 5911
LOUISIANA
millicareMilliCare by Floor Care Michael Davis 823 Carroll Street, Suite A3, (985)--789-
Concepts Mandeville, Louisiana, 70448 8786
MARYLAND
MilliCare New-Orleansby EBC LeilaWallerGeoff | 841 WalkerStreet4385 Nicole Drive, | New-Orleans-
Carpet Services - Balt/Wash** Snavely Lanham, Maryland, 20706 301-552-1800
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MASSACHUSETTS

MilliCare SouthShore and Cape

Chris Padovano

13 Cornmill Way, Rockland,
Massachusetts, 02370

857-205-4859

MICHIGAN

Mid-Michigan MilliCare

Jack McAlpine

15620 Dice Road, Hemlock,
Michigan, 48626

989-780-1079

MilliCare Ann Arbor

Chris Kushmaul

1355 Ardmoor Ave, Ann Arbor,

and Gabe Arreola

Michigan, 48103

734-834-1963

MilliCare Detroit

Chris Kushmaul

1355 Ardmoor Ave, Ann Arbor,

and Gabe Arreola

Michigan, 48103

734-834-1963




MARYLAND-

SEF“'GES Batuﬂ[ash**
MASEACEIEEE
MilliCare of Boston | Oliver Kell | 165 M Street | Boston | Massachusetts | 02127 | (978)487-5568
MICEIC AR
Mid-Michigan-miliCare | JackMeAlpine | 45620 DiceRoad | Hemilock | Michigan [ 48626 | (9897801079
MISSOURI
millicareMilliCare by RTH Bob Harrison 6528 Raytown Road, Suite H, (816)--358-
Commercial Interiors Raytown, Missouri, 64133 1220
millicareMilliCare by MR Jensen Mitch Jensen 2080 Concourse Drive, St. Louis (314)-291-
Enterprises** Missouri, 63146 4811
NEBRASKA
- . . 2500 Bretigne Circle, Lincoln, NE (402)--214-
millicareMilliCare Lincoln/Omaha | Dave Graf 68512 0730
NEVADA
millicareMilliCare by ADL Agnes Lyons 961 Pebble Lake Street, Las VVegas {702)--423-
EcoCare, Inc. - Las Vegas g y Nevada, 89011 5198
NEW JERSEY
. - . . 160 B Fornelius Avenue, Clifton (973)-574-
millicareMilliCare by EcoDry Jim Skillen New Jersey, 7013 9955
NEW YORK
- . 49 Linda Court, Delmar, New York, (518)--975-
MilliCare Albany Brianne Conner 12054 2831
NORTH CAROLINA
millicareMilliCare by Clean Chris Youn 869 Riverside Drive, Asheville, North | {828)--239-
Environments, Inc. - Asheville g Carolina, 28804 0040
millicareMilliCare by Dredin, LLC 510 Pylon Drive, Raleigh, North {919)--648-
- Raleigh Andre Prasad Carolina, 27606 1308
— — . = = | . 28517
Selutions Charlelic 518
OHIO
millicareMilliCare by Carpet Michael 9048 Sutton Place, Hamilton, Ohio, (513)-772-
Concepts — Cincinnati** Heffernan 45011 7060

T I T - el




millicareMilliCare by Carpet Michael 7536 Reliance Street, Worthington, (513)-772-
Concepts — Columbus** Heffernan Ohio, 43085 7060

Olhl i'oga eMilliCare of Northern Michael Raintree Industrial Park, 5380-F £330)--603-
Opsitnick Jr Nainman Pkwy, Solon, Ohio, 44139 8525

OKLAHOMA

millicareMilliCare by Facility Rvan Tait 8021 West Reno Avenue, Oklahoma | {405)--232-
Solutions of Oklahoma y City, Oklahoma, 73127 3379

“*“@aFeOkl : mw by MES i MeGollough | 56630 South Mingo Road, Tulsa, | (918)-270-
ahoma 9" | Oklahoma, 74146 1515

PENNSYLVANIA

millicareMilliCare of Western Michael 2828 Broadway Blvd, Unit 8, {330)--603-
Pennsylvania Opsitnick Jr Monroeville, Pennsylvania, 15146 8525

millicareMilliCare by CIS Jim Graf 4903 Old William Penn Highway, (724)-733-
DryCare Monroeville, Pennsylvania, 15146 4486

millicareMilliCare by EBC Carpet Chib Rankin 1300 First State Blvd., Suite 1, (302)--995-
Services — Philadelphia, PA** P Wilmington, Delaware, 19804 7461

SOUTH CAROLINA

MilliCare by Select Facility
Solutions Charlotte*

Brian Farmer

203 Belmont Stake Way, Greenville,
South Carolina, 29615

704-445-7087

millicareMilliCare by Select

Facility Solutions Brian Earmer 1018 South Batesville Road, Bldg 3- | (864)--616-
Y C, Greer, South Carolina, 29650 1828
_Greenville
TENNESSEE

millicareMilliCare by Premium Nancy and 3895 Vantech Drive, Bldg D, {901)--869-
Floor Care and Services Bernie Fechter Memphis, Tennessee, 38115 9055
millicareMilliCare by Sustainable Tom Yow 4825 Trousdale Drive, Suite 107, (615)--833-
Flooring Solutions Nashville, Tennessee, 37220 3506
EI nl vi;roansr% k?_/ ﬁlr?(?)r:ville « | Chris Youn 869 Riverside Drive, Asheville, North | (828)--239-
o NG = g Carolina, 28804 0040
- TEXAS

. . . 4584 Ripley Drive, 9B, EIl Paso {915)-581-
millicareMilliCare by Ecoclean Fred King Texas, 79922 4326

. . . . 1115 Shady Lane, Austin, Texas, {512)--844-

** —

millicareMilliCare Austin David May 28721 2790
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. - . . 1115 Shady Lane, Austin, Texas, {512)--844-
*x

millicareMilliCare San Antonio David May 28721 2790
millicareMilliCare Houston Adam Wright 31726 Midlake Park, Conroe, Texas, | {832)--302-
North** g 77385 5163
millicareMilliCare Houston Adam Wright 31726 Midlake Park, Conroe, Texas, | {832)--302-
Central** g 77385 5163
MilliCare of Houston South** Paul Rooney ;‘%ﬁ;hadsca'e Lane, Manvel, Texas. | 513 g9.968
MilliCare of Houston West** Paul Rooney %éz?lSShadscale Lane, Manvel, Texas, 513-289-9268

. - Balaji 638 Glen Lakes Drive, Coppell, (214)--935-
m" GaFe *x

MilliCare of Dallas Subramaniam Texas, 75019 2862

MilliCare of McKinney**

Balaji

Subramaniam

638 Glen Lakes Drive, Coppell,
Texas, 75019

214-935-2862




— . = SalaiSul o 538 Glon Lakes D . | = (214} 9352862
UTAH
millicareMilliCare by Commercial 1645 South 500 West, \Woods Cross {801)--580-

Floor Source

Carol Cluff

Utah, 84014

5965

MilliCare Salt Lake City

Gustavo Ferraro

1003 W. Louise Meadow Drive,

South Jordan, Utah, 84095

801-232-5555

VIRGINIA

millicareMilliCare by EBC

. . 814 Greenbriar Circle, Suite O (757)--424-
Carpet LT = -
_Seeri)ces** Chip Rankin Chesapeake, Virginia, 23320 0405
* Franchisee has territory that straddles two states.
** Denotes Multi-Unitmulti-unit Operator-
B. Signed -but Unepened-Outlets-unopened outlets
Franchisee Name/ Owner Name Address Phone
g e . . + . i g !l : =
miiCareMilliCare of Birmingham Mike Barranco iSIgbI;en;il;/eél(s(ﬂr;:Ie Montgomer (334}93(2;

Pending (2 units)

Finn McCarter

768 Via Callado, Oceanside,

California, 92057

760-672-1672

e

* Denotes existing multi-unit ewsner——




Operator




‘ EXHIBIT HG

LIST OF FRANCHISEES WHO HAVE LEFT THE SYSTEM

The following is a list of the name, city and state and current business telephone number, of every franchisee
who had an outlet terminated, canceled, not renewed, or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do
business under the franchise agreement during the most recently completed fiscal year or who has not
communicated with the franchisor within 10 weeks of the disclosure document issuance date.

L
loori luti

I"SEEE.”E;.HGH Managerment WichitaKS-67220

Fransfers
Alabama
Location Franchisee Address Phone
MilliCare of Boston Oliver Kell 165 M Street, Boston, MA 02127 978-487-5568
MilliCare by Arete Commercial] Jason Mantas 372 Mountain View Road, #3, Johnstown, | 303-222-1056
Hyagiene — North * CO 80534
MilliCare by Arete Jason Mantas 372 Mountain View Road, #3, Johnstown, | 303- 222-1056
Commercial Hygiene—South * ICO 80534
MilliCare of Northern Ohio Michael Opsitnick |Raintree Industrial Park, 5380-F Nainman
xox I Pkwy. Solon, Ohio, 44139 330-603-8525

* Indicates transfer
** Failed to communicate

| milliCare
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FRANCHISEE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION
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MHEHICARE FLOOR-&TFEXTHE-CAREFRANCHISEEPRE-CLOSING COMPLIANCE
CERTHHICATONACKNOWLEDGMENT

NOTICE FOR PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEES WHO RESIDE IN, ORWHO INTEND TO OPERATE THE
FRANCHISED BUSINESS IN, ANY OF THE FOLLOWING STATES: CA HI IL, IN, MD, MI, MN, NY,
ND, RI, SD, VA, WA, WI (EACH A REGULATED STATE) :

FOR PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEES THAT RESIDE IN OR ARE SEEKING TO OPERATE THE FRANCHISED
BUSINESS IN ANY REGULATED STATE, DO NOT COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE OR TO RESPOND
TO ANY OF THE QUESTIONS CONTAINED IN THIS QUESTIONNAIRE.

As you know, MilliCare Franchising, LLC(the-“Franchisor?)-you and yeuwe are preparing-to-enterentering
into a Franchise Agreement for the establishment-and-operation of a “milliCare®” franchised business-

offering the Franchised Business. The purpose of this gquestionnaire-Acknowledgment Addendum is to
determine whether any statements or promises were made to you that the—Franchiser-has-we have not

authorlzed andor that may be untrue inaccurate, or mlsleadlng—lllease%eweweaeheﬁheiene\wnguesnens

, and to be certain that you understand the limitations on claims that may be made by you by reason of the offer and sale
of the franchise and operation of the Business. Where a question refers to a “person speaking on behalf of the
Franchisor,” this phrase does not include mitiCare®franchiseesother Franchisees, who are not authorized to speak
on behalf of the Franchisor. Please review each of the following questions carefully and provide honest responses to

each guestion.

Have yeureceivedAcknowledgments and persenally-reviewed-Representations. *

1. Did you receive a copy of our Disclosure Document (and all exhibits and attachments) at least (a) 14 calendar
days prior to signing the Franchise Agreement-and-each-exhibit-attached-to; or (b) if you are a resident of New
York, at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 10 business days before the execution of the Franchise
Agreement (or other agreement) or payment of any consideration; or (c) if you are a resident of Michigan, or
lowa, at the earlier of 10 business days before the execution of any binding agreement or payment of any
consideration? Check one: () Yes () No. If no, please comment:

i

milliCare Floor & Textile Care Franchise Disclosure Document

Yac No
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Pe2. Have you studied and carefully reviewed our Disclosure Document and Franchise Agreement? Check one: ()
Yes () No. If no, please comment:

3. If the franchisor made any unilateral changes to the Franchise Agreement, did you receive a copy of the complete
revised agreement at least 7 calendar days prior to the date on which the applicable agreement was executed?
Check one: () Not Applicable () Yes. (1) No. If no, please comment:

{2)-4. Did you understand all ef-the information contained in both the Disclosure Document and
Franchise Agreement-and-each-exhibitattached-to-it?
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5. Was any oral, written, or visual claim or representation made to you which contradicted the disclosures in the
Disclosure Document? Check one: () No () Yes. If yes, please state in detail the oral, written, or visual claim or
representation:

@8 6. Except as stated in Item 19 of the Disclosure Document, did any employee or other person speaking on
behalf of the Franchlsor madeanymake any oral, ertten or visual claim, statement-or, promise or representation

to you that 2 he stated suqqested predicted,
or projected sales, revenues, op i

I;F&Hehtseper—tts#anehlseesﬁexpenses earnlnqs income, or proflt Ievels at any Franchlsed Busmess Iocatlon or
business, or the likelihood of success at your franchised Business? Check one: () No () Yes. If yes, please state
in detail the oral, written, or visual claim or representation:

Arrye émploied itherDpersent speaking on behalf of the Franchisor mademake any statement or
promise regardmg the costs yeu—may—meuﬂnvolved in operating a franchise that is not contained in the
“mitliCare®” franchised-businessDisclosure Document or that is contrary to, or different from, the information

contained in the FBB2Disclosure Document. Check one: () No () Yes. If yes, please comment:
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Do vou understand that the Franchise Agreement grants you the right to operate a Franchised Business offering

the Approved Services using the Trademarks for such Approved Service in a specified geographic area, and that
we and our affiliates reserve any and all rights not expressly granted to you under the Franchise Agreement, as
detailed and disclosed in Item 12 of the Disclosure Document. Check one: () Yes () No. If no, please
comment:

TR I i - ol



Do you understand that the Franchise Agreement contains the entire agreement between you and us concerning

the franchise for the Business, meaning that any prior oral or written statements not set out in the applicable
agreement or in the disclosure document will not be binding? Check one: () Yes () No. If no, please
comment:

10.

Do vou understand that the success or failure of the Business will depend in large part upon your skills and

experience, your business acumen, your location, the local market for products under the Trademarks, interest
rates, the economy, weather patterns, inflation, the number of employees you hire and their compensation,
competition, and other economic and business factors? Further, do you understand that the economic and business
factors that exist at the time you commence operations of the Business may change? Check one () Yes (_ )
No. If no, please comment:

11.

Do you understand that you are likely to achieve results that are different, possibly significantly and adversely,

from the results shown in Item 19. Many factors, including the location of your Franchised Business, customers
located within the territory, management capabilities, local market conditions, weather, and other factors, are
unique to each Franchised Business and may significantly impact the financial performance of the business
you operate. Check one () Yes (_ ) No. If no, please comment:

12.

Do you understand that during the term of the Franchise Agreement and for two years after it expires or terminates,

you (including all Principal Operators, your Designated Manager and all guarantors, officers, directors, members,
managers, and partners) may not, directly, or indirectly, have or maintain any interest in any business selling
products or services similar to the Products and Services sold by a Franchised Business?

Check one () Yes () No. If no, please comment:

13.

Do you understand that any training, support, guidance or tools we provided to you as part of the franchise are

for the purpose of protecting the System, and brand and Trademarks and to assist you in the operation of your
business and not for the purpose of controlling or in any way intended to exercise or exert control over you
decisions or day-to-day operations of your business, including your sole responsibility for the hiring, wages
and other compensation (including benefits), training, supervision and termination of your employees and all
other employment and employee related matters? Check one () Yes () No. If no, please comment:

ft OGRSy promises or representations of any kind that you will achieve any

15.

particular results or Ievel of performance or profitability or even achieve break-even results in any particular
year of operation?

Check one () Yes () No. If no, please comment:

On the receipt pages of your disclosure document you identified as the

franchise seller(s) involved in this franchise sales process. Are the franchise sellers identified above the only
franchise sellers involved with this transaction? Check one () Yes () No. If no, please identify any
additional franchise sellers involved with this transaction:

YOU UNDERSTAND THAT YOUR ANSWERS ARE IMPORTANT TO US AND THAT WE WILL RELY ON

THEM. BY SIGNING THIS ADDENDUM, YOU ARE REPRESENTING THAT YOU HAVE CONSIDERED
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EACH QUESTION CAREFULLY AND RESPONDED TRUTHFULLY TO THE ABOVE QUESTIONS. IF MORE
SPACE IS NEEDED FOR ANY ANSWER, CONTINUE ON A SEPARATE SHEET AND ATTACH.

NOTE: IF THE RECIPIENT IS A CORPORATION, PARTNERSHIP, LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
OR OTHER ENTITY, EACH OF ITS PRINCIPAL OWNERS MUST EXECUTE THIS

ACKNOWLEDGMENT.

FRANCHISE APPLICANT
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| ADDENDUM TO THE-MHHICAREFLOOR & TEXTH-E-CARE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT
| REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

The following paragraphs are added to the Disclosure Document:

OUR WEBSITE HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY THE CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND INNOVATION. ANY COMPLAINTS
CONCERNING THE CONTENT OF THIS WEBSITE MAY BE DIRECTED TO THE CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF

BUSINESS OVERSIGHT at www.dpfi.ca.gov.

THE CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW REQUIRES THAT A COPY OF ALL
PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE BE DELIVERED
TOGETHER WITH THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT CONTAINS PROVISIONS THAT LIMIT FRANCHISEE’S RIGHTS
AND MAY NOT BE ENFORCEABLE IN YOUR STATE INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, A
TIME LIMIT TO RAISE CLAIMS AGAINST THE FRANCHISOR, LIMITATION OF DAMAGES AND
WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL.

Item 5 is amended as follows:

Based upon the franchisor's financial condition, the California Department of Financial Protection and

Innovation has required a financial assurance. Therefore, all initial fees and payments owed by franchisees
shall be deferred until the franchisor completes its pre-opening obligations under the franchise agreement.

The following paragraphs are added at the end of Item 17 of the Disclosure Document pursuant to regulations
promulgated under the California Franchise Investment Law:

California Law Regarding Termlnatlon and Nonrenewal Callfornla Busmess and Professmns Code

| milliCare Floor & TG*-‘”‘”'G@@ FIPEhe EaNERISE R greBMEHE contains a pl’OVISIOﬂ that is inconsistent with the law, the law will
control.

Termination Upon Bankruptcy. The Franchise Agreement provides for termination upon bankruptcy.
This provision may not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11

U.S.C.A. Sec. 101 et. seq.).

Post-Termination Noncompetition Covenants. The Franchise Agreement contains a covenant not to
compete which extends beyond the termination of the respective agreement. These provisions may not be
enforceable under California law.

Applicable Law. The Franchise Agreement requires application of the laws of the Statestate of Seuth-
CarelinaFranchisor’s then-current National Headquarters (presently Florida) with certain exceptions. These
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provisions may not be enforceable under California law.

Avrbitration. The Franchise Agreement requires binding arbitration. The arbitration is to occur at the
office of the American Arbitration Association in Spartanburg;-Seuth-Carelinathe city and state of Franchisor’s

then-current National Headquarters (presently Orlando, Florida) with costs being borne by the non-
prevailing party.

Prospective franchisees are encouraged to consult private legal counsel to determine the applicability
of California and federal laws (such as Business and Professions Code Section 20040.5, Code of Civil
Procedure Section 1281, and the Federal Arbitration Act) to any provisions of a franchise agreement
restricting venue to a forum outside the State of California.

Neither the Franchisor, nor any person or franchise broker in Item 2 of the Franchise Disclosure
Document, is subject to any currently effective order of any national securities association or national
securities exchange, as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C.A. 78a et seq., suspending or
expelling such persons from membership in that associate or exchange.

You must sign a general release if you renew or transfer your franchise. California Corporations
Code §31512 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Investment Law (California Corporations
Code §831000 through 31516). Business and Professions Code 820010 voids a waiver of your rights under the
Franchise Relations Act (Business and Professions Code 8820000 through 20043).

£520000threnen 200/ 2,

The disclosure document, franchise agreement and any document signed in connection with the franchise
are supplemented with the following language:

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with
the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under

any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any

statement by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of franchisor. This
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

***THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK***
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/ADDENDUM
TO THE MH-LHICAREFLOOR & TEXTH-ECARE-FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF ILLINOIS

In recognition of the requirements of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987, the
mHHCareMilliCare Floor & Textile Care Franchise Disclosure Document for use in the State of Illinois
shall be amended as follows:

1. Item 17(b), under the heading “Renewal or extension of the term,” shall be amended by the
addition of the following language at the end thereof:

Your rights upon non-renewal may be affected by Illinois law, 815 ILCS 705/20.

2. Item 17(f), under the heading “Termination by the Company with cause,” shall be amended
by the addition of the following language at the end thereof:

The conditions under which your franchise can be terminated may be affected by
Ilinois law, 815 ILCS 705/19.

3. Item 17(v), under the heading “Choice of forum,” shall be amended by the addition of the
following language at the end thereof:

You may commence an action against us in Illinois with respect to any cause of
action arising under Illinois law.

4. Item 17(w), under the heading “Choice of law,” shall be amended by the addition of the
following language at the end thereof:

Illinois law, however, will apply to all claims arising under Illinois law.

5. Each provision of this Addendum to the Franchise Disclosure Document shall be effective
only to the extent, with respect to such provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the Illinois
Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987 are met independently without reference to this Addendum to the
Franchise Disclosure Document

milliCare Floor & Textile Care Franchise Disclosure Document

6. The disclosure document, franchise agreement and any document signed in connection with the
franchise are supplemented with the following language:

No statement, guestionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims
under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming
reliance on any statement by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of

franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with

the franchise.

***THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK***
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milliCare

AMENDMENT TO THE MHHECAREFLOOR & TEXTH-ECARE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF ILLINOIS

In recognition of the requirements of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987, the parties to
the mitiCareMilliCare Floor & Textile Care Franchise Agreement (the “Franchise Agreement”) agree as
follows with respect to franchises sold in the state of Illinois:

1. Section 1.4.3 of the Franchise Agreement, under the heading “Renewal Conditions,” shall
be supplemented by the addition of the following language at the end of the Section:

If any of the provisions of this Section 1.4.3 concerning non-renewal are
inconsistent with the provisions of Section 20 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure

Act of 1987, then the provisions of Section 20 of the Act shall apply.

2. Section 6.1 of the Franchise Agreement, under the heading “Termination by Franchisor,”
shall be supplemented by the addition of the following language at the end of the Section:

If any of the provisions of this Section 6.1 concerning termination are inconsistent
with Section 19 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987, then the
provisions of Section 19 of the Act shall apply.

3. Section 7.1 of the Franchise Agreement, under the heading “Governing Law,” shall be
supplemented by the addition of the following language at the end of the Section:
Ilinois law, however, will apply to all claims arising under Illinois law.

4, Section 7.2 of the Franchise Agreement, under the heading “Forum Selection;
Jurisdiction,” shall be supplemented by the addition of the following language at the end of the Section:
Franchisee shall not, however, be required to litigate any cause of action, with the exception

of arbitration proceedings, arising under the Franchise Agreement or Illinois law outside
of the state of lllinois.

5. Section 7.6 of the Franchise Agreement, under the heading “No Punitive Damages.” shall
be supplemented by the addition of the following language at the end of the Section:

Any condition, stipulation, or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring
any franchise to waive compliance with any provision of the Illinois Franchise

disclosure Act or any other law of the State of Illinois is void.
6. Section 7.7 of the Franchise Agreement, under the heading “No Trial By Jury,” shall be

a e 0 1
Any condition, stipulation, or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring
any franchise to waive compliance with any provision of the Illinois Franchise

Disclosure Act or any law of the State of Illinois is void.

7. Section 7.9 of the Franchise Agreement, under the heading “Limitation of Claims,” shall
be supplemented by the addition of the following language at the end of the Section:
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No action shall be maintained under the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987
to enforce any liability created by the Act unless brought before the expiration of
3 years after the act or transaction constituting the violation upon which it is based,
the expiration of one year after Franchisee becomes aware of facts or
circumstances reasonably indicating that it may have a claim for relief in respect
to conduct governed by the Act, or 90 days after delivery to Franchisee of a written
notice disclosing the violation, whichever shall first expire.

8. The franchise agreement and any document signed in connection with the franchise are
supplemented with the following language:

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims
under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming
reliance on any statement by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of
franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with

the franchise.

9. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent, with respect to
such provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the Illinois Franchise disclosure Act of 1987 are met
independently without reference to this Amendment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Illinois Amendment to the
Franchise Agreement in duplicate on the date indicated below.

FRANCHISEE: FRANCHISOR:
(If an individual) MilliCare Franchising, LLC
milliCare PR Textile Care Franchise Disclosure Dacument
Print Name: o
Title:




By: Title:

—— (If a corporation) Date:

Name of corporation:
State of incorporation:
Signed by:

Title:

Cinnad hyvy:
ulvll o M]l

Titlp-
miaisD

(If a limited liability company)

Name of company:
State of organization:
Signed by:
Title [member or manager]:

***THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK***

| milliCare Floor & Textile Care Franchise Disclosure Document




MARYLAND_

| milliCare Floor & Textile Care Franchise Disclosure Document




ADDENDUM TO THE MH-LHICAREFLOOR & TEXTH-ECARE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MARYLAND

1. Item 5 is amended by the following language:

Based upon the franchisor's financial condition, the Maryland Securities Commissioner has required
a financial assurance. Therefore, all initial fees and payments owed by franchisees shall be deferred
until the franchisor completes its pre-opening obligations under the franchise agreement.

2. Item 17 is amended by adding the following language after the table:

©) You may sue in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise
Registration and Disclosure Law. Any claims arising under the Maryland
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must be brought within 3 years after
the grant of the franchise.

(b) The provision in the franchise agreement which provides for termination upon
bankruptcy of the franchisee may not be enforceable under Federal Bankruptcy
Law (11 U.S.C. Section 1010 et seq.)

(© This franchise agreement provides that disputes are resolved through arbitration.
A Maryland franchise regulation states that it is an unfair or deceptive practice to
require a franchisee to waive its right to file a lawsuit in Maryland claiming a
violation of the Maryland Franchise Law. In light of the Federal Arbitration Act,
there is some dispute as to whether this forum selection requirement is legally
enforceable.

(d) The General Release required as a condition of renewal, sale and/or
assignment/transfer shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise
Registration and Disclosure Law.

3. The disclosure document, franchise agreement, development agreement and any document
signed in connection with the franchise are supplemented with the following language:

-No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to

by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship
shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise

law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any
statement by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of
franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in
connection with the franchise.
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MARYLAND AMENDMENT

TO THE MILLICARE FLOOR & TEXTH-ECARE
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT-ANB-OPTHON-AGREEMENT

REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MARYLAND

The parties to the mitiCareMilliCare Floor & Textile Care Franchise Agreement (the
“Franchise Agreement”) agree as follows with respect to franchises sold in the state of Maryland:

1. Initial Franchise Fee and Start-Up Package. Based upon the franchisor's financial
condition, the Maryland Securities Commissioner has required a financial assurance. Therefore, all initial
fees and payments owed by franchisees shall be deferred until the franchisor completes its pre-opening
obligations under the franchise agreement. -Sections 2.8 and 4.1 of the Franchise-Agreementand-Section

11 of the Optien Agreement are hereby amended accordingly.

2. No Release, Estoppel or Waiver of State Law. All representations requiring prospective
franchisees to assent to a release, estoppels or waiver of liability are not intended to nor shall they act as a
release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred under the Maryland Franchise Registration and
Disclosure Law (“Maryland Law”).

3. Jurisdiction. Any litigation arising from claims under Maryland Law may be brought by
the Franchisee in Maryland.

4. Arbitration.— This franchise agreement provides that disputes are resolved through
arbitration. A Maryland franchise regulation states that it is an unfair or deceptive practice to require a
franchisee to waive its right to file a lawsuit in Maryland claiming a violation of the Maryland Franchise
Law. In light of the Federal Arbitration Act, there is some dispute as to whether this forum selection
requirement is legally enforceable.

5. Limitation on Claims. All claims arising under the Maryland Law must be brought within
3 years after the grant of the franchise.

6. General Release. The general release required as a condition of renewal, sale and/or
assignment/transfer shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and
Disclosure Law.

7. Acknowledgments. -Section 7.24 of the Franchise Agreement is hereby deleted in its
entirety.

8. The franchise agreement and any document signed in connection with the franchise are
supplemented with the following language:

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of
(i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the
inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement by any franchisor, franchise

MilliCare Floor & Textile Care
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seller, or other person acting on behalf of franchisor. This provision supersedes any other
term of any document executed in connection with the franchise

Signatures appear on the following page.

MilliCare Floor & Textile Care
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Illinois Amendment to the
Franchise Agreement in duplicate on the date indicated below.

FRANCHISEE: FRANCHISOR:
(If an individual) MilliCare Franchising, LLC
Signed:
By
TFitle:
Print Name:

Cinnnd hyvye:
SHgHee Iy

J

Titla-

Lot limi :

***THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK***
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ADDENDUM TO THE-MHHICAREFLOOR & TEXTH-E-CARE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MINNESOTA

In recognition of the requirements of the Minnesota Franchise Act, Minn. Stat. §8 80C.01 through
80C.22, and of the Rules and Regulations promulgated thereunder by the Minnesota Commissioner of
Commerce, Minn. Rules 8§ 2860.0100 through 2860.9930, the Franchise Disclosure Document of
mitiCareMilliCare Floor & Textile Care for use in the state of Minnesota shall be amended to include the
following:

1. Item 5 shall be amended to include:

m%GaFe—MC—andqls—wbsldHFy#eHhe—yeapmded—Deeembe%i—Based upon the

franchisor's financial condition, the State of Minnesota has required a financial assurance.
Therefore, all initial fees and payments owed by franchisees shall be deferred until the
franchisor completes its pre-opening obligations under the franchise agreement.

2. Item 13, “Trademarks,” shall be amended by deleting the sixth paragraph and substituting
the following paragraph in lieu thereof:

You must promptly notify the Company of any unauthorized use of any of the
trademarks, or any colorable variation of the trademarks, by third parties. You
must promptly notify the Company of any claim, demand, or suit against you based
upon, or arising in connection with, your use of the trademarks. You have no
authority to defend or prosecute any action relating to the trademarks, and the
Company in its sole discretion, may elect to defend or prosecute any action relating
to the trademarks. If the Company defends or prosecutes any action relating to the
trademarks, you will execute any and all documents and do all acts necessary to
carry out the litigation. Pursuant to Minnesota Stat. Sec. 80C.12, Subd. 1(g), we
are required to protect any rights which you have to use our Marks.

3. Items 17 (b), (c), (e), and (k) of the Franchise Agreement chart, under the headings
“Renewal or extension of the term,” “Requirements for you to renew or extend,” “Termination by
the Company without cause” and “Transfer by you — definition,” shall be amended by the addition
of the following language at the conclusion of the provisions:

Minnesota law provides franchisees with certain termination, non-renewal, and
transfer rights. In sum, Minn. Stat. § 80C.14 (subd. 3, 4, and 5) currently requires,
except in certain specified cases, that a franchisee be given 90 days’ notice of
termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days’ notice of nonrenewal of the
Franchise Agreement, and that consent to the transfer of the franchise not be
unreasonably denied.

4, Item 17(m) of the Franchise Agreement chart, under the heading “Conditions for Company
i | . ise Disel




approval of transfer,” shall be amended by adding the following language at the end of the Item:

The general release will not apply to any liability under the Minnesota Franchise
Law.

5. Item 17 (v) of the Franchise Agreement chart, under the heading “Choice of forum,”
shall be amended by deleting in its entirety and replacing it with the following:

Minn. Stat. 880C.21 and Minn. Rule 2860.4400J prohibit you from requiring
litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota. In addition, nothing in the disclosure
document or agreement can abrogate or reduce any of the Franchisee’s rights as
provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C, or the Franchisee’s rights to any
procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction.

6. Item 17(w) of the Franchise Agreement chart, under the heading entitled “Choice of law,”
shall be amended by adding the following language at the end of the Item:

This provision may not be enforceable under Minnesota law.

7. Each provision of this Addendum to the Franchise Disclosure Document shall be effective
only to the extent, with respect to such provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the Minnesota
Franchise Act, Minn. Stat. 88 80C.01 through 80C.22 and of the Rules and Regulations promulgated
thereunder by the Minnesota Commissioner of Commerce, Minn. Rules

8§ 2860.0100 through 2860.9930 are met independently without reference to this Addendum to the
Franchise Disclosure Document.

8. — The disclosure document, franchise agreement, development agreement and any document
signed in connection with the franchise are supplemented with the following language:

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any
claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or

disclaiming reliance on any statement by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting
on behalf of franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in

connection with the franchise.
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AMENDMENT TO MHHCAREFLOOR-&TEXTH-ECARETHE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MINNESOTA

In recognition of the requirements of the Minnesota Franchise Act, Minn. Stat. 88 80C.01 through 80C.22, and of
the Rules and Regulations promulgated thereunder by the Minnesota Commissioner of Commerce, Minn Rules.

Qemm%%%&%% 2860 0100 through 2860 9930 the partles to the attached mt#tGaFeMHIlCare
Floor & Textile Care Franchise Agreement (the “Franchise Agreement”) agree as follows:

B

1. Sections 1.4, 5.2.4 and 6.1 of the Franchise Agreement, under the headings entitled “Term.’
“Conditions to Transfer,” and “Termination by Franchisor,” shall be supplemented by the addition of the

following language:
Minnesota law provides franchisees with certain termination, non-renewal and
transfer rights. In sum, Minn. Stat. 8 80C.14 (subd. 3, 4, and 5) currently requires

except specified cases, that a franchisee be given 90 days’ notice of termination
(with 60 days to cure) and 180 days’ notice of nonrenewal of the Agreement, and

that consent to the transfer of the franchise not be unreasonably withheld.

2. Section 3.9.3 of the Agreement, under the heading “Obligations of Franchisee,” shall be
amended by the addition of the following new paragraph:

Pursuant to Minnesota Stat. Sec. 800.12, Subd. 1(g), Franchisor is required to
protect any rights Franchisee may have to Franchisor’s Marks.

3. Section 7.1 of the Franchise Agreement, under the heading entitled “Governing Law” shall
be supplemented by the addition of the following:

7.1.1 Pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 80C.21, this Section 25 shall not in any wa
abrogate or reduce any rights of the Franchisee as provided for in the Minnesota

Franchises Law and the Rules and Regulations promulgated thereunder by the
Minnesota Commissioner of Commerce.

4, Section 7.2 of the Franchise Agreement, under the heading entitled “Forum Selection;
Jurisdiction,” shall be supplemented by the addition of the following language:

Minn. Stat. Section 80C.21 and Minn. Rule 2860.4400J prohibits Franchisor from

requiring litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota. This Section 26.4 shall not

in any way abrogate or reduce any of Franchisee’s rights as provided for in the
Minnesota Franchise Law and the Rules and Regulations promulgated thereunder

by the Minnesota Commissioner of Commerce.
5. Section 7.2 of the Franchise Agreement, under the heading entitled “Forum Selection;
Jurisdiction,” shall be supplemented by the addition of the following:

Pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 80C.17 (subd. 5), this Section 7.2 shall not in any wa
abrogate or reduce the time period for bringing a civil action under Minn. Stat. §
80C.17.

6. The disclosure document, franchise agreement, development agreement and any document signed
in connection with the franchise are supplemented with the following language:

No statement, guestionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of
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(i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the
inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement by any franchisor, franchise

seller, or other person acting on behalf of franchisor. This provision supersedes any other
term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent, with respect to such provision, that
the jurisdictional requirements of the Minnesota Franchise Act, Minn. Stat. 8§ 80C.01 through 80C.22, and
of the Rules and Regulations promulgated thereunder by the Minnesota Commissioner of Commerce, Minn.
Rules 8§ 2860.0100 through 2860.9930, are met independently without reference to this Amendment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have duly executed, sealed, and delivered this

Minnesota Amendment to the Franchise Agreement on the same date as that on which the Franchise
Agreement was executed.

ATTEST MILLICARE FRANCHISING, LLC

By:

Name:

Title:

FRANCHISEE




WL




A=

ERANCHISEE

By

Nama:
ipicaanicy

Titla-
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ADDENDUM TO THE MH-HICAREFLOOR & TEXTH-ECARE-FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE

1

DOCUMENT
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF NEW YORK

The following information is added to the cover page of the Franchise Disclosure Document:

INFORMATION COMPARING FRANCHISORS IS AVAILABLE. CALL THE STATE
ADMINISTRATORS LISTED IN EXHIBIT AOR YOUR PUBLIC LIBRARY FOR SOURCES
OF INFORMATION. REGISTRATION OF THIS FRANCHISE BY NEW YORK STATE
DOES NOT MEAN THAT NEW YORK STATE RECOMMENDS IT OR HAS VERIFIED THE
INFORMATION IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. IF YOU LEARN THAT
ANYTHING IN THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT IS UNTRUE, CONTACT
THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION AND NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF LAW,
BUREAU OF INVESTOR PROTECTION AND SECURITIES, 120 BROADWAY, 23RD
FLOOR, NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10271. THE FRANCHISOR MAY, IF IT CHOOSES,
NEGOTIATE WITH YOU ABOUT ITEMS COVERED IN THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT. HOWEVER, THE FRANCHISOR CANNOT USE THE NEGOTIATING
PROCESS TO PREVAIL UPON A PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE TO ACCEPT TERMS
WHICH ARE LESS FAVORABLE THAN THOSE SET FORTH IN THIS FRANCHISE
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

The following is added at the end of Item 3:

Except as provided above, with regard to the franchisor, its predecessor, a person identified in Item
2, or an affiliate offering franchises under the franchisor’s principal trademark:

A No such party has an administrative, criminal or civil action pending against that person
alleging: a felony, a violation of a franchise, antitrust, or securities law, fraud,
embezzlement, fraudulent conversion, misappropriation of property, unfair or deceptive
practices, or comparable civil or misdemeanor allegations.

B. No such party has pending actions, other than routine litigation incidental to the business,
which are significant in the context of the number of franchisees and the size, nature or
financial condition of the franchise system or its business operations.

C. No such party has been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo contendere to a felony charge
or, within the 10-year period immediately preceding the application for registration, has
been convicted of or pleaded nolo contendere to a misdemeanor charge or has been the
subject of a civil action alleging: violation of a franchise, antifraud, or securities law; fraud,;
embezzlement; fraudulent conversion or misappropriation of property; or unfair or
deceptive practices or comparable allegations.

D. No such party is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order or decree
relating to the franchise, or under a Federal, State, or Canadian franchise, securities,
antitrust, trade regulation or trade practice law, resulting from a concluded or pending
action or proceeding brought by a public agency; or is subject to any currently effective
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order of any national securities association or national securities exchange, as defined in
the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, suspending or expelling such person from
membership in such association or exchange; or is subject to a currently effective injunctive
or restrictive order relating to any other business activity as a result of an action brought
by a public agency or department, including, without limitation, actions affecting a license
as a real estate broker or sales agent.

3. The following is added to the end of Item 4:

Neither the franchisor, its affiliate, its predecessor, officers, or general partner during the 10-year
period immediately before the date of the offering circular: (a) filed as debtor (or had filed against
it) a petition to start an action under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code; (b) obtained a discharge of its debts
under the bankruptcy code; or (c) was a principal officer of a company or a general partner in a
partnership that either filed as a debtor (or had filed against it) a petition to start an action under the

U.S. Bankruptcy Code or that obtained a discharge of its debts under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code
during or within 1 year after that officer or general partner of the franchisor held this position in
the company or partnership.

4. The following is added to the end of Item 5:

The initial fee constitutes part of our general operating funds and will be used as such in our
discretion.

5. The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(c), titled “Requirements
for franchisee to renew or extend,” and Item 17(m), entitled “Conditions for franchisor approval
of transfer”:

However, to the extent required by applicable law, all rights you enjoy and any causes of action
arising in your favor from the provisions of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of
New York and the regulations issued thereunder shall remain in force; it being the intent of this
proviso that the non-waiver provisions of General Business Law Sections 687.4 and 687.5 be
satisfied.

6. The following language replaces the “Summary” section of Item 17(d), titled “Termination by
franchisee”:

You may terminate the agreement on any grounds available by law.

7. The following is added to the end of the “Summary” section of Item 17(j), titled “Assignment of
contract by franchisor”:

However, no assignment will be made except to an assignee who in good faith and judgment of the
franchisor, is willing and financially able to assume the franchisor’s obligations under the Franchise
Agreement.

8. The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(v), titled “Choice of
forum”, and Item 17(w), titled “Choice of law”:
" | | e Diccl




The foregoing choice of law should not be considered a waiver of any right conferred upon the
franchisor or upon the franchisee by Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New
York.

9.  Thedisclosure document, franchise agreement, development agreement and any document signed in
connection with the franchise are supplemented with the following language:

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in -connection with
the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under
any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any
statement by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of franchisor. This
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.
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ADDENDUM TO MHLLICAREFLOOR & FEXTH-E CAREFRANCHISETHE DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT

FOR USE IN NORTH DAKOTA

1) Item 5 is amended as follows:

After examination of the financial statements of franchisor by the North Dakota
Securities Department, it has been determined that adequate financial resources may
not be available to the franchisor for the performance of its obligations to furnish
good and/or services to assist franchisees in establishing and opening their franchise
business. -As such, payment of the initial-franchisefeelnitial Franchise Fee will be
deferred until all initial obligations owed to franchisee under the franchise agreement
or other documents have been fulfilled by the franchisor and the franchisee has
commenced doing business pursuant to the franchise agreement. -

2 The first sentence of the summary column of Item 17, paragraph c. of this disclosure
document is modified as follows:

"Sign new franchise agreement, which may contain materially different
terms and conditions than your initial franchise agreement, comply with
current Franchise Agreement, exercise diligent efforts to develop your
franchise during the term in a manner acceptable to us, meet our then
current subjective and objective standards for new franchisees, provide us
with requested documentation, give timely notice of desire to renew,
execute a general release (except for matters coming under the North
Dakota Franchise Investment Law (the “ND Law”), complete required
training and consulting programs, and attend all required meetings and
events."

3 The summary column of Item 17, paragraph (i) of this disclosure document is modified
by adding the following at the end of the sentence:

"The Franchisee is not required to pay liquidated damages upon
termination for any matters coming under the ND Law."

4) The Summary column of Item 17, paragraph (r) of this disclosure document is modified
by adding the following at the end of the sentence:

"Covenants not to compete such as those mentioned above are generally
considered unenforceable in the State of North Dakota."

5) The Summary column of Item 17, paragraph (u) of this disclosure document is amended
by adding the following at the end of the paragraph:

"except those matters coming under the ND Law will be submitted to
arbitration in a mutually agreeable location and may not be remote from
the franchisee’s place of business."
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(6) The Summary column of Item 17, paragraph (v) of this disclosure document is amended
to read as follows:

"Except for matters coming under the ND Law, litigation must be in

Spartanburg,—South—Carolina-"the city and state of our then-current

National Headquarters (presently Orlando, Florida)."

) The Summary column of Item 17, paragraph (w) of this disclosure document is amended
to read as follows:

"Except for matters coming under the ND Law, the laws of Seuth
Carolinathe state of our then current National Headquarters (presently Florida)

apply."

(8) The Franchisee is not required to consent to a waiver of exemplary and punitive damages.

9) The Franchisee is not required to waive jury trial for any matters coming under the ND

Law.

(10)  The Franchisee is not required to consent to limitation of claims within 1 year for any
matters coming under the ND Law.

(11) — No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a
franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect
of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the
inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement by any franchisor, franchise seller, or
other person acting on behalf of franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any
document executed in connection with the franchise.

(12)  The prevailing party in any enforcement action is entitled to recover all costs and
expenses including attorney’s fees.
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NORTH DAKOTA RIDER-

TO
MHEEICAREFLOOR & TEXTH-ECARE THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

FOR USE IN NORTH DAKOTA

This Rider is entered into this , 20___ (the “Effective Date”), between
MILLICARE, FRANCHISING, LLC (“mitiCareMilliCare”), a Delaware limited liability company
(“Franchisor”), and (“Franchisee”) and

amends the Franchise Agreement between the parties dated as of the Effective Date, (the “Agreement”).

1. Precedence and Defined Terms. This Rider is an integral part of, and is incorporated into,
the Agreement. Nevertheless, this Rider supersedes any inconsistent or conflicting provisions of the
Agreement. Terms not otherwise defined in this Rider have the meanings as defined in the Agreement.

2. Renewal Conditions. Franchisee is not required to sign a general release as to any matters
coming under the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law (the "ND Law").

3. Liquidated Damages Upon Termination Due to Franchisee’s Default. The provision
relating to Liquidated Damages is deleted.

4, Competition. Covenants not to compete, such as those mentioned in this section, are
generally considered unenforceable in the state of North Dakota.

5. Arbitration. All matters coming under the ND Law will be submitted to arbitration in a
mutually agreeable location and may not be remote from the Franchisee's place of business.

6. Forum Selection; Jurisdiction. All matters coming under the ND Law may be brought
in the courts of North Dakota.

7. Governing Law. This Agreement will be governed by and interpreted under the laws of
North Dakota.

8. No Punitive Damages. Section 7.6 of the Franchise Agreement has been deleted in its entirety.
9. No Trial by Jury. Section 7.7 of the Franchise Agreement is deleted in its entirety.
10. Limitation of Claims. The statute of limitations under ND Law applies to all matters

coming under ND Law.

11. Costs and Legal Fees. The prevailing party in any enforcement action is entitled to
recover all costs and expenses, including attorney’s fees.

12. Payment of Initial Franchise Fee. After examination of the financial statements of
franchisor by the North Dakota Securities Department, it has been determined that adequate financial
resources may not be available to the franchisor for the performance of its obligations to furnish good and/or
services to assist franchisees in establishing and opening their franchise business. -As such, payment of the
itial-franchise-feelnitial Franchise Fee will be deferred until all initial obligations owed to franchisee

under the franchise agreement or other documents have been fulfilled by the franchisor and the franchisee




has commenced doing business pursuant to the franchise agreement. -

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with
the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under an
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement
by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of franchisor.

13. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the
franchise.

Intending to be bound the Franchisor and Franchisee sign and deliver this Rider in 2 counterparts
effective on the date of execution of the Agreement, regardless of actual date of signature.

MILLICARE FRANCHISING, LLC FRANCHISEE
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: —Title:
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ADDENDUM-
TO THE MHHCGAREHFLOOR- &TFEXTHEE CAREFRANCHISEMFERANCHISE DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT-
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF VIRGINIA

In recognition of the restrictions contained in Section 13.1-564 of the Virginian Retail Franchising
Act, the Franchise Disclosure Document for MilliCare Franchising, LLC for use in the Commonwealth of
Virginia shall be amended as follow:

The following statements are added to Item 17.h:

Under Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a franchisor
to cancel a franchise without reasonable cause. If any grounds for default or termination stated
in the franchise agreement does not constitute “reasonable cause,” as that term may be defined
in the Virginia Retail Franchising Act or the laws of Virginia, that provision may not be
enforced.

The disclosure document, franchise agreement, development agreement and any document signed in connection
with the franchise are supplemented with the following language:

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i)
waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the
inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement by any franchisor, franchise seller,
or other person acting on behalf of franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of
any document executed in connection with the franchise.
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ADDENDUM TO THE MHHCAREFLEOOR- & TEXTH-ECARE-FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT_THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT, AND ALL RELATED AGREEMENTS
REQOUIRED BY THE STATE OFWASHINGTON

Ip-the-eventetacontlietot-laws—the
The provisions of theWashington-this Addendum form an integral part of, are incorporated into, and modify
the Franchise tnvestment-Protection-Act-Chapter 19:100 RCW will prevail-

RCW-19-100-180-may-supersedeDisclosure Document, the franchise agreement-in-yeur+elationship-with,

and all related agreements regardless of anything to the contrary contained therein. This Addendum applies

if: (a) the offer tosell a franchlse is accepted in Washlnqton (b) the franchiser-including-the-areaspurchaser

the - franchlse ag;eenqent—ln—yeulf—eetatlensmpwmls a re5|dent of Washlnqton and/or (c) the franchlsed
business that is the franchiser-including-the-areassubject of termination-andrenewal-ofyyourfranchise-

. hitration-or-mediation-invehzing i ed-in\Washinaton bitrationthe sale is to be located

or medmtmnam%eeﬁher—mthestateeioperated WhoIIv or partly, in Washlngton—epmeplaeeumutuauyagteed
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ADBDENDUM-TO-MILLICAREFLOOR & TEXTIHEECARE
LRI EE ACREEMERT

REOUIRED BY THE STATE OF Conflict of Laws. WASHINGTON

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act,
Chapterchapter 19.100 RCW will prevail._

Franchisee Bill of Rights. RCW 19.100.180 may supersede provisions in the franchise agreement inor

related agreements concerning your relationship with the franchisor, including in the areas of termination
and renewal of your franchise. There may also be court decisions which-maythat supersede the franchise
agreement #ror related agreements concerning your relationship with the franchisor. Franchise agreement
provisions, including those summarized in Item 17 of the areasFranchise Disclosure Document, are
subject to state law.

Site of terminatienArbitration, Mediation, and-renewal-efyyeurfranchise:

3.

/or_Litigation. In any arbitration or mediation involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the

arbitration or mediation site will be either in the state of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed upon
at the time of the arbitration or mediation, or as determined by the arbitrator or mediator at the time of
arbitration or mediation. In addition, if litigation is not precluded by the franchise agreement, a franchisee
may bring an action or proceeding arising out of or in connection with the sale of franchises, or a violation
of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, in Washington.

General Release. A release or waiver of rights executed-by—a-in the franchise agreement or related

agreements purporting to bind the franchisee may—not-include-rightsto waive compliance with any
provision under the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rulerules or erderorders
thereunder is void except when executed pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the agreement is in
effect and where the parties are represented by independent counsel, in accordance with RCW
19.100.220(2). In addition, any such release or waiver executed in connection with a renewal or transfer
of a franchise is likewise void except as provided for in RCW 19.100.220(2).

Statute of Limitations and Waiver of Jury Trial. Provisions contained in the franchise agreement or

related agreements that unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of limitations period for claims under the
Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, or rights or remedies under the Act such as a right to
a jury trial, may not be enforceable.

Transfer Fees. Transfer fees are collectable only to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable

estimated or actual costs in effecting a transfer.

Termination by Franchisee. The franchisee may terminate the franchise agreement under any grounds

permitted under state law.

Certain Buy-Back Provisions. Provisions in franchise agreements or related agreements that permit the

franchisor to repurchase the franchisee’s business for any reason during the term of the franchise
agreement without the franchisee’s consent are unlawful pursuant to RCW 19.100.180(2)(j), unless the
franchise is terminated for good cause.

Fair and Reasonable Pricing. Any provision in the franchise agreement or related agreements that

10.

requires the franchisee to purchase or rent any product or service for more than a fair and reasonable
price is unlawful under RCW 19.100.180(2)(d).

Waiver of Exemplary & Punitive Damages. RCW 19.100.190 permits franchisees to seek treble

damages under certain circumstances. Accordingly, provisions contained in the franchise agreement or
elsewhere requiring franchisees to waive exemplary, punitive, or similar damages are void, except when
executed pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties are
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represented by mdependent counsel—pmvmens—sueha&eheseANme#uﬂreasenabLy—msmeeePMM—me

11. Franchisor’s Business Judgement. Provisions in the franchise agreement or related agreements stating
that the franchisor may exercise its discretion on the basis of its reasonable business judgment may be
limited or superseded by RCW 19.100.180(1), which requires the parties to deal with each other in good
faith.

12. Indemnification. Any provision in the franchise agreement or related agreements requiring the
franchisee to indemnify, reimburse, defend, or hold harmless the franchisor or other parties is hereby
modified such that the franchisee has no obligation to indemnify, reimburse, defend, or hold harmless
the franchisor or any other indemnified party for losses or liabilities to the extent that they are caused by
the indemnified party’s negligence, willful misconduct, strict liability, or fraud.

13. Attorneys’ Fees. If the franchise agreement or related agreements require a franchisee to reimburse the
franchisor for court costs or expenses, including attorneys’ fees, such provision applies only if the
franchisor is the prevailing party in any judicial or arbitration proceeding.

14. Noncompetition Covenants. Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant is void and
unenforceable against an employee, including an employee of a franchisee, unless the employee’s
earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $100,000 per year (an amount
that will be adjusted annually for inflation). In addition, a noncompetition covenant is void and
unenforceable against an independent contractor of a franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless the
independent contractor’s earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed
$250,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). As a result, any
provisiensprovision contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere that cenflictconflicts with these
limitations areis void and unenforceable in Washington._

15. Nonsolicitation Agreements. RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from restricting, restraining, or
prohibiting a franchisee from (i) soliciting or hiring any employee of a franchisee of the same franchisor
or (ii) soliciting or hiring any employee of the franchisor. As a result, any such provisions contained in
the franchise agreement or elsewhere are void and unenforceable in Washington._

TFhe-franchise-agreement-Questionnaires and any-document-signed-in-connection-with-the-franchise-are

16. Acknowledgments. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee
in -connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving
any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of
the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with
the franchise._
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17. Prohibitions on Communicating with Regulators. Any provision in the franchise agreement or related
agreements that prohibits the franchisee from communicating with or complaining to requlators is
inconsistent with the express instructions in the Franchise Disclosure Document and is unlawful under
RCW 19.100.180(2)(h).

18. Advisory Regarding Franchise Brokers. Under the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act,
a “franchise broker” is defined as a person that engages in the business of the offer or sale of franchises.
A franchise broker represents the franchisor and is paid a fee for referring prospects to the franchisor
and/or selling the franchise. If a franchisee is working with a franchise broker, franchisees are advised to
carefully evaluate any information provided by the franchise broker about a franchise.

Franchisor offers a referral incentive program that pays $10,000 to an existing franchisee who directly refers
a candidate to Franchisor who executes a miiCareMilliCare franchise agreement for a new location within

6 months of the date of referral. The incentive payment is only paid with respect to the first franchise
Durchased by the referred new franchlsee and other limitations may apply. iliheemeenfdwpaymem—rsrenw

apply—Franchlsees who receive flnanC|aI mcentlves to refer franchlse prospects to the Franchlsor may be
required to register as franchise brokers under the laws of Washington State. -

As-a-condition-of registration-and-basedBased upon Franchisor’s-limited-operating history—and-Hmitedthe

franchlsors financial condltlon Franehwerthe State of Washmqton has seeured—a—sure%y—bend—trem—Areh

S Hsrequired a financial

assurance. Therefore aII |n|t|al fees and pavments owed bv franchlsees shall be deferred until the franchisor
completes its pre-opening obligations te-each-franchiseeunder the franchise agreement.

ATFFESTThe undersigned parties do hereby acknowledge receipt of this addendum.

Dated this day of .20

MILLICARE FRANCHISING, LLC

By:
Name:
Title:

FRANCHISEE

By:
Name:
Title:
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EXHIBIT KJ

SAMPLE FORM OF GENERAL RELEASE
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RELEASE OF CLAIMS

IN-CONSIDERATION-For and in consideration of the Agreements and covenants described below,

MilliCare Franchising, LLC—“milliCare™);—agreeing. (“Franchisor”) and (“Franchisee™) enter
into this Release of Claims (“Agreement”).

RECITALS
A. Franchisor and Franchisee entered into a MilliCare© Franchise Agreement dated
B. [NOTE: Describe the circumstances relating to a—renewaltermthe release.]
C. Subiject to and as addressed with greater specificity in the terms and conditions set forth

below, Franchisor and Franchisee now desire to settle any and all disputes that may exist between them
relating to the Franchise Agreement.

AGREEMENTS
1. Consideration. [NOTE: Describe the consideration paid.]
2. [NOTE: Detail other terms and conditions of the release.]
3. Release of Claims by Franchisor. Except as noted in this Section 4, and subject

to your compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, including the payment of $

to Franchisor, Franchisor, for the-milliCare Floor- & Textile Careitself, its
predecessors, successors, assigns, affiliates, directors, officers, shareholders, and employees
(collectively and individually referred to as the “Franchisor Parties”), hereby release and forever
discharge Franchisee, its heirs, successors and assigns, affiliates, directors, officers and shareholders,
and any other party claiming an interest through them (collectively and individually referred to as the
“Franchisee Parties”) from any and all claims, debts, liabilities, demands, obligations, costs, expenses,
actions and causes of action, whether known or unknown, vested or contingent, which you may now or
in the future own or hold, that in any way relate to the Franchise Agreement (collectively, “Claims”),
for known or unknown damages or other losses including but not limited to, any alleged violations of
any deceptive or unfair trade practices laws, franchise Ouet—bsy
laws, or other local, municipal, state, federal, or other laws, statutes, rules or
requlations, and any alleged violations of the Franchise Agreement or any other related agreement
between you and Franchisor or your affiliate and Franchisor.

The Franchisor Parties do not release the Franchisee Parties from any obligations arising by virtue
of this Agreement and the Franchisee Parties’ failure to comply with those obligations. Further, the
Franchisor Parties do not release the Franchisee Parties from any Claims related to Franchisee’s (i)
indemnification obligations under Section __ of the Franchise Agreement, (ii) non-disclosure obligations
under Section  of the Franchise Agreement, and (iii) post- termination non-compete obligations under
Section _ of the Franchise Agreement, each of which remain in full force and effect and are incorporated
by reference in this Agreement.

4, Release of Claims by Franchisee. In consideration of the other terms and
conditions of this Agreement, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the
Franchisee Parties release and forever discharge the Franchisor Parties of and from any and all Claims,
for known or unknown damages or other losses including but not limited to, any alleged violations of any
deceptive or unfair trade practices laws, franchise laws, or other local, municipal, state, federal, or other
laws, statutes, rules or requlations, and any alleged violations of the Franchise Agreement or any other
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related agreement between you and Franchisor or your affiliate and Franchisor.

The Franchisee Parties do not release the Franchisor Parties from any obligations arising by virtue
of this Aereement and the Franchisor Parties’ failure to comply with those obligations.

[FOR USE IN MARYLAND]: Further, the Franchisee Parties and the Franchisor Parties
acknowledge that the release set forth in this Section 5 does not release the Franchisor Parties from any
liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

[FOR USE IN CALIFORNIA]: The Releasors, for themselves, their heirs, successors, and
assigns, hereby expressly, voluntarily and knowingly waive, relinquish and abandon each and every right,
protection, and benefit to which they would be entitled, now or at any time hereafter under Section 1542 of
the Civil Code of the State of California, as well as under any other statutes or common law principles of
similar effect to said Section 1542, whether now or hereinafter existing under the laws of California or any
other applicable federal and state law with jurisdiction over the parties relationship. The Franchisee Parties
acknowledge that Section 1542 of the Civil Code of the State of California provides as follows:

“A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist
in his favor at the time of executing the release, which if known by him must have materially
affected his settlement with the debtor.”

5. Acknowledgement. The releases of Claims set forth in Section 4 and Section 5
are intended by the Franchisor Parties and the Franchisee Parties (collectively, the “Parties”) to be full and
unconditional general releases, as that phrase is used and commonly interpreted, extending to all claims of
any nature, whether or not known, expected or anticipated to exist in favor of the one of the Parties against
the other Party regardless of whether any unknown, unsuspected or unanticipated claim would materially
affect settlement and compromise of any matter mentioned herein. In making this voluntary express
waiver, the Parties acknowledge that claims or facts in addition to or different from those which are now
known to exist with respect to the matters mentioned herein may later be discovered and that it is the
Parties’ respective intentions to hereby fully and forever settle and release any and all matters, regardless
of the possibility of later discovered claims or facts. This Release is and shall be and remain a full,
complete and unconditional general release. The Parties further acknowledge and agree that no violation
of this Agreement shall void the releases set forth in this Agreement.

6. Reservation of Claims Against Non-Settling Parties. Franchisor and Franchisee
expressly reserve their right and claims against any non-settling persons, firms, corporations, or other
entities for whatever portion or percentage their damages are found to be attributable to the wrongful
conduct of said non-settling parties.

Entire Agreement.
in S ) and-—its—member(s),
T ) AN Js !

(13 2
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13 . 29

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties relative to the
subject matter contained herein, and all prior understandings, representations and agreements made by and
between the parties relative to the contents contained in this Agreement are merged into this Agreement.

Voluntary Nature of Agreement. The parties acknowledge and agree that they futhy-understand

——and—— hereby—declare—and—have entered into this Agreement

voluntarily and without any coercion. The parties further represent that in-raking-this Release-they have

relied-whelly—upenhad the opportunity to consult with an attorney of their own judgment—behefand
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8. And

Aqreement and that thev fuIIv understand and voluntanly accept the terms

9. Fhisrelease-isthapplicable- with-respectto-claims-arisingGoverning Law and

Jurisdiction. This Agreement will be construed and enforced in accordance with the law of the state of

10. Attorneys’ Fees. All rights and remedies under this Agreement shall be cumulative
and none shall exclude any other right or remedy allowed by law. In the event of a breach of this
Agreement that requires one of the parties to enforce the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the non-
prevailing party shall pay the prevailing party’s attorneys’ fees and costs incurred by reason of the breach.

Dated: MILLICARE FRANCHISING, LLC.
By
Its
Dated: FRANCHISEE:
By

*This Agreement does not waive any liability the franchisor may have under the Washington Franchise
Investment Protection Act, RCW 19.100, and the rules adopted thereunder.

WHTNESS:

MilliCare Floor & Textile Care
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MilliCare Floor & Textile Care
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EXHIBIT £K

STATE EFFECTIVE DATES




State Effective Dates

The following states have-franchise-lawsthatrequire that the Franchise Disclosure
Document be registered or filed with the state, or otherwise be exempt from registration:
California, HawahFlorida, Illinois, Indiana, Kentucky, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota,
Nebraska, New York, North Dakota Rhode Island, South Dakota, Texas, Utah, Virginia,
Washington, and Wisconsin.

_This disclosure document is e
registered, on file or exempt from reglstratlon—asref—the-EﬁeeWeQate-stated-belew- in the following states
having franchise registration and disclosure laws, with the following effective dates:

STATECALIFORNIA EFFECTINVEDATEPending
CaliforniaFLORIDA Pending
HawaiHAWAII Not Registered
HhnoisILLINOIS Pending
IadianalNDIANA Pending
Ma%ylandMARYLAND Pending
Miehig&HMlCHIGAN Pending
MinnesotaMINNESOTA Pending
New-YorkNEW YORK Pending
Neorth-DaketaNORTH Pending
NDAKNOTA
Rhode-IslanrdRHODE Pending
11 ANID
Seuth-DaketaSOUTH Pending
NDAKNOTA
VirginiaUTAH Pending
WashingtenVIRGINIA Pending
WiseonstRWASHINGTON Pending
WISCONSIN Pending

Other states may require registration, filing, or exemption of a franchise under other laws,
such as those that regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or seller-assisted
marketing plans.

In all other states, the effective date of this Franchise Disclosure Document is April 1, 2025.




RECEIPT

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information
in plain language. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully.

If milliCareMilliCare Franchising, LLC offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure document to
you 14 calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an
affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale. New York requires that we give you this disclosure
document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 10 business days before the execution of any binding
franchise or other agreement, or payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.
Michigan requires that we give you this disclosure document at least 10 business days before the execution
of any binding franchise or other agreement, or payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first.

If milliCareMilliCare Franchising, LLC does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains
a false or misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have
occurred and should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580 and any
applicable state agency (as listed in Exhibit A to this disclosure document).

The franchisor is MilliCare Franchising, LLC, located at 6700 Forum Drive, Suite 150, Orlando, FL 32821.
Its telephone number is 800-883-0154.

We authorize the respective state agencies identified on Exhibit A to receive service of process for us if we
are registered in the particular state.

The name, principal business address, and telephone number of the franchise sellers offering the franchise
are: David Wells of EverSmith Brands, acts as our Franchise Seller. His principal business address is 6700

Forum Drive, Suite 150, Orlando, FL, 32821, 800-883-0154.
, of acts as our Franchise Seller. His/her principal

business address is

Issuance Date: April 1, 2025. (See State Effective Dates page immediately prior to the Receipt for state
effective dates.)

I have received a disclosure document dated: March-28,-2024,-as-amended-June27-2024April 1, 2025, that
included the following exhibits:

A.  State Administrators and Agents for Service of Process
B. B.1 Financial Statements

B.12 Guaranty of Parent

C. Franchise Agreement

D.  Conversion Addendum

C——Franchise-Agreerent




FE. Confidentiality and Non-Competition Agreement
G:F. List of Franchisees

H-.G. List of Franchisees Who Have Left The System
LH. Franchisee Compliance Certification

J1.  State Addenda

K=J. Form of General Release

LK. State Effective Dates

Data:
TUATUS

: :

Date Signature Printed Name

Date Signature Printed
Print Name

RETAINKEEP THIS COPY FOR YOUR RECORDS
This Disclosure Document is available by request in either paper or .pdf format, please contact
david.wells@eversmithbrands.com.




RECEIPT

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information
in plain language. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully.




If mithiCareMilliCare Franchising, LLC. offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure document to
you 14 calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an
affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale. New York requires that we give you this disclosure
document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 10 business days before the execution of any binding
franchise or other agreement, or payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.
Michigan requires that we give you this disclosure document at least 10 business days before the execution
of any binding franchise or other agreement, or payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first.

If milliCareMilliCare Franchising, LLC does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains
a false or misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have
occurred and should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580 and any
applicable state agency (as listed in Exhibit A to this disclosure document).

FhefranchisorismilliCareThe franchisor is MilliCare Franchising, LLC, located at 6700 Forum Drive, Suite
150, Orlando, FL 32821. lts telephone number is 800-883-0154.

We authorize the respective state agencies identified on Exhibit A to receive service of process for us if we
are registered in the particular state.

The name, principal business address, and telephone number of the franchise sellers offering the franchise
are: David Wells of EverSmith Brands, acts as our Franchise Seller. His principal business address is 6700
Forum Drive, Suite 150, Orlando, FL, 32821, 800-883-0154.

of acts as our Franchise Seller. His/her principal

business address is

Issuance Date: April 1, 2025. (See State Effective Dates page immediately prior to the Receipt for state

effective dates.)

I have received a disclosure document dated:Mareh-28,2024,-as-amended-June27-2024 April 1, 2025, that
included the following exhibits:

A:B. State Administrators and Agents for Service of Process
B. Bl Financial Statements

B.22 Guaranty of Parent-

C.  Franchise Agreement

D.  Conversion Addendum

'EE. Confidentiality and Non-Competition Agreement
G.F. List of Franchisees
H.G. List of Franchisees Who Have Left The System




LH.  Franchisee Compliance Certification
Jl.  State Addenda

K=J. Form of General Release

LK. State Effective Dates

Data:
Fatls

- .
Print

Date Signature Printed Name
Date Signature Printed Name

RETURN THIS COPY TO MILLICARE
Please sign this copy of the receipt, date your signature, and return it to David Wells, MilliCare Franchising, LLC.,
6700 Forum Dr Ste 150, Orlando, Florida 32821-8013, 888-833-0154, david.wells@eversmithbrands.com.






